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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

HouseE or CoMMONS,
Monpay, February 18, 1935.

Resolved,—That Messrs. Morand, Bourgeois, Church, Dorion, Elliott,
Ganong, Gray, Sullivan, Hanbury, Heaps, Howard, Howden, MecIntosh, Peck,
Plunkett, Rinfret, Stanley, and White (London), be appointed a Special Com-
mittee of this House to consider and report upon the inauguration of a national
policy of house building to include the construction, reconstruction and repair
of urban and rural dwelling houses in order to provide employment throughout
Canada, and also to provide such dwelling houses as may be necessary, upon
such terms and conditions as may be best adapted to the needs and requirements
of the people, having regard to the cost of such a policy and the burden to be
imposed upon the treasury of Canada; and to recommend the manner in which
such a work should be proceeded with; and to hear evidence and to send for
persons and papers in regard to the matters above set out; and that para-
graph (1) of Standing Order 65, be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

Fripay, February 22, 1935.

. t_Ordered;—That the said Committee be given leave to report from time
0 time.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be given leave to print from day to
day 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of the proceedings and
evidence to be taken before the Committee, and of papers and records to be

incorporated with such evidence; and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in
relation thereto.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

94684—14



REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE

First REPORT
TrURsDAY, February 21, 1935.
The Special Committee on Housing begs leave to present the following as a
FirsT REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be granted leave to report from
time to time. :

Your Committee also recommends that 500 copies in English and 200 copies
in French of the proceedings and evidence to be taken before the Committee,
and of papers and records to be incorporated with such evidence, be printed
from day to day; and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

A. D. GANONG,
Chairman.

iv



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

* Housk o COMMONS,
ComMmiTTEE RooMm 268,
THURSDAY, February 21, 1935.

The Special Committee appointed to consider and report upon the inaugura-
tion of a national policy of house building, to include the construction, re-con-
struction and repair of urban and rural dwelling houses, met at 10.30 o’clock,
a.m., for organization.

The following members were present:—Messieurs: Bourgeois, Church,
Elliott Ganong, Gray, Hanbury, Heaps, Morand, MecIntosh, Peck, Plunkett,
Rinfret, Stanley and White (London)—14.

On motion of Mr. Morand, seconded by Mr. Elliott, Mr. Ganong was unani-
mously elected Chairman.

Mr. Ganong took the Chair and thanked the Committee for the honour
conferred upon him. )

The Order of Reference was read by the Clerk of the Committee.

Mr. Hanbury moved, seconded by Mr. Rinfret, that the Committee ask
leave of the House to report from time to time, as this was not included in the
Order of Reference. Motion carried.

Mr. Gray moved, seconded by Mr. Morand, that the Committee ask leave
to have printed from day to day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French,
of the proceedings and evidence to be taken before the Committee, and of all
papers and records to be incorporated with such evidence; and that Standing
Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto. Motion carried.

On motion of Mr. Morand, seconded by Mr. Elliott, it was decided that a
sub-committee of five members be appointed by the Chairman to consider what
witnesses should be called, reports procured, and to prepare agenda; the sub-
committee to report at the next meeting.

There was some discussion as to whether town-planning commissioners or
municipal authorities should be consulted.

Mr. Morand questioned the authority of the Committee to discuss all phases
of the Housing problem especially as regards interest rates. The Chairman
referred to Mr. Coote’s motion on the Order Paper regarding interest rates on
mortgages and thought this subject might be sub-judice. Mr. Hanbury sug-
gested that consideration of this might be deferred until the question of interest
rates was under consideration.

There being no other business before the Committee, on motion of Mr.

Morand, seconded by Mr. Rinfret, the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

J4P: DOYLE,
Clerk of the Commuttee.



ComMmrITTEE Room 268,
House or ComMONS,

February 28, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued, met
this day at 10 o’clock, a.m., Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided.

The following members were present:—Messieurs: Bourgeois, Church,
Dorion, Elliott, Ganong, Hanbury, Heaps, Howard, Howden, Morand, McIntosh,
Peck, Plunkett, Rinfret, Stanley, Sullivan and White (London)—I17.

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and approved.

The Chairman stated that in compliance with a motion adopted at the last
meeting, he had appointed the following five members to constitute the sub-
committee on agenda: Messrs. Stanley, Morand, Church, Elliott and Hanbury.
He then called on Mr. Stanley to report for the sub-committee.

Mr. Stanley reported that the sub-committee had met and considered the
witnesses they thought it desirable to have appear before the Committee, and
that Mr. Noulan Cauchon, Town Planning Expert, and his assistant, Mr. J. M.
Kitchen, both of Ottawa, should be called for to-day’s meeting.

The Chairman asked if any of the members had any suggestions to make,
and Mr. Church outlined the course he thought the Committee should follow.

Mr. Cauchon was then called, examined, and retired.
It was decided to hear Mr. Kitchen at the next meeting.

The Committee adjourned at 12 o’clock, noon, to meet again at the call
of the Chair.
J. P. DOYLE,
Clerk of the Commiattee.



MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMoNs, Room 268,
February 28, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in Room 268, Thursday, February
28, 1935, Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

The CHARMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum here now. We will come
to order please. The subcommittee called this meeting at 10 o’clock with the
idea of sitting from 10 o’clock to 12 o’clock. When we come to consider their
report we can discuss at what time it would be advisable to call future meetings.

I will ask the Clerk to read the minutes of the last meeting. Minutes duly
read and approved. ;

Next we will have the report of the subcommittee. I might say that I
appointed the following to be members of the subcommittee: Dr. Stanley, Dr.
Morand, Mr. Church, Hon. Mr. Elliott, and Mr. Hanbury. I understand Dr.
Stanley acts as Chairman and I would ask him if he has any report for us.

Mr. StanLey: We have no formal report to make, Mr. Chairman; except
we decided to ask Mr: Cauchon and his assistant, Mr. Kitchen, to give evidence
to-day, and they are here.

The CHAIRMAN: Just one point, Mr. Stanley; that is, you decided to meet
at 10 o’clock:

Mr. STANLEY: No, just this morning.

The CHAIRMAN: —this morning, yes; I think we should decide at what
hour we are to meet. The suggestion was made by some of the members that
we should meet at 10 o’clock and sit until 12, their idea being that this will

afford them an opportunity of looking after mail or other work. Is 10 o’clock
satisfactory to the members of the Committee.

Mr. McInTosH: Half-past ten would be better if you want to look after
any mail or read your paper.

Mr. HANBURY: I think ten-thirty would be better.

Mr. PLUNKETT: I am on another committee and they are meeting at eleven,
I would prefer ten o’clock.

Mr. McINTosH: I would prefer ten-thirty.
Mr. Peck: If it is an expression of opinion you seek, ten o’clock suits me.

The CuamrmMaN: We will try to arrange our sittings as much as possible so
as not to conflict with the sittings of other committees.

Mr. McInTosa: Ten o’clock is an unusual hour for a committee to meet,
half-past ten has been more the general rule.

Mr. Heaps: It is largely a question of what days you choose.

Mr. CuamrmaN: We will try to choose days so far as possible which will
not conflict with other committees.

Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: Wednesday is not satisfactory to the Liberals who are

on the committee as they have some very important business on the calendar
to consider on that day.

Mr. STANLEY: At least, they think they have.

Hon. Mr. Eruiort: It is very essential that there should not be any oppo-
sition.

Mr. STANLEY: Leave it to the Chair.
1




2 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Hon. Mr. Eruiort: I would suggest that you do not meet on Wednesdays,
Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we call any witnesses, have any of the members
any suggestions, or anything they wish to take up.
} Mr. CHURCH: Mr. Chairman, I do not wish to detain the Committee for
more than two or three minutes. I want to point out that spring is coming on
very rapidly and if we are to accomplish anything in the way of reconstruction
or housing we have got to get right down to facts. Among the matters which
we might consider are public works, trunk sewers, armouries and educational
buildings, and many others of that description. These may all be considered
as relief measures and unemployment measures and it may be considered that
the principle of relief applies to them—one-third of the cost paid by the Domin-
ion, one-third by the province and one-third by the munieipality. I think we
might very well take a leaf out of the book of the people on a lot of these things;
namely, that we should go over the situation in the larger municipalities. The
records before us deal with two agencies, urban and suburban; it deals secondly
with housing and reconstruction. At the present minute the city of Winnipeg
has a very large application before the present government in connection with
which a large deputation came to Ottawa to interview the government before
the Parliamentary Session opened. Their application related to a trunk sewer
for the Winnipeg district, and in connection with that they have a very vast
undertaking. I think from what I saw in the newspapers about it—and I may
say that my information comes from some of the memoranda laid before the
government which was made public through the press—this project is both
urban and suburban, and it arises in connection with the solution of the Win-
nipeg river. That is just one municipal project. 1 do not advocate going as
far as the George scheme in England, or the Labour government scheme, be-
cause I believe that in these municipal undertakings where the municipality
gets one-third of the cost they should be able to carry the fixed charges, namely,
capital and sinking fund. My reason for saying that is that the powers of the
federal parliament are strictly limited, under the provisions of the British North
America Act, but as relief measures it might be possible for us to do something.
I believe we should go over the country first, from Halifax right to Vancouver,
to ascertain what the municipalities need along this line. We should also bear
in mind that people cannot pay taxes as they did with incomes reduced some
33 per cent; that as a consequence of people being out of work they cannot
pay real estate taxes, with a result that public buildings, schools and ordinary
municipal services are starved to-day all over Canada, and as a result muni-
cipalities are having a hard time.

The CuAmRMAN: Mr. Church, T do not think our reference has anything
whatever to do with works of that nature.

Mr. HANBURY: Yes, it has.

Mr. CaurcH: Yes, I think the reference covers that; I think it is broad
enough to include that.

Mr. HaNBURY: It is, “ relief work ” according to the reference.

Mr. Heaps: Oh! no, that is not in the reference.

The Cramrman: The reference says “housing ” I believe.

Mr. Heaps: We will have the reference read, please Mr. Chairman.

The CuamrmAN: Yes, I will ask the Clerk to read the order of reference.
Mr. CuurcH: If it is not broad enough it can be broadened.

Mr. CHAIRMAN: Just read the order of reference, Mr. Clerk.

The Crerx: The order of reference names the members and continues,
o ’I_‘o consider and report upon the inauguration of a national policy of house
building.”
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The CHARMAN: You will notice that is “ house building.”

The CLERK: —“ To include the construction, reconstruction and repair of
urban and rural dwelling houses "—

The CralRMAN: Now it says, ¢ dwelling houses.”

The CLERK: —“ In order to provide employment throughout Canada, and
also to provide such dwelling houses as may be necessary, upon such terms and
conditions as may be best adapted to the needs and requirements of the people,
having regard to the cost of such a policy and the burden to be imposed upon
the treasury of Canada.”

Mr. CuamrMAN: I think it only applies to house building, absolutely.

Mr. CrurcH: I will just conclude, Mr. Chairman, with the observation
that if the order of reference as it now stands is not broad enough it should be
made broad enough. As you know, this country cannot solve any problems at
all because of its “ passing-the-buck ” Act, the British North America Act;
it cannot settle any problems at all, except objectively. If we want to do some-
thing in this committee we need to get busy, particularly because spring is
coming; and I do not think many of the municipalities are able to go ahead
on their own. Men are waiting for jobs and cannot get them. I do not advocate
our adoption of such a policy as they have in England, where they are passing
works of all kinds with no provision for meeting fixed charges; because fixed
charges must come out of income from somebody, someone has to carry the
burden of the cost of these reconstruction measures, and right here let me say
that businessmen and merchants are being driven to bankruptey because of
present conditions, and tax collections are falling seriously behind. The serious-
ness of the situation is shown by replies which have been received to ques-
tionaires which have been circulated to municipalities. Also, may I point out
these schemes are not all local in their character. The city of Toronto, for
instance, has built a trunk sewer, and as you probably know that serves not
only the city of Toronto but many surrounding municipalities as well,

Then, if we are to go on with any of these public works or undertakings
let us limit the time to one year or two years during which the government will
be doing this, in the way the Union government did in 1919 in housing—
whether it be reconstruction or housing. Each city and municipality has its
own local problem which includes the very involved and vexed question of
finance and reduced rates. Also, we have got to be fair; owners of existing
property are going to claim that others will get the benefit of government sub-
sidy. I think we should not overlook the principle involved, and we should
consider what has already been donme. I think we should have it in mind to
get action early this spring, naming a number of public works that might be
undertaken within say two years or eighteen months—limit the time of the
application of this policy in the same way as was done by the Union govern-
ment in connection with housing. I think the municipalitics are the ones
who should take charge of the work, as they are most familiar with local
;:ircumstances, but Parliament should lay down the general policy to be fol-
owed.

The CmammaN: Now, Mr. Church, I do not want to interrupt you, but
we have got one definite thing here to consider. If you wish more than that
would it not be better for you to bring a resolution, or something of that kind,
because at present our responsibility is to consider housing.

Mr. CuurcH: Mr. Chairman, if T can’t set my views out at this meeting
I will hope to do so at a future meeting. In the meantime I will get down
to brass tacks; that will be something new, because the House of Commons
never does get down to brass tacks.
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The CHAtRMAN: Then let us get down to that. We should have some
resolution or something before us if we are to consider any matters which at
present do not come within the terms of our order of reference. We are
absolutely tied down to housing.

Mr. CaurcH: I understand all that. I am telling you that I am going
to move to amend the reference. I may say that these matters are very involved
and several of the municipalities are appealing for Dominion relief. If we
want to do something, the time to do it is now. If not, all very well and
good. The municipalities cannot supply capital for these works—courthouses,
schools, hospitals and many of these matters. The government has already
passed some of these. Some municipalities get them and some do not. They
want equality of treatment not only in the province of British Columbia, but
in Ontario, Quebec and the maritimes. Why should some municipalities be
given works by relief for schools, education and housing, and others have the
whole burden put on the municipal tax rates?

Mr. HaxBury: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman—I think that the
remarks of Mr. Church are very interesting, and could well be a question for
discussion of the committee if our order of reference provided for it. But under
the circumstances I think we should go on with what the order provides for.

The CHAmrMAN: I think we will have to call that out of order, Mr. Church.

Mr. CuurcH: That is all I have to say. I am through.

Mr. Heaps: I was wondering if we could just have a kind of brief report
from that small committee, a kind of steering committee for this larger com-
mittee. We have had very little so far to submit to the larger committee as
to what policy we should pursue here. All we have done is produce witnesses
this morning. I would far sooner, before we proceed with the witnesses, to
have laid down the policy of this committee, what we want and how far we are
going to go.

Mr. StanLey: Mr. Chairman, may I say that the sub-committee met and
discussed the matter at considerable length, but it was thought that before set-
ting down any definite policy it might be well to have Mr. Cauchon deal
with the reference, give a general summary of the housing schemes in other
countries, and some suggestions as to how it might be applied here. Then
after we have heard a general outline and review of housing here and elsewhere,
we might then come to the question of a general policy. I think that is fair

Mr. Heaps: Yes, I realize the value of the evidence that may be sub-
mitted by Mr. Cauchon. ;

Mr. StanpLEY: We are not tied down by anything he suggests.

Mr. Heaps: Time is going on, and it is very important.

Mr. StanLEY: We are only starting.

Mr. Heaps: It is a week since we met, and I thought perhaps it might
be -advisable to have consulted the provincial governments and the municipali-
ties as far as possible, to get from them whatever information we can, so that
we can have first-hand information from those actually on the spot.

Mr. Stanrey: They have been consulted to some extent.

Mr. Heaps: 1 know in some cities they have actual housing schemes
ready to proceed with and I have seen them—I have seen plans, sketches and
costs and everything that goes with it—provided there is some assistance from
the federal authorities.

Mr. Sraniey: All that can be discussed.

The Cmamrman: I thought, in talking with the Chairman of the com-
mittee, that this was new to a good many of us. He thought if Mr. Cauchon
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could give us some idea of how we could proceed, after we had heard from him
we would have a better idea of the whole housing problem all over the
Dominion, and that would give us a sort of lead along what line to proceed.

Mr. Heaps: It is all to the question of the reconstruction of homes.

The CuarrmaN: Which is our reference.

Mr. Heaps: Which you can only obtain from direct information.

The CuAmMAN: I think if we hear Mr. Cauchon first, we will have a
little better idea along what lines to proceed. I think it would be advisable this
morning to hear him. Then afterward we could have discussion in regard to
policy, or if the committee thinks proper, leave it to the sub-committee.

Mr. Prunkerr: Who does Mr. Cauchon represent? What department is
he from?

Mr. Stanrey: Himself.

The Cmamrman: Mr. Cauchon has been for twenty-five years, I think,
chairman of the Town Planning Commission here.

Mr. CavcHon: I have been chairman, since its inception, of the Ottawa
Town Planning Commission.

Mr. Heaps: Was that commission the one that was responsible for the
Ottawa housing scheme?

Mr. CavcuoN: No.

Mr. Heaps: I am glad of that.

Mr. StanLey: Give him a chance.

The CuamrMAN: Is it the pleasure of the committee to have Mr. Cauchon
address us?

Mr. StanrteEy: Mr. Chairman, may I just suggest this, that if any member of
the general committee has any suggestions to offer in connection with the program
that we should undertake, it would be well for him to submit a summary of them

in writing so that it could be submitted formally to the sub-committee. I think
it would be a good suggestion.

Mr. McIntosu: Is it not rather late in the day to get in touch with the
different municipalities? Could you not get some organization that will repre-
sent them, and give the very last word on it? :

Mr. Staniey: No, it is not very hard to get them any time.

Mr. Howarpn: May I say for the information of the committee, before you
hear Mr. Cauchon, that if later on the committee want to hear me personally,
in 1928 T went into the business myself and put on a housing scheme in Sher-
brooke and built fifty homes. I will give you the practical results of the scheme,
costs and so on, from real, genuine, personal, observation. I am ready to go
before the committee any time.

The Cuamman: Thank you, Mr. Howard. In order to make progress, is
it the pleasure of the committee that Mr. Cauchon address us?

Mzr. Heaps: I would so move.
Mr. Howarp: I second that.

Hon. Mr. Ertiorr: T would like to make a suggestion that, no matter what
change may be made in the order of reference later on, Mr. Cauchon in his
remarks this morning devote himself to urban and rural dwelling houses. The
field is so large, if we went beyond that at the present time, it is hard to say
just how long it might take. That, at the present time, is the reference; and I
suggest that Mr. Cauchon devote himself to telling us to what extent, in his
experience, the various municipalities have made progress along that line, not

gnly with urban but also with repairing and reconstruction of rural dwelling
ouses.
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Hon. Mr. Moranp: Let him go on. Any time he is out of order, we will eall
him to order.

Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: Yes. But I would suggest that he direct his remarks
along those lines as closely as possible this morning.

The CuamrMaN: Then the motion is carried. I will call on Mr. Cauchon.

When you start, Mr. Cauchon, will you give your experience, and don’t be
too modest about it. We would like to know, and those who are not here will read
the report. You may just be seated and address us.

Mr. Navron CaucHoN called.

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have been asked by your Chairman to give
my record. I will give it to you in a very brief manner. I am chairman and
technical adviser of the Ottawa Town Planning Commission, and have been
since its inception in 1921. I am past president of the Town Planning Institute
of Canada, and past chairman of the Ottawa branch of the Engineering Institute
of Canada. I began my career with the old St. John railway in Quebec; and then
from 1888 to 1908, twenty years, I was connected with the Canadian Pacific
Railway in the administration, operation and construction departments, in which
time I may say I had charge of railway construction in the west. In 1908 and
1909 I was assistant engineer for the Dominion Board of Railway Commis-
sioners here in Ottawa. In 1910 I went into private practice as a consulting
engineer—and that is still my standing—specializing in town planning.

I have been frequently consulted by governments, provincial and otherwise,
and by municipalities. I have lectured on town planning, particularly with
respect to my hexagonal system, which is a new street system. I have lectured
on that in many places in the United States, Canada, England, France, Germany,
Austria and Hungary. That system is now applied in Withemshawe, a suburb
of Manchester, England; also in the garden city of Letchworth, and in the city
of York in northern England. It has been accepted theoretically in Germany
as well as on the continent. But without going into details on the subject—
employment and jobs—that is my general record for the committee.

In consultation with your chairman and with the chairman of the sub-
committee, I was told to make my remarks as free from technicalities as possible.
Being an engineer, I have always got to be on my guard against running into
technicalities. It is also, on account of the short notice, more in the nature of
a round table talk. I might mention that if you gentlemen would wait until
I get through with my remarks before asking me questions, perhaps it would be
most satisfactory to you. If you hear my whole remarks, and then those of
my assistant Mr. Kitchen then the committee will be in a position, I think,
to have the background for judging town planning in general, or at least housing
in general, as the various schemes may come up.

When we talk of “housing,” we mean industrial housing. The reference
from parliament says the building of houses, but “housing” properly understood
is housing for the working classes. That is the understanding in England. My
endeavour will be to give you the background of the whole problem and the
inter-related problems, because you cannot deal with housing in one watertight
compartment. There are various things affected. I will endeavour, to the best
of my ability, to lay before you the inter-relation of the various things.
“Housing” is really a function of town planning. Tt is like zoning; and you
cannot have housing, T will say in passing, unless you have zoning, because you
have got to protect values and amenities. That is our great trouble in large
cities, to prevent incongruous building, and it is true that some have gone to a
lot of trouble to stop it. i

Comprehensive town planning and housing rests upon a biological basis.
The problem of the town planner, which as I say includes housing, is to create
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a condition of environment in which human life can thrive. That is what you
are after. Anything short of that gives you deterioration of the human element
and degradation and all the social and political ills that generally follow or
accompany that process. It is a problem having to do with the maintenance of
human life and its enhancement, by providing proper physical environment.

Now, if you will allow me—and I am not going to wander very far from the
subject; I have given you what I consider the relation—I am going to give you
a definition of town planning by the Town Planning Institute of Canada, which
is: “Town planning is the scientific and orderly disposition of land and buildings
in use and development, with a view to obviating congestion and securing
economic and social efficiency, health and well-being in urban and rural com-
munities.” I will lay stress upon the congestion in a moment. You see there-
fore that town planning and housing is a social science. In fact in a way it is
the technique of sociology. It functions through ethics, economics and expression
or art and is an indivisible manifestation of natural law. That is to say, you
cannot have economies without ethics and you cannot have ethies without econ-
omics to sustain it; but expression or art aesthetically is simply an expression
of things as they are. I don’t want to go too much into the idealistic side of it,
but those are fundamental facts.

The crux of the problem of housing, and the crux of the problem in town
planning is congestion; that is, congestion of traffic which affects the time-space
or time-distance accessibility to homes. Then there is the question of congestion
of houses; that is to say, too many houses on the land. That so shuts out sun-
shine and air. Then there is the question of congestion of occupancy, the over-
crowding of houses. So you have those three factors—traffie, the house itself
and its occupants—coming into your problem for consideration.

The English system is two to a room. I will come to that later. They
recently passed, or had before them, some very wonderful legislation in England.
You know that England has been in the last twenty-five years—since 1909—the
laboratory of the world for housing problems, or the solution of housing prob-
lems. T shall not go into their various acts. Their acts started in 1909, with
Lloyd George’s budget; and there have been, almost every year, amendments
giving different means of accomplishing these things; that is, a different project,
varying from one to the other. Variation in the projects or in the acts rather,
has mainly been variation in the amount of subsidy or the manner of granting
that subsidy to these housing schemes. A great many were undertaken by the
municipalities themselves, and a great many by private corporations, which 1
will refer to later.

Now, we come to traffic—we won't go into it—which in itself is a problem
in dynamies. Our present street system is based upon a checkerboard or
gridiron system of streets. If you look upon traffic as a problem in dynamies,
that is the flow of traffic forces, you will find that at every cross-intersection,
as soon as the city gets busy, you have interference of forces. You have that
intermittent delay either by signals or a policeman. You have to alternate
movement first on one street and then on the other, which means that the
efficiency of our planning as accepted in this country and the United States
mainly, is worth about 50 per cent of its face value, because you can only
have one street going at a time if you have any considerable amount of traffic.
If, from the 50 per cent efficiency obtained by the use of one street at a time,
controlled by signals or policemen, you deduct the time lost in stopping and
starting, you really get an efficiency of our system of planning of about 334 per
cent. About one-third is the efficiency of our streets, on their face value.
It is a tremendous economic loss to cities to have to provide a system of traffic
which only functions at about one-third of its face capacity when it is most
required to function; that is to say, when you have crowded streets.
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There have been many suggestions for improving that. The one I referred
to in the first instance was the hexagonal system. That is a system whereby the
streets are so designed as to meet in three-way junctions. That gives you a
deflection of traffic instead of interference or collision of traffic. That is a
technical matter, but has a very great bearing on housing; that is to say, on
the accessibility of outlying districts within a given time. You see, it has
been pretty well accepted by the industrial executives in the United States—
and there has been a tremenodus amount of money spent on what they call
efficient management investigations—that about one half-hour spent by the
workmen in going to and from their work is about the normal approximate
limit. If they have to exceed that time, then the principle of fatigue sets in,
or the factor of fatigue. I am not talking of just one or two days, but I am
talking about a condition that prevails over a long space of time. Therefore,
you have a man who comes to his work tired and inefficient, and he goes home
tired and does not rest properly over the course of months or years. That
causes inefficient workmanship. That is the result of many investigations in
the United States; and the scientific planners have practically accepted that
approximate half-hour as the time limit. That is to say, the result of that
congestion owing to so many variable dimensions, is to slow up traffic. If streets,
let us say, start at a given width—and they get longer—there is cumulative
traffic. If the buildings become high, there is cumulative traffic from that;
and then there is the time factor. So that you get, as this process continues,
a slowing down of traffic. If in the initial stages you can go out five miles,
reach five miles from the heart of the city within half an hour, you have got
a very healthy condition. That is to say, you bring about 75 square miles of
territory into competition. Competition, under the present dispensation of the
private ownership of property is the only way you can secure cheap land for
the purpose of housing. As that congestion increases in the city, the real reach,
I might say, of the radius becomes less and less, and the workingman does not
continue to buy a cottage or home in the country with sunshine and fresh air
for bringing up his children. He is brought into the duplicate housing and
triplicate housing and three-storey tenements and so on. Then home deteriora-
tion begins by the lack of sunlight and air for the children. The grown man,
of course, can stand it pretty well. That is why I brought in town planning,
without going into any technical details, as far as I could, to show you it is a
very serious factor in your housing problem. If it was left to me—but of
course, this gentleman does not want me to enlarge the proposition too much—
I say if your reference was enlarged to include a national policy of town planning
and housing, then you would have the whole problem controllable from one
source.

Reference has been made to urban and rural housing. What the gentleman
over here has asked for, a record of what every municipality, or practically so,
has done and their success with various schemes, would take me from now until
the middle of next century, not next week. We can give you, and will give you,
information on what happened in Ottawa, right under our noses. The Town
Planning Commission, as I assured you, had nothing to do with it. We were
established shortly after that thing ceased. You will get first hand information
on that. I have asked the Chairman to call Mr. Gordon, the Finance Com-
missioner of the city of Ottawa, and he is prepared to come and give evidence,
possibly at your next meeting, if it is convenient, to show you what money
has been spent, from my point of view what money was lost, in the scheme.
Now, the same story is told me everywhere—I know because I go around the
country—on town planning work. The government has been of some assistance
in respect of their municipal housing schemes, possibly in respect of some of
the small towns, whether it was successful—possibly in individual cases—not
general schemes,
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By Mr. Heaps:

Q. What about Winnipeg?—A. I have not the information on Winnipeg.

Q. I will give you the information?—A. But it was a fa1l.ure here.

Q. It was no failure in Winnipeg?—A. I am glad to hear it then.

Q. In fact they show a profit each year?—A. I am glad to hear it. In re-
gard to rural housing, I am not touching it because I think that rural housing
might well be covered by the proposed Farm Loan Board. Your committee
might very well make recommendations as to how it should be control}ed; but in
regard to funds, I understand that the Farm Loan Board has auth_orlty to loan
money to farmers. You see, in drafting this rural housing, I think the term
originated because of the English practice. In England there is a large class
of farm labourers who always remain farm labourers, and a house has to be
provided for them on the farm. The housing of them has not been satisfactory
in the old country and they take that in as part of their housing schemes. In
this country—I do not know whether the committee will wish to recommend it
or not—it is not the problem that the industrial housing is in the cities.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. It is a real problem just the same?—A. It is a real problem, but I am
submitting that in this country most of the farmers are not in that position.
The hired man on the farm lives in the farmhouse. It is not the problem here
that it is in the old country. For that reason and for the reason that probably
that it is a problem for the farmer himself more than for your class of real farm
labourers, I am suggesting that the maintenance of that side of it might possibly
be handled by the rural Farm Loan Board. It is simply an interjection, and has
not come under the purview of the city. Our trouble in Ottawa is that people
who are lacking in accommodation outside are flowing into the city of Ottawa
at a tremendous rate, all the time, from all surrounding municipalities. They
are coming, not only from the province of Ontario, but other provinces, pouring
into here, to get relief. It is a very serious tax on the city of Ottawa. It is very
difficult to diseriminate. The Ontario government has not helped us to keep
them out. They have made conditions which make it possible for people to
come in here and qualify very easily, and then come to us for relief. I will give
you some figures about relief in a moment, and you will see what a serious
problem it is. I am giving you those figures for the purpose of showing unem-
ployment and relief, and how much better it would be, in my humble opinion, if
a policy could be devised to put these people to work, make them earn, instead
of being a charge; because all the money we spend—and it is very seious—on
relief, bring us no return. There is no return from it. In fact, it is serious in
other ways than the mere matter of return. We are impoverishing, we are
pauperizing a lot of people. However, we will come to that.

s NOW I take it that the scale of wages—if we take—because I am always
thinking of the low wage earner, as I call him my friend, the pick and shovel
man,—1t at 100 per cent, as what his requirements are to keep up his biological
needs to a certain degree of decency and amenity, he does not earn enough to
carry them economically. He carries perhiaps 60 to 75 per cent of it out of his
wages, and the balance is carried by the community. That deficiency is carried
through hospitals, and prisons, and school costs and all those things. Therefore
the man of low wage earning capacity is not assisting the community. Now, the
unemployed. I am going to give you some figures that I worked out last night
upon that very problem. In the city of Ottawa, unemployment relief costs
per family include food, clothing and rent. The food here amounts to $40 a
month. In other words, $480 a year per family, which is divided into three,
federal, provincial and municipal. " The federal and provincial governments each
pay one-third, so there is $160 against the city for food. The clothing we pay



10 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

ourselves, which amounts to about $5 per month per family, which is $60 a
year. Now, the rent which is authorized averages $13 a month.

Mr. Warre: How many do you figure in a family?

The Wrrness: A family here seems to be about six, father and mother
and the children. Possibly the average is four children per family, the economic
average we always use in “ economies ” is three children.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. In each district?—A. Ottawa. I am speaking absolutely about Ottawa.
I am giving the figures for Ottawa. I asked the social service director only
yesterday how she arrived at the average of four children per family. I asked
her if she took the number of children and divided it by the number of families,
and the lady who was in charge said no. She said that is the average on the
whole. In many families there are six, eight and ten, but I have had to take
four. She said it is a little bit better than four; but I am using four per family.
The rental is $13 a month, and for twelve months it amounts to $156, of which
we are paying one third, which amounts to $52. The government helps on the
‘food, and rent but the clothing is paid by the city. -Up to that point the amount
paid is $272 a year per family. Now, the Dominion and provincial govern-
ments each pay only one-third. That gives you $320 they pay and $104 on
rent that they pay, which is a total of $424. If you add to that the $272 which
is a direct charge on the city, you get a total of $696 per family. The city’s
share is therefore $272. There is another little charge that comes in here,
medical assistance which is given to these people in their homes. That assist-
ance has amounted to 11 cents per month per head, so that in an average
family of six it would be 66 cents. In twelve months the cost would run into
$7.92. Our medical attention costs us on an average of $7.92 per family—I
will give you the number of families in a moment. That brings the city’s contri-
bution up to $279.92. There is another big item that I have not been able to
obtain in the time available. That item is the Civic Hospital charge.
Hospitalization is really a very big item. When these people take sick we
send them to the Civic Hospital, naturally, which increases that very materially.

Hon. Mr. MoranD: Do you include fuel?

The Wrrness: That goes in with the food, maintenance, as far as I know.
Mr. Kitchen will know. Fuel goes in with the ordinary maintenance?

Mzr. KiTcHEN: Yes.

The Wirness: Now, there is another problem that I should like to touch
on, and that is the cost of education. In the city of Ottawa the cost of educa-
tion in the public schools is $105 per head.

Mr. Howarp: It is too high.

The Wrirness: It is too high, but it is that, unfortunately. I have here
a report of the Chief Inspector of Schools. It is not the last report, and it gives
these figures.

Mr. Heaps: Is that not higher than the average city across the country?

The WirNess: I cannot tell you.

Hon. Mr. Moran: Yes, it is.

Mr. Heaps: That is my impression.

The Wirness: It is considered very high here. We have very wonderful
equipment in schools. Our school boards did like everybody else during pros-

perous times, built palaces. We have at the present time possibly 1,000 to 1,500
vacant places in schools.
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By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Has there been any reduction in the per capita cost?—A. No, it 18
always going up. ; :

Q. The teachers have not benefitted in the way of increase in salaries?—
A. 1 think the salaries have not gone ahead in the same way.

Q. They have been actually cut to the minimum?—A. Yes.

Mr. Heaps: The buildings here in the city of Ottawa are not nearly as good
as in the other cities?

The Wirness: They may not be.

Mr. Heaps: They are not nearly as attractive as the school buildings in
the city of Calgary?

Mr. StanLey: No, not nearly as good.

The Wirness: We all worked on the principle of having the finest ever,
and now we are paying for it. There is no use kicking about it; we have it.
The-cost is $105, if you take an average of four children per family, is $420.

By Mr. Howard.:

Q. Is not that $105 for those actually in attendance?—A. For those actually
in attendance, and that excludes any frills'such as modelling, playing the piano,
or technical schools or anything like that. It is quite outside of that. That
is for the ordinary average education that we give in the city of Ottawa. I
remember some years ago it was $95. It has been always crawling up. Now,
if I may refer to my figures again, I will give you the record of the city’s
expenditure. Along with the $272.92, schooling costs $420. The labourer who is
out of employment does not pay that. Even when working he does not con-
tribute that. Now, I am not objecting to those who have none, contributing to
the education of the children of those who have. It is a matter of social

safety, if I am putting it at that, but still it is costing the public that amount
of money.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Does that add to the cost of education? In the first place you have

your overhead fixed, anyway, so that the great bulk of your cost goes on
whether these things are exeluded or not?—A. That may be so, but still the
cost is being paid.
. Q. Yes—A. That brings it up in the city of Ottawa, if we include school-
Ing,—I am not blaming these people; I am not finding fault; I am simply try-
Mg to arrive at an economic statement of what the cost is under present condi-
tions to earry the man who is on relief, who is making no contribution what-
ever towards the school, not even paying any taxes—

Mr. Write: He must pay his taxes in his rentals.
The WrtNEss: We are paying the rentals for the man on relief.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. You are duplicating when you are adding rentals and education.—A.
You think so?

. Q. I do not think there is any doubt about it.—A. Possibly. That is a
point of view. It is a small difference. Of course these figures are subject to
eriticism and correction, you know.  So the full cost of the city of Ottawa would
be $699.92, plus that payable by two governments, $424, or a total of $1,123.92.

This amount is being expended on every family on relief here, in one way or
another, :

94784—2
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By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. How much of that was schooling?—A. $105 per child per year.

Q. I am basing it on the family. You have given us a family figure.—A.
A family figure of four.

Q. The minimum cost per family, eliminating education?—A. Yes, you
have got $279 for the city of Ottawa, and paid by the two governments, $424,
and adding these two items, it comes to over $700, does it not?

Q. That is the point I want to get at?—A. T have not got it in just that .
way. At the end of January, we had 4,862 on relief.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. In Ottawa?—A. In Ottawa alone. During the month it went up, and
the total was higher, 4,929,

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Six per family, or what number of children?—A. I am taking it six per
family, 2 adults and 4 children—it is a little bit less than that. The figures do
not, quite check, because the total number of individuals which included children
amounted in January to 20,786.

Mr. Howarp: What is the total population?

Mr. KitcHEN: 135,000.

Mr. Howarp: How many families were on relief?

The Witness: Well, between 4,862 and 4,929.

Hon. Mr. RINFRET: Any dependents?

The WiTNEsS: You mean families on relief?

Mr. Heaps: You have 4,862 on relief. Have you got the percentage that
that is to the total number of families in Ottawa?

Mr. KircHEN: There are approximately 27,000 families altogether in
Ottawa.

The WiTNEsS: Now, I will pass to the question of environment as justifica-
tion for proper housing conditions. We have legal protection against a matter
of this kind: if you are going along the street and a house falls upon you, a
derelict building, the inspector comes along and condemns it, but if you are
inside the house, and it is an unsanitary building, the medical health inspector
can take no action, practically until it has become an absolute slum. In other
words, it is a choice between quick death by a brick falling on you, or a slow
death by contracting tuberculosis, in insanitary houses, and various other
diseases.

By Mr. Howden:

Q. You said the health officer has not got the power?—A. They have the
power, but there is difficulty in exercising it. A medical health officer comes
‘along and finds a house in Ottawa here, absolutely unsanitary—he is generally
faced with the alternative of putting the occupants out on the street for want
“of other proper housing to put them in.

Mr. HowaArp: And in other cities.

The Wirness: What I am contending is, there should be more power given
to the health officer to close that house up; whether it is absolutely unsanitary or
half unsanitary, it is ruining the health of the people.

Mr. HowpeEn: Don’t they close up the unsanitary houses in Winnipeg?

Mr. Heaps: Yes.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. We all appreciate the necessity for considering these matters which Mr.
Cauchon is bringing to our attention and we will have to consider them at some
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stage of the proceedings, but I am anxious to get a picture of the practical
work as it is being carried on in England and. I think, perhaps, we could get
some of the points he is now bringing out at a later s@-ag.e?—A. If you will
be patient I will come to that in a moment. I think it is essential for the
proper understanding of the matter to get all the angles of it. :
Q. I am drawing to your attention the fact that every member of parlia-
ment listens to hours of speeches for five days every week in which many of
these points are brought out and we are all permeated with the necessity of it
and we would like to know just what has been established?—A. I will pass
on to that problem. I am going to ask you to make a distinction between hous-
ing and slum clearance. Housing is part of the industrial equipment of this
country and the people who are living in these houses should be earning enough
money to maintain those houses; but slum clearance is for people who are
unemployable generally and deals with conditions that can only be remedied
by pulling down houses. When you come to pull down these houses and clear
the areas of slums you get the ground cleared, but you are starting with a
heavy fixed charge due to expropriation. If a man has a house that is declared
unsanitary and the area or block is declared to be part of a clearing scheme
the man who owns the house gets nothing for the building, he gets paid for the
land only. The claim is that it is not a house if you cannot live in it. That
part of it, I think, is partly social service and partly relief and it is part of the
legitimate charge upon the municipality upon its social service. But I want
to keep clear the wide line between housing and slum clearance. Housing, 1
- can show you from figures, more or less carries itself, whereas the other is a
charge. I would like to define a slum in a rough and ready manner: a slum
house is an insanitary house, it is a house that might have been sanitary but
by being overcrowded will become insanitary. Now, we have slums in Ottawa.
Every city in Canada has slums. We are no worse than other places. Our
problem for the moment in the Medical Health Office is something like this:
do you want me to close down certain houses? Well, if 1 close them where
are you going to put the people? We have not room for them. We are putting
up with a very undesirable condition through force of circumstances.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Do you mean to say that to-day people are occupying insanitary build-
ings because there is no other accommodation available?—A. Certainly.

Mr. Howarp: They cannot afford to do anything else.

Mr. McInTosa: They are living in ice houses for the same reason.

The Wirness: We have great difficulty in finding houses for the relief
people. Tt has got to a point where the only houses available are the better
class houses which their owners do not want to rent for that purpose. The
relief has only a certain limit within which they can pay rents, and if a man
does not want to rent his house at from $10 to $15 a month, what can be
done about it? Many people own houses and do not wish to rent them at spch
figures, and, as a result, we have difficulty in finding proper accommodation.
The trouble is that there was no accommodation ever designed objectively for

the low wage earner. There has never been any money in it for the speculative
builder—I am using the word in its proper sense.

By Mr. Howden:

Q. What is an insanitary house?—A. In principle?

Q. Yes—A. There is a very fine definition of it in this Toronto report if
you care to refer to it. I would say offhand that it is a house that is damp,
that has not sufficient light, that has not proper plumbing. Those are the
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essentials. When I refer to proper plumbing that has not directly to do with
proper accommodation. A

Q. Plumbing is not a necessity?—A. No. I have corrected that statement.
Let us call it proper sanitary accommodation. That constitutes an insanitary
house, and that is where the insanitary feature develops.

Q. An important feature is a suflicient quantity of air?—A. Yes, if it is
fresh air.

Q. Of course—A. I mean to say that you cannot consider an unventilated
cube as a sanitary place to live in. :

Q. Quite so; and there is a given minimum of air space?>—A. Yes. That
is worked out. That is really the trouble. The trouble with the. insanitary
house is usually its unfitness for people to live in, and that is accentuated and
aggravated by the lack of proper toilet facilities, inside or out. They are some-
times inside and in a horrible condition; and then there is the overerowding, by
one or several families.

Q. The point I wanted to stress is that the house does not have to be a
modern house in order to be sanitary?—A. Not at all. It is not a question of
architectural style at all; it is a biological condition.

Q. Nor is it necessary to have modern heating or modern plumbing for the
health of the people?—A. No, so long as that accommodation is provided for
in a sanitary way—in a way that relieves the house of smells either inside or
out. Also one of the insanitary conditions that arises from a lack of proper
toilet accommodation, particularly when that acecommodation is provided out-
side, is the presence of flies and the effect they have on the food; the incidence
of disease immediately comes in—the thing is cumulative.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. You have mentioned overerowding. The house may not have anything
wrong with it at all in certain cases?—A. Certainly.

Q. But there are too many people living in it?—A. Particularly the over-
crowding I refer to is the overcrowding of families. If a man has a lot of
children you cannot call that overcrowding.

Q. The point I make is that in certain cases the house may be sanitary,
in fair condition, but there are too many people living in them?—A. Yes.

Q. And that would be due to the fact that those people cannot go any-
where else?—A. They cannot afford anything else. As I say there is an inherent
lack of accommodation for the low wage earner.

- Mr. HowpeN: There is in every city.

The WirNess: There is in every city. That is one of the things I am going
to ask your committee to consider. From my point of view this national policy
of housing will have to provide houses for the low wage earner.

Mr. Heaps: We might start by increasing wages.

The Wirness: Yes. The scale on the yardstick of a hundred requirements
of a man and his family is not met by the low wages of the low wage earner.
We supplement that by paying for hospitals and sickness generally as well as
various other things, but no matter which way you stretch it, it amounts to the
same thing—to use a popular and common expression in Ottawa to-day, it is
the lack of purchasing power.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. To what extent is the dampness that you refer to in the house due to a
lack of sunshine?—A. It is mainly due to structural defects. It is usually due
in these old houses to leaky roofs and leaky walls. A wall can be just as leaky
as a roof. The whole building gets wet and the material gets soaked and so
you have a damp condition.
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Q. Do you find it to be due more to the condition of the roof than to the
condition of the windows?—A. It is due to both. I think here in Ottawa where
there is lots of room and where we have not so much overcrowding on the land
that it is probably due more to structural defects. The condition can also be
aggravated by the lack of sunshine where a house has windows that look out
on blank walls and which do not receive much sunshine. There is an important
distinction there. It is not entirely a question of sunlight; I used the term
sunshine. Unless you get the benefits of the ultra violet rays in the rays of the
sun you are not really getting the benefit of sunshine. I would not like to say

that the light in this room is unsanitary, but this room has not enough sunlight
even. :

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Would you consider this room to be insanitary from the viewpoint of a
dwelling?—A. T would hardly like to accuse you of being overcrowded because
it would be an invidious distinection, it is somewhat of a dungeon. The English
experience over many years of work has favoured a subsidy which, in one form
or another -has been roughly the equivalent to 20 per cent of the cost of the
scheme. I am not going into all the details.

By Mr. Heaps 3

Q. The English scheme is being created mainly for the purpose of providing
houses at low rental?—A. Absolutely. It is mentioned in their laws, and they
are the first country in the world which understood the problem and undertook
to deal with it. They build from a solid basis rather than trying to raise them-
gelves by their bootstraps. The contribution from the government in England
and some from the municipalities has amounted to about 80 per cent, but that
has been loaned. :

Q. The 20 per cent includes the federal government and municipal con-
tributions, about 80 per cent of it is loaned, is not that richt? 80 per cent is
only the facility provided for guaranteeing bonds or giving security at a low rate;
is that so?—A. The great housing expenditures in England are not strictly ex-
penditures, they are investments. There are several thousand millions of dollars
bringing in a return.. It is, I think, from my limited point of view, the main
leaven to their industrial recovery—an enormous expenditure affecting all indus-
tries in the country and being on a sound investment basis.

The Cuamvan: Do they grant the 20 per cent and plus that guarantee the
other 80 per cent?

The Wirness: Yes, to municipalities or corporations which I will refer to;
but, of course, needless to say any gentleman who has any knowledge of con-
struction matters will realize the helpful advantages of such a system.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. T think that point shouid be covered; does the government provide all the

funds that go with these housing projects?—A. The government provides prac-
tically all the funds they had in the beginning.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Is that the case with the private corporations which are putting up
houses?—A. They have done that with certain private corporations.

Q. But, generally speaking, the private corporation provides most of its own
finances?—A. Some of its own finances; it has been substantially aided by the
government. I will refer to that in more detail when I come to answer your
other question.

Q. You are going to cover that later?>—A. Yes. This great housing move-

ment has proved economical and has given a leaven to other industries. It has
94784—3
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given a leaven to industries other than the low class wage earners. If everyone

is more or less prosperous the benefit is felt in lines other than building. It is j
not all done at once, it is a matter of constructive progression; all the time, you ‘
see, money is coming back—the scheme has been in operation for twenty years
now, but I need not go into the details of how the subsidy is given, sometimes

it is given outright as a certain amount and at other times it is given in the form

of monthly advances. Under the former management which has been employed
they have managed to introduce private initiative into their work, and they
have also induced the employment of a great deal of private capital.

By Mr. White (London): |

Q. Generally speaking, what is the interest charged on these loans of 80
per cent?—A. Between 3 and 4 per cent. The usual practice is for the money
to be provided at a little above the rate at which the government can borrow, and
do its bookkeeping.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Does not refer to repair and reconstruction as well as to actual con-
struction?—A. Not in the same measure, sir. “ Construction ” usually means
new housing, then you have “ Reconstruction,” which means the clearing of the
slum areas—that is a thing which the government has taken as its particular
responsibility ; then you have the third condition, the movement to reduce the
over-crowding in housing.

By Mr. Howden:

Q. Does the clearing of slums include the remodelling of old houses where
that is practical>—A. Not exactly, that is rehabilitation. A house may be in
a block and be rehabilitated fairly well, you see. When they come to a point
where a very substantial area in a block is slum they usually decide to have a
slum clearing project. That would mean that most of the houses in the block
would be removed, by reason of the fact that a great many of them had been
declared insanitary the property is expropriated at the land value, with no allow-
ace for the existing structures.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. The land is expropriated for the municipality, or for the reconstruction
company, as the case may be?—A. As the case may be. Now, reconstruction
schemes have, as far as I know, all been in the hands of the municipalities. When

the municipality decides to clean such an area out they may or may not rebuild
on the same site. The site may be more valuable for other purposes, and if so it
can be sold for other purposes.

By Mr. Church.:

Q. What about the reconstruction of these buildings? Would not trans-
portation and other facilities be an important consideration? Would you
advocate the reconstruction of buildings in districts in a municipality, urban
or suburban, that had no transportation facilities available, no cheap light, no
cheap power, or no roads?—A. That is the problem.

Q. Suppose the tenant refuses to pay the increased rental, could you force
the owner to repair the building under your plan?

By Mr. Sullivan:

Q. If the tenant would not pay the rent the result would be that he would
move out. A second point I am interested in is, what would be the position
of the private owner who could not afford these repairs; right in the same street,




HOUSING 17

or in the next street say, a building is being repaired under this scheme, he
would claim that there was a subsidy paid and his excuse would be he could not
afford to do that—A. Under this scheme and where this assistance 1s offered
it is not only offered on houses owned by the municipalities, it is also offered
to all houses requiring improvement.

By Mr. Church:

Q. The point you are touching on now came up in particular in connection
with the situation in Leeds and Manchester in which complaints similar to
what I have indicated arose in connection with the cost of repairs on reconstrue-
tion. The tenants moved out and the buildings were vacant for some time.
In another case in the cities of Leeds and Manchester they came down to the

ousing commission and made the same complaint. The tenants in the old
building said, we are going to move, we can’t pay the new rent. The store-
keepers the retail grocers and the butchers objected to the location of the new
district because it was ont centralized and there was no car line. That is what

have been pointing out. I do not wish to interfere with the reference, we
should stick to our reference. I think we should at least consider municipal
services, what is the use of building three or four blocks farther away where
these services are not available. You will see what I mean from the report,
copies of which I have had supplied to members of the committee but which
they have not yet had an opportunity of reading. When the tenant comes
along and says, “I can’t pay the rent,” what are you going to do, give him a
subsidy of $10 straight? On the other hand the owner may object that his
revenue is not sufficient to enable him to pay his taxes, and services such
as light, heat and water.—A. The main object of this housing policy is to
provide houses at rentals which working peaple can afford to pay. It is not
a question always of disarranging a locality. In England when a municipality
is going to carry out a slum clearance scheme it has to provide new housing
accommodation sufficient to accommodate the number of families which will
be displaced as a result of the carrying out of the scheme.

By Mr. Sullivan:

_ Q. Suppose you take the district represented by my {riend, Hon. Mr.
Rinfret, the member for the electoral district of St. James in the city of

ontreal, and you decide to remove a whole lot of the houses. We have not
exactly a real slum there, as they have in the district in Toronto to which
Mr. Church has referred, but you might take the whole area and decide to
demolish g large number of houses under this plan; where could we put the
people affected during the time of reconstruction—that is the first question.
Secondly, how do you propose to reconstruct the new building. Thirdly, how are
you going to pay for these buildings; will these buildings be sold to the old
proprietors or do you intend selling them to new people who are tenants and
will become proprietors. That is the kind of a scheme in which T am interested?

. Mr. MoranD: Might I suggest that the witness be permitted to complete
his statement and then we can ask him any questions we desire. To ask
questions at this stage breaks the continuity of his presentation.

The C.HAIRMAN:. I think perhaps it will be just as well to let Mr. Cauchon.
proceed without asking too many questions. When he has finished members
of the committee may ask any questions they like, but T think if the members

are willing it will be just as well for us to let him go on without having to be
Interrupted to answer questions.

The Wirness: If that is the wish of the committee.

The CramMAN: T think it would be better.
0478433
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The Wirness: I am contending that the basis of this housing scheme
should be clear, it is intended to benefit the wage earner of the lower strata.
We have figured it out here, Mr. Kitchen and myself—Mr. Kitchen is my
assistant, and I may say that he is the zoning engineer, and he is also the

supervising architect for the city of Ottawa. We have given a great deal of

thought to this problem. We have figured out an average unit cost of $2,500, such
units can be provided not as single detached houses but in groups of four or
six, as in England; or as apartments. Personally I do not favour apartments,

they are not favoured in England except under certain conditions. Because of
the many factors involved I suggest that it would be a good thing for your

committee to consider the whole problem as a problem of town planning. It is
because of the many other factors which enter into it that I am giving you a
unit cost figure to indicate what would be possible under conditions of mass

production.

| By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Does that figure make provision for light and heat as well?—A. No,
sir, it does not provide for light and heat; I contend, and I am endorsed by
several other town planners—call them economic specialists if you like—that

rentals for this class of labour must not exceed $15 a month. When the rent
goes over that amount one of the two things happens; either the man for whom
it was intended can’t go into it, or else he will go into it with someone else— *

fwo families; and you immediately have the germ of congestion starting again.
Or else it will be gone into by someone who could economically afford a better
rent, and who should not be impinging upon benefits intended for people who

cannot afford to pay more. That is the result if your rental is too high. That

has been the trouble with a great many housing schemes. Take in the case of
Ottawa and the Lindenlea housing scheme, that did not benefit working people

but the houses were taken over by a great many civil servants and their con-
struction cost of $4,000 or more. Anybody who knows anything about it
knows that such a cost is too high. Fifteen dollars a month gives a yearly
income of $180. Now, if you take $180, and the usual economic proportion of

income which a man can afford to pay as rent as being about 20 per cent, that

is for shelter, it means that a man has got to have an income of $900 a year
whether he gets $75 a month regularly or whether he has only an accumulated

amount of $900 for the year. He has got to have that much if he is going to

be able to pay $15 a month for his house. If he is getting less than that
houses have got to be provided between $10 and $15. I am using $15 a month

for a five room house, or rather a five room unit.

t By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Might I interrupt you there a moment.—A. Certainly.

Q. Do you happen to have before you the rentals charged in some of the

large industrial sections in Great Britain? It might be useful to us to have

such information now.—A. I haven’t got the rental figures with me. I have

seen a great many of these areas in my visits to the Old Country, and have

gone through them. As to rentals, I have seen a 3 roomed house renting at 5

shillings a week, which would amount roughly to about $5 a month.

Q. In what part of the country?—A. That was near Leeds. They are |

jv’ying with each other over there, it is becoming a matter of pride between city

engineers to see who can produce the best for the least money. A very nice 5

roomed house can be rented for from 7 to 8 shillings a week.

that.

Q. Is that net? Does that include rates?—A. There is a small rate on

¥
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Q. Sometimes the rate is very heavy there, so heavy as to be almost
equivalent to the amount of the rental; do the rates you indicate include local
taxes?

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Did you say the return on the money invested was from 3 to 4 per
cent?—A. Yes.

Q. That would be the return in Canada on a rental of $180 a year for
a $2,500 house.—A. Of course, taxes and repairs have to be considered, main-
tenance; I am putting it at a minimum and I am making the claim that that
minimum must absolutely not be exceeded, or else you defeat your purpose.

Q. Could you not take 25 per cent of a man's income for rental, would it
not be fair to take $20 as the minimum and put your maximum at say $25
for rental purposes?—A. I am taking the figure $20 for purposes of argument
In this instance. If you have a regular income, say you are a civil servant,
it is legitimate when various services provided in apartments and heated are
taken into consideration to pay as high perhaps as 40 per cent. But with work-
ingmen if you exceed roughly 20 per cent of his income he is going to have to
skimp something else. He has only got so much money and if he takes off more
for his rental than represents a reasonable proportion he is going to have to cut
dgwn on food and clothing for himself and his family—there are no two ways
about it.

Now, I am suggesting that any scheme of this kind should be under the
control of the federal government; that is to say, I am not at all satisfied with
the results of scattered control, here at least under the two Ontario housing acts
—with respect to which you are going to have criticisms by people who are to
appear here. That is to say, whoever furnishes the money should have the say;
also, that the scheme should be such as to induce private initiative.

Mr. Surnivan: That appears quite reasonable.

The Wirness: “Who pays the piper calls the tune” isn’t that the old saying?

I would recommend that we endeavour to create “Public utility companies”
as they call them over there—companies with limited dividends, over there it is
5 per cent; here it might easily be made 6 per cent. If they were to pay 5 per
cent on the money, the government might advance say 75 per cent of it at about
3% per cent. We would then be able to get investors and organizations such as
the big construction companies, the insurance companies, the loan and mortgage
companies, the trust companies and many individuals to put their money into
them. Here we have the benefit of the experience in England. At first every-
body over there was afraid, with the result that the British government had to
come across with very substantial subsidies. The case is now proved and they
are not giving that subsidy to such an extent. While the rate of interest may
be low the security is good and people are putting their money into such schemes.
I do not know of any case, although there may be such, in which they have
failed to meet: their obligations.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. T just didn’t get that; how low is their rate of interest did you say?—A.
It runs usually somewhere around 3 or 4 per cent, depending on when the money
was advanced and also upon the condition of the market at that time, and so
forth, They have a number of acts, you see, and rates vary; generally the rate
18 a little above the rate at which the British government can borrow the money;
because, guaranteed sufficient security what they want is to create homes as
cheaply as possible, so they are willing to take pretty big risks.
. Q. Would you outline that form of company again, I did not catch your
point; you say it earns around 5 or 6 per cent do you; is that what you want
ere?—A. T recommended a form of public utility company along lines similar
to what they have in England.
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Q. What is that?—A. It is a construction company that gets together and
is willing to build houses under government supervision and in accordance with
government standards, provided the government will lend them varying amounts
up to 75 per cent at very low rates of interest—they have their own money in
it but the amount is limited.

Q. What would be the basis of their constitution, that is my point?—A. It
would be an ordinary limited liability company, I would suggest a company
through which money could be invested.

Q. I see, not a municipal affair at all?—A. Municipal affairs are separate.
In England municipal building has been successful, but in this country it has
not to so great an extent. Mr. Heaps referred to an individual case where it
has been successful.

Mr. Hears: I have the figures here.

The Wirness: I am not questioning them.

I(Viir. Heaps I mean, it may be of interest now to have them go into the
record.

The CuAmRMAN: If it will only take a moment or two.

Mr. Heaprs: It will only take half a minute, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Waite (London): In what year did this construction start? !

Mr. Heaprs: I will give you that in just a second. The total amount of
loans advanced in the city of Winnipeg was $2,757,848.16. !

The Wirness: Advanced by whom, sir?

Mr. Heaps: Advanced by the city of Winnipeg to those who wanted to |

build homes. There were built altogether, according to this tabulation, from
1920 to 1923 inclusive, 712 homes. The net profit for the year 1932, after pay-
ing debenture interest and administration expenses was $14,754.45—A. May 1
ask what the rentals run per unit? ‘

Q. They have not a rental basis at all. Those houses were all constructed
for those who wanted to purchase their own homes—A. May I ask what
capital cost was allowed?

Q. Well, I think there was practically no limit; but the houses were in
what you call a middle type class; five and six room ones were built there,
by the Housing commission of Winnipeg.

Mr. MelnTosa: Were each about the same kind?

Mr. Heaps: Approximately, I would say, $4,000 or $5,000 homes.

The Cmamman: We can get someone to give a statement on that.

Mr. Heaps: I thought Mr: Cauchon was dealing with the question.

The Wirness: 1 would like to have consideration given to this discussion
particularly, because they represent bigger capital cost than for your low
wage earner. There has been a distinct movement between building homes
for them and building homes for the low wage earner. It is a different thing
altogether.

Mr. Heaps: I will point out this, that at the time the federal govern-
went gave this money to the provincial government, the provincial government
reloaned amounts to the civic authority. There was very little building con-
struction, because rates of interest were extremely high, and this money was

loaned out, I think, to borrowers at 6 per cent as against probably 8 per cent §

they would have had to pay otherwise.

The Wrrxnss: The Ontario Housing Act of 1919-1920 provided for getting
money for building houses, but they did not keep the cost down so that houses
were available to the low wage earner. :
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By Mr. Heaps:

Q. You know that it is a common experience that the difficulty was not so
‘much in keeping down the cost as in keeping the house up to quality?—A. Yes.

Q. I think you will find that the trouble with many housing schemes is
that they build a bunch of jerry-built homes which have no value in a couple
of years?—A. No amortization value. In passing, 1 might say that I am
a great admirer of the English rental system. The houses which they placed
on a rental basis are well kept up.

By Mr. Sullivan:

Q. Just where do they use the English system, in large cities?—A. Yes, it
is used by the London county council in something like 200,000 units, rented
and administered, and they do not lose any money.

Q. By the city?—A. By the city; and that is done all over England and
Scotland. There is a further control that I would suggest that the govern-
ment should have. They should control town planning, that is environment
and accessibility, the extent of the interval and the fatigue limit, and should
control the standards of the houses—that is to say, the house plans, disposi-
tion of the rooms, that they are properly laid out for their purposes. That is
a job for the Canadian architect. He does not have to copy continental or
English houses in plan. The customs of our workmen are very often different.
Our climate we certainly admit is different. It involves both social and struc-
tural consideration that has got to be worked out here, and can be worked
out here quite easily. The government should control the materials which go
mnto these buildings, as to their durability; because of the amortization plan
which is practically what they are worth over their amortization, forty years
f91‘ the cost of the house and sixty years for the cost of the land. If good mate-
Tials do not go in, the house would not stand up for the period of amortization.
That is ordinary common sense. They should control construction methods.
That is to say, if a company is going to build, it should submit its plans to the
Proper government authority which may be constituted, and see if they fall
within the province of these things. I would keep in mind the accomplishment
of the purpose of obtaining a good home for the low wage earner. The rest
comes by itself as a matter of general prosperity. They should have control

rom the point of view of cost, and they should control zoning. Zoning is the
¢ivic function, not that of the provincial government; but there would not be
any trouble in appealing to the city and saying to the governing authority
here, “We are going to have a scheme of housing in certain places in your
EltY- We want you to pass a by-law that protects that.” There would be no
rouble about it, because zoning is the backbone which protects those houses,
0se homes, in their sunshine and air so that they fulfil the requirements and
¢ amenities. T have tried for many years to get a zoning by-law for Ottawa,
ut I have never been able to get it through the city council. There are
certain influences— - \
It Q. Ts that when Mr. Church was mayor?—A. No. I am talking of Ottawa.
we had had him as mayor in the City Council, probably we would have got
w}? thing done! The main opposition, both open and hidden, came from people
> 0 wanted to turn good residences into duplexes or something élse. In other
ords, they wanted to capitalize their neighbours’ amenities and so destroy
Oelr neighbours’ values. They were perfectly respectable houses, high class
ch:ses and expensive houses, but if you change the nature of the residences, you
ounge the whole surroundings. The street turns from one of smgle.famlly
s rf]es owned by the people who live in them into one with houses with two
4 ore tenants, and eventually it is all tenants. There has been a conversion.
ney is lost by those who have honestly put their money into a set of con-
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ditions which is not maintained for them. We are having that trouble here
all the time. It is essential that the occupancy of this “ housing ” should be
controlled by the government authorities, but as to the class of people who go
into them—that is, to say, to see that they are reserved for the class of people
for whom they are intended—and also as to the number of people who are
allowed in them, that is as to the overcrowding of houses.

I have a newspaper clipping here which I will not read, but will pass on to
the committee. It is a Canadian Press despatch from London, relating to two
new bills which extend the British drive on slums. “ Overcrowding in homes made
punishable offence under measures for England, Wales and Scotland.” It is the
first time in history that a country-wide standard of the overcrowded house
has been established. “ The first stage of the battle was a five year program
for the total abolition of the slums and the construction of 300,000 houses to
replace them.” That is going on now. I may refer this hon. gentleman—I
have not got his name—

Mr. Stancey: That is Mr. Sullivan.
The Wirness: Referring to what Mr. Sullivan agked, the law in England

, is that before you destroy slums, you have got to provide new houses. In the

Old Country, you have got to remember that you are not allowed to put people
out on the street. That answers one question.

“ Under the new bills, a house will be regarded as overcrowded if sleeping
accommodation in separate rooms is not available for occupants of opposite
sexes more than ten years of age, other than persons living together as husbhand
and wife. . . . . It proposes to allow for two persons in a single apart-
ment, three in a house of two rooms,” and so on.

“The safeguarding clauses protect existing occupants and here is an import-
ant matter—until new accommodation is ready.” That is in the Act. “ The sub-
sidies from the national exchequer will be provided with the local authorities
contributing an amount equal to one-half of the exchequer subsidy.” I would
say for every dollar the government puts up, the municipality puts up fifty
cents. That is slum clearance; that is not ordinary housing.

“The bills further prov1de that state-assisted houses are to be occupied
by 'the working classes and let at rents which the working classes can afford
to pay.” They have come to the essential. I need not enlarge on that. T am now
at the end of my remarks. On what bills of this kind would do to revive
industry in Canada, I would say it would give work to our friends the con-
tractors, the construction industry. On the basis I am suggesting it would
involve a great deal of private capital going into the movement. Engineers
like myself would find more work, architects, mechanics, labourers, ete.

By Mr. White:

Q. How is that practically established? Ts it established with the salary or
wages secured as the yardstick?—A. I fancy so. I can’t see from th1s, but
it is established by the wages a man gets. T don’t see any other way in which
you can establish it. That is the invariable base to use. I have finished my
remarks. I believe I am to be followed by Mr. Kitchen. T may say I have a
very valuable collection of pictures. I have made many trips to Europe, and I
have a collection of lantern slides which I use in my lectures, and if any of
you gentlemen wish it, I will be very pleased to bring them and show them, and
have a round table discussion, and point out the results and difficulties. Do not
imagine that this continental housing that you read so much about is all so
desirable—not by any means.

- By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Would you give us your view as to whether these houses should be
uniform in architecture, or varied?—A. I would like to allow a little variation, by
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all means; that is to say, all the structural disposition of the rooms, the
economic relation of the parts of the house, should be pretty well standardized.
You cannot have very much variation in that if you are keeping in low figures.
Q. Would it not increase hand labour if there were variations rather than
aving a uniform system of building? That is, you would have more hand
labour and less machine labour if you had some variety, would you not?—A.
Well, it just depends on what you consider variety. If it is ornamental work,
1t is going to increase the cost of the house. They have found in England,
and they are complaining of it, that there is a great monotony in the housing
schemes. You can motor through England as I have done, from one end to
the other, and you will no sooner get out of one town and over the hill, than you
See a great mass of red roofs in the distances. Every town and village is doing it.
As they are dealing with the smallest possible unit in human habitation,
1t is like drawing a design from a sugar bowl full of lumps of sugar. You will
have difficulty in avoiding a certain amount of monotony. I would like to see a
Tesearch department towards making them more aesthetic, but my great excuse
1S that these people are getting better accommodation than they ever had
efore. Monotony does not worry a man who is living in a better house. It
Wworries the man who looks at it.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. What I would like to ask in a little more direct way is whether you have
anything to show, in the information that you have available, the actual needs
of hpusing in Canada?—A. No, I have not gone over Canada. We will be able
to give that for Ottawa. We have not got it compiled just yet. We had been
working on it for some time before this committee was appointed, to find out, for
1nstance, how many houses in Ottawa would need to be replaced. T do know
that a great many families are living two and three families in a house. Any-

Ing to the extent that the houses are overcrowded with surplus families, there
?ggﬁd be houses or single units provided. The ideal is a single unit for a single
ily.
. Q. There is no research data that you know of that could be available to
this committee?
Wi Mr. Stawney: The Montreal commission, the Toronto commission and the
Innipeg commission ought to be able to give us some information.

By Mr. Heaps:
Y. Q. We have no commission that deals specifically with housing questions.
& OU know of no health officer or other civic officer that could give that informa-
10n?—A. T don’t know anybody. I don’t know of its having been obtained.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. Would it not be in the census?—A. I was going to say that, that the
CeNSUS may give some information on it. Bub you see, “housing ” has never
tered national consciousness until this committee was appointed.

By Mr. Heaps: .
st Q‘; It has, in some cases, been made the subject of local or provincial
udy?—A. Yes, but not national.

By Mr. Sullivan:
Q. There is no report?—A. I don’t think so. ;
ave you had occasion to study any of the different schemes which were
Proposed to the city council of Montreal last year?—A. I have never gone into
h % n detail, because if you went into all those schemes you would have to
ave forty-eight hours in the day.
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Q. Have you made any study of the Doucet scheme?—A. No, only in a
casual way. I have not studied it.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. You suggest $2,500 as the basis to provide housing in Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. That is based on the ability of a man to pay approximately 20 per cent
of his income?—A. I say that is what it represents.

Q. Approximately 20 per cent?—A. Yes.

Q. In that, have you provided for taxes; and what proportion have you
provided for taxes and what proportion for income?—A. We have provided a
slight amount in that. $2,500 would cover his charges, but at a very low margin.
We had hoped to build that unit for less than $2,500.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. You say $2,500. Would that include the land?—A. Yes. That is for
a new housing scheme. That is not for slum clearance.

By Hon. Mr. Morand.:

Q. That would be multi-houses, not single houses?—A. No, not single houses
—houses in groups of four or five, or grouped in apartments. There is the Toronto
scheme and there is the Winnipeg scheme.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. I was very much interested in the Winnipeg scheme, where they thought
they could get rentals down to $15 a month, which I did not think possible.—
A. No. I have passed to the chairman an article in the journal of the Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada showing that scheme, and I think the rental
runs from $23 and up, which makes a perfectly good house for good employment,
but not a low wage earner.

Q. I think that would include the heat?—A. Yes, they have heat in there.

Q. It is a tremendous big item?—A. Yes, a big item. Central heating from
an engineering point of view, is very economical. The problem has arisen not
only with low wage earners, but better paid people, what they have to pay for
their heat. Difficulty is in collecting heating charges.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. My point in connection with taxes is, that taxes are variable?—A. Yes.

Q. Interest is a known quantity and taxes are variable. What would you
provide for the variation in taxes?—A. Well, T have not provided for it except
on this basis. In Ottawa, and in all cities in Canada, almost, if an industry
comes to a place with a big investment, it is given at least a ten years’ fixed
assessment in their taxes. I do not see why the same civility, let us call it, should
not be extended to a housing scheme.

Q. You are providing amortization on the basis of forty years?—A. Sixty
for the land.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Let us go back to what Mr. Heaps said a moment ago. When I was
mayor of Montreal, we had several delegations from organizations and associa-
tions interested in slum clearing and house building. I would expect that some
of these will communicate with the chairman of the committee. I might say
that every one of them was strictly municipal in basis, but at the same time I
think that they could supply this committee with valuable information. I have
had a letter from one of them, and if necessary I would be delighted to pass on
its contents to the chairman, in order to have witnesses called. I would not
undertake to summarize any of the information that is supplied, but I think
it would be much better if they got it direct.
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The CuamrMaN: Does any other member wish to ask the witness any other
questions?

Mr. Puonkerr: I should like to ask a question.

By -Mr. Plunkett:
§ Q. What is your opinion or suggestion in regard to the size of these houses?
—A. Size? :

Q. Do you favour a single detached house, a semi-detached house for two
families, or a house with four apartments or more? What do you think would
be the most acceptable?>—A. I would like a single house as the ideal, but I do
not think it is economically possible. For all classes of wages I have suggested
that these units be in groups of four or six, or more. In this climate, if you

ave a house with four outside walls, it costs much more to heat it and the
structural expenses are very much higher to resist the climate.

Q. Is there any more decided opinion on the part of people to live in apart-
ments in the cities than there formerly was?—A. Apartments, yes. The problem
of apartments is: for married people or unmarried people without any children,
apartments are all right within reasonable limits; but they are no place for
families or the bringing up of children.

Q. Would not an apartment house get out of repair quicker than perhaps
& two or four-roomed house?—A. That depends on so many factors. It depends
on the construction of the apartment house, the people who are in it, whether
they are destructive, or not, and so forth. The trouble with apartment houses
18 that they usually cost more per unit than houses that I suggest. The apart-
ment feature has gone up at Ottawa. For instance, take what has been done
I Burope. Take Vienna. Vienna had not enough houses after the war. Austria
18 like Canada, a federation. Vienna is a province by itself, and at the time it
Was governed by either a Bolshevistic group or Communistic group, and they
Simply told the people who had houses: “now, you have to take in a family
Who has no house, or else put up the money to provide a house for them.” I do
0t know whether they waited very long for the answer, or not. They immedi-
ately executed a capital levy, and they built houses for those who had no capital.

fen I whas last in Vienna in 1931, 11 per cent of the population of that country
was living in municipally owned houses, and they were paying hardly any rent.

he rental they were paying was barely sufficient for the taxes and upkeep. They
Were not paying rent in the ordinary sense, because the money had not been bor-
Yowed. They simply took it from the people who had it by that simple process.

OW, you read in the magazines that their buildings are magnificent, and they are
Magnificent. You could build magnificent houses also, if you could take the
Money out of somebody else’s pocket.

By Mr. Heaps:
Suppose we could get money at a low rate of interest, say 2} per cent,
could we have low price houses here?—A. Low priced houses?
Yes—A. I contend we can get them with money at 3% per cent.
" - Suppose we got money at 21 per cent, would it not make a tremendous
difference in the cost of erection?-—A. It would be so much better.

By Mr. Stanley: .
Q. You have submitted a great deal this morning on the construction of
h.(“.lsesy but you have not emphasized anything about repairs. There are in the
Cities of our country, many families, who are living in homes that need repairs

badly to make them sanitary, and yet there is no provision in the scheme you

Ve outlined whereby they may be assisted in making repairs, and they are not
able to do i, Have you anything to say on that?—A. I have not touched upon
that. It is o very very complex and very difficult phase of the housing business,
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for the simple reason that you have to loan the money on individual houses, and
you have to get security for the mortgages. Then the question arises where the
security stands. That is the trouble with a great many of the smaller pro-
prietors. In this case you are dealing with small proprietors first. They have
not got into the habit of a sinking fund, and the capital is being used up by
them, and so in ten years your security is gone, the house is gone, and we have
to begin all over again.

In the city of Montreal it has been an economic principle of the working
man, the good mechanic, to invest in houses. He has not been investing in
bonds. He has put has savings into a house. He generally builds a double
house, and he is known as a “ petit proprietaire,” as Mr. Rinfret knows. He
looks to that for his insurance for his old age, or for his family in case of his
death. They live in one side and the other side carries them. They do not
have to leave their home. It is a very very fine system of economics for poor
people. The trouble has been during the last five years many of these people
have lost their jobs, and the poor man who owns the small house has not
had work. He has gone behind, has not been able to pay his taxes or the
interest on the borrowed money, and a great many of them have lost their
homes. As a matter of fact, they have been losing them by the thousands.
We think provision should be made for that class of people to help them to
rehabilitate their homes, but it is a very complicated business. If you set up
any question about the physical or the ethical point of view, it is simply a
matter of how you are going to do it. You get into the question of inspection
and book-keeping and the rate of interest being charged, and you will find
it to be a very, very difficult problem.

Q. As I see it, that is the most important part of the problem?—A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: I think that is a very pertinent question. You sug-
gest housebuilding or slum clearing or rebuilding where houses have been torn
down, but you do not say anything about the repairing of houses already
in existence.

The Wirness: There is no question about it, it is an important feature.
I might mention here to the Chairman of the Committee that there is a very
exhaustive report which has just been completed within the last two or three
days on behalf of the Montreal Board of Trade. The report was made by
Professor Nobbs of MecGill University. He was accorded help by members of
the committee of the members of the Board of Trade, particularly on the
financial set-up.

By Mr. Church:

Q. Would you apply the repair policy to the type of house, whether owned
by farmers or urbanites, who are on relief? What would you do in that case?
—A. Farmers on relief?

Q. The type of house occupied by people on relief whether farmers or city
urbanists. Would you apply that principle to them?—A. As T say, Mr. Church—

Q. The report you speak of shows the properties occupied by people on
relief?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you apply the principle of public repairs to these people?—A.
City people?

Q. To these houses occupied by the type of worker on relief—A. Well,
it could be done, but it would impose a total subsidy, because they cannot pay
anything.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Under the British Housing Scheme, covering England, Wales and Scot-
land, approximately what has been the amount of government money involved?
—A. T think roughly something like $3,000,000,000, is it not?
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The Cuamman: Dollars or pounds?
The Wrrness: Dollars.

By Mr. McIntosh.:

Q. Three billion?—A. Three billion dollars of money. I am to be followed
by my assistant, Mr. Kitchen, who has gone into that phase of it.

The CuamMAN: Gentlemen, before Mr. Kitchen is called, I should like to
say this: when we met this morning, we met on the understanding that we
would meet from 10 to 12. Do you want to hear Mr. Kitchen now or do you
want to wait until the next meeting? 1 think we shall have to ask Mr.
Kitchen to come to our next meeting. Before we disperse I should like to
say this: T have read this reference over five or six times, and every time I
read it I find something more in it. I find it very difficult to get everything
at once, and I should like to ask every member of the committee to read the
reference over thoroughly so that we shall keep our discussion within the refer-
énce. We have appointed a sub-committee to decide on the calling of evi-
dence, and if each member will remember the names of the members of that
committee, Dr. Stanley, Dr. Morand, Mr. Wright, Mr. Hanbury and Mr.

hurch to indicate to them the names of anyone that they wish to give evi-
dence before this committee, I think it will assist us greatly.

The Wrirxess: May T answer in just one paragraph the question asked by
one of the members. This matter will be presented to you at the next meeting
by Mr. Kitchen, but I should like to read this:—

The most outstanding example of state-aided and state-promoted
housing to-day is probably to be found in England, where, between 1919
and March, 1934, about 2,330,000 dwellings were erected in England and
Wales, of which 1,180,000 were built with state assistance and about
1,150,000 without. The capital expenditure on the 1,180,000 dwellings is
estimated at $3,355,000,000 of which $2,095,000,000 was exnende(j b_v loc_al
authorities and $1,260,000,000 by private enterprise. State subsidies paid
from 1919 to March, 1934, on the 1,180,000 dwellings amounted to nearly
$685,000,000 mostly in the form of annual grants for a period of vears;
they are quite distinet from municipal contributions. New dwellings
erected since March, 1934, bring the total number at December, 1934, to
well over 2,500,000. _

The Cramyan: Gentlemen, we will have Mr. Kitchen at the next meeting.

. By Hon. Mr. Morand.:

Q. Gentlemen, T have one question to ask. You estimate a house costing
$2,500 should rent for $15 a month. Have you any figures on what percentage
You think should go for taxes?—A. No, we have not separated them. These are
aPProximate figures. That is the minimum. Taxes vary. I think a good arrange-
ment could be made with the city to have a fixed assessment and probably fixed

axes as for a commercial institution that is willing to spend $1,000,000 or
$500,000 or more. : X

Q. T have a big apartment house, and T was wondering how I could work it

80 that I could rent, them for $15 a month.

By Mr. McIntosh: .
ol Q. If you paid $180 on a $2,500 house, that would include taxes?—A. More
ess, sir. :
Q. That would be about 7 per cent on the principal, would it not?—A. T have
not figured it out.
Q. Yes, it would.



4 ' SPECIAL COMMITTEE ,
~_ The Cuamman: I should like to ask the sub-committee to get together and

indicate to us when we shall meet again. I understand there are very few com-
mittees meeting tomorrow, and I was wondering whether the committee wanted

~ to meet tomorrow.
Hon. Mr. Rixrrer: Let us meet at the call of the Chair.

~ The Committee adjourned at twelve o’clock, to meet again at the call of
the Chair. !
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
ComMrTTEE RooMm 429,
MarcH 5, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued,
met this day at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided.

The following members were present:—Messieurs: Bourgeois, Church,

Dorion, Elliott, Ganong, Hanbury, Heaps, MecIntosh, Peck, Plunkett, Rinfret,
Stanley, and Sullivan—13.

Mr. Stanley, from the sub-committee appointed to call witnesses, reported
that Mr. P. E. Nobbs, of Montreal, had been summoned to appear to-day.

The Chairman reported having received numerous letters from people
who wished to be heard.

Mr. Sullivan handed in two letters from people in Montreal who desired to
present the “Doucet” plan and another plan to the Committee.

Mr. Heaps suggested someone from Winnipeg be heard.

Mr. Hanbury thought these requests should be turned over to the sub-
committee on Agenda for their consideration. The Committee agreed to this.

Mr. P. E. Nobbs was then called, examined, and retired.
Mr. Noulan Cauchon, who gave evidence at the previous meeting, answered
a number of questions.

The meeting adjourned until Thursday, March 7th, at 10.30 o’clock a.m.

J. P. DOYLE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons, Room 429,
MarcH 5, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in Room 429, Tuesday, March 5,
1935, at 10.30 a.m., Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

The CrarMAN: Gentlemen, will you come to order. The clerk says we
1ave a quorum. As the minutes are printed, I think we can dispense with the
reading of them.

‘e have several communications here which I do not think we want to
place on our record at the present time, although we may want to later. I have
a letter from the Social Service Council of Canada and they have sent Housing
n Canada, Housing Related to Land Development, a pamphlet on housing in
Canada, housing of the working classes, Housing in Europe, by John W. S.
MCCUHOUgh; Summary of the Findings in regard to Housing in Canada, with
two or three other small pamphlets. If any of the members would like to see
these publications or any of them, I would be very pleased to show them to them.

am going to pass them over to our small committee.

Mr. Prek: 1 think we all received copies, Mr. Chairman.

B The CrAmMAN: Perhaps you have. He writes as if he had sent them
you.

I also have a letter from F. G. Engholm, of Toronto, a fairly long letter,
¢ontaining some quite good suggestions; also one from Parksite Homes which
I do not think would have very much interest, as it is almost altogether on
town Planning. T have g communication from the secretary of the League of

ations Society, and perhaps the rest of you may have received it also. They
ave on file: Housing policy in Europe—cheap home building at $1.25; Housing
ituation in the United States at 20 cents; European Housing Problems since
the War at $1.50; Unemployment and Public Works at $1; Public Works Policy
at $1; National Public Works, $3, all issued by the League of Nations Society.
ave a letter from the National Construetion Council of Canada, Toronto,

to be represented before the committee, and one or two others which I
tthe unfortunately neglected to bring with me. All of these I will pass over

O the sub-committee to consider. I think one or two members have com-
municationg

Wishing

Mr. SviLivan: T have two letters, one from Le Comité du Logement
Salubre. My, Dupuis, a merchant in Montreal is the chairman of that com-
mittee. T would like to submit the letter. They want to be heard on this plan
known as the Doucet plan. Then I have a letter from Mr. Ouimet who ran
3% mayor for Montreal, who wants to be heard. I would like to have these
People heard whenever the committee chooses.

The CHAIRMAN - Have any of the other members any communications
they would like to file?

Mr. Hansury: Tt occurs to me that a great many people are going to
be anxious to be heard; and if, as we hope, the session concludes within the
next month or two, I do not think we are going to have an opportunity of

caring everybody 1 suggest that any of these people asking to be heard
}Slhould, in the first place, give a brief outline of what they have to submit, and

ave that considered by the sub-committee in order that they can decide whether
or not they wish to hear them.



30 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

The CHAmRMAN: I think that is a good suggestion.

Mr. StanrEY: I will second it. v

Mr. SurLivan: Of course, the Doucet plan is a pretty well known one. It
was submitted to the government last year, to the Minister of Labour; they
submitted it to the city council of the city of Montreal. Of course, the city of
Montreal have so many of these houses which I might not call exactly slums,
but in a thickly populated centre of the city people are living together in houses
that are not fit for them, and they have a pretty good plan. I would like that
to be submitted. I do not want them to come and make long winded speeches,
eleven-hour speeches, but make it as short as possible.

Mr. McIxTosu: You said “ government.” Was that provincial govern-
ment or federal government?

Mr. SuLuivan: Federal government, and I believe to the provincial govern-
ment at Quebec and the city authorities—mayor and aldermen of the city of
Montreal.

The CuammMan: I think we could pass these over to our sub-committee.

Mr. Heaps: I have a communication here from the mayor of Winnipeg
suggesting that a gentleman who is conversant with the housing scheme should
come and give evidence.

Mr. McIntosa: Who is that?

Mr, Heaps: Mr. Alexander. The mayor also says that they have a com-
mittee that is working on a housing proposal for Winnipeg at the present time.
Undoubtedly if the gentleman came, he could give a good deal of information.

Mr. McIntosu: He could give us the Winnipeg picture in full.

Mr. Heaps: Oh, yes. He is one of the health inspectors at Winnipeg.

Mr. StanpEy: Chief Inspector of Sanitation.

The CramrMan: We will report that to the sub-committee. We have
several witnesses here from Montreal. Is there any other matter that the com-
mittee wishes brought up before we call the first witness? If not, Mr. Nobbs
from the city of Montreal is here on behalf of the Board of Trade committee
on housing. He has made out a synopsis which he will read, and if the members
would listen while he reads this, then afterwards his suggestion is that we take
each section up and ask him different questions on them. The report is very
long. and he cannot submit the whole report.

Mr. McIxTosu: He will speak for the Board of Trade and Municipal
authorities in Montreal?

The CuamrMAN: As I understand it, he is speaking for the committee on
housing of the Board of Trade. I will ask him to explain it exactly.

Mr. Mclnrosa: That is what T thought.
The CuarrMaN: I will ask Mr. Nobbs to address the committee.
Percy E. Nogss, called.

By the Chairman:

Q. First, will you give the committee some idea of your experience. We
would like to have that on record. because others will read the report besides
those present?—A. With regard to the report, do you mean?

Q. No, in regard to your personal experience or authority. Don’t be too
modest about it, because we want to know just who is presenting this?—A. Mr.
Chairman and gentlemen, I have been asked to explain why I have the temerity

to be here. In the report of this committee the various members are deseribed.

The descg'iption of myself is M.A., Edinburgh University; Royal Canadian
Academician; Fellow, Royal Institute of British Architects; past president of

Aaime Abhd in deh
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the Town Planning Institute of Canada and of the Royal Architectural Institute
of Canada. Around the years 1901 and 1902 I was a servant of the London
County Council and concerned, as architect, with design and charge of fire
stations. In those fire stations the staff are housed in London, and they were
housed in accordance with what were called first class housing regulations.
There were three classes of housing in use at that time, first, second and third,
with separate regulations. In that way I was in close touch with the housing
branch of the London County Council, and naturally became familiar with their
problems.

Subsequently, since 1903, I have had oceasion to do a certain amount of
teaching at MeGill University (in the School of Architecture there), and we

ave always made the study of housing problems part of the curriculum. I
have been in close association with the City Improvement League of Montreal
for about fourteen years, as chairman both of the City Improvement League
Committees on town planning, and on housing. In that way I have inevitably
acquired a certain familiarity with the Montreal problem. When various
schemes such as the plan referred to by Mr. Sullivan, and others, came on the
carpet in Montreal a couple of years ago, some of us realized that while they
might deal with certain aspects of the problem, there was no machinery m
existence for making a complete survey of the whole housing problem of Mont-
real. I was asked by the City Improvement League to undertake that task.
After working for some time, we found that there was a committee of the Board
of Trade particularly interested in slum clearance; and they l}ad the same task,
tO_ seek understanding of the situation in Montreal broadly in order_that they
might be in a positioﬂ to decide on how far they approved of these various plans,
of which there were several. The net result was that the two committees got
together to share their labours. The original intention was that my committee
would produce the facts, and that the Board of Trade committee would make
the findings. However, when we worked together we found that the experts
of the two committees were so well distributed between them that we det_:lded

Join forces completely. The two committees were merged into one committee,
and both bodies took responsibility both for the facts disclosed in the report
and for the findings. Does that meet the point you had in mind?

Q. Yes. Now will you proceed, please?—A. You have before you, gentle-
men, two sections of this report: the introductory section which is quite brief,
and 'section Number Two which is really a summary and might just as well
have come at the end of the report. I think that we will get on faster if I
read you this summary which you will notice has a rubric of numbers referring
to different, sections of the report, T would suggest that I confine myself to
answering questions as to what is in the report, rather than giving &% cathedra
remarks as an individual expert. I am only expert on one aspect of this whole
problem. There are other gentlemen associated with me who might come

efore you at a later time, if you wish further clucidation on some of the
ramifications, :

‘I shall now read from Section 1 of the report. o

“Introduction: With recurrent demands being made upon the municipal
authorities of Montreal to give consideration to various proposals for slum
Clearance and housing, the Board of Trade appointed a committee to study

€se mmportant questions. Being impelled with a desire to go to the roots of

€ problem, the committee accepted the offer of co-operation from the com-
Mittee on housing of the City Improvement League which had, by September,
t'93 », made some progress in analysing the basic elements of the housing situa-
vlon in Montreal.  From that time forward these committees were fully merged
I investigating the facts and in arriving at the findings herein contained.
o is report is intended to be informative for the general public and_of

Se to federal, provincial and municipal authorities, when dealing with housing

a ]
04 slum clearance as parts of the national economic problem.
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The committee has found that the slums of Montreal are relatively small
even when taken as a whole; but they are scattered throughout a dozen wards
where their presence does great harm to adjoining real estate values. The
potential area of deterioration is found to be very serious.

(I might stop reading for a moment to point out to you that this potential
area of deterioration in Montreal presents a far more important problem than
the existing slum areas.)

There has for long been a marked shortage in low rent dwellings, quite
apart from standards of accommodation. The prevailing type of dwellings
under the present system of ownership and management {fails to provide
accommodation for the lower wage earners, at rents they can afford to pay.
An acute actual shortage of dwellings is now in sight. (I may mention that,
at the present moment, there are four thousand odd fewer dwellings than
there are families of an average of 4-7 souls.)

For purposes of investigation the committee has divided the wage earners
of the city into four groups:

1. * White Collar’ and highly skilled manual workers;

2. Artisans and skilled manual workers;

3. Semi-skilled and other low wage earners; and

4. Unskilled wage earners.

The proportions which these several groups in Montreal have to the total
population and the numbers of their dependents have been carefully studied
and it has been found that they constitute a very large proportion of the whole
population.

The available official sources for data are the Health Department and the
Board of Assessors of the city of Montreal and the census authorities at
Ottawa, none of which deal specifically with the housing question. (I might
here interpolate that we cannot profess, in our report, to have done what a
government department charged with the duty of dealing with housing problems
might have done, but we have come as near to it as we could.)

The committee has accepted the view, borne out by recent studies in
Cleveland, Ohio, that the cost to the community at large of leaving the lower
wage groups to find accommodation in deteriorated structures is not econom-
ically sound; i.e., that it is cheaper for the community at large to bear a sub-
stantial part of the cost of providing adequate accommodation.

The committee has been forced to the conclusion that an annual program

of 4,000 dwellings at rentals to meet the exigencies of the lower wage groups is
required in Montreal.

Though late in entering the field of assisted housing, Canada is in a posi-
tion to profit by the housing experience of older industrial countries. (That
experience, I may mention, contains many mistakes.) The colossal housing pro-
gram undertaken in the United States also stimulates Canadian thought.

The reader will note the emphasis the committee places throughout the
report on questions of orientation, light and air, sound construction and on the
advantages of corporate ownership, and collective management with social
service.”

Now I come to the summary of the remaining sections of the report, of
which there are 29, as follows:—

“As this report necessarily contains much technical and statistical matter,

both with respect to the sociological survey of existing conditions—the facts—

and with respect to the recommended policy—the findings—the reader may

find it convenient to have a summary of the whole report placed before him
at this stage.

3. In the third section a distinetion is drawn between low rent housing for

low wage earners as a national economic proposition and slum clearance as a
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means of alleviating a municipal burden. Housing is regarded as a part of
the national industrial plan making for efficiency. Slum clearance is shown
as concerned with two classes—the very low wage earners and the indigenous
slum population, the latter recruiting itself from the former. In consequence of
this, social reclamation work must be associated with slum clearance operations.

4. The four sections that follow contain much information derived from
statistical and expert sources and constitute what may be called a social survey
of the problem. It is revealed that just one third of the total population of
the area under consideration are wage earners whose annual incomes range from
$1,250 to $550 in normal times. Of this a substantial majority earn below $750
a year. Persons earning from $1,250 a year downwards, with their dependents
constitute 85 per cent of the total population, and they consist of 213,200 families
or households.”

By Mr. Sullivan:
Q. That is, in Montreal?—A. We are dealing with Montreal—Verdun,
estmount and Outremont.
Q. Do you consider Outremont and Westmount?—A. We are including that
area. We got figures from the authorities in Montreal for the report, and these
are corrected figures for the whole area.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Can Mr. Nobbs tell us where those figures are gathered from? Where
did you obtain those figures?—A. The figures are largely compiled by the
epartment of social research of the Rockefeller bequest at MeGill university,
from the three sources mentioned, (1) the Montreal Board of Assessors’ tables,
(()2i:)t the Health Department of Montreal and (3) the Census Statistics from
awa,

The CramrMan: It might be best to discuss each section as we come to it.
We were going to let Mr. Nobbs read it through; but would it be better to

1scuss each one as we come to it, or shall we continue and read the whole?

Mr. SuLLivan: Read the whole thing first.

The Wirness: One thing depends on another. I would prefer to read the
Whole thing first. Continuing: .

5. The growth of Montreal is next considered. After bringing out the
fact that annual increase is at the rate of 5,800 families containing 27,300
Persons, there is a reference to the supply of vacant dwellings, which is illurpi.n-
‘atlng- The 13,000 vacant dwellings, that balanced the number of families
doubleq up’ a year ago has diminished to 9,000. An acute shortage is in sight.
(That is an acute actual shortage, quite apart from low rent.) With the first
S1gns of the passing of the depression, doubling up will decrease.

6. The characteristics of existing housing in Montreal and the great pre-
Ponderance of three-story flats on narrow lots is next commented on. A plea is
Made for the cancellation of homologated lines and registered subdivisions
Wherever possible, so as to admit of replanned city blocks of greater width and
Tesubdivision in eonformity with modern ideas.

7~_ It is then brought out that the rentals necessary to pay for the invest-
ment in the predominant type of dwellings just alluded to are above what the
OWer wage earners can pay, if they are to keep themselves properly clothed
and fed. The ‘White Collar’ wage earners, with incomes at about $1,250 ean
afford one third of their income for rent; but the semi-skilled factory worker
and the ungkilled labourer with incomes from $750 to $550 cannot, as a matter
Social economics, afford to pay more than one fifth of their incomes for rent.

- It is shown that nearly 80,000 households are paying disproportionate
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rentals. The shortage of low rent dwellings in Montreal is thus seen to be very
great. The arguments for the workman to own his own house are next de-
molished with respect to urban population. (That is really an important point.)

9. Then follows a survey, with explanatory maps, of the slum areas of
Montreal. The wide distribution of these accretions of moribund real estate is
revealed, together with their effect on adjoining areas. The finding is that there
are forty blocks of buildings, housing some 18,000 persons, to be dealt with by
slum clearance measures. (In other words, the slums of Montreal are not very
great, as large cities go).

10. It is next brought out that these slum areas and their inhabitants con-
stitute a colossal financial burden upon government and society—a burden so
great that the assisted rehousing of the slum population becomes a measure of
public economy quite apart from social justice or any ethical considerations.

11. The effect of the depression is next discussed; and the bearing on the
general problem of the fact that out of 40,000 families on relief, 30,000 are
housed at rents from $6 to $12 a month is investigated. (These rents are pro-
vided by the relief authorities). As these are the proper economic rents to be
paid by persons earning wages commensurate with the relief rates, it follows
that great numbers of employed persons are paying too much rent. These $6 to
$12 rents are being paid for accommodation that cannot be profitably rented
below $20 to $30 a month. The situation of the landlords accepting these rents
1s a part of the problem to which the Committee has given due attention.

12. At this point the report passes on to the consideration of what should
be done. A series of plans of dwellings from housing operations built with
state aid in foreign countries is studied, with a view to establishing minimum
standards of accommodation.

13. This followed by plans for dwellings showing the application of these
standards to Montreal conditions, both climatic and social.

14. The construction costs are then analysed in search of economies. Large
scale operations and some modifications of the building by-laws to admit of
modern structural methods are recommended.

15, 16 and 17. The problems of cheap land acquisition for housing purposes
are next taken up with respect to (1) interior land derived from slum clearance;
(2) middle land, where homologated street lines cannot well be interfered with
but resubd1v151on could be arranged for; and (3) fringe land, where large parcels
could be acquired and both the homologated street lines and the registered lot
lines could be wiped out.

In this latter connection, the suggestion is made that in view of the city’s
having great numbers of distressed lots on its hands—(the report contains
actual figures with regard to the amount of these distressed lots)—the city might,
by exchange of lots, consolidate large parcels of land to be leased for sixty years
for housing operations at low rates.

18 and 19. The principles on which resubdivision should be made are next
elucidated and it is conclusively shown that by throwing from two to five city
blocks together into one larger block, redesigning the roads and lanes and then
resubdividing on the community principle, not only can more houses be placed
on the land, but that larger areas can also be obtained for play-ground and
recreational purposes. The result of these findings is a severe indictment of the
gridiron street plan as wasteful of building land and obstructive of amenity.

The physical problems of housing and slum clearance being disposed of, the
report proceeds to deal with the financial questions involved.

20. The gap between low rents and the high costs of construction, even
when large scale operations have contributed to its reduction, is illustrated by
set ups showing the rental of a small dwelling based on 6 per cent money pro-
vided by private capltal and based on 3% per cent money provided by govern-
mental ageney. This is done by way of elucidating the nature and scope of the

problem of providing low, and even very low rents for accommodation of a cer-
tain standard.

e i e i
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21. The program of assisted housing which the committee recommends as
necessary for Montreal (1) to liquidate existing slums (2) to prevent slums on a
far greater scale from developing all over the metropolitan area in the future
(which is the really important thing) and (3) in due time to provide a sub-
stantial amount of low rent housing, without aggravating the difficulties of the
small proprietors, is next examined. The proposal is to provide under corporate

- Ownership and collective management, 4,000 dwellings per annum for twenty

Years. Of this housing 70 per cent would be community planned two storey
dwellings on fringe land, the rest being divided about equally between slum
cleared land and middle land.

22, 23. The structure of mid-European, British and United States housing
finance are then described.

24. Various financial plans for housing schemes in Montreal have been
Submitted to the committee. The committee apreciates the kindness and courtesy
of the authors of these financial plans in placing their studies at its disposal,
b_ut regrets that it could not find among them a financial plan to fully meet the
Situation as it sees it. (That is a subject on which I take it there will be more
said later.)

25. The question of a financial structure appropriate for initial efforts in
state aided housing in this country and applicable to the peculiarities of the
Situation in Montreal, has given the committee much food for thought. An
adaptation from British models, as revealed in successive British housing acts, is
generally recommended. With all advantages from large scale operations, cor-
Porate ownership and collective management, the stubborn fact has to be faced

at equivalent accommodation is about twice as costly to construct as in Great

ritain and rather more costly to operate. Recourse must therefore be had
to such expedients as abatement of interest on federal funds used for housing
Oberations, or alternatively to subsidies. State aid would have to be on a more
generous scale here than is necessary in Great Britain; but in all cases a sound
amortization basis should be applied. (That is to say, we envisage the money
Coming hack every time.) 5

The true return on capital expenditure would be the relief of the public
burden that bad housing conditions engender.

26, 27, 28. The application of the financial policy recommended to the
Cases of (1) small flats in four-storey blocks on interior slums cleared land,
(2) large dwellings of the composite type in three-storey units on middle land

and (3) community planned two-storey, self-contained cottages on fringe land,
then follows,

The principle of providing accommodation of substantially the same mini-
um, hut, adequate, standard for the various low wage earning groups at variable
Tentals is thus illustrated. o

29, 30, 31 In conclusion the report deals with necessary federal provincial

municipal action. Under the head of federal action, stress is laid on 'the
“Onstitution and duties of a federal housing board. The committee advises

at federal participation in housing finance should be strictly conditional on
ade,QUate action in the fields of town planning and zoning and health legislation,
Ich are provincial matters. If the report were acted on, the federal govern-
ent would he dealing directly with housing corporations, able to provide cor-
Porate ownership and collective management. The provincial and municipal
action demanded as a condition would be directed to facilitate such procedure
and to safeguard the assets so created. The primary need in this connection is
é.TOWD Planning and Zoning Enabling Act, on the lines put forward by the
1ty Improvement League in 1929. ) 3
he burden of these thirty-one sections may be summarized in the state-
Inenfg that as far as Montreal is concerned a government aided program of
OUSing is long overdue; and that this is a matter fundamentally independent

o_f the depression, though aggravated by it.
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If embarked upon on an adequate scale a housing program would tend to
alleviate the unemployment situation in the sorely distressed construction
industry. It would also mitigate appreciably the situation with respect to
distressed land in Montreal, much of which could be earmarked for future
housing operations.

A very firm policy would be necessary to prevent exploitation of the housing
problem.”

Mr. Heaps: Is Mr. Nobbs through with his presentation?

The CuAlRMAN: Yes, for the moment.

Mr. Heaps: I would like for him to refer back to section 20.

The CmarMAN: Don’t you think it would be better for us to take each
section in turn?

- Mr. Hansury: I don’t think so, I think section 20 is probably the most
important.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. In it you refer to, “the gap between low rents and the high cost of
construction;” did your committee work out a scheme with respect to rentals?
—A. Yes.

Q. Does it show at what rentals houses can be rented to those who want
to untilize them?—A. There is a great deal more material than is shown in
this report, and we have it available for your committee if you want it.

Q. Could you give to the committee now a very brief summary of that
scheme that you have; could you not state at what rates houses of this type
would rent?—A. I think the shortest way of doing that would be for me to
begin reading from the report, section 20; and then passing over to some of
the other sections and take it up. Of course, you will all have a copy of this
report in your hands in the very near future.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. Does your plan apply to the city of Montreal alone, or to any part of
Canada?—A. We are only speaking for greater Montreal.

Q. I am speaking about section 20 as a whole?—A. Section 20 broadly
would apply to the whole of North America.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Do you mean to infer by that that the same type of house would be
suitable at other places?—A. No, sir. It is a question of the greater cost of
construction in North America for equivalent accommodation as compared to
Europe. European housing finance is based upon a certain cost of providing
accommodation, and we have to realize that our cost of providing equivalent
accommodation is very much greater. That is our main difficulty. Section

20 states the gap between high costs and low rents. “In Montreal private -

enterprise in the form of small proprietorships has been producing dwellings
lacking in amenity which can be rented to workmen with families around $30
a month at a moderate profit.”

Q. How many rooms is that?—A. That is the equivalent to a house for

about six or seven people—the typical Montreal three-story flat. We have

made surveys of a number of these flats, not looking for bad ones, to indicate
slum conditions, but just to get the characteristic house to study the finance
of it; and 70 per cent of Montreal accommodation is made up of three-story
flats which you might say accommodate a matter of six adult people; this might
mean a man, a woman and six children—these typical flats might accommodate
quite easily a family of nine on each floor. Now this housing is very lacking

S o -;_-/—-.- Ty T RS TR T,
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In amenity, because the lots are very narrow and very deep, with a back
yard and a very unfortunate orientation. However, the important thing is
that they can give a moderate profit if rented at $30 a month. The factory
worker should pay $12.50 a month, the unskilled labourer about $10. No
four roomed dwelling at $10 a month exists in Montreal.

Q. Do you claim that a four roomed dwelling is sufficient to house nine
people?—A. No, sir; but we are talking about a four roomed dwelling which
18 the most characteristic size that is required. No four roomed dwelling at
$10 a month exists in Montreal; there are some four roomed dwellings at
$12.50—1I challenge any of you gentlemen to take any of those $12.50 dwellings
and find them fit to live in. Any $12.50 four roomed dwelling in Montreal
18 a very bad slum dwelling. An admirable five roomed dwelling is produced
In England through state aid and collective management—that is the com-
monest type, the most used and average type of house required in England,
Where incidentally families are rather small.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:
: Q. Might I ask you, when you refer to a four roomed dwelling, does
that include the kitchen and bathroom?—A. I am glad you raised that point,
Mr. Rinfret, because the committee will no doubt be studying reports on hous-
Ing and documents relating thereto particularly in reference to England. In
ngland in deseribing a place as a four roomed dwelling they mean four
habitable rooms, they do not count the kitchen or bathroom or anything of
that kind; on the other hand, our committee decided that we must speak the
ha*nguage of Montreal real estate, and when we speak of a four or five roomed
dwelling we do not include the bathroom, but we do include the kitchen. Does
at answer your question?
Hon. Mr. RinFrET: Yes.
Mr. Howarp: That is an important point.

.. The Wirxess: Now, we are talking of a house with three bedrooms, a
livingroom and a kitchen, making your five rooms in Montreal parlance. That
louse is provided in England at a cost in Canadian money of $1,750; that cost
Includes the cost of design, the cost of interest during construction, the land and
everything.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. That is a detached home?—A. No, sir, that would be probably one of
four or five in a row, not long rows but short rows, anything from three to six
Or seven at the most—an average of five to a row.

. Q. They would be one story dwellings?—A. These would all be two stories,
ir.

Mr. Caucmon: One and a half stories we call it here.
Mr. Heaps: Yes.

... The Wrrxess: I do not wish to burden you with the complete set up but I
will give you the results; the cost of the house is $1,750, w1t.h interest at 3:25
Per cent plus amortization at -5 per cent over sixty years; making a charge of $65
4gainst the rent. Then repairs, maintenance, insurance, etc., $28; rates and taxes
etc., $39; making a rent per annum of $132, or $11 a month. Now Mr. Chair-
an, the same house won’t do here because of our climate which is different; we

ave to have a basement, we have to have double windows, we have to have a
dou.ble roof, we have to put radiators in and so on. To offer equivalent accommo-

ation either in the Northern States or in Canada that house will cost $3,600—
;.Ve will call it $3,500, which is just twice the other. Now supposing we take that
ttle hOuse, with interest provided on money from private sources at 6 per cent

;;5 2aomortizati0n, repairs and management and so on, we get a monthly rent of
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By Mr. Hanbury :

Q. Based on what interest rate?—A. That is based on 6 per cent, interest on
private funds. If we had the same house with interest at 3-5 per cent, plus
amortization at -75 per cent over sixty years, the rent of that house has fallen
from a necessary rent of $35.20 to $28.64; but you see $28.64 is still a long way
from what the third and fourth groups can pay. The second group,—the skilled
artisans—can pay that; but those below that cannot.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Supposing the money could be provided at a cost of 1 per cent, have
you any figures to show how it would work out on that basis?—A. We have a
number of set ups on that. We have gone into it and we have a great deal of
material which is not in the report, but which we can provide for you in the
form of tables, if you care.

Q. But, Mr. Nobbs, I notice in section 25, I think it is, they speak about the
abatement of interest on federal funds?—A. That is the point. Our assumption
is that we might be fortunate enough to finance housing at 3-5 per cent, and that
will take care of a very great number of people requiring low rent housing. But
there are two clases—the exact number of which are revealed in the report, (1)
the industrial worker or the mill hand who is semi-skilled and (2) the unskilled
—that require a lower rent if they are to live healthfully and happily. The only
way you can get down below this $28.64 is either to forget about some of the
interest—perhaps all of the interest, or do what some of the members of my
committee are not at all satisfied with as a policy and that is to make it up
in annual subsidy; that is the prineiple adopted in the most recent British housing
act passed some weeks ago.

Q. Supposing, Mr. Nobbs, we did away with the subsidies and the govern-
ment provided credit at say cost or 1-5 per cent—but that is equivalent in the
long run to a subsidy—have you worked out what the rental basis would be with
money at 1-5 per cent?—A. Yes, sir, I can show you tables carrying every
possible reduction and the resultant rental. But what we are talking about
here is the average house for an average family. If we are going to produce
such a house which is going to rent at $10 a month, which apparently is neces-
sary, then from the point of view of the producer of houses you have got to go
further and provide for the abatement of taxes. That is a principle which is
involved very often in connection with housing. Once the housing is established
if you assess it at the cost of the building these building assessments will be fairly
high; then the building ig going to be there for sixty years let us say. During
that sixty years that land and that investment in buildings is restricted as to its
income, because it is not producing as much money as it might produce if it
were left free. On that ground there is something to be said for the abatement
of taxation in relation to the restriction of the producing value of the land and
buildings devoted to housing. Then, after sixty years, the housing is done and
the whole situation changes. Do you see my point, sir?

Q. Yes, but personally I have generally opposed the idea of playing
favourites in regard to taxation on any scheme of this kind—there is a principle
involved there?—A. I am only mentioning it as one of the points to be considered.

Q. I would rather see money supplied at a low rate of interest than to see
other inducements given which are bad in principle—A. Your question is as
to whether or not we touch on that in our report. It is in our report. We have
a program there, and if that program were carried out fully one-half the houses
on that program could pay 3:5 per cent. You might say that the other
half could pay no per cent. The situation might be better after a few years,
after we get out of the present mess.

7 Q. There is one other point on which I would like to have your evidence,
Mr. Nobbs; that is on item 31 on page 6 of your report.—A. Yes, sir,
Q. In that section of your report you refer to the character of the organi-
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- zation that should undertake the construction of homes. Do you favour in
every case the federal government dealing directly with these bodies, or would
- You prefer dealing with them through the provincial governments?—A. Sir, I
can only speak for the committee in my report.
. Q. That is all we can expect.—A. Our finding is this: as you know, there
18 the British North America Act—
Mr. Howarp: Yes.
Mr. Heaps: We have heard something about it.
Mr. HaxBury: There was.
Mr. Howarp: There is, in Quebec.
The Wirness: In Great Britain the government aids housing—
Mr. CrHurcH: But there is only one government there.

The WirnNess: There is only one government, and the government aids
housing, either dealing with housing corporations or municipalities. In England
hey make no difference between housing corporations—which are practically
Public utility companies—and municipalities. The provisions with respect to
& contract with the government for money are practically identical to all
Intents and purposes for both a housing corporation and a municipality, That
IS not the situation which we have here. The only way or means of getting
money into the hands of municipalities to-day is by way of a grant to the
Provinces for distribution to the municipalities; and my committee are not at
all in fayour of that line of contact.

BiS By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Why?—A. Well, sir, we are dealing with a report.
Mr. Hansury: We are looking for information.

. The Wirngss: In our report we have dealt with certain Montreal schemes
Meluding one referred to to-day, by Mr. Sullivan and there are others, all
Yelating to housing. Everything that my committee has in the way of study
and analysis of these financial plans would be at your disposal. They are not
eseribed in the report. In the report these various methods of financing
‘ousing through municipal aid and so on, are brushed aside with the statement
at we have studied these plans and we regret that none of them will solve

€ Problem as the committee sees it. Now, the reason why the distribution

o1 aid to the provinces then to the municipalities and through the municipalities
Cither to themselves or to housing corporations is objectionable lies principally
I the fact that municipal governments change their complexion every few
€ars, provincial governments and federal governments are not always of the
Same political complexion, and in that way we have experienced—and now I
4 speaking as a citizen—we have experienced enough of the-difficulties of this

; line of action which was a complete failure in the case of the post-war hou_smg
effort, Once the federal government deals direet with the housing corporations

IMterested as public utility companies all these difficulties disappear.

By Mr. Heaps: ;

Q. What are the difficulties to which you refer?—A. Well, sir; T read the
NeWspapers and 1 inevitably know what is being said by the people of these
varlqus governments—over the question of relief finance for instance. Now,
9Using has got to be put absolutely clear above politics, gentlemen; because,
€ are not doing something for a short time. ~ If we do it at all, and I am
Quite willing to hear reasons why we should not do it at all, it has got to be
. .00g program. It is necessarily a matter of national policy that _We are con-
SIdering, and the thing to do is to remove it completely from politics. Then,
€ me te]] you what happened in Vienna. In Vienna the municipality owned
the ousing—the famous Carl Marx Hof—and it became necessary to use shells

guns to get the tenants out. Is that not a sufficient answer?
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Q. No, I do not think it is at all; I think you are wrong in your assumption
there. That would happen also to privately owned dwellings as well as to
those publicly owned?—A. No, I do not think so.

Q. Oh yes it would; were there not other than public buildings destroyed
a few years ago in the revolution in Vienna?—A. That particular difficulty has
occurred even in England where they have had a long experience. Some of
the municipally owned housing plant became inhabited by the supporters of
the regime of the moment—there were promises made and so on. These is the
matter of the selection of tenants. Assisted housing involves the selection of
tenants, and I think that is a sufficient ground for leaving municipal ownership
of houses out of mind.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. There is just one question I would like to ask. I see in section 20
here, the section to which Mr. Heaps referred, interest at 6 per cent on money
provided by private capital, and a basis of 3-5 per cent on money provided by
governmental agencies?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did your committee come to the conclusion that a government agency
might be able to provide money at 3-5 per cent; did that have any relation-
ship to your statement in that regard?—A. That is the assumption underlying
the proposal, because that is the rate charged by the British government. The
British government is able to supply money at 3+5 per cent because it has good
credit and can borrow unlimited funds at a very low rate. When it borrows
at 2 per cent it lends it at about 3-5 per cent to the housing corporations.

; Q. And at a less rate to the farm loan board there, do they not; about 2-5
.per cent?—A. That is the principle.
. Q. Yes; and did you think that government money here could be loaned
to a housing scheme at 3-5 per cent?—A. Sir, in Section 25 we delivered our-
selves to the best of our ability, on the question of financial structure. There
are many alternatives financial structures possible; and the committee that
prepared this report, while it has a great deal of material on the facts of the
different financial structures, did not think it was wise in a report which was
going to be published broadly to deal with the intricacies of financial structures.
If your committee, when you circulate this report, should not find sufficient in
Section 25 to satisfy you as to what our point of view is on this, we will be
only too delighted to bring our financial experts before you.

Q. I do not want to take up vour time, or the time of the committee.—A.
We have the material on which our views are based, but that is quite intricate,
and it would require some special circulated memoranda before the members of
your committee.

Q. There is another statement you made referring to Section 18 and 19.
that is failure of the post-war housing schemes. In that statement, did you
refer to the post-war housing schemes generally and throughout the world, or
to those in Canada?—A. No. The post-war housing scheme here. It was
managed or embarked upon on the expert advice of a body which was part of
the Conservation Commission. There was a town planning and housing branch
of the Conservation Commission which handled the technical end of it. T under-
stand that the federal government lost no money by it.

Q. You are speaking of Canada?—A. I am speaking of Canada, the post-
war housing scheme in Canada.
Mr. CavcHon: 1919.

The WITNESS: But that scheme cannot be described as successful. The
mess is still to be found all over the provinee of Quebec.
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By Mr. Elliott:

Q. I think it is not limited to the province of Quebec, probably ?—A. How-
ever, that was not successful.

Q. Would you think it would be worth the while of the committee to hear
from you for a few minutes, just briefly, as to the weaknesses in that scheme
that caused it to be unsuccessful?>—A. Well, one does not wish to use harsh
Words, sir. I would prefer—

Mr. Heaps: You will not hurt our feelings one jot.

Mr. Evviort: Tell us the truth.

Mr. Svrrivan: The whole truth.

The Wrirness: The fact of the matter was that this system of distributing
_Money to the provinces, or credit to the provinces, to be distributed to the
Municipalities, did not work in that case, and I do not think it would work in a
Dlgger case. You have the result.

By Mr. Elliott:

Q. Is this what you mean, that the municipalities were distributing money
that they did not have to raise, some other jurisdiction raised the money, and as
a result perhaps the same supervision was not exercised over it that would have

een exercised if they had been the body responsible for raising the money?—
- I would go farther. There may have been a certain amount of that.

Mr. Surrivan: Was that given to favourites?

Mr. Haxgury: That is the theory, yes.

Mr. Heaps: I don’t know.

The Wirness: There is another aspect of the thing, and that is that it was
largely concerned with house ownership. The housing problem in municipalities,
88 we see it, has nothing whatever to do with the building houses to be acquired

¥ private individuals. The only way that accommodation can be got, without
- 8eat unnecessary loss to the community—a loss which would go on costing us
money for g hundred years, because buildings will be standing sixty years and
S0 on, is by renting—by building large housing estates to provide dwellings on
& rental hasis. This distribution of funds to individuals to aid them in house
Ullding is not one of the matters which is dealt with or touched upon in our
fecommendations. Any system of aiding individual house building is a matter
Quite outside this report. We do not say that for certain municipal areas or
OF Tural areas or in the smaller towns a certain amount of that may not be
Necessary; hut as far as a large city like Montreal is concerned, it is sheer waste
O money, to distribute funds on an individual basis, for house building.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. That is, T presume, the reason that it is not dealt with in your report?
A Precisely ; because we are dealing with Montreal only. : 3
Ay There is one other question. You spoke of $6 and $12 in Section 11?—
< Yes.
Q. $6 to $12 rents being paid for accommodation that cannot be provided
a rent below $20 to $30 a month?>—A. Yes.
A Q. Who makes up the loss, the difference? The landlord, I suppose?—
aF erhaps Mr. Rinfret will correct me if T am wrong, because he; kpows more
deOUt something I am going to refer to than I do. At the beginning of the
thpress_mn, the housing of the out of work was done as an act of generosity by
Ofe Petit proprietaire of Montreal. The first two years there was no question
Yent. These people did not turn their tenants out. It was a heroic and

ma;)i)niﬁcent thing, but it could not go on forever.
27—2 <

for
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Q. It was a matter of charity on the part of the landlord?—A. Charity of
the landlord, of these little landlords.

Mr. Surrivan: And I am one of them in Montreal.

Mr. Rinrrer: No politics, Mr. Sullivan.

The WrrNess: In this report we criticize the whole basic and fundamental
system of the Montreal petit proprietaire, but we give him credit, he did the
plucky thing. These small owners, many of them skilled artisans, small shop-
keepers and people of that class, would invest their savings in a three-storey
house, rent the upper two storeys, with a view to themselves living rent free for
the rest of their lives. It looked beautiful; and as long as things were good, it
worked. But now they are in trouble, to the tune of 30,000 $6 to $12 rentals.
Does that answer your point?

Mr. Heaps: Yes.

The Witness: But the thing to bear in mind is that at the beginning of the
depression the housing of the unemployed was done by the petit proprietaire.

Mr. Haxsury: I would like to ask Mr. Nobbs why, in the opinion of his
committee, it is necessary to provide state aid for the provision of homes?

Mr. SurLivan: You mean federal?

Mr. HANBURY: Any aid.

The Wrrxess: The simple reason is that private capital is incapable
of providing low rental accommodation. The owner of private capital’s way
of doing it is by providing a class of accommodation which is seriously
deteriorated in twenty years—creation of the slum. Private capital working in
a small way, cannot build as cheaply; it cannot manage as cheaply as a large
state aided corporation can. To safeguard the taxpayer, every expedient must
be resorted to for economy. The first great economy is in large production.
It comes to the full when you have about 400 houses to build at a time, not
one, two or three or thirty or one hundred but four hundred at a time. Then
you begin to get the full economy, because you get something approaching mass
production. The ownership and administration, when you have got 400 houses
or something of that kind, is economic. Then when you have these housing
corporations functioning, they look after the maintenance and all that. It is
all a question of employing experts. There are schools in England, Germany
and the United States where housing management is taught, so that the very
last cent has got to be got out of housing. Then under private ownership there
is always the question of empties and vacancies and things of that kind. Once
 you have state aid in housing, that part of the risk disappears. The results

occasionally give 102 per cent of the rents collected. That requires very great

skill, and incidentally, perfectly honest management.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Yes; but as I understand it, the main reason you give for the necessity
of state aid is based on the insufficient income of the person that wants to
live in the house?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Is that the main reason?—A. Well, it is this Way You can either say
that the house can only be built too dear by private enterprise, or you can
say that the working man does not have enough wages. You cannot raise his
wages. 1 am sure we all agree about that, because we are in competition with
world industry, we cannot raise his wages, so that part of the plant of industry
which consists in the housing of the lower paid worker has got to be provided
in the most economical way for all concerned.

Q. What effect has a state aided housing scheme? What effect will that
have on private ownership?—A. Now, sir, in our program we do not suggest

any effort to overcome at one fell swoop the condition of 80,000 families of

I
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Montreal who are paying too much rent. If you did that, you would just
create another great trouble. Because of the interest of the petit proprietaire,
it must be done gradually. Our program provides for liquidation of the slums
of Montreal which are not very great, in two or three years. It is only a
matter of $13,000,000 or $14,000,000 to rehouse all who live in the slums we
have in Montreal.

By Mr. Sullivan:
Q. Are they really slums? Have we got any real slums?—A. We have
not any real big ones; little ones.
Q. Where?—A. We have got maps, figures and facts.
Mr. CavcuoN: You had better find out where he lives first.

The Wirness: There is Murray street. I can give you some addresses
on Montealm.

The Cmamrmax: That is all right. Are you through, Mr. Hanbury?
Mr. Haxsury: I have not got an answer yet that suits me.
The Wirness: What is the exact point?

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. The exact point is this, that you are going to provide state capital
Competing with the present private capital?—A. No, sir. I do not think you
would find a Board of Trade committee recommending that. The point is
hat private capital has always failed to produce these low rent houses. If the
Working classes, the lower ranks of the working classes—semi-skilled factory
Workers and unskilled labourers—have got to live in second-hand and third-
and cast off accommodation, cast off by the upper class, let us say, phe
accommodation is not specialized for them. It is an uneconomic way of doing
1. Under the financial system, the land in these slum areas is always highly
assessed. Tt is dollar land. As few working class people as possible should

Ve on dollar land. A certain number must.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. What do you mean by dollar land?—A. A dollar a foot.
Mr. Cavcnon: A square foot.
The Wrrness: A dollar a square foot, assessed value.

By Mr. Heaps:
thi Q. We have not got that situation in other parts of Canada, 1 do not
mk“_that system or basis of figuring land values.—A. No, not in Toronto.
ell, if these people are to live in moribund real estate, like a th1r(‘i‘-hand
Sarment—it, ig just the same as though you said to a working man, “ Well,
you have got to wear somebody’s old coat” which has been worn by two or
Tee people, and get it from a pawn-shop.
Mr. Heaps: He is doing that. : )
o The Wrrngss: That is not the economic way of keeping th'el WOTktmlg
it&SSgs happy. The extent that our maps show of tuberculosis, infantile mortal-
Y, Jjuvenile delinquency, hospitalization and all that, 1s due to people paying
t}010 much rent and not having enough money to spend on their food. There is
US & burden created which falls upon government and society. The researches
Ernest Bohn in Cleveland, Ohio, are particularly illuminating on that
:Ll ject. But the fact remains that it is cheaper to house these people decently
L to let them degenerate. That is really where the saving comes in to the
Eubhc- It is much cheaper to house them than to maintain them in these
UM areqg,
95027~2i
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By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. There is one point that I wish to get in my mind. You are going to
provide a home, we will say, for someone to live in, and you are having someone
live in it at $15 a month. Under private ownership you say they would require
a rental of $30 a month?—A. Yes.

Q. There are many houses in all the cities of Canada where people have
constructed houses with their own capital, houses which require an income of
$30 a month. State aid in this housing is going to give them competition, and
the other people are going to leave their houses and go and rent a $15 a month
house?—A. Oh, no. I think I see your difficulty. There is no free will for
anybody at all to cause competition by moving into state-aided housing. State-
aided housing involves selected tenants. You see what I mean. It is only
the tenant who is eligible in virtue of his low income that is accepted. We
MeGill professors—I am sometimes a MeGill professor—who might like to
take full advantage of any housing that the government might embark upon,
would not be admitted.

Q. Why not?—A. Because it would all depend upon income. There would
be housing of certain kinds and in certain places for people whose income was
below so much. Automatically you arrange it; partly by where you place
housing. You place specialized housing near a certain industrial area and so on,
to fulfil its end. But the principle of selection of tenants is bound up with this.

By Mr. Sullivan: :
Q. What about a Montreal University professor?—A. I think they get
better salaries than we do.
The CuarmaN: If you are through, Mr. Hanbury, Mr. Church wants the
floor next.

By Mr. Church:

Q. I would like to ask two or three questions. Your plan would go farther
than the C.C.F.?
Mr. HanBURY: Yes.

By Mr. Church:

Q. Have you any study in Montreal for correcting the present slum
districts and creating a new area for housing in the outskirts with the jurisdiction
they have there?—A. That is a very good point.

Q. Have you any study of that?—A. That is a very good point, sir. As
far as study is concerned, there can be no town planning, of a substantial kind,
in ‘Montreal, until there is suitable provincial legislation to safeguard town
planning. What happens in Montreal is that we have town planning com-
missions established every few years, and it does not follow that the incoming
provincial government or municipal government supports them, or it forgets
all about it and appoints another one and so on. Until we have town planning
legislation in the province of Quebec, we cannot safeguard any federal asset
in the way of housing properly, and we cannot deal adequately with our slum
areas. Our estimate is that when we clear a slum area in Montreal, about one-
third of the number of people displaced would still have to be housed on or
very near the cleared land. Slum clearance is greatly mixed up with town

planning, and I cannot too strongly emphasize the fact that town planning and

housing must go hand in hand, if the money invested in housing is not going to
be thrown down the sink.

- Q. What are you going to do with the people in the slums? If you are
going to reconstruct, what are you going to do with the people while reconstrue-
tion is going on?—A. That is a technical problem which we do not deal with
in the report. But there is an accepted method of doing it. It is called decanting.

You have what is called a decanting block. Everybody whom you displace goes
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into that decanting block, which may be either part of the new construction
or very often any building that can be made temporarily suitable to accommo-
date families; all the displaced families from the area go through the decanting
block. While they are there, they are dealt with by social agencies; and it is
determined what proportion of them will be housed—on account of having
large families and being low paid working class people—on outer land, and
what proportion of them will be housed on the new accommodation on the slum
cleared area. The technique is quite established for that, and it is known as
decanting.

Q. When you get tenants out of old slums removed, and put back again in
the new buildings, there would be an increase in the rents unless the state pays.
There would be an increase in rent on the houses, would there not, unless the
state pays?—A. Well, that might be your experience in Toronto. The assump-
tion is that we would do as little rehousing in the slum area as possible. Some
must be done.

Q. How are you going to meet the objection of the man with a house a mile
away, with a similar house and paying taxes? How is the state going to deal
with that, a tenant getting a $6 or $10 rental, and a man a mile away paying two

* Or three times as much, and paying high taxes? You propose to build these new
ouses which will involve many municipal services not covered by your report,—
Street closings, widenings, sidewalks, roads, light and so on, many times the
existing slum ratio. How do you get over that?—A. I think the best answer to
that is to study the economy accruing to the community—the city, government
and organized society and all the rest of it—the economy effected by rehousing;
because the present slum areas cost the municipalities a tremendous lot in services
of one kind and another. It is a long and elaborate question; but I would
commend to you the studies in Cleveland on that particular point, (which can
e taken as very important). They show the cost of the community of a slum
area. Tt is a matter of straight dollars and cents.

Q. Your report states you aré very strongly in favour of a federal housing

Commission, That policy was not followed in 1919 when the Dominion went into
1S business. Would it not be far better for the Dominion to decide on its
Program? Winnipeg has a different situation from what you have in Montreal.
ours is probably an isolated case in the Dominion. Would it not be better
or the federal authority to grant money to the municipalities who are in charge
of the health administration or building by-laws? Would it not be far better to
grant money direct from the Dominion, from the federal power, on a standard
blan, to the municipalities who understand far more about local problems than
any board sitting in Ottawa? Would it not be far better to have that than a
Multiplicity of powers, as you have in England? Would it not be far better
Place the organization for state aid on a standard plan? What about that?—
can’t agree with you.

By Mr. McIntosh:
0 Q. The government would not deal with any municipality, would it?—A.
Yur feeling is the government would be wise not to deal with the municipality.
could only do so through the province.

By Mr. Church:
£ Q. Would it not be better for the dominion to grant any money they have

Or state aid through the provinces, direct to the municipalities, with the federal
Power laying down a standard for the houses? Every municipality has got

iierent building hy-laws?—A. No.

1 Q. This is not primarily, under the British North America Act, a federal
?natfl as I see it, and money could be granted under Clause 1 to the provinces as
s he case of old age pensions. Would it not be better to grant these funds for

ate aid direct to the municipalities, and the dominion could lay down a
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standard plan, like they do with relief construction now?—A. You are asking
me a difficult question, Mr. Church, which you preface with “ Would it not be
better?” That all depends on the point of view. I can only state that from the
Board of Trade Committee’s point of view nothing ecould be deseribed as
“better,” if it risked the money not all coming back into the state treasury. Our
committee from start to finish have been seized with the idea that every cent that
the federal government spends on housing should come back to the federal gov-
ernment; that the question of interest must be involved in some cases where
interest must be forgone; for other values that will come back to the federal
government; but that the amortization must be there, and every cent of capital
come back. That is the opinion of both the Board of Trade and City Improve-
ment League members of my committee. I think, when you say it would be
better to do certain things, it might be better in the way that it might be quicker,
but I do not think it would be better in the way of making sure that the money
was not lost.

Q. When you say you would go farther than the state aid in Great Britain,
that would involve something the size of the railway debt. They spent over 400
million pounds in housing over a period of years?—A. Yes, they did.

Q. Taking into consideration the circumstances of the Dominion, when you
remember over one million a week debt on the railway, whatever the dominion
does in the way of housing will have to be done in a very moderate way. I was
wondering whether it could be done by direct aid to the municipalities, with the
dominion laying down a standard plan?—A. As far as the particular city under
study by our committee was concerned, our feeling was that there was more
assurance that the money all came back if it was done in another way through
these corporations. That was our feeling.

By Mr. Melntosh:

Q. Mr. Nobbs, before we embark upon another national housing scheme, it
might be well to give us some facts about the 1919 or post-war housing move-
ment. How much was involved?

Mr. CavcHoN: Twenty millions.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. In what parts of Canada?—A. T do not profess to be an expert on that
matter. I only know the working of certain actual cases in my own neighbour-
hood in Canada, and I would like you to ask another witness. I am quite sure
Mr. Cauchon could give you a great deal of information on that.

Mr. CavcHON: May I answer his question?

Mr. McIntosm: I asked in what parts of Canada this housing scheme had

operated.
. Mr. CavcsoN: It was applied to all the provinces. There was a distribu-
tion of $20,000,000 by quota. That is, the Province of Ontario and the Prov-
ince of Quebec got large sums, and other provinces got less. As a matter of
fact, it was advanced to the provincial government which in turn advanced it
to the municipalities. In the case of Ottawa that I am familiar with, we had
authority to get $750,000. We got $741,000.

Mr. McInrtosa: In Ottawa. Then they created a housing commission.
But the housing commission was a failure. That is, the result of the work was
a failure, and the city still has to go on and pay interest to the provincial gov-
ernment. One of the reasons I think is that—since T am on the floor and can
answer it, and I might answer Mr. Church at the same time—in Great Britain
there is a large body of experts. Their municipal officials are trained in hous-
mng and principles for housing have been established for years, and they are
highly competent to carry these things out as an ordinary financial undertak-
ng, and they do not lose anything practically of the rent. It is all well managed
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from a business point of view. We in Canada unfortunately have never en-
couraged town planning and housing. We have no school of town planning and
h(_)using, and the number of those who are experts in this country on town plan-
ning or housing is very limited. So I would submit to Mr. Church that it is
better in the case of Canada to have a board here in Ottawa advising the gev-
eérnment when and how to advance money to housing corporations—public
utility companies, as they call them in England—and control all the standards.

: By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Supposing the municipalities were going to make a contract, would they
not be entitled to do the same?—A. The experience has been that the muni-
Cipalities do not give the same care to good management,

Q. T gave the city of Winnipeg as an example last week?—A. That is not
2« housing scheme. When we talk of housing we do not mean the average house;

ousing ” is used in the sense of a peculiar term limited to houses supplied
for the low wage earner.
' Q. Where has that ever been done in Canada?—A. It has not been, and
that is the trouble.

By Mr. MclIntosh:

Q. I want to ask a question just there, if I may be allowed to; in what part
of Canada was this post-war housing scheme operated, did it take in the cities
I the west?—A. (Mr. Cauchon) I have no information about the west. We

ave the report of the Ontario government covering distribution in Ontario.

Q. But you have no figures for the province of Saskatchewan—A. (Mr.
Cauchon) We have no figures for the province of Saskatchewan.

. Q. Then, what is the average depreciation on houses, included in any hous-
Ing scheme; for instance in Great Britain?—A. Well, the basis of depreciation
In England is of a very different character from what it is here, and they get
along with less than half because they build substantial buildings.
- Q. You say “half”; what is it in Great Britain, then we will know what it
18 here,

~ Mr. Cavcnon: It is about 2 per cent here while it is 1 per cent in Great
Britain. The reason for that is that they build a better class of house which
does not depreciate at the same rate. Then, in Canada on account of the climate
We cannot use the same type of house. It is for that reason that we have
O assume a depreciation rate of 2 per cent. That is possible with good
Management.

By Mr. Mclntosh:

Q. One more question: where is the urge in Canada for the introduction
of a national housing scheme outside of Montreal>—A. (Mr. Cauchon) Oh,
oronto, Quebec, Ottawa and all the large cities, all the, what you may call,

Wrban centres. 2
. Q. Has there been any urge, so to speak, from any of the rural municipali-
ties?—A (Mr. Cauchon) You mean, the small towns? iy
Q. Yes—A. (Mr. Cauchon) In the small towns they take different action
usua_lly. What they do is they lend money to individuals. If a man has a
lot, if he were responsible and wanted to build a house, he would turn that
Yacant lot over to the housing commission and they in turn would advance
MM the money with which to build a house. But housing at that time was not
mited to the low wage earner; in fact, $4,000 was the amount of money
Usually advanced. It was for house building, not housing in the technical
Sense. It did not reach the low wage earner at all. Housing, as we consider
1t, embraces buildings intended specifically for the benefit of the low wage
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earner who is always living in the cast-off house of somebody else. Such a
building is generally in a delapidated condition when it comes to him. He
starts practically with a slum. I think I elucidated this point when I was
before your committee last week; economically this type of wage earner cannot
afford to pay more than 815 a month rent. If he only has to pay $15 for a
$30 rental the landlord will only get half of what he is entitled to or because of
the fact that two families go together; and that is the start of a slum. That
is the answer I think to what you were asking. :

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Maybe we should find some way of enabling a man to pay a higher
rent?—A. That is our whole contention, there should be state aid for these two
classes comprising the lower paid wage earners on the ground that they do not
get enough wages to pay an economic rent.

Q. The question of wages has some bearing on it?—A. Yes.

Q. Your aim for Canada is a combination of private or public capital,
or public capital only; which?—A. I am recommending, and I understand the
Montreal Board of Trade also recommends, state aid to private capital so that
we can hold it responsible on a business basis.

By Mr. Peck:

Q. Would that be the essence of your idea?—A. And it should be a long
term proposition. You could not rush into it.

Q. Once the money was voted there would have to be annual appropria-
tions?—A. For a number of years, yes, sir.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. Mr. Nobbs, there are just a few questions I would like to ask: you
say that you have taken Montreal as a whole?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you include in Montreal, Verdun, Outremont and Westmount?—
A. Yes. -
Q. I want to make it clear, did you find any slums in Verdun, Westmount
or Outremont?—A. No, sir.

Q. I thought not?—A. Would you care to know why we included them.

Mr. Rixrrer: What was the answer?

Mr. Howarp: There are none.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. Now, in Montreal would it not be better to build in the outskirts than
to have these congested centres; it is a question, you say, of slum clearance?
—A. Wherever possible you have to move a family on to outer land. You
cannot only then give them more land but more amenity that way; and it is
cheaper to do that. A four story building such as you would have to put
up for them if you were dealing with expensive interior land, will always cost
more per person than a two story building. That is a point not generally
realized, two story housing is the most economical. Now, will you repeat
your question? j
Q. Would it not be preferable to build on the outskirts, relieve these centres
such as Goose Village and Timothy street—you know the situation there, as
also does my friend the Hon. Mr. Rinfret—and thereby leave these centres for
industry?—A. I think if you go to Gooses Village you will find that it is a
very peculiar little place; with your permission 1 will call it a slum.
Q. Yes?—A. I think you will find when you consider Goose Village and
many of these other places that there is a very good reason why people want to
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live there. You know where Goose Village is, it is an area adjacent to the
Victoria bridge, and very convenient for people working for the Harbour com-
mission.

| Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: There was just one question I would like to ask.
Mr. Howarp: Pardon me, I am not through yet.

By Mr. Howard.:

Q. You say in section 7, a man earning $750 a year or $550 a year cannot
afford to pay more than one fifth of his income for rent?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you a plan by which you could build a house to be rented at
$100 a year?—A. Not without money at a very low or negligible rate of interest.
There is no way it can be done at current rates,

Q. It cannot be done?—A. No. The cost per person—you see we have
analyzed it every kind of way and for every conceivable kind of house—and
In the city of Montreal, building in large quantities and all that sort of thing,
the cost per person for this class of house must be $700. That is a useful figure
to bear in mind, $700 per person. The amount of land people will require will
be at least 90 feet per person housed on interior land, where land is expensive;
about 200 feet on middle land; and where you can replan on fringe land which
Is the ideal, there it would absorb about 450 feet of land per person. Inei-
dentally, that 90 feet of interior land will eost far more than the 450 feet of
outside land does at present.

Q. Yes. Is that in your report?—A. Yes, you will find very full particulars.

Q. Do you intend printing that report?—A. The assumption is that the
Board of Trade will print it and that it will be made available to the com-
ittee.

‘ By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. When will the printed report be available?—A. Well sir, that is a
matter which you will be able to judge of when I say that this copy is endorsed
s now under consideration by the council of the Board of Trade of Montreal,
1t has been submitted to them but requires final revision from a purely editorial
aspect, revision which was not possible through lack of time. Our commitiee
Would like the privilege of making the final revision, because there are some 20
corrections to be made. Otherwise it is practically ready for the printer. The
assumption is, sir, that the Board of Trade will print and publish this report,
Possibly a very large edition. I am not a member of the Board of Trade, and
if they decide that they cannot face the expense of that all I can say is that
the committee will have to seek other methods of getting it circulated. In

at case its publication may be delayed.

. Q. The reason I am asking is, of course, we have been dealing with these
different, sections on the assumption that the report was ready. Could you leave
a copy of it with the Chairman in the meantime?—A. Yes.

Q. There was just one other question I would like to ask: does the report
dgal with the proportion of expenditure made upon this housing scheme as it
Will actually go to the workmen in wages? You talk about a scheme that will
volye the expenditure of from thirteen to fourteen million dollars over a period
Ol years, T would just like to get at what proportion of that will go into wages?—

ou mean, direct labour.

. Q. Yes?—A. Broadly speaking in the building industry fifty per cent goes
directly into labour.

Q. You mean direct labour—?—A. Labour involved on the job; and of
the amount remaining a very large proportion, possibly fifty per cent goes into

abour, not necessarily direct labour.
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Q. Do I understand you to mean that 75 per cent of the total expenditure
will actually go to labour?—A. I think that would be a fair assumption in
round figures, it might depend a good deal on the materials used.

" Q! And to that extent it will relieve the unemployment situation?—A.
Precisely, sir.
[ Q. That is your best judgment?—A. Yes.

Q. Do you deal with that in your report?—A. Yes.

Q. And do you give your reasons for arriving at these percentages?—A.
We did not stress that particular point, because we felt that the Canadian Con-
struction Association were perhaps in a better position to speak authoritatively
on the matter. Our feeling has been that there might be a tendency to exag-
gerate the benefit of housing to the construction industry. It has been used as
an argument for aiding housing, an argument arising out of the depression.
Our argument is that housing is a long delayed economic duty, that it will aid
industry in its present very sad condition to a considerable extent, but that
extent must not be exaggerated; because, if you spent fourteen million dollars
a year on housing operations in Montreal that would only be a very small per-
centage of the normal building done in Montreal, which I think—subject to
correction by the Canadian Construction industry—is many times as great.
But just at present it would be very helpful indeed.

Mr. Howarp: I have to protect my electors; the Board of Trade is in my
riding, I believe it is a great body, a very altruistic body, doing great good in
this country. I would ask that this report, which I believe is very compre-
hensive in its scope, be printed by the committee.

The Wrrness: It will I hope be printed by the Board of Trade.

The CramrvaN: I was going to bring that matter up before we adjourned,
as to whether we should not print this report as part of our proceedings, it does
not seem to be so very long.

Mr. CuurcH: Surely there is enough money in St. James street to pay for
the printing of that report.

The WrtNEss: As to the cost of printing this report, this report is only about
two thirds as long as the Toronto report; the Toronto report runs to about 150
pages and this one runs to about 100. There are 22 maps, plans, and systems
of housing lay-out showing economy in the use of land which would be printed
with this report. Should you decide that you are prepared to issue this report,
I hope that it would be possible for persons other than the committee to get
copies of it.

Mr. Heaps: In regard to the printing of this report it is not a matter so
much of the quantity as it is of the principle involved in asking parliament to
print a report being published by a private organization. There is a principle
involved there which may be wrong.

Mr. Cuatrman: This report is being submitted to-day as evidence.

Mr. Heaps: If it is to go into the evidence that is another matter entirely.

I thought you were going to have it printed as a report of the Montreal Board
of Trade.

_ The Cuamrman: It will have to be printed as part of the regular report of
this special committee on housing.

~ Mr. Howarp: The report is submitted to the committee to-day as evidence,
being read and referred to by the witness.
; Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: In that event, it may be considered as part of the evi-
ence.

Mr. McInrosm: If it is necessary perhaps the report could be printed as part
o/f the evidence, that principle might be accepted.

The Wirxess: I think you can rely on the Board of Trade to print it.
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Mr. CaucHoN: Yes, they want it anyway.
Mr. McInTosa: Might I say, before the committee rises, that we ought to

have full information as to the amount of that appropriation of $20,000,000 made
n 1919 that was expended. Was it all spent?

Mr. CavcHon: As far as I know it was all spent; not only was it all spent,
but a lot of it was wasted.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Then, another question: the type of house about which you spoke of in
Great Britain as costing $1,750 and in Canada or in the northern states you say
1t would cost $3,500?—A. Yes.

Mr. Hansury: That is exclusive of land?

By Mr. Mclntosh:

. Q. What is the main difference in these two figures, I just want the main
differences?—A. There are different wages, different materials; the main differ-
€nce is this, that we have to go five feet to get below the frost line and in England
they go but one foot. Once you have gone five feet to get below the frost line
You go three feet above so as to have a basement. In England they have only
to go two feet between the floor. Another difference is that in this country we
have to have double windows, a double roof and radiators, and all that sort of
thing. If they would only let us house regardless of building by-laws, and allow
modern insulated walls we could probably effect another 5 to 6 per cent economy.

e cost we have given is based upon Montreal building by-laws, without the
Special modifications which we recommend for housing purposes. In our extra
cost I should say that fully two thirds is made up of what we may call climatic
requirements. The rest is made up simply by a higher scale of wages.

Mr. Hansury: I was just wondering, Mr. Chairman, whether Professor
Nobbs had any information to give us regarding repairs. I think our reference

~ Covers repairs as well as new building, and we have not had any information from

him on that as yet.
- Mr. Cavcnon: You are referring now to what I termed “rehabilitation”
the other day, are you not?
Mr. Haxsury: Yes.

Mr. Caurca: Did the Department of Public Health of Montreal support
Your committee?

The Wrrness: I would be glad to answer that provided the answer is not
but down on the record.

Mr. Haxsury: I would like an answer to my question.
The Wirxess: I take it Mr. Church wants to know gxbout the relations
between my committee and the medical authorities of the city of Montreal.

Mr. Stantey: I would suggest that the witness take up the question of
rehabilitation.

_ The Wrrngss: In this report we refer to the various people who gave us
assistance, including various financial agencies and many others who offered us
Valuable information bearing on the various aspects of slum clearance and the
Housing problem. Sir, nobody has been more helpful to us than certain of the
om?lals in the pay of the city of Montreal who afforded us every facility to
AITive at the facts. That is the answer.

. Mr. Caurcu: My question is this: any question of slum clearance must
mvolye health; what I want to know is, has the medical officer of health for

€ city of Montreal been consulted and does he recommend the rebuilding of
Sums where they are to-day, or does he recommend that they be rebuilt on the
Outski.rts as is being done in England. Your report apparently does not say
anything about that.
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The Wirness: Yes, it says a great deal, sir. But as far as the medical
departments, both of Montreal and of the provinces are concerned, both engineers
and medical officers in these departments have furnished us with a great deal
of material. I believe that the report will be sympathetically received by them,
but they were not officially members of the committee. They were most helpful
in offering us every kind of information, and made useful suggestions as to
how we could get information ourselves.

Mr. MclIntosa: There is one objection I have to take. I did not get an
answer to my question and I was wondering if at the next sitting of our com-
mittee we can have information available as to just what amount of money was
spent in Saskatchewan and the western provinces in connection with the grant
of $20,000,000 which was made in 1919.

Mr. Cavcaon: I think you could get that by application to the statistical
department of the government.

The Cuarmax: I think we ought to have a report on that whole housing
scheme.

Mr. McInTosu: I can get a return from the House to supply the infor-
mation, if necessary.

The CuamrMAN: Possibly we could have Dr. Coates or someone from his
department give us a statement on the matter. What was your question Mr.
Hanbury?

Mr. HanBury: I was asking Mr. Nobbs if in his report he had any recom-
mendations to make to this committee with reference to rehabilitation.

The Wirness: You mean, the cost of repairing buildings?

Mr. Stanitey: Might I add to Mr. Hanbury’s inquiry—1I think it all deals
with the same thing—you have not explained to this committee what you propose
to do in regard to these 30,000 families that are being looked after by small
proprietors in the city of Montreal.

The CuAlRMAN: Let us get Mr. Hanbury’s question first.

Mr. Stantey: I think it is very important, this whole question; as I under-
stand it these properties are running down and taxes are accumulating, and do
you propose to move these families; or what steps do you propose to take to
rehabilitate the properties they aré now in; and in addition to that what pro-
vision is to be made to take up the difference—the gap—between these $12
houses and these $20 and $30 houses.

The WiTxEss: Sir, there is a reference in the report to such matters. A
good deal of the money spent on housing is not going to give you 3-5 per cent,
or 1-5 per cent or even 1 per cent; but my committee feel that we might put
the whole of it on a 3-5 per cent basis, and keep it at that on paper; because,
then you can forego your interest during these very bad years. For the housing
is going to be there for sixty years—there is no use building for any less time.

This tremendous burden of unemployed people in Montreal must be gradually
absorbed. The number of very low rentals required now will diminish. That
is why we tell you frankly that you cannot get 3-5 per cent on all your money
loaned for housing till times improve.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. You are not answering about those who are already located in perfectly
suitable quarters, in the properties owned by these small proprietors?—A. The
situation is this, that the number of available houses in Montreal is rapidly
diminishing. Nine months ago, to be precise, the figures derived from the
health authorities in Montreal and from the board of Assessors, made it per-
fectly clear that the number of families doubled up counterbalanced the number

of vacant houses. When the depression began we had some nineteen thousand
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unoccupied houses in Montreal, but four months ago we had just as many
unoccupied dwellings as we had doubly-occupied dwellings. To-day we have

_only nine thousand unoccupied dwellings in Montreal, and in the meantime

the population keeps on increasing at a rate which requires about six thousand
new dwellings per annum of which fully four thousand would be for the low

wage earning groups. It is therefore perfectly clear that what has already

egun is going to continue. We have already got slightly better times and

these people are ceasing to be doubled up and will very soon occupy other
available dwellings in Montreal at a reasonable rent and cause ejection of those
on relief rentals. In the meantime you have your low wage earners and I
hope a diminishing number of unemployed to be dealt with.

Q. Then, Mr. Hanbury’s question comes in; these properties that are all
run down because the proprietors are not able to keep them up—what steps
are you proposing to take to get them into proper repair?—A. That is a subject
which we have not dealt with. We have drawn attention to it, that there are
thousands of such properties the proprietors of which have been affected by
the depression with the result that maintenance has been disregarded for some
years. When you disregard maintenance on a house you know it gets worse
and worse, by geometrical progression or something of the kind. In Montreal
to maintain high class property you must spend 1 per cent of the original
cost broadly in annual maintenance, if you do not it will depreciate 2 or 3 per
cent; if for three or four years you do not do that it will depreciate very rapidly;
and that is what we mean when we speak of the tremendous Montreal slum
of the future. That is what we are trying to guard against, that tremendous

ontreal slum of the future. At the present time the slum areas of Montreal
are not very great, as big cities go. Control of the situation lies in proper
Maintenance, and it is this lack of maintenance during these hard years that
18 accelerating the time when we may have a big slum problem.

Q. Have you suggested any remedy?—A. No, we did not touch on that
at all because that is more in the form of direct aid for maintenance which
Our committee did not consider.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: Might I be permitted to make a remark here? The
Question raised by Mr. Hanbury is very very important in so far as it relates
to the city of Montreal. Every time we have had projects of this kind submitted
t0 us we have had requests from the small proprietors expressing the fear that
If new buildings were created in the suburbs it would destroy the value of their
OWn properties. They felt that their properties could be repaired and that they
Might also be helped. That of course raises a very big question. I understand
your report does not deal with that feature but I believe it is very important
that the committee should not overlook that at all. It is all right to say we
are going to spend millions on building new houses for workingmen in the
Suburbs; but that brings with it the other problem, how are you going to com-
Pensate the house owners inside the ecity, in the central parts of the city, which
Properties will become valueless absolutely if new quarters are pr0v1ded'f9r

€ workingman in the suburbs. That has always been one of the most vivid
aspects of the housing problem before the municipality of Montreal. I do not
*hink we can overlook it.

The Wirness: Might I say, sir, how sympathetically the committee has
alwa_y3 felt on this question of the small proprietors. Something in the way
of direct aid for maintenance purposes might very well come within the pro-
Visions of your committee, sir. We do not recommend the rebuilding, the
reconstituting of individual ownership; we do not feel that that is the solution.

t so far as the small proprietor and his great problem in maintenance is
c‘.’nce_l‘ned, I think it would be very suitable so far as Montreal is concerned to
8IVe it earnest consideration.
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By the Chairman:

Q. Is that in your reference?—A. We have provided a limited program
instead of dealing with the whole question for all the people in Montreal who
were paying too much rent. We are quite satisfied that the small proprietor will
be able to take care of some of them. But the program provides for two things,
the liquidation of existing slums and additional building only in proportion to
the increase in the low wage population; because, we feel it would not do any-
body any good to rehouse half the population and create a very great deal
of new poverty thereby. ;

Hon. Mr. RinrreT: That is the point.

Mr. Cavcaon: Might I answer Mr. Hanbury?

The CaAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Cavcaox: Mr. Hanbury perhaps was not listening at that point. Pro-
fessor Nobbs has just answered Mr. Rinfret. There will not be any disability
imposed upon people who own houses through the loss of their tenants; because,
the program for Montreal that he has submitted provides first for the wiping
out of slum areas, which is nobody’s loss; and secondly to take care with new
houses of a growing population. Your particular question is this, and as far as
I can answer it: In England they have, in many cases, housing corporations.
When a man’s house is in a condition that he wants repairs, then they take over
his house and rehabilitate it, and it becomes part of the housing estate, and then
they rent it back to him. Most houses, as you know, in England are on a rental
basis. He surrenders his lease. They take over the house—provided it is worth
while—put it in good condition, and they rent it back. -

Mr. Hansury: I am not satisfied in my own mind as to this. Here is John
Doe who has a house that is in good condition, well located and rents for $30 a
month. Then the state, in some form, competes with him in the next block or a
house a mile away, with a house that rents for $10 or $15 a month. He is going
to lose his tenant.

Mr. Cavcuaon: In these houses when the tenant cannot go on—at least,
when the tenant cannot pay more than $15, and with any return of prosperity the
landlord cannot afford to release his property for $15, it will then happen that
very likely two families will go in a building to pay the $30. And that is one
of the social evils we are trying to eradicate.

The Wirness: I think your point is largely met by the fact that there would
be a selection of tenants. With selection of tenants it leaves the door wide
open.

Mr. Hansury: I think it leaves the door wide open for a lot of things I do not
approve of. :

The CuamrMmaN: Gentlemen, it is getting pretty late. I am not satisfied
just yet about this report.

Mr. McIntosa: How may pages are there in it?

The CuamrMaN: This one is two-thirds the size of this one (indicating),
and this one has a lot of cuts.

Mr. Suniavan: You mean you are not satisfied with the report?

The CrairmaN: I am satisfied with the report, but I am not satisfied as
to what we are going to do about it. The report, as I understand it, is unedited.
After that, the report is ready to submit.

The Wirness: In three hours that can be made ready for the printer.

The CrarmMAN: I think we should incorporate that report in our pro-
ceedings. v

_ Mr. Heaps: Our copies are limited. I presume if the Board of Trade
wished, more copies could be printed for them.
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The Wirngss: Yes. If you gentlemen decide to print it, I am quite sure
the Board of Trade will pay for the printing.

Mr. Heaps: You mean pay for the copies they take. It is printed at the
Overnment Bureau.

. Mr. Haxsury: If you print that report, Mr. Chairman, you are establish-
Ing a precedent, because we will have many filed.
The CramrMan: The only way we can do is put it in as evidence.

. Mr. Hansury: I think as long as there is one copy here available to
this committee, that that is sufficient for the time being; and if we decide later
to print it, we can. I think that is something we should decide later.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: It has been done before.
Mr. Heaps: Not with anything as voluminous as this.

The Cramman: We have got this copy for the present at least. We can
take any further action we think necessary later.

Mr. Staniey: At least you are printing the summary?

The CramMaN: Yes, the summary is in the evidence.

Mr. Heaps: When do we meet again, Mr. Chairman.

The Cuamrman: I think perhaps next Thursday.

Mr. SurLivan: Can you not make it on Wednesday or Friday?

The CrARMAN: Wednesday does not suit our Liberal friend.

Mr. Hansury:' I am going to suggest that, as we have a lot of evidence to
hear, it might be advisable to sit while the House is sitting.

Mr. Hraps: Who is the next witness.

The Cramrman: We are going to have Dr. Coats. We will have to get
down to work and find out what other witnesses we want to come before us.

t present we have not anyone except Dr. Coats and someone from Toronto.

Mr. Hraps: Would you set the date when we meet again?

The Cuamman: I think we had better meet next Thursday.

Mr. Hraps: At 10.30. :

The CrmamrMaN: Yes.

The Committee adjourned at 12.40 a.m. to meet again, Thursday, March
7, at 10.30 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
CoMMITTEE Room 429,
March 7th, 1935.

this ghe Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued, met
ay at 10.30 o’clock, a.m. Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided.

Bl r{he following members were present: Messieurs Bourgeois, Church, Dorion,
Plur(:kt’ Ganong, Gray, Hanbury, Heaps, Howard, Morand, MecIntosh, Peck,
ett, Rinfret, Stanley, Sullivan and White (London)—17.

& eThe Chairman announced that Dr. Coats was unable to be present to-day
Xpected, but would be available a week from to-day.

exa Mr, G. P. Gordon, Finance Commissioner for the City of Ottawa, was called,
mined and retired.

e Mr. J. Clark Reilly, Manager of the Canadian Builders Association, Ottawa,
called, examined and retired.

Was Mzr. Noulan Cauchon, Town Planning Expert, who previously gave evidence,
I attendance, and answered several questions.

BrucThe Chairman announced that he hoped to have Lieutenant-Governor
e of Ontario as a witness on Tuesday next.

leaer‘ S_tanley moved, seconded by Mr. Hanbury, that the Committee ask
€ to sit while the House is sitting. Motion adopted.
Mr. J. Clark Reilly filed the following documents:— :
R Report No. 10 of the Honorary Advisory Council for Scientific and Industrial
esearch ;—1922.
InsuFu'llding Insulation Industry in Canada, 1930, and Low Temperature Heat
ation Industry in Canada, 1929—Department of Interior.

Canadomlmon Bureau of Statistics Bulletin No. sxxix. Seventh Census of
a—Houses and Dwellings. ! .
ecommended Minimum Requirements for small dwelling construction;—

U of Standards, Washington. e ;

of Stafl(ziomcrinended Minimum Requirements for Plumbing in dwellings; Bureau
ards.

Proceedings of the 17th Annual Convention of the Canadian Construction

As :
Sociation. (See— “Assisted Housing Policies ” by E. J. Bohn).

Burea

Mr. Noulan Cauchon filed the following documents:—

Zonin_g By-law. (2 copies.)
ousing_ Town Planning— Education—Letehworth; 1926.

Mar’lilhe Committee adjourned at 12.40 o’clock, pm., to meet again Tuesday,
¢h 12th, at 10.30 a.m.
J. P. DOYLE,

Clerk of the Commattee.
%lzx\u






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Roowm 429,
House or CoMMONS,
March 7th, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in Room 429, Thursday, March 7th,

1935, Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

& The CramrMmaN: Gentlemen, will you come to order please. We have now
Dl(‘luOrum, and I think we had better start. We had planned to-day on having
e Coe}ts here. I went over it with Dr. Coats, as to the information we want,
20d which he can give us, and he said he could not possibly be prepared to give
3 Or 8 week. He wanted time to look it up. So we are planning on having him
“ Week from to-day.
0-day we have three others from here in Ottawa who wish to appear before
» and I thought we would hear them. I suppose we can dispense with the reading
ki € minutes, as they will be printed. With the permission of the committee,
¢ Will hear Mr. Gordon first. Mr. Gordon is commissioner of finance of the city
ttawa. He is going to speak on the Housing Act of Ontario of 1919, and
€ Tesults of that here in Ottawa.

G. P. Gorpox, called.

M_I‘- Chairman, I have prepared a memorandum with reference to the
ations of the Ottawa Housing Commission. It gives a brief history of the
Mission and its operations, as well as the results, so far as they have affected
€ oty of Ottawa. With your permission I shall read this memorandum.
he 0110Wing the passing of an Act to provide for the erectipn of dwelling
pruS?S, known as the Ontario Housing Act, 1919, by the legislature of the
OVInce of Ontario, which was assented to on the 20th of March of the year
entlon‘?d_, city council of the municipality of the city of Ottawa decided, under
inetgmv_lsmns of the act, in view of the shortage of dwelling houses then existing
I € city, to borrow from the province $750,000 for the purpose of acquiring
Po and erecting dwellings thereon, and also to loan to citizens who already
Ssessed Jots within the ecity, amounts, under conditions prescribed by the act,
9 build houses on these.
of i, section of land comprising 22235 acres near the north eastern boundary
i city, known as Lindenlea, was purchased with part of the proceeds of the
a0 and subdivided for building purposes. Slightly more than 7 acres were
out in streets, and open spaces to be used as playgrounds, tennis courts,
ofw g greens, ete. The balance was divided into building lots to the number
169, and the cost of acquiring the property distributed over these lots. :
of n these lots the commission, appointed by city council, under authority
ung e housing act, built, 142 houses which were eventually sold to purchasers
Wo ?r agreement of sale, the terms of sale being that the purchase price (or loan)
Dail(li d be the cost of the lot and house and interest thereon at 5 per cent, to be
Peri I equal monthly instalments, interest and prineipal, amortized over a
aOd of twenty years. The purchasers had the right to repay the loan, or pur-
S price, if they so preferred, in shorter periods. :
the N lots in other parts of the city already owned by prospective. borrowers,
therCOmrmssion loaned moneys to individual citizens for the erection of dwellings
0utg?on’ under the terms of the Act. On such lots in various parts of the city,
ra ie the Lindenlea section, some 29 houses were built by the commission and
Nsferred to the purchasers (borrowers under the Act) by agreement of sale.

b .'.!_f'
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The cost of the houses built by the commission was from slightly under $3,000
to $4,500 each, these figures including the values of the lots when such were not
already owned by the purchasers. $4,500 was the maximum amount of loan to
any purchaser by the terms of the Act.

Of the original 169 lots into which the Lindenlea property was subdivided,
142 were built on during the first few years that the commission operated,
leaving 27 available for sale; 8 lots (still vacant) have been subsequently sold,
so that at present there are 19 lots still unsold.

As already stated, some 171 houses (142 at Lindenlea and 29 elsewhere in
the city) were built by the commission under the terms of the Act. At the -
present time 14 of these have been purchased outright, 146 are being paid for
under agreement of sale, 9 are rented and 2 are vacant.

There was appointed by ecity council in 1919 a commission consisting of 5
members to administer the affairs arising from the operations of the city under
the Act. This commission, with certain changes in personnel, continued to fune-
tion till 1925 when it resigned. Thereafter till 1930 the commission consisted of
the mayor, the city clerk and the city treasurer. From the beginning the com-
mission had a permanent secretary who, along with a stenographer-clerk, con-
stituted the staff which attended to the routine business arising from the affairs
of the commission. In 1930 it was discovered that these affairs were in a serious
condition, a special audit disclosing that the secretary had been guilty of defal-
cation to a known amount of $82,498.02. This official was immediately removed
from office, arrested, tried in the magistrate’s court, found guilty and sentenced
to a term of imprisonment. At the same time there was a reorganization of the
city treasury department. The city treasurer having resigned, council appointed
a new city treasurer, with the title also of commissioner of finance, who was
given much wider powers, and entrusted to him the reorganization of the financial
and accounting work of the city. Under him was also placed the affairs of the
housing commission. A new commission was appointed by city council of three
members, the mayor and two private citizens. The personnel of this commission,
with the exception of change resulting from change of mayor, remains unaltered
at the present time.

To 1932 no members of the commission received any remuneration. Since
then each member, with the exception of the mayor, has received a yearly
honorarium of $300.

The history of the Ottawa Housing Commission makes rather sorry reading
almost from the beginning, and the venture has been a very costly one for the
ratepayers.

The commission commenced early to find itself with difficulties it had to
contend with. Owing to lack of proper and adequate supervision many of the
houses erected by it turned out to be very poorly built, and continued claims
and complaints were being made by the purchasers. Numbers of these pur-
chasers registered very definite dissatisfaction. Also, with the amount borrowed
from the province, the commission found, through inadequate planning and the
type of scheme it had launched into, there was not sufficient funds to carry out
its undertakings and in 1922 the city had to raise by debenture issue a further
$45,000 to complete certain houses the commission had under construction ab
Lindenlea. This will mean, for the following twenty years, an annual payment
from tax levy to meet interest and principal, on the issue, of $3,610.91. That
will require to be borrowed by the taxpayers at large.

Mr. Cavcuon: Each year.

The Wirness: Yes, each year. The situation between 1922 and 1925 did
not improve. As a result of so many of the houses being so poorly built, and as
a consequence of the dissatisfaction of the purchasers, it became difficult to dis-
pose of a number of vacant houses the commission still had on its hands. Appar-
ently, also, certain of the houses were still not properly completed, and an appeal
was made by the commission in 1925 to city council for a further $10,000 t0
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complete these dwellings and repair and renovate others in an effort to put them
n a condition that they might become saleable. City council gave the necessary
authority to raise phe money asked for by debenture, but for some reason the
fl;lflilal change for interest and principal in connection therewith is raised in the
tiok evy agalr}gt general fund and not thr.ough the housing commission appropria-
. g2d1rect. Since 1925 to date this particular borrowing has cost the ratepayers
22497, and it will continue to cost the ratepayers each year the amortized
amOLlITlt of interest and principal as it falls due under the bonds.
“ Not only was the commission experiencing the difficulties just mentioned,
ut through lax control and careless and unbusinesslike methods being followed,
ari accounts of many of the purchasers of properties were getting badly in
evgars, and the ratepayers had to meet heavy deficits yearly through the tax
In 1925 the whole commission resigned. Conditions were very serious.

By Mr. Heaps:

i Q. Was that the original commission that resigned in 19257—A. The
riginal commission, with certain changes of personnel that had taken place
etween the years 1919 and 1925.

" Q. May I ask further whether the members of the commission of 1919 were

Wembers of the council, or whether they were an outside body?—A. No, sir, they
€re an outside body. There was one member of the council on the original com-

Mission, a controller.

Q. But of the five, four were non members of council?—A. That is correct.
Q. It was what is commonly called a non political body?—A. Yes.
Q. And they made a mess of it?>—A. That is also correct. Continuing:—

t'In 1925 the whole commission resigned. From that time, as already stated,

Gl the exposure in 1930 of the defaleations of the secretary and the serious con-

1tion of its affairs, the commission consisted of the mayor and two civie officials.
uring this period a member of the Board of Control, though not a member
of the.commission, sat in with it at its meetings, and assisted in 1ts delibera.tipns.
Since 1930, under the new commission, with its affairs under the reorgamz'ed
al‘;a.smy department, and the commissioner of finance acting as its financial
Viser, considerable improvement in the situation has been made.
¢ At 31st December, 1930, the total arrears in purchasers’ accounts amounted
0 $33,548 94. With serious difficulties to contend with, particularly those arising
fom and peculiar to the economic depression of the last four years, these have
€en reduced at the end of 1934 to $23,700.85. That is, they have been brpught
owWn by $10,000 in the last four years. Of the 146 houses still being paid for
lénder agreement of sale, the payments in connection with 79 have been made to
ate; those in connection with 67 are one month or more in arrears.
No figures are readily available of the number of houses that had been
repO.SSeSSed by the commission prior to 1930 for non-payment of instalments d1_1e,
ut Including, and since that year 22 have, in this way, reveyted to the commis-
Son. Tn nearly all cases these houses have been found to be in & state of poor to
t} repair, necessitating considerable expenses requiring to be made before
ley could be resold or rented. In addition, in nearly all cases also, there were
giltl’l;ollectable tax arrears in connection with them, meaning a further loss to the

e housing scheme of 1919 has been to
to look at the appropriations for tax

e To ascertain how costly a matter th
e 1919 to 1934, there has been raised

evyCift};hOf Ottawa, it is only necessarsy
of the various intervening years. Since 19
Y levy from the taxpayers, as shown by exhibit A attached, $352,538.48. But

£ 18 is not all of the picture by any means. As already stated the annual levy
cor the debenture of 1925 for $10,000 for the completion of, and repairs to
lgrtaln unsold houses has amounted to the end of 1934 to $7,224.97. Agam, in

31, there was charged to tax reserve $11,612.12, of tax arrears on repossessed
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properties, accumulated prior to that year. There is also a considerable amount
represented by other undetermined charges which might quite reasonably go
against the Housing Commission account, but which do not show against it in
the books of the city. i
Previous to 1930 the affairs of the commission were never properly set up.
Subsequent to that date they have been, and exhibit B attached shows the
balance sheet of the commission as at 31st December, 1934. This statement
indicates a deferred surplus, as of that date, of $38,875.86. Deducting, then,
this amount from the charges and losses met from tax levy above indicated
(which are incomplete) the net loss incurred to the ratepayers of Ottawa, to
date, as a result of the city participating in the housing scheme under the act
of 1919, is something in excess of $332,499.71, established as under:—

Raised from tax levy as indicated by Exhibit A.. .. ..$ 352,538 48 %
Add annual payments in connection with ‘
$10,000 debenture issued 1925.. .. .. .. 7,224 97 1
Tax arrears on repossessed properties prior :
5 90 102 ¥ NG T £ e R Ry e b 37 L B 18,837 09
” 371,375 57 ]
Less deferred profit as indicated by Ex-
BB ks fel 2 BT T e a Rl e Lt 38,875 86
$ 332,499 71 1

7th March, 1935. :

(Signed) G. P. GORDON,
Commissioner of Finance,
City of Ottawa.

Exuisir “A”

AMOUNTS THAT HAVE BEEN RAISED FROM TAXATION FOR HOUSING COM- ]
MISSION ACCOUNT, 1919-1934 p

Provision
Salaries |[Interest and| to meet
and | Principal Balance Repairs Taxes
Year Total Adminis- on reﬁuired on| to unsold | Insurance | on unsold
tration | Debentures ousing Houses Houses
Loan
$ cts. $ cts $ cts. $ cts, $ cts. $  octs. $ ects.

3,675 35 3,67

4,649 69 4, 64

4,114 50 4,11

3,133 61 3,13 i

56,873 89 3,262 98 3,610 91 | 50

33,55{ 94 4,941 03 3,610 91 25,

32,581 41 3,970 50 3,610 91 | 25,

28,262 73 4,651 82 3,610 91 | 20,

27,810 91 4,200 00 3,610 91 | 20,

27,865 71 3,413 87 3,610 91 | 20,

37,815 94 3,083 53 3,610 91 | 30,

20,874 23 1,637 32 3,610 91 | 15,

45,481 03 1,420 12 3,610 91 | . 39,

7,538 37 2,091 13 010 98 1 s o

9,604 13 1,921 36 2 A T T P I G AT 2,363 95 210 97 1,496 94

8,705 04 2,273 50 8,610 Bhupss g 1,873 801 . kv 1,446 77
352,538 48 | 52,440 31 | 43,330 92 | 244,000 00 6,902 78 458 47 5,406 00
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Exxurerr “‘B”
CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF OTTAWA
HOUSING COMMISSION—BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st DECEMBER, 1934

AGrEEMENTS OF SALE—
UL TN 1 N NGB RN RO e P S S $ 341,193 14
Interest to Maturity of LOANS. .. .uueeenetureeeeriensrromease 102,540 21
ENEOrRaL Oni ATYORTH. . 1 o4 on AVl s i e S A e s U A e 2,972 96

AssETS

DBUraTes T OSTRIMINE, i} . s a5 s 5 Do s i BraR & 3l R s S b o ld o S s 112 45 sids wloe
ProrerTIES HEp FORdS(ALE——' & 38wtk ,
OUDCR TEPOBSEBBR (T )5 L6 v« Lihs o b Talats » sk Tk s aie v B o e o ol e 310 8 om0 503 , 3¢
R R R R T W R [ R R NS ST P S 19 00 e
A e I NN
BRI 0 o v 0 BN 4L S0 s ey A e e R B Rt L 3,879 39

£ 489,070 23

A b i o L SR T O R T e R R A3 il L $ 20, Ogg
25

88

L $ 20,025 00
OAN FROM PROVINCE OF ONTARIO— :
Principal and Acerued Interest to 31st December, 1934, repayable in equal g
monthly instalments of $5,036.08 ... ....cieeniiiiiiiniiaiiai i 324,656 20
RESERVE
S FOR:
Dieferrod Inforest L. .. b o bis b i s 5ot fn n b e s o alpu st BRI o $ 10“.)7..3%(2) gili
nteres Se et iole ST RRRE R I S T TR e B s g e T e 2,
Test on Arrears.. . .....vie. 105,513 17
s i B P tirg o e o e 5 R T e SR S S 38,875 86

——

$ 489,070 23

Of the exhibits attached, exhibit A shows the amounts that have been raised
from taxation from housing commission account from 1919 to 1934. These
are listed hy years and have been subdivided to show: salaries and adminis-
tration totalled $52,440.31; interest and principal on debentures, $43,330.92—
anc! that does not include interest and principal on debentures of 1925, $10,000,
Which for some reason or other city council at that time saw ﬁt_t,o charge to

e general fund of the city. They consolidated it with another $50,000 deben-
ure, and it became practically a loss as a result; in addition to that there has
€en a charge of some $7,200 since 1925 to 1934, chargeabl_e from tax levy. It

should pe chargeable to the housing commission. Provision to meet balance

Tequired on housing loan, 8244 000-—that figure is partly defalcations of the

Secretary of the commission between 1920 and 1930; and also the shortage of

Tevenue, or rather the difference between the revenue and the amount paid to
e Ontario government _in repayment of the loan of $750,000.

By Mr. Stanley: g L
. Mr. Gordon, was the secretary who defaulted a city ©O cial in

“apacity other than ‘that of secretary to this coxn1n1§510n?T—A. No, he was only
Secretary to the housing commission. He was a city -th(‘lﬂl. appointed under
Uty by-law, he was a permanent city official, but his sole duties were to act las
Secretary to the housing commission, and in charge of the business of the
Commisgion. i t" L
Q. As 'far ss the city was conmcerned his delalcations were entirely.
Yegard to this particular cgmmission?——A. Yes, sir, entirely in reference to the

a 2 R
teounts of this commission.
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By Mr. Heaps:

Q Might I ask to whom the commission was respon51b1e?—A The housing
commission was responsible to city council.

Q. Did they report regularly?—A. According to the act they should have
reported four times a year. I am not in a position to tell you at the present
moment whether they did or not. I only came to the city officially subsequent
to the exposure of the defalcation.

By Mr. White:

Q. Did you mention the amount that was lost by the theft by this individual?
—A. $82,000.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Are you through with your presentation?—A. I have just to complete
my reference to the exhibits.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. When you mention “ Act,” you mean the federal act of 1919?7—A. The
provincial act.

Mr. Cavcuon: It is the same thing.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. You say, it was a provincial act?—A. It was a provincial act that the
city appointed the commission under. I do not know what connection there
was with the dominion. :

Mr. Cavcnon: Its purpose was the disposal of Dominion funds loaned to
the provinces.

Mr. StanveEY: It was enabling legislation on the part of the provinces.

The WrrNess: That is correct, but it was under the provincial act that the
city operated.

Mr. CaucroN: The city dealt with the province, not with the Dominion.

Mr. Moraxp: The Dominion loaned to the provinces and the provinces
were responsible to the federal government.

The WirNess: The people raised from taxation $6,902.78 for the repair of
houses; $458.47 for insurance on unsold property; and $5,406 for taxes on unsold

houses. But in addition to that as I have pointed out there was also over

$10,000 which was charged direct to tax reserve.

The other exhibit, as I have already stated, is the balance sheet of the
housing commission at the end of 1934. Tt shows a deferred surplus of
$38,875.86; but it only shows a deferred surplus charged by the city to the tax
rate. If none of this had been charged it would have shown the net deficit
which T have indicated in my memorandum.

By the Chairman:
Q. Does that cover all future amounts, or are you still facing some loss?—
A. No, sir. There will be very considerable continued losses—or at least, charges
to ratepayers. There will be, for instance, the full amount of interest and

principal on the debenture issue of $215,000; and the same on the debenture issue
of $10,000. .

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Do you know anything about the cost of construction in 1919 and 19207

—A. T understand they were rather high, that was about the peak of construc-
tion cost.
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' Q. And that of the subsequent years, 1922 and 1923, there was a heavy
'dT_OP in construction cost?>—A. I am not altogether competent to state, but I
think there was a tendency toward a drop after 1921 and 1922.

Q. And therfore, was not the loss in the value of the houses due somewhat
to this reduction in cost?—A. That does not enter into it at all, because the
‘g&glnal cost of the houses was the amount of the loan to the particular pur-

ser,

Q. Yes, I realize that; but when a person purchased a home at a fixed
Price say in 1919 or 1920 and then found in 1922 or 1923 he could buy just as
good a house or a better one for less than what he owed; was not that a factor
In the situation which resulted in losses?—A. I do not think so, because the
Purchase price or loan was amortized as to interest and principal over twenty
years; and that meant, and does mean, that the amount that each of these
i)urCh_asers is paying monthly in the form of instalments in repayment of their
0an is not even equivalent to the rental value of many of these houses.

Q. Yes, but if there was a reduction in the value of the property and a
person subsequently could go out and purchase a new home at less than what

€ owed on his present building; wouldn’t that have a bearing on your logses?—
2 NO, because in every case so far as I am aware—and I know this has been
S0 since 1930—the commission has not resold any of these houses at a lower
Price than the original cost to the commission; that is to say, the original loan.

Q. Can you explain then why you are making such heavy losses?—A.
I think T have explained that it has been through defalcations.

. Q. But only to the extent of $82,000?—A. Then 1 have suggested, gross
Mismanagement.

Q. The loss has been practically over $2,500 per house?—A. I haven't
figured it out.

Q. T mean, there is over $300,000 of a deficit on 140 homes—just making
a rough calculation. I would like to know why the loss has been sustained if

€y have all been sold at the cost of construction?—A. The loss has been
Sustained through various items which are indicated here. Many of tl}ese
ouses have heen repossessed owing to the fact that the purchasers have failed
to keep the instalments up. According to clause 9 of the agreement of sale,
lf_th_e instalments become more than 2 months in arrears the housing com-
Mission may repossess; and, as I have already stated, in the cases In which
repossession has been made practically every case with the exception of 2
Since 1930, there have been very considerable arrears of taxes. Arrears of
taxes amounted to $5,406, plus $11,000; you have $16,000 there. There h.ave
Deen considerable repairs to these unsold houses. There were defalqatlons
amounting to $82,000. Then, over considerable periods particularly in the
early stage many of these houses remained vacant for a ngmber of years.

here was no revenue coming in from them but in the meantime the amount
of the loan principal and interest falling due to the province had to be met,
S0 that there had to be raised through taxation the difference between the
revenues and the amounts that were due to be paid to the provinces. That
Amount, totalled, with the defaleations, $244.000. :

_ Q. May I then ask, Mr. Gordon, if these houses were put up at Lindenlea
Without, there heing an effective demand for them?—A. Well, it would appear

that that w s so; because I find from an old report of the commission here to

the Board ¢ Control that they found themselves in very serious difficulties in
Also chere were a number of houses, quite a conSIerable number, which
through hag planning were not completed and in a condition to sell. ~ $4,500
as the maximum which could be loaned on any house, and in order to build
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the type of house that a number of purchasers wanted they had to keep within
$4,500—they had to leave off such things as verandas, front steps, double
windows and various other things. That resulted in a partly completed house,
and of course nobody wants to buy a house like that.

Q. They would have a roof on them, I suppose?

Mr. CavcHoN: They didn’t always have that.

The Wirness: I could tell you of eases in which serious difficulty has been
encountered.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Do you think faulty construction had something to do with it?—A.
There is no doubt about it. I know of one house, this happened a year or
two ago and not in one of the buildings at Lindenlea, it was a building in
another part of the city, and that house practically fell in two. It was found
out—I think a digging was made around the foundation—that the house was
simply practically standing on the bare ground, it had no foundation, at least
none worth while, the result was that the house became a menace, even to the
publie, because it was tending to fall apart.

Q. Were there any specifications by the commission that was appointed in
1919?—A. There were specifications according to the act which were very
strict, even more strict than the building by-laws of the city which are very
strict.

Q. Yes?—A. But unfortunately apparently many of these houses were not
properly inspected at the time, and they were very badly constructed.

Q. That is something like the minimum wage law?—A. There might be
quite an applicable relation.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Then I understand that the Commission was appointed by the ecity
council of those days?—A. Yes, sir, that is correct, under the terms of the
act.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. In your experience, would you suggest, assuming that the committee
would recommend some form of housing scheme, what could be done to offset
the difficulties that the housing commisison found itself up against here in
Ottawa?—A. Well, T am inclined—it is only a question of opinion; I am not
an expert in this matter—

Q. From your experience?—A. From my experience I would most cer-
tainly say if a housing scheme is entered into again, and enabling legislation
passed, and municipalities have anything to do with the matter, you are going
to have a repetition of the same thing, simply because—and it is a very simple
thing—to my mind, civic officials are not particularly interested in being put
on these commissions, as in Ottawa they were, after things got so bad. Appar-
ently, outside citizens were not interested in acting on the Commission, and
very often officials are put on, and they knew little about a housing commission
or housing work, and in all probability they did not give very much attention
to matters other than those that were simply reported to the Commission.

Q. That is a negative answer. I am trying to see if you have anything
positive to tell us—A. The only thing I can say positive would be that in
my opiinon it would be distinetly disadvantageous to develop and carry out
and pass enabling legislation for a scheme that would come under municipal
control.

Q. What control would you suggest?—A. Well, I don’t know; I am not
an expert along those lines, but I had in mind the results in a city that I
think is rather well governed, whose credit stands very high, whose municipal

|
|
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if;f;m‘s are rather well looked after, the city of Ottawa. You see what a hope-
kﬁo l}le?a has taken place with reference to the housing scheme here; I do not
: W W _hethcr thap _has been paralleled elsewhere, but I know that it has been
n certal'n other cities—I do not know to what elsewhere, but it has been a
gross failure here.

By the Chairman:

i Q. Di’(,} the province lose anything?—A. No, the province stands to lose
Othing. The credit of the city is behind the $750,000 borrowed, and that must
o Tepaid and is being regularly repaid each month, interest and principal

amortized over the period of twenty years.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

I Q. Have you any idea what percentage of taxes have been paid on those
10uses since they have been constructed?—A. No, I could not tell you that.
., course it might be said this housing scheme has been an advantage to the
SIY tha,t 18, where probably one million dollars of assessment has been added,
fom which revenue is derived. That is probably true, but it does not alter the
S'lt}latlon as regards the losses to the city, because if a building company had
built these houses, that same amount of assessment would have been there,
and the same revenue would have been derived.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Who constructed those homes?—A. They were constructed by various
Contractors, contracts were let to various contractors.

By Mr. Stanley:
Q. At tender?—A. Yes, sir; but in many cases there were quite a number of
additions outside of the contract.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Were any specifications put into the tenders?—A. Yes, sir, and very
drastic specifications too. (3.
Q. Were the contractors responsible for the character of the buildings they
Put up?—A. Not after the houses were taken off their hands. It is quite right,
there was supposed to be architectural supervision as well.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret: 5
Q. You mentioned a moment ago you did not believe in mpnlclpql control
Over a scheme of that kind. Would you say that you do not bel@eve in public control
generally or is there something special about a municipality that makes you
Speak thus?—A. I would not quite—
Mr. Gray: He is speaking from experience. y
The Wirness: T am talking from experience. I wpuld not. enter into—I
Would not care to give an answer as to whether I believe in public control or not
or such a scheme, because there are many things where it has been found that
Public control is a good type of control. Some things have worked out all right
n that connection, and other things have not worked out just as well as they have

Under private enterprise.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret: ey trol?—A. I should
Q. What is your specific objection to municipal control?—A. I should say
that the object-iOI}l’ has come mainly from the results. Theoretically there ought
0 be no difficulty. . i
Q. That is my view point. That is why I put the question?—A. But what
L have shown to-day, Mr. Chairman, has been the actual results that have taken
Place in one of the main cities of the Dominion under a housing scheme muni-

Cpally handled.
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By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Suppose we had the reverse result in other cities, would that be apt to
change your viewpoint?—A. Well, my viewpoint, naturally, if I knew of satis-
factory conditions elsewhere, would certainly be altered to a certain extent. All
that I am giving you this morning is from the experience of the city of Ottawa,
what I know and what I have learned from the records prior to my becoming a
city official.

By Mr. Peck:
Q. What compensation went to the commissioners?—A. No compensation
was given to the commissioners until 1932.

By Mr. Sullivan:
Q. 1932 was the first year?—A. Yes. Since 1932 each commissioner has
been paid $320 a year, with the exception of the mayor. The mayor, who is the
chairman of the commission, has received no compensation whatever.

By Mr. Peck:

Q. Is not that the weakness of the scheme, nobody is really interested in
carrying it out?—A. Well, that is it—I think Browning rather expressed what
has taken place when he wrote Pippa Passes, “God’s in his Heaven, All’s right
with the world.” That was, I think, a good deal the attitude behind the whole
thing. I think it expresses the mental attitude.

By Mr. Stanley :

Q. What was the annual average administration charge?—A. The highest
vear was $4,900 odd, which was 1924. The lowest year was 1931, and the cost
was $1,420. Prior to the reorganization, it ran to between a little over $3,000 to
almost $5,000. Subsequent to reorganization, it has been between $1,420 and
$2,273.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Are you speaking only of Ottawa when you think that it should not be
community obligation?—A. Well, T am talking of course, from the results that
have taken place in Ottawa. But I should imagine, from the experience we have
had here, that it would be the general tendency, similar conditions elsewhere,
probably worse in some cases, probably better in others.

Q. Have you followed the Toronto report?—A. No, sir, not closely.

Q. You have not gone into it in regard to other cities?—A. Not closely,
but I know in a general way most of them have not been successful.

Q. Have you gone into the European policy?—A. No, sir. The European
policy, as I understand it, is different. The policies in Europe are quite entirely
different from ours.

Q. I want to submit to you a sentence from the report by the Toronto
Housing Committee. After they had gone over it carefully, they came to this
conelusion—

Hon. Mr. Moranp: What page is that?
Hon. Mr. Ervuiorr: Page 117.

Thé community is responsible, we believe, for the provision of satis-
factory dwellings for those who are too poor to afford them. This prin-
ciple is widely if not universally accepted by European countries; and
has been the basis of low cost housing development in Great Britain since
before the war. Toronto must follow the example of the leading British
cities. The responsibility must be shouldered. The time for recon-
struction is here. 3
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L The Wirness: I thoroughly endorse the statement. But I do think in
n Infatter of administering the moneys, that would be required for the build-
00%1 Ollthose houses, such administration should not come directly under city
z 1(1101 or those_appomted by city council; but that the work should probably
meref;e by building companies or some much more responsible body than
Mr. HaNBURY: City council?
The Wirness: No, those commissions appointed by city council.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott
Yo C%l Would the size of the city not make a difference?—A. I do not think so.
U have the basic facts and conditions behind it irrespective of the size of
€ city, in my opinion.

By Mr. Gray

o QI am not quarrelling with what you have said with respect to the
eag‘;rlence in Ottawa and other cities, but if the municipalities themselves
i ot control and look after this matter satisfactorily, I cannot, for the life
s me, see how some federal commission sitting at Ottawa or somewhere else
4 n do the work. I agree with Mr. Peck. I think he has put his finger right
fn the spot, and that if there is to be somebody who is realy responsible
or looking after this work and seeing that it is properly carried out, he
should be paid for it—A. Yes.
th Q. T think that it must be the responsibility of the municipality, rather

an any outside organization.

By Hon. Mr. Morand.:
& Q. In those $4,500 houses, what rental are you getting for them now?—
; Ip_sonle cases we have not been able to rent them at all, owing to the
¢ondition they were in. Of course, it is true in recent years, there has not
een the same demand for houses, and we had to rent those houses as low
88 $27.50 a month within the last couple of years, but I think there is a
“‘fndancy in Ottawa towards a somewhat greater demand for houses than there
tha:ﬁ %tllllld.t we are renting them now at $30 a month, but we cannot get more
at. :

By Mryr. Heaps k ,
191 Q. Let me give you the experience in Winnipeg. They built 721 houses in
o t,9 and 1920 under the Federal Housing Scheme, and they have shown the
Itizens a slight surplus each year on the amount of money that was loaned.
at would you say to that?—A. Under what? Was there a commission
OPerating, a similar commission as in the province of Ontario?
th Q. We had a body comprised of, if I remember correctly, a member of
e council and one or two assistants—A. Well, they have had a much more
4ppy experience than we have. ; )
Q. Through the depression they have shown a slight profit on the invest-
ent many times greater than Ottawa. Would you put that down to admin-
8tration?__A. T would certainly put that down to the fact that the commission
Must haye heen much more interested in the carrying out of the work and had
8ven much more of their personal time, and probably had more experience
an most, gentlemen have on those commissions. ¢
.y Of course, I might say this, that the money was never paid over to the
Wmission, It was paid directly to the civie authorities, and there was no
Qestion of the commission handling the money at all. It always came under
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the review of the commission and the council jointly.—A. Mind you, I have
said theoretically I do not see why such a scheme as this should not work out.
It is the practical results that must be borne in mind.

Q. Just one other faect. To-day in Winnipeg the houses that were built
under the control regulations and the specifications of the Housing com-
mission are looked upon as a much superior type of construction than those
built by private construction or control—A. Yes, but it must not be forgotten
that under the Ontario Housing Act of 1919, the specifications are much more
strict than probably the specifications required by the building bylaws of any
municipality in Ontario.

Q. Then, the success of any such scheme depends to a very large extent
upon the proper administration of it?—A. Yes, and the personnel of those
who are directing the scheme.

Q. Under proper administration we would assume proper personnel?—
A. Yes.

By Mr. Hanbury

Q. Have you any information as to the abilities, capabilities or qualifica-
tions of the original administrators of this housing scheme?—A. The original
commission consisted of John Cameron, who is building inspector of the city
to-day. I think he was a yvery capable man.

Q. Still on the job?—A. He is a building inspector of the city to-day.

Q. He was one of the original commission?—A. He was the chairman.

Q. What did he have to say about the degree of jurisdiction he exercised
during this jerry-building referred to?—A. I don’t know.

Q. Don’t you think the citizens of Ottawa should have someone interested
enough to see whether or not he carried out this control?—A. Quite true, but
unfortunately the citizens—the ratepayers rarely know of the adverse con-
ditions until they have been obliged to foot the bill and then they arise in
their struggle, which eventually happened in Ottawa.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q). Let me point this out. Here is a man, a trusted executive official who
has defaulted to the extent of $82,400, and all the executive work of the com-

mission passed through him: the question as to whether the specifications were

being carried out, whether the loans were being made on a straightforward basis,
whether the agreements of sale were being collected as time went on and, in fact,
everything that had to do with the executive administration passed through his
hands, and to that extent he was the trused official. Could you say at every
turn of the road where, in addition to the $82,400—there may have been very
very many other dollars that went astray—every dollar went if the commission
carried on different work?—A. There is no doubt about that. I stated in my
memorandum that there is an undetermined amount of other loss which it is
not possible to determine. Mr. Chairman, may I point out that Mr. Cameron
who is now the building inspector for the city was not the building inspector at
that time. ’
Mr. Hansury: He was one of the commissioners?

The Witness: He was.

By Hon. Rinfret:
Q. Did you mention that these buildings averaged a cost of $4,000 each?—
A. There were some under $3,000. I think the lowest was $2,800. Many of
them were $4,500. The loans were made to the limit of the amount under the Act.

These houses even were built without verandahs and various other things because
they could not go beyond $4,500.

oy

e
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Q. Would you consider that was too high a price to pay for them?—A. I do
00t know. I am inclined to think, because the specifications were not lived up to
ad the houses were badly built, it probably was. I was asked the names of the
Other commissioners.

Mr. Hansury: If you have an original commissioner here that will stand for
What you say has taken place in Ottawa, I think my reason will have to stand
8 to why it failed in Ottawa. I do not want any further excuse about it.

The CuamrMaN: Are there any other questions you want to ask this witness?

. The Wrrngss: The other original members of the commission were Mr.
v"’f‘llter Todd who, I think was formerly an employee of the government, Mr.
. P -hl\/éeredith, an architect, Mr. J. U. Vincent, who was % lawyer, and Mr. J. A.
achado.
,  Mr. SuLLivan: Was Mr. Vincent at one time the deputy minister of Inland
R'Wenue?

Mr. Cavcrox: 1 think so. He was a lawyer. I think he had some govern-
Ment position,
¢ The Wrrness: The other member was Mr. J. A. Machado who was president
% the Canadian Bank Note Company.

Mr. Prck: There were, evidently, too many and nobody was responsible.

Mr. Moraxb: Too many and no pay.

The CramMan: Are there any other questions?

. Mr. Staxvey: I think it should be pointed out here, although Mr. Gordon
'S Not, interested in that phase of the question, that it is a generally accepted
'prmeiple now that housing schemes should not be schemes for loaning to the
Public fop purchasing buildings but that a housing undertaking, as I }mder—
Stang 1t, is to provide homes for workmen on a rental basis' and on a basis that
they can afford to pay. They are not supposed to be purchasing their homes. ;

. Mr. Hanpury: I do not think I would accept that altogether. In connection
With o housing scheme, to my mind, if there is going to be such a thing I do not
ik Why we should take one class of the community and say that we w§ll I)elp only

those, If we are going to go in for a housing scheme we should go in it for all

The Crammax: I think that is one of the functions of this committee.

Mr. Sranvey: It is not part of Mr. Gordon’s evidence, anyway.

f Mr. Cavenon: 1 think I pointed out that this housing idea of 1919 was
O building houses, but it was not confirmed to those who eould not help them-
Slves; anybody could get the loan of money if they were lucky enough.

By Mr. Heaps: .

the Q. Before the city of Ottawa had a scheme was any report submltt(elzdﬂ’io
ity council from any responsible body as to the requirements an e
e OfIsuch a scheme as they undertook?—A. I really could not say. I do not

Was not really in this question. . R
G Q. T thought perhai)s you ha((]i1 access to the records and m}ght}ll?;’ehqulog\érels
degt, Those_ old records are not in the best of shape. The city hall has
Sroyed since then by an act of God.

By Mr. Morand:
- You are now connected with this housing s_cheme?—_—A. Well, 1 h‘av?
e & certain amount of the work in connection with it wished on me, anc
Ave been glad to do what I can to untangle the situation.

Sep
k I)

to-q + Could you tell us from your experience whether there is a demand
95?2?’ I Ottawa for more houses than are built?
—2
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Mr. Heaps: And the type.

Mr. Moraxp: I am asking generally.

The Wirness: I really could not say.

Mr. MoranD: You have no idea of the number of vacancies in Ottawa at
present?

The Wrrness: No, sir. I am not acquainted with the situation.

The CHAIRMAN: I think you would have to have some definition of hous-
ing before you agked that question.

Mr. Moranp: I am asking what is the number of vacancies in a city like
Ottawa. How many vacant dwellings are there? How many unoccupied elec-
tric metres are there?

The Wrrness: I could not tell you.

Mr. McInTosm: I understand from information given the other day
to a question asked by myself that the urge for a Canadian housing prggram
came from Montreal, Toronto, and Winnipeg. Ottawa was not mentioned. T
asked for some information last meeting. with regard to the prairie provinces:
how much was spent out of that approximately $20,000,000.

The CuamrMan: I went down to see Dr. Coats, but he was not ready to
give a statement. He is preparing a statement, and he is going to give us one;

but nothing was advanced to Saskatchewan or Alberta. Dr. Coats will give

that when he comes next week.

Mr. McIntosu: Then they did not use a cent of the $20,000,000.

The CHAIRMAN: No.

Mr. McInNTosu: I asked a further question was the $20,000,000 spent?
And I do not think T got a complete answer to that. Was it spent?

Mr. Moranp: You would have to put that question on the order paper.

Mr. CavcHon: I think that is covered by the statisties you are going to
get from Dr. Coats. We have no means of getting that in Ottawa.

The CuHARMAN: I went over that with Dr. Coats to see what information
he could give us, and as I remember nineteen million and something was spent
—a little under the $20,000,000 that was advanced.

Mr. McInTosu: A little less than the $20,000,000?
| The CramrmaN: Yes. I am only speaking from memory, and T may not be
correct. He had a statement completed to present here, but when he found
what our reference was he asked for more time in order that he could get
certain other information which he thought we should havé. He asked for
one week’s time to get ready to give us a more complete record. We had
expected to have him here this morning. 3
| Mr. McINTosH: Anyway Saskatchewan and Alberta did not get anything =
out of that lot of credit. ‘
* The CHAIRMAN: That is correct.

Mr. Waire: We have had some experience, Mr, Chairman, in London
with regard to the housing scheme. T wrote to find out what our experience
had been. To date I have not had a reply. It is not very different from that
bf Ottawa, leaving out the experience of an official who had to be jailed.

Mr. Gray: They did not cateh yours. '

Mr. Waite: Not yet. The houses themselves were more or less jerry- .
<built, and I know that in some cases the coverings of the Toofs had to be
taken off and relaid. On the whole it has been a serious loss. At a future
meeting I hope to have more definite information.
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By the Chairman:

Q. T have two questions I would like to ask Mr. Gordon. You spoke of
building bowling greens and certain other things. Were those put down in this
community, and who paid for them?—A. Mr. Chairman, so far as the bowling
greens, streets and open spaces for recreation were concerned they, in all, com-
prised about some 7 acres of the 22, and that was passed over to the city
council and the city is responsible for that part of the 22 acres that was pur-
chased. It was the balance that was taken and divided into housing lots and
the cost of the purchase was spread over each of the lots.

By Mr. Morand.:
Q. With regard to these houses at Lindenlea what was the cost per lot?—
A. T am sorry I have not the information to give you in connection with that.

By the Chairman:

h Q. The question has come up as to how mueh it cost to build a house. You

ave had houses built for $3,000. Now, were they satisfactory houses, or would
they have been satisfactory if the specifications had been lived up to?—A. Some
of them are; some of them are very well built. Where a purchaser came on

e ground himself and saw that the work was properly done the house was
well built.

Mr. Haxpury: When he acted as his own building constructor.

The Wirness: Yes. :
Mr. McIntosu: You have the same kind of contractors here as in the west;

they have to be watched.
Witness dismissed. .

J. CLagrk REermvy, called.

The Cramman: Mr. Reilly is our next witness. He will tell you who he
Tepresents.

The Wrrness: T am manager of the Canadian Construetion Association and,
thel‘efore. in view of some of the statements that have just been made with
fegard to contractors and people of that sort you can see what a brave man

am to come here. The Canadian Construction Association is an organization
fD’Ompos,ed of general contractors, trade contractors, material supply people in
he construction industry, linking up a nation-wide membership and also linked
Up with the various building exchanges in the different cities.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Have you your headquarters in Ottawa?—A. In Ottawa.
Q. How long have you been in existence?—A. The association came as one
v a conference was called here

bt the mov S /i . war in 1918, when
¥ the th@nmll\]/[eilrlltl':ti(l)'lii)f“lfc‘nc%rf?titnstt}i()n. and r,epresentatives came to Ottawa from
over the country to consider the condition of affairs as they then were, and
At that time the ()1"ga.nizati011 was formed.
bog Q".HOW long have you been here as a perm
Y. since then—since 1919.
I Ir?. 'You have not taken part in
M what way?
S mQ. Sending out circulars with regard tojthc e
WhicioIf our men were foolish enough at the last cony
sent forward to you all
95121\2§

anent body >—A. As a permanent
any movement outside of construction?—

railway situation?—A. Yes.
tion to pass a resolution
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Mr. McIxtosa: They are all falling for it, you know.
The WirxEess: I received some very interesting replies, and I also took it up
at our last meeting.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. In other words, you went a little beyond the construction work of the
organization?—A. I would not think so myself. It is a matter of opinion. But
the idea in the minds of those people who passed that motion was, that they
felt that the heavy debt—I am getting out of my depth, frankly—on the rail-
ways was perhaps holding up our industry and other industries.

Q. Would not the heavy debt on the Lindenlea construction job also hold
things up?—A. It might in this way, that there was money that was not coming
back on the original investment until that was lifted, and would not be avail-
able for other construction to that extent. I think that is true of every invest-
ment, good or bad. However, I do not wish to deal with that.

Hon. Mr. Moranp: Go ahead.
The Wirness: May I say that I have not got a brief, but I have copies of
some notes that I would like to pass around, if I may.

By Mr. McIntosh.:

Q. Would you permit a question? Are you represented in all the large
cities?—A. In the large cities, yes. '

Q. Have you any representation from the rural areas whatsoever?—A. Only
indirectly, because a number of our men go out and do work in the rural areas,
especially in your province, Mr. Melntosh.

Q. There are just the urban and suburban areas represented on your com-
mittee?—A. I would say mainly to that effect. I would also say, Mr. Chair-
man, if I may, that in coming before you this morning, I do not come as an
expert. I want that understood thoroughly. I am not like Mr. Cauchon, Pro-
fessor Nobbs, or Mr. Gordon. I am' not an expert. I am just a very ordinary
person. However, I have this thing at heart, and I happened to be on the
Employment Service Council, one of the bodies that has not functioned for the
last year or so. I have also served on a committee in the Dominion Fire Pre-
vention Association, and also on some of the committees down in the National
Bureau of Research, and I think I have a personal interest at least, in this
housing matter, and also on behalf of the men whom I in some way represent. |

I think I would like to say right here that when you hear the National
Construction couneil, which has asked for a hearing, you will get a very large
amount of data that you, Mr. MecIntosh and others, have been asking for in
regard to construction, some of which I have indicated here this morning. ‘

I have started this brief memorandum from the point where I first became
interested in this problem, at the National Industrial Conference which was held
here in Ottawa in1919. I presume you have all had copies of the proceedings of
that conference, but I think I would put in the motion that was carried unani-
mously by the representatives of organized labour, of the employers and govern-
ment representatives at the last session of the meeting. It links up with the
Royal Commission on Industrial Relations which in section 69 had reference to '_j
insufficient and poor housing:— j

|
|

That this Conference commends the attention of the Dominion and
provineial governments in their united efforts to the improved housing
conditions. -

I suppose that that is partly responsible for the housing work that was done i
1919. I think that recommedation may be said to be partly responsible, but I
hope not for all the blunders and mistakes in carrying it out. We have learn

a great deal more, I think Mr. Cauchon will admit, since that time in regard t0
housing matters generally; and that particular housing undertaking, as has
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i‘g?gfdyl been’ stated, was not‘especially designed for any particular case—1t0
1 b e L housing or t‘()'l)l‘()\_'ldc low cost housmg. There was simply thought
Nod Ofd”bcvm‘mty of housing for people, ‘and this scheme Was worked out as 2
of th .Talden scheme, putting up a housing scheme at a certain rate. The price
COrrecet louses was less than what one could get a house for—I think I am
i —-Im the city of Ottawa; at any rate, an ordinary house, & Very ordinary

Yism t might have been if handled properly here, as 1 think it was 11 other
places, a fairly good system.

By Mr. Stanley:
Ry Q. The great scarcity there was just ordinary, common, every-day houses?
A. Ordinary, common, every-day housing.
M IQ' Honesty is the thing that was scarce?—A. Well, a lot, of people——Mr.
p eIntosh included—seem to think that is a great scareity in our industry all the
me, but I do not think we are quite in that.
defy Q. Mr. Gordon's evidence brings out that all down the line there was &
™ nite lack of ordinary honesty?>—A. There certainly was a lack of supervision.
x ere was lack of having the thing done in & reputable manner. 1 have 1n th,e
rg‘Xt paragraph a couple of the figures that 1 have taken from Mr. Marshs
. cent article in the Canadian Journal of Economics, 1 which he mentions the
mount that was expended. He says:—
But Canada suifered much more heavily than the United States from
housing shortage after the War; and the Federal Government 11 1919
made available to municipalities (through the prov'mces) a miximum of
$25,000,000, to be drawn O as loans to assist housing construction. 10
the ensuing five years, £9,400,000 of this sum was borrowed in Ontario
and $7,400,000 in Quebec; and throughout (Canada some 6,250 houses were
built, housing about 32,000 persons. While the precedent for state action
has been set, however it i generally admitted that in relation to its results,
the costs of this housing effort Were high; and also that the basic housing
problem of the city—the provision of Jwellings at rents, which the wage-
iy earner can afford—was only inadequately touched, and it still remans.
hat is from the Canadian Economic jéurnal of Toronto, February, 1935, Number
ne. I just quote that in regard to housing generally. HE AL
5 I agree with that principle raised by the Hon. Mr._El'hott in the To_ron’r,o
teport, that the community is responsible; and I do not limit that to the city or
own. I think the community as & whole i8 responsible for the housing of its
people. T think that is one of the great responsibilities there 18, responsibility
ﬁerhaps not for providing for housing at all times, but to see that the kind of
d?uses. people live in are decent, clean and respectable, and the kind that Cana-
ian citizens should live in. That is the ground I start with, personally, 1 this
fnllllatter. I think it has been 2 community matter, the ma_tter\oﬁ housing, since
e early ages. In the little villages, when 2 parn was being puilt, people went
and helped their neighbours ab the bee—helped raise beams and put on the roof.

Each one in the town helped the other: Housing at the present time, however,
ﬁls some particular problems that are different; 1 do not know, whether Mr.
eaps will agree with me or not, put my idea 18 that in the question of housing

there is also something else that <hould be brought in there. There inevitably

comes in the question of the wages the workers are paid, the matter of unemploy-

ﬁl}ent where a man cannot earn & proper living, the matter of ir}tereslt rates and
e matter of the availability of mortgage money; and the question aiso, 11l some

of our provinces, of the moratorium anc its effect on the pe(_)ple. 1 5
I think, so far in your committee, you have been restricted to the question
; v strongly, and would urge

?lf slum clearance and slum housing. feel Very 4 b
pon you that in your work under the reference {hat has come down you,
You should not limit yourselves to slum clearance and slum housing and perhaps
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also to low cost housing which is another thing, but that you should be
concerned with ways of making available to industry and to the ordinary
individual, the opportunity of building a home, a house. I think that all
comes in under the question. I say that because after all housing, your shelter,
is one of the three principle physical, basic needs which consist of food, shelter
and clothing. I have these figures which came from one of the magazines,
showing that in 1919 to 1930, the average American family or consumer had in
its yearly expenditure: food, $813; housing, $540; wearing apparel, 348. I do
not give this as accurate, but as indicating three of the major expenses of
everybody’s household, as everyone knows.

Hon. Mr. Erviorr: Savings.

The Wrrness: I would like to urge that savings never comes in my budget.
I take it that this problem of housing should be considered from a strictly
Canadian standpoint. I believe that our conditions in regard to weather, in
regard to materials, in regard to our methods of financing and in regard to
our labour condition, are very definitely different from the experience over
in England, in Wales, in the Irish Free State, in Germany, in France or in
Italy. I think also that our limitations are broad, at least as compared with
the United States. I think we cannot take absolutely the experience of any
of these countries as being arbitrarily the thing for us in Canada. I illustrate
that in this way—you know far more about this than I do—by mentioning the
restriction of the banking laws on finance in regard to loans on real estate
as compared with that over in the United States; and the other thing, or one
of the things, that makes their housing schemes perhaps cheaper than ours,
that they do not sell the land, many of them, with the houses; that there is
a lease over a long period of years, which makes it that much cheaper in the
cost of the house, in a building scheme. The other point, of course is this,
that if in spite of the fact that in some parts of the country houses can be
built of much the same type as those in England, for most of us there has to
be a different, a stronger house that will resist the weather, stand up under
the strain, and serve the needs of the family. So I have said, strietly speaking
I think the divisions are slum clearance and replacement, of which you have
heard a great deal; low cost houses for low paid workers; renovation, repairs,
rebuilding present houses. I have with me two or three pamphlets from the
United States. There is table number 1 showing their housing renovation and
modernization, which I think is probably familiar to you, by which they made
money available. A person could go to the bank and borrow money, as you
know, and use it for the renovation or the improvement of his home, As I
understand the system, it was then supposed to be added on to his mortgage as
an indebtedness to be paid off over a period of years. I think that perhaps
very properly comes in. Then there is the question of new houses, financing,
location, material and methods—perhaps any of the questions of town planning,
all these other things that are of the utmost importance.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret

Q. I don’t want to interrupt, but I want to have my mind clear on one
point. You say there are three main divisions and then you have four items
under it. I suppose two and four are the same?—A. Two comes under four
to some extent. There should be really four divisions instead of three, unless
you make renovations as part of four, new houses. There might be four main
divisions instead of three. I did not intend, when T put this schedule in here,
to steal any data from Dr. Coats; but this is one of his bulletins from the
1931 census, as showing the present number of dwelling houses in Canada,
rural, urban, and the total; also the number of householders, and the materials
from which a lot of these houses, rural, urban and total, are built.

Mr. HanBury: T suggest that this information could be put in the report,
the information on this statement.

e e =

B s ¢ .
0 R L B s



HOUSING 5

The CHARMAN: Yes.
Mr. HaxBury: Then it will not be necessary to read them.
Submrli‘t}izd(?n’\m‘“‘m: We can place this whole memorandum in the report, as
See Appendix A
g The Wirness: As to the question of vacant houses, a survey last year in
had cgty of Toronto showed that there were less houses vacant there than there
A been in 1929. The survey showed 1,670 vacant houses.

By Mr. Heaps:
i Q. May I ask if those vacant houses that you refer to in your memoran-
butn were all fit for human habitation?—A. I would not like to say they were,
1 trhlI}k they were. I think I know what you want me to say, Mr. Heaps—
Wh Q. No, I don’t want you to say anything except what you k'no“.-'.——}}.
: }?t I would say is this, that the one that is unfit for human habitation is
Perhaps more likely to be occupied than one that is fit.
the Q. May I put it perhaps a little more clearly than I did? Were any of
5 Se hoimes that you referred to in your quotations condemned by the sanitary
uthorities?—A. As being vacant?
5 Q. Yes—A. T would not think so. The Real Estate Board here made a
‘lmllar survey, and they made no mention of anything of that sort.
Q. Who made this survey?—A. This one in Toronto?
I Q. Yes—A. Made by a group—or by the city assessment department.
.thlpk the city assessment department made the survey in Toronto. In this
Ity it was made by the Real Estate Board. :
“ Q. Usually and generally speaking, I would say the type of house that is
“‘;Cant is a very poor type, that a great many people will have to live in.—A.
ould that be true? e g
4 Q. Is that the general tendency?—A. Let me answer that in this way: I
as told not long ago by one who knows, that in this city the school population
of two or three schools had altered very much in the last year or two, that
here Were one or two schools that were almost going to be given up. Yet
0se schools to-day are filled and some other schools are not so well filled;
€cause as the people perhaps became poorer, got out of work and went on
relief, they had to seek quarters that were made ready for them in e poo
or less available districts, and those schools filled up and had to have additional
Classes this year. ;

Q. That is due perhaps to a depression condition. In normal times when
You have vacant houses in a city is it usually the type of house people do
10t care to live in?—A. Then, how would you explain slums; why do people
80 to live in slums? ;

Q. I suppose, of necessity ?—A. Exactly. Such places very quickly become

Inhabited by such people.

By Mr. Morand:

Q. Might I ask you, just for information;

Cens}ls do you know w}{lether a dwelling house is ’con‘sidered as a separate house;

T Instance, an apartment building might be occupied by a number of peopl_e,

E’gﬂd it be considered one dwelling?—A. I think they have that completely in
e.

in the statisties of the 1931

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:
Q. You mentioned that in 1933 there were

In 1927?—A. Yes. _
Q. Would that be due to the fact that rural populations have a tendeney

fewer vacant houses in Toronto



76 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

to flock to the city in order to get relief; that would be very much the condi- |

tion of things in Montreal I imagine?—A. That is partly true. Another condi-
tion might be that there has not been so muech building of houses in the last
few years, and you get caught up with people coming in and taking up houses.

Q. You mean, the population has increased but there has been little new
building?—A. The absence of new building possibly accounts in part for the
shortage. Another thing to be considered, however, is the many families who
are doubled up at the present time. As you know, many houses have two or
three families living in them in which normally there would be only one. To
my mind these are not necessarily slums at all, but they are overcrowded
conditions.

Mr. CavcaoN: They are inecipient slums.

The Wirness: As they get worse and worse they do become slums. There

are a great many houses to-day in which people are doubled up in order to
save the expense of rent; for instance, when a boy comes home from the States
or somewhere else and his wife and family live with the old man.

I would like to give you these figures as to representative costs, although
these also I cannot guarantee. The Chairman asked me if T had any data
on the cost of houses, more particularly the distribution of that cost in respect

to labour and material; for that after all is perhaps the most important issue

in this matter. I feel that if a housing program were instituted it would do
a great deal to start our industry again, it would give a great deal of work and
provide for the use of a good volume of material. I therefore give you the
following figures in relation to residential costs.

RESIDENTIAL COSTS

Trade % of Total Labour Materials
Bhscdllanetun . o s v L s Do 24.8 - 6.2
RO s 2 BN Eai i Ve D e R g 4 o ) 32.31 67.7
Papening .« 8 0% 0.5 61.5 38.5
PRITEERES o i o i a0 00 sl TN ke s 4.2 66.6 33.4
Plastering & Lathing.. .. .. .. .. 8.2 55.4 44 .6
S 51T GRS A A 00 SRR 10.1 24.7 75:3
Heatige il Vet v v b S e ¥l s 6.6 20.3 79.9
Mlsotmel Sty N Pl T SN N 4.5 36.0 64.0
CoReretifg o A7 9 TE Ay s AT e ) § ke 36.5 63.5
RAOR Rk o s A Aot o i sl 3.5 44 .0 56.0
Garpentey & Mk it o8 e vt s 27 .3 32.9 67.1
B SNERRONT Yt 5 i e At s L W 14.8 41.6 58.4
Excavating '& Grd. . o, vt A 1.3 98.3 1.5

1753 - MR AT DI SRR R RCIES S OO 100.

I do not know how far we can guarantee these figures. They are interesting
at any rate as showing the proportion of the total distributed under a variety of
pertinent headings. I think we are the worst industry in Canada when it comes
to keeping statistics. While I cannot guarantee these figures I do think that they
give a pretty fair picture of the cost of building houses. May I say this: house
building in Canada has been in a somewhat different category from a lot of other
construction in that a great deal of house building here has been done by the
speculative builder who builds a house to sell. It is not like in the old days when
a man built his own house. Some man comes along, or someone who has money

available for a mortgage, and the man who buys it finds it already there complete

and ready for occupation. It is usually sold on such a basis that it takes a long
time to pay for it, and there the buyer’s troubles perhaps begin. Not all
builders are like that; we have some very fine construction men in this country-
At the same time, this type of building is generally not done under the supervisio?

of an architect; it does receive more or less supervision from the building depart- J“

ment of the city—but they are built to sell, and there cost is relatively high and it
takes a long time for a man to get them clear. .
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By Mr. Heaps: '
Q. Before you proceed to tell us about the puilding of homes 1 would like to
know whether you have any informatien to give to the committee as to the
Sﬁmﬁlﬂd there is to-day in the various parts of the country, assuming you have
e information, for a certain type of home?—-A. How doyou mean?
b Q. Mr. Cauchon dealt with the question of low priced homes which would
e suitable for people earning low wages; has your organization made any investl-
%iaxflm;l to ascertain how many homes of this type aré really needed at the present
e?
Mr. Cavcuon: For the low wage earnet. i ;
The Wirness: When the National Construction Council reports here I tl}mk
you will find that they will have information on that. They sent out _questloq-
naires to some 20 different cities—and I have a copy of their questionnaire here if
you care to see it—and they have been trying to geb that information. That 18
the only thing I know of in that line which is available at the present time.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Have you got that with you?—A. 1 havent it with me, I have the
questionnaire. E

Q. But you have not the replies to it7—A. No, that ;s coming in the form of
a report to this committee.

The Cramrmax: The National Construction Council have asked to appear
befol:;}fhis S 5 g th i1l have informa
; e Wirness: W hev appear here 1 am sure they Wi ha -
tion as to the ;Je%x{)an\(} hg;r 11}11?3 wagf},) is what you have in mind the demands from
the people thelnselves’, or the demand as 1t appears 10 the social agencies who
are concerned with the matter—-which do-you mean?

By Mr. Heaps: ‘ i it

Q. I would say, from the agencies who have made investigations from he
Biktrel wonial standpointl-—ArT think you could take their views &% to t %
demand as your guide at the present time with respect to the need of low cOSY
houses, for the type of house that will enable the low paid worker todget prot;/):r
housing at a fair proportion of his income. 1 don't want to get eﬁp Y:}? tr],:
but T take it that it is that type of housing which has to be assisted. By tha 1
mean, that if a man can afford to pay only $10 in the form of rent and thehnorma

rental for the type of house he needs is $20; it has to come from somewhere.

. Q. I think first we had better find out what the demand 18, then yﬁa ]san g0
mto these other questions?——A. That is coming 11 the report which will be pre=
sented from Toronto.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

3 Q. Just before you 89 on: at thg t? ofﬁ pig&em 2

- show “residential costs; in respect to the s , ; e
labour 24-8 per cent and materials 75-2 per cent?—A. Thatdls thte 'allrsusvg?':h
laneous ” item: if these costs are divided up as to labour an fmakerlll oty
respect to the several things entering into the construction © a house
roofing to excavation and ground. i :

‘ Q. Do you ﬁglure that material is all material, O does that %nlclgde as v:e'l};
some part of labour separate from the construction of the h(im(i ; tel me prtlt it
this way, I think this will cover my whole questlon:'what. 1; tt 1le 0 3 p:(l)'gi ctg—gf
of labour that enters into the cost of building, starting wit 1d1e ra -pthat ks
A. From the best survey We have been able to make it wou {i»ppeal sk
80 to 82 per cent is the total amount of labour involved 1 2 house. »
of courge, with the type of house. a2

Q. Yes?—A. We are confident from what we

3 of your memorandum you
that table you show,

e established that the
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percentage of labour—that is, going back to the factory, the gravel pit, the
mine and the stump—is from 80 to 82 per cent. Some say that 85 per cent of
the cost really represents labour.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. What would be the other 15 to 20 per cent?—A. Various charges go in
there; there is a small profit, there is supervision and overhead—different things—

By Mr. White:

Q. Does that include the cost of the property?—A. No, that does not
include the cost of the property.

Q. That is what I wanted to get at?—A. It would be difficult to split up
that 80 per cent, it would depend upon conditions altogether.

Q. Then, there is another question I would like to ask: is that amount of
82 or 85 per cent, as the case may be, the actual labour used to build or does
it include the labour involved in the preparation of the material for instance?—
A. Tt includes everything.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Then, that leaves about 18 per cent for profit, for materials—that is just
for materials apart from labour— —A. Outside of lahour.

Q. Do I understand that 18 per cent covers both the profits and the cost of

the raw material?>—A. Outside of the labour cost; that is what is estimated, it
is very difficult to get.

Q. Just checking your table on residential costs: apart from excavation
and drainage I find nothing here on labour higher than 66-6 per cent, and quite
a bit of it down as low as 24, 20 and 32 per cent; how do you explain that?—A. As
I understand it, Mr. Elliott, this is just the labour on the job, not the labour
back in the factory.

Q. It does not include the labour that goes into the preparation of the
material up to the time it arrives on the ground?—A. No, sir. This statement
as I understand it is just with respect to the building of the residence itself.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. In any event, the land is not included?—A. No.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. When the houses are built will the people living in them rent or buy
on a long term basis; with respect to the housing scheme which is in your mind,
what would be your opinion?—A. You mean, in any housing scheme that might
come up do I favour ownership or rental?

Q. Yes—A. I think you should be prepared for both, I do not think any
one scheme should be inflicted on the country at large.

Q. You think a man should be able either to buy or to rent?—A. Yes.

Q. Until he paid for it a man could not really be said to own it, he could
not say it was his property under such conditions?—A. They find that arrange-
ment very satisfactory over in England; there may be exceptions, but speaking
generally it is very satisfactory.

Q. I would think that was a weakness?—A. Conditions are different here,
when a man buys a house he really buys a mortgage and he really does not own
the property until that is paid off.

Mr. Moranp: He is really a tenant on suffrage.

The Wirness: He is really a tenant on suffrage, exactly.

I think a question was asked as to the total construction in Canada. I
have nothing very definite, and I think Dr. Coats when he comes before you
will have more complete figures; but in a general way I might indicate that
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the tota] construction in Canada for 1934 was approximately $126,000,000;
In 1929 it was $580,000,000; and in 1912, which perha.ps may really represent
much more than 1929 due to the difference in values, it was $470,000,000.

By Mr. Morand. ;

Q. Is that dwelling houses only?—A. That is all construction, that would
Jean the total of the construction industry. From this you can see how_' we
ave bheen affected by changing conditions. Raw materials are now listed
at 82 a5 against the peak in 1929 of 144; taking the year 1926 as equalling 100.
0 this connection I would suggest, sir, that you should have a department
of laboyr representatives appear before your committee. I would suggest
Mr. Boulton, who is the actuary for the department and who knows these
gs very well. Labour rates, taking 1913 as 100 are placed at 147, as
fOMpared with 171 in 1926. T should like to emphasize one of the publications
that You gentlemen publish called the Labour Gazette. In that ‘publication
Ppears g very significant schedule month by month, giving the unemployment
N trade unions. I looked up under the building and construction column,
for December, 1934. Tt showed that in 1920 these unions reported only three
0 seven per cent out of work, and in 1926 seven to eight per cent.‘ In 1933
the figure of unemployed in their ranks rose to 71 per cent of the skilled men.
That s my reason for being here. The carpenters and bricklayers and men
of that sort, T believe, are the men who need the work, and they will be getting
It this Summer under your works program to some extent here. 1If you
Maugurate a housing program it will give these men a chance to build homes

tgr t]helnselves and neighbours, and will thereby reduce the number right down
e list,

5 By Hon. Morand Sl hét: 4hip T ped paih
& Hive : roughly, what the total number this S
ould he of ‘?—yf(\)u Iaﬁgvédﬁ?)t. ’Igha?cr would vary with the year, too. I 1m3gl§:
this Percentage in 1934 would be quite different from 1929, because no dT(ﬁl
they have lost very considerably in their membership in the five years. elz
membership is very considerably down and of course naturally they do nod
tell yoy them, but no doubt they are down just as our own ranks are down an
Other Organizations. That is a significant figure. About 380,000 workers were
SUpposed o be engaged in the construction industry in 1929.

By Mr. McIntosh ’ ith 19347—

Q. How does the construction figure this year compare wi it Owvitk

M Construction o far—it depends upon what you are comparmgt :
. McIntosh, Iast year’s figures, I think, are just over 30 per cent. :

By My, Heaps : i

of gQ- Inclusive of government building?EA. No. Last year was not inclusive

Overnment work. You have got the figure— : TRt

Q. If there was no government building, how much private bu11(tilngc feﬁlﬁllg
® 8oing on?—A. Well, there is the MacLean’s building report s
(eXhlbiting)_ it—A. It gives
th Q. Perhaps if you have that figure handy you may read lé‘_ da d§rin

@ Construction contract for each of the nine provinces in ape; t tg

feerary, 1935, Ontario, Quebee, and so on. The potal r_esxdentla? contracts
or the Ominion were 140,700—you want a comparison vx_rlth fWhatt g ek
1935 % 1934—A. With 1934, The contemplated construction for ths in 1934
it 22> 107 the whole of Canada, $53,706,200. For the same two months in 1934,
Was $62,249,900, a little less.

By Mr. McIntosh
A Q. On g two months’ basis the total for the year would be 3300’000’090?_
O 1s, Mr., MclIntosh, it would come up to the average for the past twenty
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years. We have averaged between $250,000,000 and $300,000,000 for the past ‘
twenty years, and if you are familiar with the plan—I think I eircularized

you also, Mr. Heaps—of Mr. Black, published a year or so ago, you will see
he worked it out in a very interesting way as to the fluctuations up and down,

and that they could be ironed out by some form of control over the industry, -

by which it would not rise so high as it does some years, and the next year go
right to the depth or dumps; but we average between $200,000,000 and
$300,000,000 over the years.

Q. You do not think the new Central Bank would control that?—A. Oh,
I am not a banker. I do not know anything about that, sir; I am only a
pick and shovel man on the job.

Mr. Gray: One of the first honest men who has come before the committee.

The Wrirness: The Bank of Nova Scotia has published in its last monthly
. review, a very good article, which I should like to mention here because it
has some of those things I have mentioned at the top of page three. I think
perhaps you are familiar with it. The table is headed, “Materials for estimating
the ‘Normal’ demand for residential construction,” and then the table is
divided up into sub headings: residential construction contracts valued millions;
D.B.S. Index of the Cost of Construction (Base Period January 1935 = 100) ;
residential construction contracts in dollars of 1935 (millions); population of

Canada annual estimates (millions) ; residential construction contracts in dollars

of 1935 (per person). Then they have a total for eleven years, $1,143,800,000.
This brings us down to 1931. Then they give us the annual average, and that
is $104,000,000. To show you how that is arrived at, or rather to show you
how that has dropped, 1932 is given at $28,900,000, 1933, $23,900,000, and
1934, $30,600,000, in residential construction. They also show what they call
“A Detailed Estimate of the ¢ Blacklog’ of Residential Construction.” 1 am
not working for the Bank of Nova Scotia, but I should like to leave a couple
of these copies with you. .

The CHARMAN: Gentlemen, Mr. Church suggests that we put the table
in our record. I think that will be quite all right.

The Wirness: It is a table that speaks for itself.
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

TasLe I.—MATERIALS FOR EsTiMATING THE ‘‘NORMAL” DeMAND For RESmENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

b

1 2. 3. 4. 5.
Residential |D.B.S. Index | Residential | Population | Residential
Construction | of the Cost of| Construction | of Canada | Construction
—_— Contracts | Construction | Contracts in Annual Contracts in
(Value in (Base Period| Dollarsof1935] Estimate |Dollarsof 1935
Millions) [Jan.1935=100)| (Millions) (Millions) | (Per Person)
$ 76-7 138-3 |[$ 55-5 8:79 |$ 6-32
104-2 124-7 83-6 8-92 9-37
97-6 128-2 76-1 9-01 8-45
91-2 124-6 73:2 9-14 8-01.
96-5 121-8 792 9-29 8-52
109-6 120-0 91-3 9-45 9-66
124-9 119-2 104-8 9-64 10-88
139-2 121-6 114-5 9-84 11-64
128-9 1265 101-9 10-03 10-16
93-3 123-2 75-7 10-21 7-42
81-7 115-4 70-8 10-38 6-82
ey
Total for eleven years..... $ L VBB -8 Nt ot Q2046 s AT = ] $ 97-26
Annual average... ........ 1107211 T SR S B $ Sl Ve LT $ 8-84
b R S L e 28-9 106-7 271 10-51 2-58
LS e MR R S 23-9 100-6 23-8 10-67 2:23
L P T b e ) 30-6 100-8 30-4 10-80 2-81
SR

Al
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TasLe IT.—4 )
II.—A Deramep Estivate oF THE ‘Backrog” oF RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

([ ¥ 3. 4, 5.
}?sglmated Actual Estimated | Adjustment Estimated
I\jorrual” Value of “Backlog” of | to the Scale “Backlog”’
NG Value'of Residential | Residential of Building | in terms of
Resldential Construction | Construction Costs Ruling | 1935 Costs
Construction in Jan., 1935

(Millions) (Millions) (Millions) (Millions)

1932 100-0
........................ $ 99-1 |8 28-9 |8 70-2 $ 65-8

106-7

1933, . 100-0
....................... 94-8 23-9 70-9 — 70-5

100-6

1934 100-0
....................... 96-2 306 65-6 s e 65-1

X ¥ 100-8
renmmiated “Baoklop! i Sl hin oot s eenbad e e <8 Al Pafice sidd ERRREE RS $ 201-4

I suppose the next conclusion in the report, which is strictly my own,

mj .
1ght be regarded as controversial.

zts?ate should not be a competitor with industry, but th
: 1s proposed, the regular channels, the natural channels,

We have always taken the ground that
at in any method
should be used

1 .
0 every possible way; that the state should not go into a program of housing

on its ; ek
mlz Ifﬂ’b_ovﬁ’n, but if possible it should encourage the people who
ent in industry, whether it is a question of unemployment o

Is the ground that we take very strongly.

By Mr. Heaps:

have an invest-
r housing. That

Q. You would not suggest it should not provide the funds, would you?—A.

I : :
have no suggestion right here, Mr. Heaps.

ez‘i}; Ctase. For slum clearance—this is strickly my own ide
selves o come, perhaps, from the state, because those peop
Rot o and the costs are too high to get in on the problem. OI
own haﬂt to dodge the issue at all. I think probably every Cl

ands the power to shut up these buildings, to close them rig
1 think your public health departments should be
nd civie health de-

hut up a lot of the

the Public Health Act.

¢ : ;
p(;2§UIt3d in that respect, and to act with the provincial a
2 Umments._ I think if we had the nerve to do it, we could s
o) but if you do, and you are not ready to place the peopl

By Mr. White:

Q. The Board of Health has that power in every cit

Power,
By Mr. Heaps:

the Q. I am coming to the question of private enterpri
perhcaplt-al for any housing scheme?—A. 1 say not for
aps the low cost houses.

may .

th?gbe' I fchlnk it should be assisted by the government.

oy one thing: we must not forget that we are on the eve
nts in housing, and the method of building new houses.

W 3
sl?ée at Chicago saw the houses that were there know
es I have in my office, I would show you SOTA® 0

n " s
W material and the new buildings are being developed in

in ;
the States. This will come up to Canada in due time.

1 think the thing is different in
a—your funds would
le cannot help them-

Of course, I do

ty has in 1ts
ht up under

e, where are you?

y?—A. It has that

se. Would you provide
the slum clearance, and
I think perhaps it should provide some of it,
But I want to say
of very important
Those of you who
that. If I had a few
f the ways in which this
the laboratories down
1 think the National
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Bureau of Research could be endowed and empowered to investigate the different
materials and see what is the best way to more cheaply build houses that we |
have to build for people in this country, a low cost house for the low paid
worker. What I mean is this: you know the type of houses that are built in
Canada, the majority of them are built of wood, and you know what fire traps
most of them are. You hear every day of people being burnt to death in this
country.

Q. Not in the cities?—A. I am not speaking of the cities; 1 am speaking of
the country as a whole; but there are a lot in the cities too.

Q. Wooden houses are well built. I know, because I have lived in one
for many years myself—A. They can be well built, yes, but you would not
live in the type of house I speak of.

* Q. Yes, I lived in one for many years.—A. Well, there are a lot of houses
just tar paper over pieces of wood.

By Mr. Hanbury: : :

Q. Don’t blame the wood—A. I don’t blame the wood, no sir. What I
am saying, Mr. Chairman, is this. Wood houses to-day can be so built and
so insulated that they are not a fire hazard in any particular in the way they
are to-day. Houses to-day can be built very cheaply and insulated with rock
wool, or some other insulation materials that have been developed, and which
reduces the cost of heating, so that you do not have to overheat your fires
in the wintertime, and you thereby have cool houses in the summer, and well
heated houses in the winter. You have also this vey fine pamphlet put out by
one of your own men showing the way in which these new homes can be satis-
factorily constructed.

Q. Read the name into the record.—A. It is published by Mr. G. D.
Mallory of the National Development Bureau.

Q. What is the name of the publication?—A. The Insulation of New and
Old Houses. :

Q. I wish to understand you perfectly. Are you suggesting that the use
of wood should be displaced as much as possible by other materials?—A. No,
I am not. I am saying though, that there is a field—

Q. That is the impression you are giving—A. I do not want to
give that impression. I am very glad you corrected me. There is a field
for wood and steel. They are building houses of glass now, and building
them of sheets of steel, building them of masonite material, and the whole wall
will be just run up in one great sheet, and the walls will be filled in with insulat-
ing material. Houses in a few years will be built of new materials, and it will
be like a new car. It will reduce the cost. It will be on a mass production
basis, though.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Can you state approximately the reduction in cost that will likely follow
that?—A. We cannot tell you because it is a matter of experiment yet. In any
housing scheme you have to consider, just as in Lindenlea, as an example, how
other housing in the city would change and come around in the next few years.
If they had considered that in Lindenlea, they might not have done their work
the way they did. In any housing scheme, the purpose would be to have low
cost housing, and T think some government aid ought to be given to the man
’gh% cannot do it himself. I think Mr. Marsh has a statement that bears on

hat.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Just before you leave government assistance, I should like to ask you

if you are referring now to municipal, provineial or federal?—A. I am speaking
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%0 & federal committee. I was thinking perhaps of a plan you gentlemen might

ave in mind. I was hoping that in some way some one might be able to bring
% you—I do not know about it myself—the experience of the building societies
Il some places, not in this country, but in other countries where work has

een done in that way. I don’t know—I have no such scheme as to how the
assistance would be given. I think I would be opposed to just giving a straight
Subsidy, but if that were the way you were doing it, if for nothing else, but to
help the health of your people—

By Hon. Mr. Morand.:

Q. How about the unemployed?—A. And the unemployed. Then you are
doing a good service.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Would you be in favour of providing funds at one or two per cent, credit
at cost?—A. Now you are coming into the low cost housing—
Q. But generally?—A. Coming to the other type of housing, a lot of us would
like to build houses to-day and we are up against several things. ,In this
Province and in other provinces we are up against the moratorium, which has
€en a good thing. If there had not been a moratorium I would have lost my
Own _house. It has been a good thing for us, but it is just a question of how
long it js going to be a good thing.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. You are having it react against you now?—A. And a good many people
BOw. Tt is holding back and damming up the supply of mortgage money.

By Mr. Gray:
Q. And will continue to do so.—A. And will continue to do so.

By Hon. Mr. Morand.:

Q. Where is that money going?—A. You can tell me sir.

Q. Is it not going into government bonds?—A. People were educated fol-
low}ng the war, I take it, instead of putting their money into mortgages, to put
“leir money into government bonds and other bonds, where they got a high
Interest, and did not have to look after rents, did not have to pay taxes or any-

Ing else, and in the last couple of years, so far as I am concerned, it has been

almost impossible to get mortgages.

Q. Let us carry that a step further—A. Yes. ] PR

Q. Let us carry that a bit futher. If the loan companies, the life msulanccé
Companies and so on have now got to put their money In governmept .loans g
& much lower rate of interest than they were getting on mortgages will it pot (E
Possible in turn for the government to provide money at a _much cheaper rate o
Wterest to these building concerns, and would we not be in as good a position
3 before?—A. It would be a good plan if the government had some Supervision
and called these loan companies here and asked them for information.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. If the Bank of Canada comes into existence, why cannot we secure our
PWn credits at 1 per cent or 13 per cent?—A. I have a very interesting scheme
glerst that was presented by an architect in Toronto which takes in that entire

atter,

B i) is a scheme worked out by
Q. T do not want to go into it now.—A. That 1s a sche K 3

Which the Bank of Canada issues bonds and debentures and has a sgelf liquidating
and gelf financing scheme. I cannot understand it myself.
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Q. We have to go to the loan companies for credit, and we might as well
issue our own credit and be through with it?—A. If you would like to put that
on record, I think the man would probably be down to see you about it. It has
been filed with the commission already. That is the scheme. I will be pleased
to let you see a copy. I cannot understand it.

Q. I am not a banker like yourself?—A. I am not a banker; I am a labour
man on the employers’ side.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. You have given some attention to the plans that have been adopted in
other countries for housing schemes, have you not?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. From your knowledge of them, just briefly would you indicate to the
committee what in your knowledge of Canadian conditions you think would
be a feasible scheme here? 1 do not say it might be adopted, but we would
be glad to have your information?—A. Mr. Elliott, I would say that for the
private individual who wants to have a new house his need at present is to
have his mortgage—to have money available to him at low interest rates.

Mr. HanBury: Why at low interest rates?

Mr. Heaps: Why not?

The Witxess: I suppose I should qualify that.

Mr. HanBURY: Yes.

The Wirxess: If the rates are generally lower—the income on money and
other things—I would think a lower rate than what we are paying might be
advisable. I am paying 7 per cent for my house. A friend of mine who is
going to build a house in Toronto—

By Mr. Howard: \

Q. Have you asked for a reduction in your interest rate of 7 per cent?—
A. I have not yet, but I intend to.

Q. I asked the question for information. I made a request to the Trust
companies for a reduction from 7 per cent to 5 per cent and they turned it
down cold. I am going to file it before the committee?—A. They should have
given you 64 per cent, probably. Of course, they consider the rest too.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Can you tell me what objection there is to providing funds at cost—
at 14 per cent or 2 per cent—out of the cost of looking after the investments
by the government?—A. Perhaps people who are wanting a house are willing
to pay a certain rate. For your slum clearance, for your low cost housing
possibly you can provide for that on whatever rate may be established just
above the cost of the money to the government. For ordinary individuals
building houses the thing would have to be kept in line with rates on other
things.

Mr. HaxBury: Sound economy.

The Wirxess: Whatever it is

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. You think the government, or whoever provides the money, should not
interfere with existing mortgage companies?—A. I do not say that. ‘

Q. Is that your idea?—A. No. My idea plainly is that the government,
while not taking over any of these things, should very distinctly supervise the
way in which interest is charged on mortgages and should call these people
to say why they have not had mortgage money available so that they can
furnsh it to a man who wants to build a house.
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By Mr. Mclntosh:
Q. Your argument is for a fair® rate of interest?—A. For freer mortgage
money, and whatever may be established as a fair rate of interest.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. What is a fair rate of interest?—A. I do not know.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott: Y ol
Q. Perhaps you can tell what they loaned out to housmg_ commissions at
In England?—A. T have not what they loaned to them over in Great Britain
with me. '
Mr. Caucron: Between 3% and 3% per cent.

By Mr. McIntosh.: )

Q. When you get down helow 3% per cent and 3 per cent it is not a fair
rate of interest?—A. Their conditions are different from ours. I think they
get their money for 2} per cent and loan it_for 34 per cent. :

Mr. Caucnon: The British government has been borrowing as low as 3
per cent.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. They have been loaning on farm loans at 33 per cent?—A. Yes. .

Q. And they have been loaning on the other—there seems to be a differ-
ence—to the different housing commissions at & very little lower than 3 per
cent?—A. As you noticed they have more residence bmldmg‘ OVCF.thel’e done
by private enterprise than by the assisted schemes, and that is desirable.

By Mr. Heaps: . B
Q. Do they subsidize homes?—A. What do you mean by subsidize? |
Q. The government gave subsidies to the private contractors, did ﬁle}é
Dot?—A. They make money available to the contractors, I think, up toba ou
per cent of the total cost, and he puts up 20 per cent. There have been a
Bumber of methods over there. : s
l Q. The Imperial government gives those private contractors a subsidy :
€ach building?—A. T think so. :
B s You gare opposed to the subsidy, are you?—A. Opposed to it? Not
or the low cost housing. :
Q. But for the hous%ng that is not of a low cost?—A. For the ordmai*y llmlglllllsé
ing T think it should stand on its own feet. I think if I want a house I s
Pay for it.

By Mr. Stanley: : one group
. Q. You are making a distinct dividing line between two grog%i,woa cegrt;ain
'8 comprised of a group of people, the workmen, whose wages aret e1 dhleding o
Standard and who cannot, afford to pay sufficient to carry the ag lrlnail < and that
ouse that they should be living in according to the size of thel;r a din};;‘ Mol
8roup must be provided for in some way that cannot be met ytOI‘ 3 dgrctor
fent methods by an ordinary investment company?—A. theucft’ bonies. e
Q. The other group comprises those who want g anfl I‘there is a third
Who can afford to pay for what they get?—A. Yes, sir. An t, a plague spot
group—the slum clearance, the removal of the slum as a sore spot, a plagu

0 the community.

By Mr. Hanbury : ;
. : . to form an estimate
Q. Have you any information that would enable you
a3 to the minimum ec};nomic number of houses that would get the benefit of the

95121—3
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lowest cost of construction—that is, whether the number would be fifty houses
or one hundred houses or two hundred heuses?—A. I think, as I %aid, you will
find that in the report of the National Construction Council which is coming to
you. I do not think I can say definitely. For instance, I do not know at this
moment how many unemployed people there are in Canada, neither do I know
how many houses are needed at the present time by any one class. Possibly that
might be one of the off-shoots of this committee—to have an intelligent and
thorough survey made of conditions. I think that no scheme of any sort should
be entered into in the light of past experience until a most thorough and intelli-
gent,—a fast and quick survey—-a thorough and intelligent survey of the actual
needs is made, perhaps along different lines from what I have said, but, at least,
along these three lines.

Q. I do not think you understood my question. My question has to do with
the construction end of it. In order to get the cost down as low as possible, a
certain number of houses would become an economic unit?—A. By any housing
scheme.

Q. Yes. The mass production of housing, where you get it down to a sound
economic basis whether that would be 50 or 100 or 150 or 500 houses for, say, one
contracting firm or one housing firm to take over and construct?—A. I am
afraid there is a lack of information on that. The experience so far, unfor-
. tunately, has been that the large contracting firm when it goes into house build-
ing has almost inevitably lost money. I think that is true with the large concerns
going into housing schemes—they lose money, strangley enough. I take, for
example, a big firm in Montreal. I will not give the name. They have done
some of the biggest work in this country and on some they have made a profit,
but when they went to building high-cost houses—$40,000, $50,000, $20,000 or
$25,000—houses in one of the best parts of the city, they lost, and I suppose they
are still losing.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Could you give us a picture of the relative costs of construction in the
last few years. I thought perhaps, you would have a schedule?—A. It is on
this schedule of the Bank of Nova Scotia.

Q. “In 1929 when the industry was at its peak, construction supported one-
eighth of the entire population of Canada giving employment to a total of about
380,000 workers.” - I see the cost of construction in 1929, with January, 1935
equalling 100, was 126-5?—A. I think that is right.

Q. In 1931 it was 115:4 and in 1932 it was 106-7. Can you tell me what
it was for the last couple of years?>—A. The materials of building construction
for the entire construction? ;e

Q. That is cost of construction—total cost of construction—I take it?—A.
I have not that information in front of me just now.

. Q. If you have not it available, perhaps you would not mind handing it to
the chairman—that is for 1933 and 1934 as far as you have it?—A. All the cost
of construction? ;

Q. Yes., That is with 100 as a basis, either on the 1st of January, 1935—

Mr. Hraps: On page 3 you have something.

Hon. Mr. Evviorr: It does nat cover it.

Mr. Heaps: Yes. On page 3.

The Wrrness: Yes. I have this. The question was asked as to the cost of

construction as a whole.

Hon. Mr. Ervtiort: Does that refer to 19347

Mr. Heaprs: 1934.

The Wrrness: 1934. The only figures available at the present time for
1935 are for the two months of January and February. Only Maclean’s reports
are available for the two months of January and February at present.
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 Mr. Heaps: With regard to these figures here 00 page 3 you say, “material
prices (1926 equals 100) ‘are now 82 as against peak in 1920 of 1447
The WrrNess: January, 1935. In conclusion, gir, 1 have taken the liberty
of making a couple of personal suggestions. Whether this work might be
carried on by an investigating commission, or & conference With the provinces
and cities; or a housing commission for cupervision of new enterprises, loans, etc.
perh.aps being appointed for a term of years with a proper otaff, and having
architects, engineers, contractors, et ete., either in consultative or active
capacity. Financial arrangements. Lower rates of interest. The making avail-
able of mortgage money through the regular public channels.

_The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Reilly, with regard to those reports concerning the
United States, could you let us have them, and We will file them with the cler

I case anyone wants to look at them?
The Wirness: Which reports are those? :
The Caammax: The three small reports from the United States on housing.
¢ The Wirness: Yes. I might say these are in connection with the renovation
of houses, their table No. 1.
The Crmammax: Leave those with the clerk.
The Wirxess: If it has not been filed with you already, 1 would like to file
aé('()py of a paper on housing given at our recent convention by Mr. Bohn of
leveland. There is some very interesting information in this. There 1S a paper
oy Mzr. Bohn of Cleveland. There is a speech by the Prime Minister on housing
Policies—program and housing policy. There are also some very interesting
notes that came in incidentalh} from Doctor Kahn, who had been m Germany
‘ﬁnd who is now in the United States, 8 man who knows more, 1 think, about
ousing than anyone I ever heard of, in his OWD way.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. What was the name ?—A. K-a-h-n; & man who was a financial man 10
ermany previous to the crash, who had to do with one of those large housing

nterprises in one of the prmcxpal cities, and 18 over here at this present time.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:
N Where is he now?—A. He is in Chicago, and he can be rpached through
Or.‘ rnest J. Bohn who i8 president of the National Assocmtmn of Housing
.lsfﬁ}(ll1als in the United States, at Cleveland, Ohio. This paper‘of
eaded  Assisted Housing Policies;” and he goes through, in & V )
Way, ways in which a pumber of United States cities have handled this question

of housing, and the assistance. 1 would like t0 leave that with you.

Mr. Cav i ] . der to complete the record that'Mr.
Cavemon: Might 1 interject in order 10 p i p’roposmon

Kahn 5

was Mayor of Frankfort 1 Germany, and he r}mnaged a o
flJf 15,000 houses. Mr. Reilly is quite right. He ig one of the best aut}l:oiltxes
0‘} the world, and he was pub out of Germany pecause they discovered that one
hllsvlgl‘andmothers was a Jewess. B b U 2
r. Hansury: Mr. Chairman there 1s one pon 1a 1ink i
ably have to clear up before We conclude, and T just want to get it on }‘900f1(_i so
at it can be taken into consideration. As 1 und_erstand it, the mumclp% ities
aove no authority to expropriate property where it may be }1081}‘ﬂb116 to do Sé)
D clearing up slums. 1 think we chould have some information 10 that regard,
atricauSe they may be required to procure quthority to cxproprlate property 11

eas where they wish to clear up slums : 3 :
The Cmamman: Where would we get information of that kind, from the

Justi
Sgtlce department?
51213} :
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Hon. Mr. Moranp: Every province has one.

Mr. HaxBury: Every province. I think we may be required to make some
recommendation regarding the clearing up of slums, and we may wish to make
some suggestion to them to procure legislation in these various cities, particularly,
to enable them to do that. They are really clearing up a slum.

The Wirness: May I put on record, before I leave, the fact that at the
present time, in addition to the housing report in Toronto, that excellent report
of the Lieutenant-Governor, you have also heard of the report that has come,
in Montreal, from Professor Nobbs. There are also a couple of reports from
a committee in Winnipeg that have done splendid work out there in investiga-
tion. There is also a report of a housing commission in Halifax which, if it
has not been obtained, should be obtained for this committee. Those are the
four that I know of, apart from individual efforts that have been made, at the
present time.

The Cualrman: Gentlemen, it is our hope to have either Governor Bruce
or some members of his commission down here next Tuesday; next Thursday
Dr. Coats is to give us all the information he can. But after that I think we
shall probably have to obtain permission to sit in the afternoon and evening;
because if we have any witnesses from any distance, we would have to hold
them over too long if we should not get all we wanted in one day, and had to
hold them here over night. ;

Mr. Stancey: I think we should have that permission anyway, and we
could use it at our discretion.

Mr. HansBury: I will second your motion.

The CuarMAN: The motion is to ask the House for leave to sit while it
is in session. What is your pleasure?

Carried.

Mr. CavcHoON: May I interject a word in answer to Mr. Hanbury? That is
one of the things that was brought up by Mr. Nobbs, the necessity of getting
legislation from the province in such cases as you mention. There is a great
lack of proper legislation. I had the pleasure of drafting, with Professor Nobbs,
a tentative town planning and zoning by-law for the province of Quebeec, which
we presented to the premier and the authorities, but they have never seen fit
to adopt it. I collaborated on the physical end, and Armand Mathieu and
Miss Dorothy Hennekker contributed their quota on the legal side, but it has
never been acted on since. May 1 file with the committee a couple of copies
of the zoning by-law which I drafted some years ago with the collaboration
of my assistant Mr. G. M. Kitchen, and one that would be a very great help to
a city such as Ottawa. That was a zoning by-law that was drawn up for the
Dominion. I tried to get it adopted by the city of Ottawa, but could not do
it. We also had the invaluable collaboration of F. B. Proctor, City Solicitor,

Mr. Howarp: Mr. Cauchon suggests now that the health officer has the
right to condemn property that is unfit to be lived in.

i Mr. CaucHON: Yes.
Mr. Howarp: Then the municipal tax rate would be taxing against property

which was non-producing, which would force the proprietor to either do some-

thing or sell it at the present time,

i Mr. Cavcnon: Or pull it down. Our trouble at the present moment is
that the medical officer of health has powers which are not as great as those

in England. He may condemn a house as unfit for habitation when it is abso-

lutely unfit, but he cannot condemn that house if it happens to be a little
bit damp. That is the trouble.
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e Mr. Haxsury: The point I had in mind was that you might have a block
pocre there were a dozen houses that might be condemned, and you might
‘Saﬁ’e tWo in that block that could not be condemned, and you want to have a
“heme for the whole block, and have to have power to expropriate.
’bl Mr. Cavenon: We would have to have power like in England. 1If in a
Block there is g house which is condemned, the man whose house it is gets
'Ifi}:'alue of the land, nothing on the house. A condemned house is not a house.
‘ fre are a few people in the block with perfectly good houses, they have got
Pay the ordinary value of land and house on expropriation.
i’th The Wrrygss: May I say also that the Chairman has eleven volumes of
‘\‘? report of the president’s commission in the United States—President Hoover
0 his reading room.

' The CuamrMAN: I am reading the titles. We will now adjourn.

'1 The committee adjourned at 12.40 P.M. to meet again on Tuesday, March
12, at 10.30 a.m,
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APPENDIX A
(Filed by Mr. J. Clark Reilly)

A Housing Prograym ¥or CANADA

In the Fall of 1919, a National Industrial Conference met in Ottawa, com-
posed of representatives of Federal and Provincial Governments and repre-
sentative employers and Labour men, At the final session, the last Resolution
of the Conference was unanimously carried, as follows:—

Your Committee has considered section 69 of the Report of the Royal

Commission on Industrial Relations, with reference to “ Insufficient and
Poor Housing " and begs to endorse the Resolution offered to the Con-
ference, as follows:—

That this Conference commends the attention of the Dominion and

Provineial Governments in their united efforts to improve housing con-
ditions and to provide facilities for the proper and satisfactory housing
of our people, and recommends increased co-operation of, and investi-
gation by, the Dominion and Provincial Governments to find a satis-
factory solution of this problem.

I believe that in 1919 the Federal Government made available to muni-
cipalities, through the Provinces, a maximum of twenty-five million dollars
($25,000,000), to be drawn on as loans to assist housing construction. In the
following five years, it is stated that $9,400,000 of this sum was borrowed in
Ontario and $7,400,000 in Quebec. and throughout Canada some 6,250 houses
were built, housing about 32,000 persons. (Marsh.)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

HousiNG—ONE oF GREATEST NATIONAL PROBLEMS

Early History, individual and community.

Causes include—wages, unemployment, interest rates, mortgage money,
moratoriums, ete.
One of three basic needs:—

(1) Food.

(2) Shelter.

(3) Clothing.

Average American consumer expenditures (1919 to 1930) includes,
Food, $813; Housing, $540; Wearing apparel, $348; Transportation,
$385; Personal, $305; Health, $102; Recreation, $124; Savings, $293.

Problem should be considered from strictly Canadian standpoint.

Differences between conditions in Great Britain and United States—
Banking Laws, Lease-hold of T.and, ete.

TarREE MaiNn DiIvisioNs

Slum Clearance and Replacement.

Low Cost Houses for Low Paid Workers.

Renovation, Repairs, Rebuilding Present Houses.
New Houses, Financing, Location, Material, Methods.
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Staristics (1931 CeExsus)

Rural Urban Total

Bopulataeniey: g s n i Ly 4792135 5.570,698 10,362.833
Dwelling Houses.. .. .. .. 1.002.367 981.889 1,984,286
Householders. . .. W 1,019,780 1,246,944 2,266,724
Matérials—
o e Rl e B e 92,740 366,906 459,646
EXC0e I Rt BT e e 11,884 31,391
L ST I e SRS L 867.858 1,393,895
BRCED, Sl s T N i 17.596 76,105
Cement ' Brick. o o o8 5,946 14,088
R et A, Al N 4,735 5,701
NoE GReen s LA L 1,728 3.460

WOLATS £ 58 Sore -t s gab 1,002,397 981,889 1,984,286

¢ In S.ept(rmber, 1933, a survey in Toronto showed only 1,670 vacant houses
4 that time. In 1932 there were 2,205; 1929, 3,885: 1928, 4,992; 1927, 6,054.
¢ _Survgv by Assessment Department there showed between 7,500 and 10,000
aMilies “ doubled up.”
5 EIII Great Britain, between 1919 and 1934, 2,330,000 dwellings were built

ngland and Wales. Of these, 1,180,000 were built with state assistance and
150,000 without.

ResmexTiAL Costs

Trade % of Total Labour Materials
Miscellaneous. . .. .. .. .. 5.0 24.8 75.2
T SR RN e S AT 1.8 32.31 67.7
ROPETING - s Ll L e e 0.5 61.5 38.5
REIMEE . 5 g i e iRt e i 4.2 66.6 33.4
Plastering & Lathing.. .. .. .. .. L. 8.2 55.4 44.6
LT NTE . R (S A St DI R 10.1 24.7 75.3
Heating & Vent.. .. 6.6 20.3 79.7
RlOEb I S R N Y e ot e 4.5 36.0 64.0
SN e e R e Rl 11.7 36.5 63.5
ST AP T s e A 2 3.5 44.0 56.0
Carpentry & Mlk." 5 o s il iy 27.3 32.9 67.1
fl‘lck-.\lnsmny\'.. Bl Al Y 14.8 41.6 58.4
Reeanatingede Grdr s e 153 98.3 1.5

REOTERE Mot el o S S e SR R 100.

ConstrUCTION FIGURES

1929'I'Otal construction in Canada for 1934 approximately $126,000,000. In
,\$58§),000,000; in 1912,—8$470,000,000.

aterial prices (1926 equals 100) are now 82 as against peak in 1920 of 144.

i 19221)0111‘ Rates, taking 1913 as 100 are placed at 147, as compared with 171

193 Unemployment in Trade Unions in construction (Labour Gazette, December,
i showed that in 1920 only 3:7 per cent out of work; 7-8 per cent in 1926;
do arch, 1933, the figure rose to 71-7 per cent. In December, 1934, it came
Wri to 586 per cent. .
of ¢}, 11929, when the industry was at its peak, construction supported one-eighth
huna., Chtire population of Canada, giving employment to a total of about three
red and eighty thousand workers.

ResmenTiaL Construerion (Bank of N.S. Bulletin)

Pt Residential contracts for 11 vears, 1921-1931, one billion, one hundred and
yl-three millions. Annual average, 104 millions.
932, 28 millions; 1933, 23 millions; 1934, 30 millions.

1939 fg’é%f construction, 1929 (Jan. 1935 equals 100) 126-5. In 1931 115-4;

oy, Cost of residential construction, per person, in dollars of 1935, annual average
1 years 1921-1931, $8.84. In 1932—$2.58. In 1933, $2.23—in 1934—$2.81.



9 : SPECIAL COMMITTEE

INDEPENDENT CONCLUSIONS

A

State ought not to be a competitor with private enterprise, but should use
the natural channels in every possible way, by stimulating and encouraging
home building, home-owning, and manufacture of necessary materials and em-
ployment of skilled workers.

Slum clearance—Ought to have power to appropriate properties if necessary,
at their site value, less cost of clearance, or some other way, to prevent exploita-
tion. :

The effects of the moratorium—good, and bad.

The possibility of building societies. ;

National Research Council to study methods of new construction of houses,
and pass on the new materials now rapidly coming to the front. -3

The great factors, in private homes, of insulation and air conditioning. The
new materials by which houses can be constructed. 2

COURSE OF ACTION

1. An Investigating Commission.

2. An Interprovincial conference, with cities represented. :

3. A Housing Commission, for supervision of new enterprises, loans, etc.
Appoint for a term of years, with proper staff, chosen from civil service, and hav-
ing architects, engineers, contractors, etc., elther in consultative or active capacity.

4. Financial Arrangements. Lower rates of interest. The making available
O}fl morltgage money, perhaps by government, or through the regular company,
channels
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commoxs,

CommITTEE RooMm 429,
March 12, 1935.

this 'él‘he Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued, met
4y at 10.30 o’clock, a.m., Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided.

DoriThé following members were present:—Messieurs—Bourgeois, Church,
Ply ﬂn’ Elliott, Ganong, Gray, Hanbury, Howard, Morand, McIntosh, Peck,
iett, Rinfret, Stanley, and White (London)—15.

that The Chairman read a letter from Professor E. J. Urwick, Toronto, stating
membee WOngI be unable to give evidence on account of illness. Some other
: r of Lieutenant Governor Bruce’s committee will be nominated.

of '_I'he Chairman also read a letter from the Montreal Board of Trade re copies
Printeq report of its sub-committee on housing.

of e The Chairman called attention to an error in the 2nd issue of the proceedings
o Bidence. The guestions on pages 48 and 49 attributed to Mr. Howard were
ed by Mr. Sullivan.
Mz Cauchon filed with the Clerk of the Committee:—

Chief Inspector’s Annual Report on Ottawa Public Schools—1934.

A suggested Town Planning Act—drafted by Messrs. Nobbs and
Cau'chon.

Der Karl Marx Hof.
The following witnesses, all of Toronto, were called, examined and retired:—
Mr. 1, Markus, Secretary of the National Construction Council of Canada.
of M. Gordon M. West, Acting President of the National Construetion Council
Canada, 5

Con It\Ir_ W.L. Somerville, Chairman of the Housing Committee of the National
Struction Couneil of Canada.

of t.hMr' James Henry Craig, Chairman of the Housing and Finance Committee
€ National Construction Council of Canada.

1o on’,I‘he Committee adjourned at 1 p.m., to meet again at 4 o’clock, this after-

AFTERNOON SESSION
sidedThe Committee met at 3.30 o’clock, p.m,, Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, pre-

The followin is, Church, Elliott
‘ g members were present:—Messrs—Bourgeois, Church, Elliott,
g 0on ,, Gray, Hanbury, HowdenI,) McIntosh, Peck, Plunkett, Rinfret, Sullivan

And White (London)—13.
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Mr. James Henry Craig was recalled, examined and retired.

Mr. J. A. Bradley of Toronto, Ont., member of the National Construction
Council, was called, examined and retired.-

Mr. W. L. Somerville was recalled and examined regarding rehabilitation
of houses. He promised to prepare and forward a brief on this subject later.
Witness retired. ,

Mr. J. Y. McCarter, of McCarter & Nairne, Architects, Vancouver, B
was called, examined and retired.

The Committee adjourned at 6 o’clock, p.m., to meet again at 10.30 a.m.
Thursday, March 14, 1935.

J. P. DOYLE
Clerk of the Committee.
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House or Commons, Room 268
March 12, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in room 268, Tuesday, March 12th.

at
1030 a.m. Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

accor’I(‘i}ils ‘CtHAIIRMAN: Gentlemen, come to order. We have a quorum present now
o aJ:%’ 0 the clerk. I think we can dispense with the reading of the minutes.
Bl ¢ e printed in the report. I have two or three communications I would
e Onread. On Thursday we expected to have present Professor Urwick. He
£l hetof the Bruce committee. I have a note stating that he is not well
s ngnn 0 appear before the committee, and Lieutenant-Governor Bruce 1s
et ending another member of his committee to appear before us. I have
eard from him, but probably I will during the day.
i _I\have a note here from the Montreal Board of Trade which reads as fol-
I acknowledge receipt of your telegram of yesterday, reading as
follows:— frd
Mr. Nobbs communicated your Housing report to the parlia-
mentary committee on Housing this morning the committee would
appreciate twenty copies with illustrations as soon as convenient.
As indicated in a letter signed by the joint chairman of the special
Committee on slum clearance and housing, attached to the report, the
touncil has not received an edited copy and has not had sufficient time
to study the report in detail. As soon as possible the twenty copies will
€ sent you in some form as I cannot say whether the council. will
authorize the printing of it or not.
.You may be sure that the council of this board will be only too
anxious to co-operate in every way with your committee in its study
of this complicated and important problem.

Yours very truly,

J. STANLEY COOK,
Secretary.

o e should be furnished with that a little later.

ber 2 V‘Lould like to make an announcement of a correction in our report num-

Sulliy at pages 48 and 49 where questions in regard to Verdun asked b}i Mr.
ow an of Mr. Nobbs are shown in the evidence to have been asked by Mr.
ion ard. T would like to have entered in the minutes the fact that these ques-

S Were asked by Mr. Sullivan. =
Impm I. CavcHoNn: T have a telegram from Mr. Nobbg stating that the Civie
day Vement League are printing the report at once; it went to press yester-

OmTh.e CHARMAN: With regard to what Mr. MeIntosh agked concerning the
of $5g“0n Housing loan, there was an advance made to Prince Edward Island
Quepe 200, to Nova Scotia of $1,537,000, to New Brunswick of $1,525,000. To
to § €c $7,369,689.62, to Ontario $9,350,000, to Manitoba $1,975,000; no advance

&8katchewan -and no advance to Alberta; to British Columbia $1,701,500.
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Hon. Mr. RinFrer: Was that advanced by the federal government?
‘The CHAIRMAN: Yes. On the 1920 Act.
Hon. Mr. RinFrer: The 1919 Act.

The CuamrMAN: Yes, the 1919 Act. We have several representatives from
the National Construction Council of Canada. Before proceeding to hear them
have any of the members any questions they wish to ask? I think Mr. Cauchon,
supplementing his evidence, desires to place some papers before you.

Mr. CavcronN: I would like to file the last report of the Chief Inspector
of Schools for Ottawa. This year’s cost is $100 per child in the public schools.
T also found a copy of the enabling act that was drafted for the Quebec govern-
ment and mentioned in evidence by Professor Nobbs and myself. It will
interest those who are interested in the Karl Marx-Hof and the Vienna Hous-
ing and I would like to file that.

The CrarmMAN: We have as our first witness, Mr. West, president of the
National Construction Council of Canada, and there are several others who
are with him who wish to be heard. Before proceeding I would like to warn
the delegation that we shall have to keep pretty close to our reference, a copy
of which I have already sent to the National Construction Council. Now,
beside Mr. West we have with us Mr. Markus, secretary of the Council, and
I am going to ask Mr. Markus first to give us the names of those whom they
wish to be heard and also a slight description with regard to each witness.

Mr. McIntosa: Will all the witnesses this morning be from the National
Construction Council of Canada?

The CHARMAN: Yes. We expect to have them all morning and perhaps
this afternoon.

Mr. I. Margus: Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I would
like to say in opening that there are five members of the National Construction
Council here this morning in connection with this brief, three of whom will
present certain parts of it which Mr. West will mention in a few moments.
Our delegation this morning represents as constituent organizations of the
National Construction Council of Canada the following associations, institutes
and societies:— ’

1. Royal Architectural Institute of Canada

2. Canadian Construction Association

3. Canadian Manufacturers’ Association

4. Engineering Institute of Canada

5. Trades and Labour Congress of Canada

6. Canadian Lumbermen’s Association

7. Canadian Paint, Oil and Varnish Association

8. Brick Manufacturers’ Association

9. Canadian Ceramic Society

10. Asphalt Roofing Manufacturers of Canada

11. Structural Clay Tile Association

12. Canadian Council of Master Painters and Decorators
13. Canadian Founders and Metal Trades Association.

I would like the opportunity of advising the committee who the three
men are who will actually present the brief. Gordon M. West is the acting

President of the National Construction Council and he will introduce the brief.

Mr. West is Fellow of the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada, Fellow
of the Royal Institute of British Architects, member of the firm of Molesworth,

West and Secord, well known architectural firm in Toronto, he is a Canadian

by birth and training, having been in practice since 1912. He served overseas =
during the war with the 124th Battalion, C.E.F., and was discharged with the
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rank of major from the 12th battalion, C.E., C.E.F. Since the war he has

had some private financial experience, having served as councillor and treasurer

of the Ontario Association of Architects. He was president of the Royal
Architectural Institute of Canada, 1932 and 1933, and he is the representative
of the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada on the National Construction
Council of Canada.

He will be followed by Mr. W. L. Somerville—

Mr. HaxBury: May I suggest that the introduction of Mr. Somerville
take place just before he gives his evidence.

Mr. StaNLEY: It occurs to me that if we sit here from 10.30 to 1 o’clock
that ought to be sufficient time to hear the Construction people state their
case. Meeting in the afternoon for an overflow meeting makes a hard day.

The CHaRMAN: In their telegram they asked us for three hours, and
I think if the evidence they are giving comes within the scope of our reference _
we may have to extend the time. :

Mr. Staxitey: I hope they will make an effort to keep within the time.

Hon. Mr. Rixrrer: I agree with what you have said, Mr. Chairman. At
the same time there are many matters coming before the House that require
our attention also. I understand to-day we will have the third reading of the
Unemployment Insurance Bill, and T wish to suggest that if it is found neces-
sary to extend the time given to these gentlemen to this afternoon it might
perhaps be possible to start the committee a little later in order that we might
be in the House the first hour. It may be a little too soon for this committee
to sit while the House is sitting, although we have authority to do so. However,
there is the other point which I appreciate and that is that these gentlemen
who come from long distances must not be kept over a certain time. Discuss-
ing the matter in a practical way, I would like to ask whether these gentlemen
come from Montreal or Toronto? '

The CaairmaN: They are from Toronto.
Hon. Mr. Rixrrer: That is different. There is a night train to be con-

sidered in that case. In Montreal we are most unfortunate now. If we do

not leave at 4.30 in the afternoon we must stay another day.
Mr. WesT:

As Acting President of the National Construction Council of Canada, I
ave to express our appreciation for this opportunity of placing our views
efore you.

In order that you may understand for whom we speak, I may say that the
ouncil consists of representatives from thirteen national bodigs ;eprespntmg

the contracting, manufacturing, professional and labour organizations In the
construction field. In addition the Council has established some twenty regional
committees throughout the Dominion and through them we have obtained
& cross section of opinion within the country. The membership qf these yeglonal
committees has not been confined to members of constituent bodies, but includes
representatives of municipal and semi-public organizations. :

About two years ago it became evident to the Council that housing was

0 beecome a live question in various parts of Canada, and in going info the
Matter has sought reports from each of these regional committees, and 1t 1s
from these reports and the deliberations of the Council and its committees,
that the views which we are presenting to you ha_ve,been arrlve_d at. A sum-
mary of these reports is attached to Mr. Somervﬂles px:esentatxon:

As we are a national body, we should present if possible, a national rather

than a local point of view. In consequence our major suggestions may seem
be very broad and general in their character. They are, however, supple-
Mented elsewhere in our brief.



96 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

In Canada, as indicated by the existence of building by-laws and health
regulations, the state has admitted a degree of responsibility for housing con-
ditions. Nevertheless, up to this time no definite comprehensive housing policy
has been established.

We desire to make three general recommendations:—

First: The adoption by the Federal Government of a definite housing
policy.

Second: That the Federal Government make available the necessary ecredit
and financial assistance for the furtherance of such a policy; and that such
assistance should be provided with a view to making housing projects self-
liquidating.

It may be asked what is a definite housing policy and why it is suggested.

First—There will, in fact, be very little difference, physically, in our sur-
roundings now and shall we say fifty years hence, except for the construction
carried out in the interval. Domestic building is ordinarily 22%-32% of our
entire construction expenditure including engineering and as it touches the lives
of our people daily there is almost prima facie evidence that.housing is entitled
to some guidance from the state.

Second—Our investigations make it very clear that from a social point of
view there is a demand that something be done in regard to raising housing
standards particularly for groups of wage earners who receive the least for their
services.

Third—There is agreement on the reduction or elimination of unemployment
and we know of no better method to approach this than through the medium of
the construction industry.

Fourth—If any housing program is to be initiated it should follow the
lines of a permanent policy, which might be made to serve as a balance against
bad times. A housing policy with permanent administration would lend itself
to this end if operated on a self-liquidating basis.

Fifth—If the Federal Government initiates a national housing program
involving the extension of credits, it should set forth the conditions under which
assistance is to be rendered to any provincial, municipal or other authorities
through which such a program would be developed, so that substantial conformity
to a general policy would be obtained.

Sixth—Our investigations have proven that housing for the lowest income
groups cannot ultimately be made profitable to private enterprise, and this is
the only field in which municipal or publicly operated housing schemes could
be justified, and then, only if self-liquidating and well supervised.

Seventh—In the field of housing for other than the lowest income groups,
there is, in our opinion, necessity for financial assistance for the stimulation of
private and semi-private housing operations. We believe that such assistance
and stimulation could be worked out in co-operation with organizations loaning
on real estate. However, to be fully effective, a lower rate of interest than the
prevailing commercial rate should be a condition under which the Government
would undertake to assume in part, at least, some of the credit risk involved.

Our Third general recommendation is—

That in order to avoid further disequilibria, any definite housing policy
should contemplate that all moneys spent on construction be spent through
the normal channels of the industry and not involve direct relief labour.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. I happened to read that in advance, and I should like to know exactly
what it means. Do you mean by that you will not employ anybody who is
already on direct relief?>—A. No, not that; but we would not advise, shall we
say, the rotation of labour or the work being done as a relief project proper under
relief authority.

s ‘v:“.“_-‘_k
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Q- I see; because I would think on the contrary, that these are the very men
whom we should try to free from direct relief.—A. I agree with you, sir.

The arguments which support this are substantially the same as were
presented by the council to the Prime Minister prior to the introduction of the
recent public work program and need not be reiterated here.

I have contented myself with presenting these three general recommenda-
tions. The Chairman of our committee on housing, Mr. W. L. Somerville, is
more familiar than I am with the result of his committee’s work, and will present
to you further recommendations as to how a national housing policy might be
implemented as well as some of the more technical requirements involved therein.

He will be followed by Mr. James H. Craig, who is Chairman of the Council’s
Committee on Financing of Housing, who will present a possible method of
finance with particular regard to the effect of a national housing program in
relation to a solution of the unemployment problem.

In addition to the report I have just read, I think I should make, in fairness
to the committee, this short statement: in presenting the views of this council
in the past, it has always been the policy of the council to send the briefs to our
constituent bodies, and have them approved by their council. Owing to the
shortness of time in this case, we have not been able to do it, but I think we
have unanimous support from them. I think I should protect my other bodies
by saying if they do not agree with everything we will, without any hesitation,
let you know.

By the Chavrman:
Q. Has this brief been given by the executive?—A. By the executive, and
approved by our council in full meeting.
Q. Is that all>—A. That is my part.

Mr, I. Magrkus; Mr. Chairman, members of the housing committee, the
next speaker will be Mr. W. L. Somerville, who will present the main part of
the brief. Mr. Somerville is a fellow of the Royal Architectural Institute of
Canada, fellow of the Royal Institute of British Architects, an ex-officio member
of the National Construction Council of Canada, Chairman of the Housing
Committee of this National Construction Council, Associate member of the
Royal Canadian Academy of Art, and past president of the Ontario Association
of Architects. Mr. Somerville was born in Canada and went to New York in
1909 for the purpose of study in the American Ecole des Beaux-Arts. As a
result of winning a competition for the selection of designs for the most economical
types of workmen’s houses conducted by the National Americanization Com-
mittee in 1912, he was retained as architect for industrial housing development
I Allwood, New Jersey, and Charlotte, N.C. He was taken into partnership by
the firm of Murphy and Dana, and designed further housing developments at
Elizabeth, N.J., and Derby, Conn., and Waterbury, Conn. The latter for
the U.S. Housing Corporation, a National Housing Authority set up by the
Federal government. In 1919 he returned to Toronto to practise under‘hxs own
Name. Among the housing developments in Canada he has been architect for
the following: Westdale Development, Hamilton, Ontario; Canada Wire and
Cable Company, Housing Development, Leaside, Ontario; Spruce Falls Paper
Company, Housing Development, Kapuskasing, Ontario; Canadian International

aper Company, Housing Development, Timiskaming, Quebec; Canadian Inter-
Dational Paper Company, Housing Development, Gatineau, Quebec. He has
Visited and studied housing developments in England and Scotland.

Mr. W. L. SoMERVILLE, called. 5 [

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, in presenting this brief I might explain the
Committee on housing have endeavoured to make it, shortly, a brief to cover
In general the principles which we think should be included in any housing
Policy or regulations.
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As a result of a study of the housing problem in Canada, assisted by reports
and suggestions received from Regional Committees, and after a thorough
review and study of the methods that have been followed in Great Britain and
the United States, we submit the following suggestions and recommendations,
together with the data upon which they are based.

Existineg Housing CoNDITIONS

(See also Appendix No. 1—Summary of Reports received from Regional
Committees)

That overecrowding and housing of a standard much below that considered
as healthful or permissible by medical authorities exists in practically every
city and town in Canada as well as in many rural districts is a fact with which
we have long been familiar, and is confirmed by reports of surveys received.

In municipalities overcrowding, two or more families occupying premises
only adequate for one, is caused by the economic necessity of the lowest income
groups (many of whom are on government relief) to seek living quarters at a
monthly rental which varies in different parts of the country from $10 to $20
per month.

This condition, which existed even during periods of prosperity has become

more acute due to the fact that many families formerly in a higher bracket
income group have been forced into lower groups by loss of employment or reduc-
tion of wages. This situation has created a demand far in excess of the supply
and has increased overcrowding. This is the primary cause of many social evils
and physical ailments.

The argument has been advanced that there can be no actual housing
shortage and figures have been quoted regarding house and apartment vacancies.
Upon analysis it will be found that in most cases the abnormal number of
vacancies is almost entirely confined to dwellings and apartments belonging to
a much higher income group. In other words, forced down the scale, leaving
the vacancy at the top.

It has been further observed that overcrowding and sub-standard housing
in the larger cities can be divided into two classes. The first is what is usually
referred to as a slum. That is an area largely consisting of obsolete dwellings
in poor state of repair with inadequate sanitary conveniences. Such areas are
usually those that were formerly occupied by a much higher income group but
owing to the encroachment of commerce or industry have become undesirable
as residential areas. The dwellings have not been kept in repair and have,
through lack of improvement, become obsolete. The land has increased in
potential value to such an extent that the owners would not increase the return
on their investment by improving the existing building for residential purposes.
Owing to high value of land that has become more suitable for commercial or
industrial purposes and cannot be rendered suitable for residential purposes
without complete demolition of existing buildings, the provision of park and
playground areas and possibly minor changes in street system, the individual
owners of such property are unable to take any action. As a result of these
conditions these obsolete dwellings are not kept in repair or improved in any
way. A large percentage of the tenants are on relief and their rent is being paid
by the municipality or some charitable organization. In other words, the tax-
payer is maintaining these slums and assisting the owners of such land to carry
their property until such time as it can be sold for some other purpose at a

_ greatly enhanced value. In some municipalities the owner, at the expenses of
the taxpayer at large, is given further assistance by a reduction in the assessed
value of 50 per cent due to the value of the building being less than $1,000. We
are, in fact, therefore subsidizing slum areas.

The second class, as distinct from slums caused by blight in the central
portions of our municipalities, is that consisting of shacks poorly constructed,
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without proper sanitation located in suburban or rural districts adjacent to our
municipalities. These are in many cases pathetic efforts of the lower income
groups to meet their own problem.

They are a cause of the excess tax rate in many municipalities. They
reduce the value of adjoining properties, and make it necessary sooner or later
to extend public services which the taxes collected from such areas cannot
possibly support. Both of these classes are the result of unregulated growth
and lack of adequate or effective housing standards.

The prevention of the development of future slums is essential in any
National Housing Policy for the preservation of any new housing erected
at this time, and existing satisfactory housing which would otherwise deteriorate.
~ Coupled with this is the necessity of providing new housing and the elimina-
tion of existing slum areas by rehabilitation or demolition.

Housing Neeps—LowesT IncoME GroUPS
(See Appendix No. 1)

There is a great need in normal times as there is at present for housing

available for the lowest income groups. This has been well established by

e survey conducted by the National Construction Council through its Regional
Ommittees.

We are of the opinion that this need of the lowest income groups can only
be met by providing housing on a rental basis. The sale of houses to individuals
In this group on easy terms over a long period would not in our opinion be
effective. This is clearly demonstrated by an analysis of the results obtained
under the Housing Act of 1919 in this country. Housing on a rental basis
Permits of the adjustment of rents so that by control an economic ratio between
rent and income may be maintained—a social as well as an economic necessity.
I think that is a basic fact that is generally recognized by those familiar with

ousing,
Housineg Neeps—For InpivipuaL OwNERS

. In addition to housing for the lowest income groups, it is necessary in our
9pinion to include some means of encouraging the erection of housing by
Individuals in order to make effective a national housing program of a volume

~ Sufficient to stimulate the construction industry to the extent necessary to

Materially reduce unemployment. That is why we have added that paragraph.
That the construction of residences for individuals is an important factor
M the building industry is pointed out in the monthly review of the Bank of
ova Scotia (February, 1935) in which it is stated that during the period of
Cleven years, from 1921 to 1931 inclusive, no less than 85 per cent of all
residential construction in Canada was represented by the building of residences,
ad only 15 per cent by the building of apartments. It is estimated that
00,000,000 represents the volume of work of a residential character now
Waiting to be put in hand in Canada, apart from the housing requirements of
€ low income groups. This does not mean that we think that the government
Should undertake to build houses for everybody, but that there is a certain class
M the lower income group who could afford a small equity, and in order to
Provide sufficient volume some provision should be made to take care of them,
With & maximum limit on the cost of the houses.

REHABILITATION

th Fyom the reports received from our regional committees, it is eyxdpnt that

stere is a necessity for the rehabilitation of large numbers of existing sub-
andard dwellings. i

", he argument put forward in favour of such a policy is that a greater num-

01?11; of families could be properly housed for a smaller expenditure than by any
€r means. This is very evident in referring to Appendix 1. That seems to

4 very general opinion from the different provinces.
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We would recommend the consideration of a policy of rehabilitation. Such
a policy would involve technical advice and report on the merits of any proposed
scheme of rehabilitation. Value would be a very important item in regard to
rehabilitation.

It is clear that to safeguard loans made for this purpose, they must be
protected by guarantee that districts so rehabilitated will maintain their resi-
dential character for the term of the loan. Zoning will therefore be an im-
portant requirement as well as the provision of adequate open spaces. I think
Mr. Cauchon has already explained the significance of the word “ zoning.”

Mr. CaucHoN: I tried to.

The Wirness: As a large percentage of the sub-standard dwellings in such
cities as Montreal and Toronto are in areas not suitable for housing, the wisdom
of adopting a scheme of rehabilitation in these areas would be doubtful.

. That many such properties are already mortgaged to such an extent that
any additional loan would be economically unsound is another consideration.

Further, if loans were made for the purpose of rehabilitation to provide
housing for the low income groups, adequate safeguards must be provided to
ensure rentals which minimum wage earners can afford to pay. I would like
to stress that point, that there must be safeguards to ‘ensure rentals for the
minimum wage earner in the cost of rehabilitation.

SruM CLEARANCE

Under a national housing program for the purpose of improving housing
for the lowest income groups, such as we suggest, the question of slum clearance
is necessarily involved. New housing must be provided as the first step, in
order to house those now occupying the slums that are to be demolished.

In our opinion the enforcement of municipal zoning laws and the establish-
ment of minimum housing standards, including maximum occupancy regula-
tions, would automatically prevent the growth of slums and during a period of

- years eliminate slum areas. In some instances, particularly in Montreal and
Toronto, areas of sub-standard dwellings have become too well established to
eliminate by these means. This condition is also exaggerated by inadequate
provision of park areas, and the arrangement of street and lane systems. Such
conditions can only be rectified by demolition and replanning of the area for
rebuilding for residential or other purposes in accordance with a plan for the
entire muncipality and district. We are of the opinion that such operations
should be carried out by the municipalities but must be subject to the approvf_3~1
of the Government technical advisors if credit or guarantee of the financing 18
to be extended for such purposes, but in no case should a scheme of slum clear-

ance be approved unless a town plan is established to guide the future growth |

of the municipality accompanied by established zoning regulations for a peri

equal to that required for amortization. Any other procedure would be sheer

folly.
RurarL HousiNng ANp FArRM BuiLpings

Whereas much of the information eontained in this brief deals with housing
in urban centres, nevertheless our investigations disclose. the necessity in rurd
centres for the rehabilitation and replacement of obsolete dwellings and farm
buildings.

We believe further, due to the curtailment of purchasing power of the
primary producers, that special consideration should be given by the propos

national housing authority to means of financing farm building improvement®

if funds are to be borrowed extensively for rural housing or rehabilitation.
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3 FINANCING

In Appendix II we have attached a brief on long term financing of low
cost housing, which was presented to the MacMillan commission when they sat
in Toronto. It has particular reference to the financing of houses by means

Wy 5 TR T
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; of second mortgages; and we suggest long term amortization as a simpler
3 means of providing funds for housing those who cannot afford to pay for their
own homes.

Sound economics and well considered financing are vital to any housing
policy if it is to be successful.

It is hardly necessary to mention the numerous experiments by the Govern-
ments of Great Britain and the United States which are well known to all
familiar with the subject. European countries generally have followed closely
methods used in Great Britain.

These experiments have definitely demonstrated that a lower rate of interest
than it is possible to obtain through commercial financial institutions is neces-
sary for housing the lowest income groups.

ReraTion or A HOUsING PROGRAM TO A SOLUTION OF UNEMPLOYMENT

. From our study of the situation and our familiarity with the construction
Industry of which we represent all branches, including organized labour, we
are.further of the opinion that an unusual opportunity is afforded to initiate a
Dational housing policy on a sound economic basis that would ultimately
eliminate the problem of unemployment relief. According to data we have
Obtained, 60 per cent of the unemployed are workers normally dependent on
the construction industry for employment. A large scale national housing pro-
gram, would in our opinion, have the effeet of reducing Government expendi-
[ ‘tuﬂ?s for direct relief which cannot be justified as economically sound. This
: Saving would go far toward the cost of housing for the low income groups.

Tae Housing Act or 1919

' In considering any national housing policy, the results obtained under the
Aet of 1919 should be reviewed. The housing was initiated at a time when there
Was a shortage of labour and materials resulting in abnormally high cost of
buxldmg. The housing was not for the lowest income groups but for those who
fould invest a small equity. In many cases the houses were occupied by those
Who could have afforded better homes and for whom no financial assistance
Was necessary. When the housing shortage was taken up, values declined: with
the result that those who had purchased the houses erected under the 1919 Act
tﬁund that their equity, which was very small, had been wiped out and that
: €y were paying more per month than they would have to pay to obtain the
,I?ﬁne accommodation on a rental basis in houses built when prices were lower.
1€ Tesult was that in some municipalities it was necessary to repossess some
‘?}f these houses. During the past few years many of those who purchased

€se houses have been unable to meet their payments or to keep the houses in
epair. The point T want to make is that under the purchase plan it is there-
Ore evident that the government responsibility in the final analysis is tanta-
ount to g rental scheme but with less flexibility and control over occupancy,

maintenance, ete.

. s

CoNTROL OF OCCUPANCY

% The control of occupancy is a feature that was lac}{ing in the 1919 Act and
ho?ln.e that should, in our opinion, receive consideration in the formulation of any
Sing policy. Further that a maximum income should be the controlling factor

tog;’::llre tenancy by the low income groups. This is a primary factor in
2
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determining the character of housing and the means of financing. The minimum
income or the minimum equity of 10 per cent in cost of house and land as required
under the 1919 Act precluded any benefit to the lowest income groups, which is
the group we consider presents the greatest problem to-day.

A minimum rent is an economic necessity but to eliminate sub-standard
housing and conserve new low-cost housing for those whom it is hoped to benefit,
control must be maintained by a ratio of rent to income.

Regulation of maximum occupaney is also necessary for proper hygiene and
to maintain benefits provided by new housing or rehabilitation. The number of
persons per room for each family unit, allowing only one family per unit, has
been proved to be a satisfactory regulation that can be easily enforced. The
administration of housing for the lowest income groups must be undertaken on
the basis of social service. I cannot emphasize that point too strongly. This
factor is largely responsible for the success of a great number of such develop-
ments in England.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As a result of our conclusions, as hereinbefore mentioned, we would respect-
fully submit for your consideration the following recommendations in addition
to those previously mentioned:—

First: The creation of a permanent national housing authority to:—
(a) Draw up and establish minimum housing standards applicable to exist-
ing as well as new housing.
(b) Draw up and establish regulations pertaining to the rehabilitation of
existing sub-standard dwellings.
(¢) Make recommendations as to the distribution of funds; that is, the
amount that should go for each of these different classifications.
(d) Administer its provisions in respect to repayments, housing renewals
and maintenance. '
() Draw up such other regulations as may be necessary.
Under that “such other regulations as may be necessary”; such an
authority would necessarily in our opinion be required to make a survey of
housing conditions as the basis for any allotment of funds.

By the Chairman:

Q. That is, we have not enough information now to do that intelligently?
—A. No, sir; that is, in our opinion. That is the procedure followed I believe
in England, and it was followed under the housing authorities in the United
States; the government having facilities to gather the facts are in a position t0
do it much better than any other party, and it is the only scientific and sound
basis on which any housing scheme can proceed.

Second: That in such region there be created a similar body to administer
and make effective such standards and regulations and to co-operate with the
national housing authority.

Third: That all municipalities benefitting under the scheme be required t0
enact zoning regulations as part of a town plan providing for the growth a
development of the municipality, including adjoining suburban and rural dis-

tricts, and that all provinces desiring to benefit under a national housing pro-

gram be required to pass necessary enabling legislation.
Fourth: That for the purpose of housing the lowest income groups, moneY
be made available at a rate of interest not exceeding 24 per cent in order that
such schemes may be self-liquidating as far as possible.
Mr. Craig’s committee have worked that out, and this 2:5 per cent 1%
arrived at after a very careful study, both as to building cost, and to making it
self liquidating. Mr. Craig will enlarge upon that later.
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Fifth: That a portion of any funds which may be made available be
allocated to encourage the construction of houses, and for the repair and
rehabilitation of existing buildings by private enterprise. Further that such
funds be utilized to relieve private capital of a portion of the risk at present
Inherent in making large sums available for mortgage purposes at a low rate
of interest for long terms. Thus relieved of part of the risk involved, private
capital would be enabled to provide funds at low interest rates with an
amortization period of at least twenty years.

CoONCLUSION

The recommendations hereinbefore mentioned are necessarily broad and
¢over only general principles. The National Construction Council is prepared

offer the facilities of their organization to assist in the formation of a
National Housing Program and is also prepared to give technical advice on
ousing standards and regulations which would necessarily vary to meet local
conditions.

Mr. Chairman, I do not think I need to read the appendix which follows,
If you wish I could mention some of the high spots.

The CHamrMAN: I think it would be well for us to be posted.

The Wirness: Reading from a portion of the original report submitted
by John M. Flood, chairman of the regional committee:—

I definitely feel that the rehabilitation of sub-standard housing
should be advocated perhaps even in preference to new housing, for
economic reasons. It is obviously difficult to provide “ desirable ” hous-
ing units at rentals of $15, $20 and $25 per month which seems to be
the rental scale prevailing in workmen’s homes here.

Then he mentions:

Our local experience in public financing of any housing scheme is
limited but was a decidedly costly one for the municipality. I doubt
if it can be repeated with any measure of public support.

Slum clearance is another matter entirely and, from a town plan-
ning point of view, is justified. The opening of new streets through
conjested areas, demolition for playground space and parks and similar
projects will automatically be reflected in building activity by other

. than public bodies. Public financing of civie improvement projects,
such as these, if deemed necessary by competent authority, would perhaps
be a more popular move than outright public financing of any housing
scheme doomed to be a financial failure.

& In Quebec Mr. Brousseau is chairman of the regional committee. He
ates, in part:—

I am directed to inform you that after investigation made in this
city, it is established that 450 to 500 are in a very poor sanitary condi-
tion and are classed as slum houses. Besides that there are about 1,100
to 1,200 houses that need urgent repairs.

of tHamilton is an industrial city, and this report we have used the findings
= he council of social agencies which made a survey in 1932. This report

OWs that:

Of the 727 households reported upon:—

Fifty-three per cent averages more than one person per room;

Eighteen per cent averaged more than three persons per bedroom;

Seven and nine-tenths per cent averaged more than four persons per
bedroom;

Thirty-one per cent averaged more than two persons per bedroom;

s Seventeen families of three or more persons lived in 1 room;
823 :
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Eighteen per cent of the housholds had children of both sexes in the
same bedroom;

Twenty-eight dwellings (out of 504) had rooms without windows—
7 of these are bedrooms in which a total of 20 persons slept;
Twenty per cent of the dwellings had outside toilets, a further 20 per

cent had insanitarily placed inside toilets;
Ten households lived in basements;
Sixty-four households lived in one or two rooms;
Seven and two-tenths per cent had no sink in the kitchen;
Eighteen per cent of dwellings classified as bad;
Forty and seven-tenths per cent of dwellings classified as fair;
Fighty-eight per cent of the families are tenants.
That conditions are worse to-day.

Then there is the report from London, Victor J. Blackwell being chair-
man of the regional committee:—

There are several blocks in the city where the houses are in a most
dilapidated and unsanitary condition, and we would recommend that
demolition of all buildings and the erection of a block of modern low
rental apartments, with proper playground facilities in connection with
same, properly supervised, along with the apartments, by the municipality.

Kitchener: Mr. H. J. Ball was chairman of the regional committee, and I
may say that the area taken in includes Kitchener, Guelph, Galt and towns and
rural districts in the neighbourhood. They estimate their needs for replacements
and rehabilitations at $6,762,000.

From the Ottawa regional committee, C. N. Pitts chairman, we have the
following:—

Your sub-committee, from data available, knows unquestionably that
there is a very serious and urgent need for low-cost housing, and gives
hereunder supporting information:—

Dr. Lomer, Medical Health Officer of Ottawa, in his annual
report, under date of the 13th December, 1934, warns city against
slum conditions as follows:—

During the past four years of financial depression 5,842 persons were
added to our population by natural increase (excess of births over deaths)
and at the same time 4,917 more people moved into the city than left,

% making a total increase in population of 10,759.

At the beginning of this period there was no surplus of low rental
houses and during these years building of that class of houses has been
practically at a standstill with the result that many houses which formerly
accommodated one family in a satisfactory and sanitary manner are now
oceupied by two or more families for which they are not adequate.

This, of course, is a typical case, and the same condition exists in nearly
every town and city. ;

Now, turning to the west, Manitoba presents a very full report, and reading
from that:—

This report definitely shows a very serious condition of overcrowding,
living in basements and attics, lack of privacy, scarcity of sanitary con-
veniences, besides fire hazard; all told, a very serious menace to health
and welfare of the community.

Saskatchewan: Regina—The chairman of the regional committee, Colonel
J. McAra:—

2,000 sub-standard dwellings, 1,000 of these have sewer and water
supply. Estimated cost of rehabilitation $300,000. Further recommend
small loans to improve housing conditions generally amounting to $200,000-

*
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I might say that when these reports speak of sub-standard dwellings they
are referring to a housing standard which the committee drew up and sent to
each regional committee so that they would all have the same yardstick to
measure by, taking certain requirements with regard to sanitation, light, ete.

_ Then, taking Alberta, Mr. R. M. Dingwall, chairman of the regional com-
mittee of Edmonton, states: “ Our committee and a large body of citizens feel
that there is much need for a low-cost housing program in this city.” The ecity
18 undertaking to make a survey in Edmonton.

The same thing applies to Calgary.

__ British Columbia reports very deplorable conditions, although slightly
different from the east:—

There is no recognized slum district or area in Vancouver as the term
is generally understood, but there are hundreds of single buildings, cabin
blocks and terrace blocks scattered throughout the ecity, which have
within this last five or six years, been allowed to develop through lack of
attention, into a state, where the occupants are living under slum condi-
tions and in a state menacing the health of the city at large.

I think, sir, that that is probably sufficient to cover the important points.

. The Cuamryman: Now, while Mr. Somerville is here I think perhaps there
might be some questions we would like to ask.

By Mr. Hanbury :

Q. There is one question I would like to ask Mr. Somerville, Mr. Chairman:
The other day I was trying to find out what the economic unit would be for
€ construction of houses in connection with a housing scheme; that is, whether
or we will say 100, 400 or 500 would be an economic unit. Naturally, it is
advisable that we should get our economic unit as high as possible?—A. Quite.
at is a very important question, sir, and I am glad you brought that up. It
Varies under different conditions. Naturally it is easy to understand that
Materials are more advantageously ordered in large quantities if we are going
undertake a scheme in an economical way. Therefore, in a housing project
€ economic quantity has to be considered, and the practical minimum becomes
e determining factor. For instance, take cement; to buy advantageously you
must have a car load and that amount of cement might be sufficient for the
foundations of say fifty or one hundred houses. That would be the determining
actor. Other materials would be bought at larger quantities and so naturally
ey would come in car load lots. Then, again, there is standardization of units;
that, is, your doors and windows—they also are a determining factor. But it
18 not a question which can be answered by saying 50, 100 or 200. i
Q. T thought probably it had been worked out?—A. It depends entirely
on the type of house. :

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. T notice that in several cases the reports say that some of the houses
are not insanitary in themselves, but that they become so because there is over
Crowding. Does your council recommend together with new building, regulations
orbidding people to over erowd; because it strikes me that otherwise you may
ave large numbers of buildings for workingmen and so on, but if they choose

live all in the same one we will not be any better off?—A. Exactly, sir; I
aVe mentioned that; that is one of our recommendations which we referred to as
SCeupancy control—perhaps regulation would be the better word. That is, in
Mitiating o housing scheme unless there are some regulations with respect to
Oceupamy we would simply be subsidizing or financing, new slums.

Q. Do I uderstand that that is mentioned in the report?—A. Yes, that is
coVered‘
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Q. I must admit that when you read the paragraph about occupancy control,
I did not know exactly what you meant; I know it now.

The CHARMAN: Are there any other questions?

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Do I understand you, Mr. Somerville, to contemplate the financial assist-
ance coming from:various jurisdictions, or from the community involved?—A. If
I understand your question, sir, you mean whether the provinces, the municipali-
ties and so on should do the financing.

Q. What are the jurisdictions that should contribute, if a contribution is
made?—A. I am afraid I will have to answer that by giving you my personal
opinion of the matter. Housing is a thing that requires very careful regulation,
and my own opinion is.that that can best be handled by a central housing
authority; that is, that the funds might originate from the Dominion government,
but they should be handled and controlled directly by them. In other words, in a
municipality if there is a housing scheme or some slum clearing undertaking it
should be done by the people who are responsible for the source of the funds,
namely the Dominion government.

Q. Whoever raises the fund will see to the expenditure?—A. That is abso-
lutely necessary. One reason I say that is that if it is lent through a munici-
pality, the municipal authorities change at very short intervals and there is no
continuity, whereas if the body in charge of the source of the fund is a re-
sponsible one you have a much better chance of getting the money back.

Q. Even federal authorities sometimes change.

Mr. StanteEy: Not very often though.

Mr. Cavcnon: Might I ask Mr. Somerville if his committee had come to any
conclusion of what they would consider a fair average minimum rental for low
class wage earners? '

The Wrirngess: I should say an average rent around $15.

Mr. HanBury: That is based on a percentage of a man’s earnings?

The WrirnEess: About one-fifth.

Mr. Hanpury: If wages are increasing more rent is paid.

The Wirness: Yes. That is what I meant by ratio of rent income.

The Cuamyan: With regard to individual owners you advocate helping them =

to build. If the government, should do that will not that ‘destroy a certain
amount of value on those houses that are already built and paid for?

The Wrrxess: Well, sir, one thing that is not mentioned here is that I think
the limit of cost under which such financing should be done should be very low—
actually not more than $4,000. There is not any competition in private capital
at that point of $4,000. I do not mean the low income group. This is the nexb

group. Even where it would be a case of individual owners. It is simply t0 =

obtain a sufficient body of construetion to take care of unemployment in the
construction industry resulting in taking care of unemployment in other indus-
tries. ‘

By Mr. McIntosh: : :

Q. In any national housing scheme what would be the approximate propor-
tion between the rehabilitation and the new construetion?—A. That, sir, would
depend entirely on the conditions in each centre, and that is why I suggested 2
survey. I think that each of these centres would have to be investigated by
competent people.

Q. By a government commission?—A. Whether it is a government com”
mission or a body of technical people employed for that purpose, I do not knoW:
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I think that really comes under social science and should be done by technically
trained people rather than by a public commission.

Q. You would have it done by a national body—not by a provineial body?
—A. By a national body, yes.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. You spoke-about the rural.parts. In the practice of my profession I
have done a great deal of work in the cities—in the homes in all parts of the
cities—and also for many years I have practised in the country, and I can say
that there is more of a slum condition, more overcrowding, more unhealthy and
Insanitary conditions among the homesteads on the old farms than you will find
In any of the cities. We hear a great deal about conditions in the city. Now,
have you anything to say about those country homes, and what can be done in
regard to them?—A. Yes. You are quite right. I myself have seen worse
hving conditions in country sections than exist in most of our cities. It is really
pathetic in some cases. However, it is rather difficult to get facts—I mean
there is no organization in the country districts that you can appeal to and ask:
what are the conditions in your district?

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Could you not get that information from the average municipality in
Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta?—A. I did get information this year, but
not in the west; it was from the distriet around Kitchener and Guelph in Ontario;
and they particularly mentioned that in the regional report—that there was
great need in the rural distriets for some scheme of rehabilitation.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. If you have need for it around Kitchener where they have such magnifi-
cent farm homes, then you ought to go out west and see the need for it there.—
- Yes. I do sincerely entertain the view that there should be something done
for the rural districts.” Whether it is done by a housing authority or some farm
oard is the question. ~
Q. In your recommendation you spoke about the lowest paid wage earners,
and stated that any housing scheme provided for them should be on a rental
asis entirely ?—A. Yes. 3 .
Q. Then you also recommend that the body which provides the funds, which
Would be the federal government according to your recommendation, should have
lrgct&control over those who secure the loans and who are renting the houses?
Eo e
Q. Would you eliminate the muniecipalities entirely?—A. To this extent
that my suggestion would be that the municipality might incorporate a housing
COrporation to administer the housing, but that corporation would not be depend- -
€0t on change from one year to another. That is the commission—
. Q. That is not my point. Supposing a housing scheme is put into effect
m the city of Montreal and a suitable number of homes are provided at $10 a
month for the lowest wage earners, would you have a central federal housing
“Ommission transacting all the business and dealing directly with the tenants
O the elimination of the city authorities?>—A. That would be an impossible
Situation,
; Q. Your recommendation seemed to leave that impression?—A. What I had
sn mind was the system that they had in England to some extent. We will take,
tﬁy, the city of Montreal: they want to undertake slum clearance in housing,
€ city would incorporate a public utility body and that corporation would
aorI‘OW the money from the Dominion governmentr—‘credit or wh_atever 0] o 1<
olfld they would administer and look after that housing entirely independently
the municipal government. They would be directly responsible.

% - And appointed by the federal commission?—A. Incorporated under their
“ulations,
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By Mr. Plunkett:

Q. Mr. Somerville, what about taxation of the municipalities on such a
housing scheme? Should they not give some relief in that way?—A. It would be .
very desirable if it could be arranged. :

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. It could be required before the money was given?—A. You have the
money.

. The CrammaN: Mr. Church asked a question dealing with your remarks
at top of page 4.

By Mr. Church:

. Q. I would like to know who appoints the municipal body—the city coun-
cil?—A. Not necessarily, Mr. Church. I think the dominion body would have
certain regulations.

Q. You think there is no guarantee unless the municipality has a definite
town planning for the future. That would mean the large cities would never
get any guarantee from the Dominion government on a standard plan—just
the cities that have got town planning?—A. They should not get more credit. 5
I certainly would not lend a nickel to any municipality that has not got a )
town planner’s organization. *

Q. You say that you would not give any guarantee: “We are of the
opinion that such operations should be carried out by the municipalities but
must be subject to the approval of the government technical advisers if credit
or guarantee of the financing is to be extended for such purposes, but in no
case should a scheme of slum clearance be approved unless a town plan is
established to so guide the future growth of the municipality....” If that is )
the rule the largest cities will not be able to qualify for a guarantee from the i
Dominion government, from the municipality?—A. Why, Mr. Church, I do
not quite see. “....be approved unless a town plan is established to so guide
the future growth of the municipality accompanied by established zoning regu-
lations for a period equal to that required for amortization.” ;

Q. We had a definite plan of town planning that would bankrupt the muni-
cipalities. Do you mean to say that Toronto could not get a guarantee from
the municipalities unless it had town planning for the outskirts?—A. It was a
very regrettable thing, and it was not by any means a proper town plan, and it
was not occompanied by zoning regulations.

Q. Under the 1919 arrangement a municipality could qualify under the
Act under standard plans; under this clause you cannot?—A. 1 think the 1
investment of money in any municipality that has no regulations would be very ¢
inadvisable. '

Mr. Cavcuon: I think Mr. Sommerville means town planning in as far
as it is necessary to protect these investments of the government. I do nob
think he is calling for a comprehensive town plan of a whole city?

The Wirness: Not the street systems and so on.

x
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By the Chairman:

Q. In your recommendation here you say you do not think we have any
information for proceeding at once and suggest just what we should have 18
some kind of national housing authority to study plans before we could make
an intelligent and consistent move?—A. My thought would be that the first
step for this committee to take would be to recommend the appointment 0
a national housing authority, and that that authority should formulate the
method of procedure. It requires a good deal of technical study, but it can be
done; but it would be very difficult for a large committee to arrive at anything
like standards covering regulations.
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Q. That committee should act before any money is advanced through the
government?—A. Absolutely.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q: On page 4 the statement is made: “ Whereas much of the information
contained in this brief deals with housing in urban centres, nevertheless our |
investigations ‘disclose the necessity in rural centres for the rehabilitation and
replacement of obsolete dwellings and farm buildings ”? All the information
here is of an urban nature. Why is there not more information brought to the
committee from rural areas throughout Canada?—A. Because there is no rural
organization to which we could appeal.

Q. You have all the rural muncipalities. The municipalities are just as
well organized in the rural centres as in the urban centres?—A. Our existing
regional committees were utilized.

Q. Is it not because your organization is more effective in the larger
urban centres, more active there?>—A. Undoubtedly.

Mr. Caucnon: They are the only places where they have any.

By Mr. MclIntosh:

Q. Without representatives from the rural areas on your regional com-
mittees?—A. Quite.
- Q. It is a matter of organization?—A. It is a matter of organization. That
18 why I suggested a survey by some government authority which could get
that information much more readily than we could.

Q. I would support Dr. Stanley in what he said that the need in the rural
areas is very great. I think, perhaps, the need is greater than in any urban
g;f_ltl_‘e in Canada?—A. I am glad to hear you say so because we are of that

Inion.

Q. And any investigation should take into consideration the rural parts of
the country.

By Mr. Church:

Q. The first brief we had here contended that there was no need for rural
g on the ground that it could be done by the Farm Board if necessary. I
Wk that is the most important branch of our work. What have you to say
about that? The first brief said that rural housing was not necessary in Canada,
Or that if it was necessary it could be carried on by the Farm Board or in some
Such way. Do you agree with that?—A. No. I do not. I am voicing my
Personal opinion, and I think I am supported by all those on our regional com-
Mittees that that is not the case.
Mr. Cavcmon: Might I qualify that. When I referred to that I meant
Twral housing—farmers’ housing. My suggestion was that the farmer could get

18 aid from the Farm Loan Board.

., Mr. Crurcu: Nothing that you proposed would take care of the most
E}"al point of all, namely, rural housing. Rural housing to-day is against all
Wocx)"lzn laws of public hygiene. It is one of the most important branches of our
M The CrARMAN: Now, gentlemen, if no one has any other question to ask

T. Somerville I think we had better hear Mr. Craig.

Ca Mz, MeInrosm: There is another question. Dr. Stanley has mentioned it.

Witi We not have before this committee some rural organization to give evidence

‘ regard to rural housing needs? Is that possible?

Mi The Cramwman: I went to the Department of Agriculture and saw the

MHISter and he referred me to the Farm Loan Board, and there I saw Mr.
&pherson and had a talk with him, and he said he thought he could get some

hOus
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good information or he knew where he could get it. He said he would study
the situation and tell us in a few days. If any member of the committee knows
anyone who can give this information the committee will-be pleased to hear him.
Certainly there are no definite statistics. Dr. Coats will give facts on Thursday
and Mr. Macpherson is going to try to get us some information.

Mr. McInTosu: It has been mentioned to me that perhaps we could get
very valuable information from the Red Cross organization in western Canada.

The Cuamrman: We would be glad to get it.

Hon. Mr. RixFreT: Is it clear in your mind, Mr. Chairman, that our refer-
ence covers rural housing as well?

The CaarMAN: Oh, yes. It says so definitely.

Hon. Mr. Rixnrrer: Would not that make it very extensive?

The CaamrMan: Urban and rural dwelling houses is what it says. I do not
know whether “ rural ” means farm houses or not, but I take it to mean that.

Now gentlemen, it is getting late, and I think we had better hear Mr. Craig.
Mr. Craig will be introduced by Mr. Markus.

Mr. Markvus: Before introducing Mr. Craig, Mr. Chairman, will you permit
me to say for the benefit of those members of the Housing Committee who are
not familiar with the set up of the National Construction Council, that we have
twenty regional committees located in the principal cities throughout the
Dominion, and it.is from those sources that we were able to give you the informa-
tion we did this morning, thereby giving you a cross section of the housing
situation in Canada. We do not have organizations in the rural communities,
and that is why we are unable to give you a report on that.

I now introduce James Henry Craig, Bachelor of Science, architect, mem-
ber of the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada, ex officio member of the
National Construction Council of Canada. He is chairman of the Finance
committee on housing of the National Construction Council, past pres1dent
of the Ontario Association of Architects, and member of the Ontario Architects’
Registration Board. Mr. Craig was born in Canada and graduated in architee-
ture from the University of Toronto in 1910. He is partner in the firm of Craig
and Madill, Architects, from 1912 to the present time, except during the period
of war service. He served with the second battalion, Canadian Railways Troops,
on the western front as company commander, being proomted to the rank of
Major on the field. He has been architect for several minor housing projects,—
Windsor Court Apartments (118 suites), Windsor, Ontario; Two Hundred St.
Clair Avenue West, Toronto, Four Hundred Avenue Road, Toronto.

James HeENry Craic called.

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, with your permlssmn I am showing some
charts to illustrate the points which I should like to cover in the course of this
brief. Financial consideration must ultimately play an important part in the
adoption of any national housing policy or plan which may be adopted, and this
phase of the problem has been studied by special committees of the Natlonal
Construction Council. In our appendix to the brief, long term finance with
regard to housing is discussed, and the relative financial costs involved in hous-
ing construction in Ontario, Neu York state and Great Britain are tabulated.
I am putting my documents 'this way. Mr. Chauman in your terms of referenceé
I notice the following lines:—

And algo to provide such dwelling houses as may be necessary upon
such terms and conditions as may be best adapted to the needs an
requirements of the people, having regard to the cost of such a polic¥
and the burden to be imposed upon the Treasury of Canada.

Now, this subject that T am going to deal with takes into consideration partlcu‘
larly that phase of the problem. The finance committee of the council
felt that it is perhaps the most important phase by reason of the fact that 1*‘
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1s absolutely essential that any program adopted should not impose a great
burden on the taxpayers of this country at this time. For that reason we
have studied the problem not merely in relation to housing alone, but in relation
to the economic factors that regulate all our activities.

I was at a meeting of the Lieutenant Governor's committee in Toronto on'
Friday, and he made a very interesting announcement. He stated in Great
Britain the Architects’ Association had established a school of national plan-
ning, with the object of training graduate architects, engineers and surveyors
to take their places in the national life of the country; to train them in the
relative positions which one economic activity should have as related to another
economic activity. The plan which I am going to present to you is prepared
by John W. Bell, an industrial engineer, who has done much work in the United
States. He built a $2,500,000 plant in southern India, and he has been a keen
student of economics. I collaborated with Mr. Bell in the preparation of this
plan, and I may say that architectural work being slack during the last three
or four years, I have had lots of time to study economics as a side line in
more ways than one, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Howarp: As we all have.

The Wrtness: When I present this plan to you, I present it as having
een passed by the finance committee of the National Construction Couneil
and passed on to you by that council for your consideration. The plan has
merit in itself. It involves the financing of a national construction program,
a self-liquidating program over a period of three years, through credits advanced
Yy the Bank of Canada. The plan, as I say, has merit in itself. It may
hot be one with which Mr. Graham Towers is entirely in accord. I do not
Presume to talk to learned bankers on economiecs, and I am sure my colleague
Vir. Bell does not propose to do so; but the plan has passed the survey of
One general manager of one of the banks, who says that it is entirely practical.
t has been before eminent economists, and as I present it to you, I should
ike to have your questions as we proceed in order that every point may be
cleared up in so far as possible as we go along. I feel that Rome was not built
I a day, and that perhaps it will take more than one battle to put across
_th1§ idea, maybe not. In any event, we are going to give it to you for what
16 is worth. Is it your idea that I should proceed now or delay this, as it is
about twelve o’clock.
The CuamrMan: We have almost an hour.

. The Wirness: Very good. First of all gentlemen, I am going to show you
his chart (exhibiting chart). You will see here some figures which I collected
fom the Dominion Bureau of Statistics’ Monthly Bulletin. I show the current
Oans extended by the chartered banks in Canada, commencing with October,
929, First of all, let me say this: this is not a reflection upon the banks.
he banks have had to retire the credit which has been retired by reason

O the system under which they work, and if we were in the banking business
We would have to be calling up our clients just as they have called us up,
and ask them to put up a little more collateral or reduce the loan. The fact
1"31118«'{ns, however, that with every sale of collateral, the market for collateral
Seeurities of various types has been reduced.

In October, 1929, the current loans extended by the chartered banks in

Canads totalled $1,473,000,000. That was the high point of the apparent good

llmes that we had enjoyed before the depression. In October, 1931, the current
%ans had heen reduced to $1,141,000,000. In October, 1933, they were down
© 3912,000,000. In July, 1934, they reached a low point of $851,000,000 and
th Ot‘ober, 1934, we were able to show that there was a slight increase. At

at time they reached a total of $896,000,000. You will find these figures
Uoted in the brief, gentlemen, if you wish to refer to them.
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By Mr. Church:

Q. Why are the figures in black? Are the banks in mourning?—A. They
may be.

Q. Why not red?—A. You will notice that the fall in current loans up to
this time was over $600,000,000. In other words, the essential medium of
exchange in Canada, which is bank ecredit, was reduced by some $600,000,000.
Viewing the picture as it is, I think that tells the story of the depression. The
next point I want to make is this: We have in Canada the man power, we
have the raw materials, we have the natural resources, we have everything -
but the necessary means to correlate supply with demand in adequate quanti-
ties. I should like to say this, gentlemen: recently a survey of the potential-
ity of the American industrial machine has been made by a competent com-
mittee of engineers and economists functioning in all parts of the United States,
and a preliminary report has been prepared by Langdon W. Post, tenement
houses commissioner to the national housing authority, and in this report he
shows that the American industrial machine is capable of producing a standard
of living for the American people—the present existing machine—equal to
$4,370 per annum per family, if that machine were utilized.

L Ene et SR bk gty
S P RS M N S R L 5

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. On present day valuation or 1926 valuation?—A. The report was
published only a few months ago, so it must be on present day valuation. In
other words, in order to achieve that, it would be necessary to balance produc-
tion by consumption. The medium of exchange, money,—if you like to put
it the way Dr. Marvin, the economist of the Royal Bank, put it when he
addressed a meeting in Toronto some' three years, ago—in fact, he wrote a
bank letter on the subject. He was a most courageous man. He put it this
way: I may not have his story exactly, but as I recall it, it is something to
this effect. There is the industrial machine. We will liken it to a motor car
running on one cylinder because the distributor does not work. Well gentle-
men, I think the time has come, when we have 1,250,000 people on relief in
Canada, to stop worshipping the distributor, to examine it and repair it.
am not one of those who is in favour of destruction. I believe in making use
of what we have to the best possible advantage. But let us not overlook the
fact that the distributor is not performing its function. What would happen
to an architect, or engineer, Mr. Chairman, if the buildings that they built fell
down pemodlcally every seven years, as the whole structure of our economics
falls down? As a matter of fact my interest in this thing was stimulated by a
lecture given by Dr. Fyfe, principal of Queen’s University at a meeting of the
Engineering Institute in Toronto some two and a half years ago. He stated
that he had been up through the Northern part of Ontario, had been through
the mines, had been through the pulp and paper industries, and he was astounded
with the efficiency of the work of the engineers. But he was very sad at heart =
by reason of the fact that many of these industries were either inoperative or = =
only funcmonmg part time. He recommended that people with engmeerlng
training give their study and thought to this economic structure, in order that
we mlght do something to contribute to putting it on the same :ound basis that
engineering functions upon. .

The reason that I stress this point is this, that 95 per cent by volumeé
of all money transactions take place through the medium of cheques on bank
accounts; and those bank accounts originated almost entlrcly as somebody’®
borrowmg—~95 per cent by volume. My authority for that is the Canada Year
Book, Mr. Chairman. I do not think we need an authority. I think any on€
of us, if we started to figure out the monetary transactions in the course 0%
a year, would find that 95 per cent or perhaps more took place through the 2
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medium of the cheque on the bank account. If that is the case, if 95 per cent
‘of business transactions take place through the medium of eredit money,
‘cheques on bank accounts, does that not explain why, when $600,000,000 of bank
credit is retired in the community, there is the sore point? There is the failure
in our economic system. I will leave that point with you, gentlemen.

I want to say one more thing in that regard. Professor Irving Fisher,
Professor Emeritus in Economics at Yale University, was speaking in Toronto
in 1932, in the Economics Building. Somebody cornered him and asked him
to get down to brass tacks in the matter of the cause of the depression. The
old gentleman, with his beard bristling and his eyes sparkling, said, “ Eight
billion dollars have been destroyed in the United States. The answer to the
problem is to put them back again.” That is the point I am trying to make
here this morning.

I would like to say one other thing, gentlemen. It is now generally known
that the banks do not lend their depositors’ money. A recognition of this fact
is the beginning of wisdom in all these matters. The banks do not lend their
‘depositors’ money. I want you to challenge me on that. I have got rafts of stuff
to give you. I will quote first of all from the MacMillan report—and may I
do that with your permission?

Mr. Howarp: I was smiling because we know it. We all agree.

The Wrrness: I think so.

The CuamrManN: Do not forget that you are talking on housing. Do not
get too enthusiastic about your finanecing.
. The Wrrness: Quite so. But without this basis, any housing policy that
18 adopted will be relatively abortive.

Mr. HaxBURY: I suggest we have been here for five years now, and I don’t
know how many hours or days or weeks that we have listened to similar dis-
cussion. I think that is the reason why this committee has been set up.

The WrrnEss: Quite so.

. Mr. HanBURY: Because we have recognized that there is a condition exist-
ing that must be corrected.

The Wirness: Quite so. T have a note here, Mr. Chairman, from my col-
le?JgUes which says, “ We do not think it is clear to the press and the com-
Mittee that your scheme is presented for information and illustration of what
Jappens in elimination of unemployment. Will you make that clear?” I hope
1 is clear. This scheme has been passed, as I said before, by our finance com-
Wittee, one member of which is here, in addition to myself. Otherwise it is
Presented for information.

Mr. Gray: Go ahead in your own way.

The Wirness: Well, we will follow along. The need for a national housing
Program is closely allied with the problem of unemployment. Figures quoted
¥ the Canadian Council of Child and Family Welfare on June 30, 1933, showed
100,000 persons in Canada to be on relief. The latest figures show the number
9 relief in Canada to be between one and a quarter million and one and a half
llion. You know these things better than I do. My figures may not be
ae.cl}l‘ate, but let us take it somewhere in the neighbourhood of one and a quarter
n}llﬂhom Despite the general improvement in business it is therefore evident
at the numbers on relief continue to grow, and the reason will become evident
We proceed in this discussion. You will see it in figures.

P There is a letter of the Royal Bank of Canada which commences with the
.‘uungent statement “ Over-production of capital goods constitutes the boom;
- Mder-production of capital goods constitutes the depression.” The problem
A P fecovery and the maintenance of permanent economic stability is then the
~ PMoblem of recovery in the durable goods industry, and thereafter the main-
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tenance of economic balance of production and distribution. The bank letter
states further, “It is the building industry and the industries manufacturing
machinery and equipment which have borne the full brunt of the depression.
Where production of goods and elothing have been reduced by ten or fifteen per
cent, the reduction in orders for buildings and machinery and other items of this
nature has amounted to from eighty to ninety-five per cent.”

Under the next heading which is “What One Spends Another Earns”—and
I am now following page 2 of my brief—is the following: When one man who
normally spends all his earnings is thrown out of employment, his purchasing
power is reduced by the amount of the wages which he formerly received; and this
reduction of purchasing power automatically reduces the money in circulation
which pays another man’s wages. In the United Startes, Col. Ayres, of the
Cleveland Trust Company, has compiled figures which demonstrate this prin-
ciple. He stated last June that the unemployed in the durable and building
goods Industries in the United States totalled 4,700,000; and that there were
unemployed in consumable goods 500,000 and in services 3,900,000, or a total of
4,400,000. Therefore, it is fairly obvious that were the 4,700,000 unemployed in
the building and durable goods industries re-employed, the spending of their
earnings would employ the 4,400,000 in the consumable goods and services
industries. This is perhaps an over-simplification of a complex problem, but it
clearly illustrates how re-employment in the durable goods industries is essential
to general recovery.

At this point I just want to show you a chart. This is a chart prepared by
J. J. Gibbons, on Canada’s progress towards recovery. I will give you a copy of
it. The reason I am showing you this is that I am not so concerned in these other
items (indicating), although they all have significance, but this line here (indi-
cating) represents the low of the depression. This line (indicating), this dotted
line, represents average prosperity. Construction has advanced since the low
of the depression by 17 per cent. We are 17 per cent on the way to recovery.
Per capita purchasing power has advanced 17-7 per cent. Mr. Chairman and
gentlemen, I submit that this is another confirmation of this item which I have
read from the Royal Bank letter, which goes on to say that purchasing power per
capita varies almost directly and uniformly with the volume of construction work.

Recovery under a laissez-faire system is dependable upon the return of
public confidence.

By Mr. Gray:

Q. What is the meaning of laissez-faire there?—A. The letting of things
alone; or monkeying with the wrong thing, if you will.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: Because of the fact that this word has come somewhat
~ into current use, may I say here that the French meaning of the word is much

wider than the English meaning. As T understand it, in English it means merely

that the government does not intervene or interfere. In French it means apathy,
indifference, slackness; and that is why I think the word is very equivocal in 8
bi-lingual country.

The Wirness: Thank you for the information. Continuing, recovery under
a laissez-faire system is dependable upon the return of public confidence, the
loosening up of eredits and the extension of building loans at rates of interest
which will encourage the revival in construction.. The recovery is dependent
upon that. ' The public demands a minimum return of six per cent on mortgage
money, and yet the expectancy of receiving this return is so limited that both
borrowers and lenders are scarce. i

Now, I would just like to elaborate for a moment on that point. I got this
from a rather good article in Saturday Night of March 2: “Mortgage lending will
come back if and when depreciation of currency is halted.” That is a poin
to think over. I am not advocating that it be halted, but it is a factor. What 1
going to be; done to revive the construction industry? I realize this, that we aré
not alone in the matter of currency. We are linked up with other nations.
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By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Excuse me for a moment, just on that point. Have you any views on
the relationship between moratoria and the loaning of money?—A. Well, I
believe this, that moratoria were absolutely essential, and they are very desir-
able under conditions of stress for short periods. I have other views, that T am
not going to express here, with regard to methods of loaning money on mortgages.
I think T monopolized a morning at the Royal Architectural Institute’s meeting
in Montreal a year ago on that. I won’t go into it here. We are dealing with
| things as they are.
R Q. But moratoria are?—A. Yes, they exist. They have a depreciating effect,
because they make it difficult for the mortgagee to obtain his money when he is
entitled to it under his contract; and yet there is the equity of the man who took
3 the initiative, which must, in a measure, be safeguarded.
i Q. Do you not think that moratoria have some relationship to the fact that
- there has been less building?—A. Undoubtedly it is a very considerable factor.

f Q. Do you not think that moratoria will have to be raised before there will

p be any great amount of building?—A. In some cases it may not be possible to

¢ raise them. I would not want to express an opinion on that. My view is this,

: that building must be stimulated regardless of moratoria, regardless of the

: restrictions which tend to make mortgage money searce. That is the point I

Wwant to make. The second point comes to your point. There must be security

of principal and interest; that is, there must be a reasonable degree of prosperity.

& We have got to create prosperity before we get out of our ills; and we have got

' to find a way of doing it which is perhaps a different way to the one we are
| accustomed to.

Mr. Howarp: Hear, hear.

The Wirness: The buying and selling of houses and shops is a factor.
There has got to be a demand for property. People have to be able to realize
on their investments. The value of buildings depends upon their earning power,
bl{t it also depends upon taxation. We have got to lighten the burden of tax-
ation. We have got to get rid of unemployment relief.

Mr. Howarp: Hear, hear.

The WrirNess: Provision for the calculation of payments when due is another
feature, if default means anything; then, expensive legal transactions are neces-
Sary in order for the mortgagee to obtain what is coming to him. There are all
the other things that interfere with the extension of mortgage loans at this time;
and I do not think I am out of place in referring to the borrowings of the
governments—doubtless there is some other method of taking care of it, I think
the method has been established, but the fact remains that the competition of
8overnments all through Canada—I am not referring to the national government,

ut to all governments—with the mortgage loan market has put the construction
Usiness out of business. These are the things, gentlemen, that are so responsible
at this time. /

I have dealt with this point, what one man spends another earns. The
‘ Decessary confidence cannot be restored upon an adequate scale until unem-
I\ Ployment is eliminated and wages restored to a normal level. Now, you can’t
% Merely raise wages, even if you raise them uniformly all through the economic

StI‘u(!ture, unless you put back in credit money to pay them and pay a profit.
€ are trying to run a profit system, and at the same time to destroy the profit
SVstem, to take away the money that is needed to pay the little bit of profit
that the manufacturer and producer is entitled to. We have got to get back

Some way, :
5 One other point though, gentlemen; while I have said something about
o Merely raising the wages; in order to buy all the automobiles that can be
' ) prOQiUCed, in order to buy all the shoes that can be produced with our present
~ “Quipment—all the radios, all the refrigerators, and what have you—the only
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way to get that done is to increase the purchasing power of the wage earner,
increase his ability to consume. It must be increased, otherwise we are going
to follow along on the low level which we have been following. The public
must become convinced that industry does not support the wage earner, but
that the wage earner is the essential support of industry. Employment does
and must precede recovery. What we are trying to do is to follow along
through this depression and attain recovery through the old method. This
depression is too severe to achieve that end. We have to stimulate employ-
ment if we are going to get out of it without Huey Longs or people of that
kind coming along to take over our affairs.

The Cramrman: Before you proceed, it seems to be running along pretty
well toward half-past twleve and I do not think you could finish by one
o’clock, could you?

The WrrNess: I don’t think so:

The CuaieMAN: I think we ought to have an afternoon session. This
witness has just about finished with the financial end of his presentation, and
I notice that he has some comments to make on the point of actual construction.
Would it not be well for us to adjourn now until this afternoon, if we are
going to have an afternoon session; or, would you care to proceed.

Mr. Howarp: We have another half hour.

The CuamrMmAN: If the members are willing we can go on.

The Wirness: This is a good time to stop, if you have to stop.

The CuamrMAaN: That is why I bring the question up now.

Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: Could Mr. Craig reasonably expect to finish in the
time remaining between now and one o’clock?

The Wrrxess: I hardly think so. I am dealing with questions which are
largely a matter of simple mathematics, but no doubt there will be certain
things which you would like to have explained a little more fully. I would
like to have every member of this committee follow me through this thing,
because I know—here is a point, whether you agree with the method of
financing I am suggesting or not is not so important as that you should see
the picture that evolves from providing the necessary housing at this time,
that is the important thing.

Mr. Haxsury: Let us go on for another half hour.

The CuAIRMAN: Let us decide this thing now. We have Mr. J. Y. McCarter
here representing Vancouver interests.

Mr. Stantey: I would suggest that we go ahead.

The CuamrrMAN: Mr. McCarter is here to appear before the committee
and he is probably the only witness we will be able to get from Vancouver,
so I would like to have an afternoon meeting. We will proceed now if
you wish.

Mr. Gray: Let us go on until one o’clock now.

The CHAIRMAN: As you wish.

The Wrrness: Very good, sir. I will show you the next chart. The
chart you have just seen, is “cause”; and this one is “effect.” The volume 0
construction contracts awarded in Canada in 1926 amounted to $372,947,900;
in 1929 they raised the volume to $576,651,800. In other words, gentlemen,
that was our proven capacity for construction output in this country. Tha
is not a theory, we have the man power, we had the equipment, we have al
the necessary things and let contracts totalling that amount in 1929. But
somehow or other all that disappeared again by 1933 until we got down t0
$97,369,800.

i
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By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Taking the average of the most active building period in the history
of the country, what would be the average for a period of say ten years?—
A. About $300,000,000, I will come to that, sir.

. Hon. Mr. RixrreT: Do you not think that in 1929 there was more build-
ing done than should have been?

Mr. Howarp: Sure.
The Wrrness: I agree that for our economic set up there was more build-

_ ing done perhaps than we needed; but let us look at it this way, the figures

show what we were able to do by way of construction in 1929. We had the
men with which to do it, we also had the natural resources, the equipment and
all the rest of it.

Mr. StanrEY: Look at all the stocks we were able to buy too.

The Wrrness: That, of course, was a factor.

By Mr. White (London) :

Q. Is there not another feature there, that the 1933 figure represents pro-
Portionately a great deal more building than the 1929 figure on account of the
Variation in prices?—A. Yes, there was a drop of possibly 20 per cent. I go into
that here, right the next thing. Last year we were up to $125,800,000. Allowing
Or a reduction in the cost of construction the figures for 1926 may be assumed
to represent $300,000,000; that is, technically 1926 is to be considered a fair
Year. On the same basis we must expect an increase in construction in 1935
of $175,000,000 over last year’s program of $125,000,000 if we are to reach
Dormal times within a year.

Q. Our present costs are above the 1926 costs; but some are lower, are they
Not?—A. Some are lower than that, yes.

By Mr. Howard.:

Q. Labour is very much lower while other things are very little lower?—
A-.One of our great problems is that very thing of which you speak, labour on
Yelief heing employed in cities for building houses, the result of that has been

at the legitimate housing industry has been put out of the picture.

N Allowing for a reduction in the cost of construction, the figure of 1926 may
€ assumed to represent a $300,000,000 construction program based on to-day’s
Uilding costs, and as 1926 is generally conceded to be a normal year, we must

$Xpect an increase in 1935 of $175,000,000 over last year’s program of

8.125,000,000, if we are to obtain normaley in one year. Well, that is out of the
Icture, we can’t do it.
Mr. Howarp: I would not say that.

The Wirness: To achieve this, activity must be stimulated, and yet such
& Program must avoid a conflict with private enterprise which would retard
eeco"el‘y from this source. The national government is the only body large
Mough to minister to an adequate program on a national scale.
. NOW, I have something here I would like to read. 7 This i§ a paragrap}} frorp
litenry Clay, who is a very outstanding British economist. It is contained in this
tle book, “ The World’s Economic Crisis ” the “ Halley Stewart Lect';ure 19:.31. 2
ea' ter, Stamp, Keynes, Blackett, Clay, Beveridge—six of the leading British
Conomigts: :

In the position the country is in to-day the only authority or person
flhat can start a spending movement big enough to resto‘re a_ppr'eclably
Industrial activity is the Government. Such expenditure is eriticized on
the ground that the Government should practise the most rigid economy.

°mHhis criticism seems to me to turn on a misconception of the nature of
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economy. It is obviously economy to meet your current expenditure on
current objects out of your current income; it would be unsound for the !
British Government to go on meeting the cost of unemployment relief, for |
example, by borrowing, because that is a current need exhausted in the
course of the current financial year. But if the object of expenditure is
some capital purpose, or a housing scheme, an object which will last
years, and will give its return over many years, then it is not uneconomical,

it is merely ordinary financial common sense, to finance the expenditure

by a loan. Arrangements should be made to ensure that the loan is repaid

by means of a sinking fund within the life of the object on which the
expenditure is incurred; but to object to borrowing for such a purpose is
merely to ignore the distinction between capital and income account.

Lacking effective demand (that is, ready money and a desire to invest in
construction), a very real demand exists in the obsolescence of dwellings which
are occupied by low paid workers. This demand exists not only in the slums of
great cities but in towns and villages and on the farms, and the provision of
adequate housing for this class of worker provides an uncompetitive field for the
absorption of the unemployed construction workers on a national scale and in
localities in which they at present reside.

A brief survey of Toronto’s slum areas should convince an unprejudiced
observer that private enterprise had done nothing in more than fifty years to
improve dwelling conditions for the minimum wage earner. The replacement of |
slum dwellings and minimum cost houses throughout the country should then, |
provide the ideal uncompetitive field. 4

Mr. Howarp: Hear, hear.

The Wrirness: I think, gentlemen, you have had enough evidence to |
satisfy you that this is an uncompetitive field. %

On page 56 of the report of the Lieutenant-Governor’s Committee on 1
Housing Conditions in Toronto, it is demonstrated that the minimum wage l
earner cannot afford to pay more than $10 to $12 per month, even in good
times. Annual operating costs from the Governor’s report is given below, with
a third column added; showing annual operating costs in interest at the rate ]
of 24 per cent per annum. 7zt

|

ESTIMATED ANNUAL COSTS OF OPERATION OF $2,700 HOUSE IN TORONTO ?
|

|

{

Taxes (land and building).. $ 55 00 $ 55 00 $ 55 00 3

MEARATORIONE 55 o Baia . am e B0 15 00 15 00 15 00 B

07510 970 (Lo st B LS e A L2 4 00 4 00 4 00

MAInEenaNCR -« wo s aihieloiniion 40 00 40 00 40 00

Amortization in 50 years.. .. 16 95 16 95 16 95 3

Interest on $2,700 @ 6%.. .. 162 00 @ 4% 108 00 @ 21% 67 50 e
FothE s e S $292 95 $238 95 $198 45

The Cuamman: How could you ever rent that building for $12 a month
if you got no return. You could just barely rent it. A

Mr. Howarp: That chart shows really that you can’t afford to go over
$2,000 on this type of building—A. The $2,700 type is taken by this charb _
for purposes of comparison. g

By Mr. Hanbury: -~
Q. Does that $2,700 include the property?—A. It includes the land.

By the Chairman:

Q. Is not that $2,700 house about the minimum which they thought suit-
able for construction in Toronto?—A. That is what they consider a minimum
for a house, working it out on the basis of the figures in the Governor’s report-
You will see later on that the scheme which we propose would bring the rent
of an apartment down to $12.55 per month for a three roomed suite.
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By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. You make no allowance for vacancies?—A. No. The point is this.
These houses would be available at relatively lower rents than any of the
competitors from outside, so as long as there are people there would be no
vacancies. There is no need for considering vacancies in this picture.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:
} Q. What will be the effect if it brings down the rents on privately owned
L property ?—A. There should not be enough of it.

1 Mr. Howarp: Overcome that by reducing the interest rate on privately
,1}5 owned properties.

i By Mr. White:
B Q. How is the taxation arrived at?—A. Thirty-three mills in the city of
: Toronto, 50 per cent exemption on the value of the building, because anything
under $2,000 in the city of Toronto is exempt 50 per cent. And then it steps up.
The percentage varies with the increase.

Q. $2,700 is the house and property?—A. House and lot.

i
I
I
¥
i
|
e

i By Mr. Stanley:

= Q. That means that if the lowest wage earner is getting a house he can

afford to pay $12 a month. Then the loaning authority will have to provide
he money at 24 per cent in the first place and provide a subsidy of, say,
6 a month?—A. On this basis. This is not exactly the basis I am recom-

mending, as you will see as we go forward. I am showing the comparative
gures with those published in the Lieutenant-Governor’s report, and showing
e effect of reducing the interest rate in bringing down the rent.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. What proportion of the $2,700 would the cost of the house be?—
A. A little over $2,000. That would be land at $30 a foot.
. Q. How far out of Toronto would that be?—A. That would be property
Yight down in some of the poorer sections more or less centrally located.
basing the property on a little appreciation on the assessed value, or attempt-
Ing to assess the property in Toronto at actual value—the buildings are about

6 per cent assessed normally. The low ones, below $2,000, are exempt by
per cent.

By Hon. Mr. Morand: ;

Q. Have you figured the deflationary effect upon all the property now
Constructed?—A. As a matter of fact, this would have, to my thinking, an
Wflationary effect. The great fault with our whole slum condition is that it

evelops slum rot which always extends to adjacent properties. All the

8uthorities should agree on that. That is not my opinion. You will find that .

I the Lord Amulree report to the British government—a recent report over
ere; and it was dealt with very extensively by Mr. Kahn and some other

Quthority at a recent meeting of the Canadian Construction Association at
Ontreal.

Q. You are taking the low wage as a permanent basis?—A. Yes.

. Q. Instead of attempting to raise your wages you are attempting to bring
d",Wn your construction to your wages?—A. No. We are really dealing with
~ ®isting conditions.
i Q. And taking them as normal?—A. No. Well—no. As a matter of fact
ot g‘eﬁe figcures quoted from the Lieutenant Governor’s report refer to normal
Mes. A lot of these people now are on relief, and they cannot pay.
95353_3*
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By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Is there not also the assumption that if there is an increase in wages
there will also be an increase in the cost of construction, so that your ratio
of one-fifth of a man’s earnings would still carry?—A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. MoranD: I do not think that carries. If that had been true your
total cost of construction would have gone down in proportion to your wages,
and it has not.

- The Wrrness: Of course, I think a properly organized national authority
would consider very carefully construction costs on work of this kind. They
would have comparative figures from different sources and they might be in a
position even to ask certain individuals to reduce, if necessary, the cost of
certain commodities where there seems to be an over-charge.

Mr. HanBury: If there is an over-charge under normal conditions I do
not see why we should ask people to reduce beyond fair prices.

The Wirness: No. We are trying to get back to normal conditions.

Hon. Mr. Moranp: By what percentage have wages gone down?

The Wrrness: Wages to-day are the most difficult thing—

Hon. Mr. Moranp: Have they gone down 50 per cent?

Mr. Howarp: More.

The WirNEss: A man on relief, if he be so constituted, will take as low as
20 cents an hour for his time, and we know that wages of that type have been
paid.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. Say 50 per cent. By what percentage has your material gone down?—
A. Oh, less than 20 per cent.

By Mr. White:

Q. Mr. Reilly made the statement the other day that material prices are
57 per cent of what they were in 1920?—A. 57 per cent?

Q. Are now at 57 per cent of what they were in 1920?—A. I have not seen
those figures.

Q. And he also made the statement that wages are 86 per cent of what
they were in 1926?—A. Well, you see, Mr. Reilly was speaking with regard
to agreements between employers and labour when he quoted wages on that
scale. That is probably accurate, but I want to point out—

Q. This had to do with unions?—A. Quite. I want to point out the dis-
rupting fact in connection with relief labour at the present time—men who
are taking relief and at the same time working and avoiding—you see what I
mean. I know these things exist. I think we all know they exist. Now, t0
start with the housing plan itself. Private investors, gentlemen, are not in-
terested in a return of 2% per cent. I do not think any of you gentlemen aré
interested in that return on your money. Consequently this source of funds
is cut off. You can forget about it. However, there is a source from wh:wh
the necessary funds can be raised without the burden of additional taxation
or the imposition of excessive interest charges. The Dominion government may
- divert a portion of the funds at present raised for relief purposes into a national
housing program, and finance the balance of the cost by government lending _3t
a rate not exceeding 24 per cent. This is the only source which can prov1de
the necessary funds to finance the self-liquidating program on a national scale:
I mean by that the government has to take some initiative if the funds aré
to be forthcoming for the financing of this scheme on what may be termed
relatively self-liquidating basis in any national housing scheme.
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By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Could you give us any idea as to what the government would lose by
advancing the money at 24 per cent?—A. It will not lose anything. You will
see 1t is going to make a lot of money. It is going to make about $380,000 on
every million dollars loaned.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. That excess would not be returned to the government. If the govern-
ment loaned the money at 2} per cent that is final as far as the government is
concerned?—A. No. If you follow you will see.

Q. I was following the interrupter.

By Mr. Stanley :

Mr. Craig sets it down as fundamental that the taxpayer has to house
these people; if he houses them in the slums it is expensive work ; if he houses
them in other places it is less costly?—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Have you considered what naturally the government should be able
to obtain that money for?—A. Yes, sir. I am coming to that right now. In this
Scheme you will notice in the next paragraph that it says: “ Loaned to muni-
Clpalities.” Since this paragraph was written we have had several meetings of
our committees in the National Construction Council, and we came to the
conclusion that everything should be organized, as Mr. Somerville pointed
out, through the National Housing authority. The funds should then be loaned

municipalities for slum clearance and municipal housing projects. Loans
0 private individuals would be made directly by the regional representatives
of the National Housing authority. This contemplates not merely loans for
€ purpose of slum clearance and rehousing, but it also contemplates the
Provision of low interest bearing money to others in the low income group who
ave homes of their own, and who would like to either rehabilitate their
Omes or, where the homes are obsolete, replace them. And we go on to say:
hereas the Dominion government can exert no direct control over housing in
1€ provinces, it should determine that loans which it extends for housing
Purposes are to be economically and efficiently expended, if a lot of useless
Monuments to the depression are to be avoided.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

¢ Q. T see in the draft report you have cancelled several lines which proposed
O act through the provinces. Your final view is that the federal government
Should act directly with the municipalities?—A. We more or less came to that
View by reason of the fact that it would eliminate a secondary control and that
€ control would be direct through the national authority with the local authority
Ich, T think, probably would mean that there would be better administration.
mittMr' StanLEY: We had better pass those lines on to the B.N.A. Act com-
ee

M The Wrrness: It might be necessary. The point in that is the one that
A r. S(_)merville raised that if the government is going to provide these funds for
) Specific purpose—a purpose which at least some feel is one that has to do with
eabour and industry—they should have some say in how these funds would be
hxpel_lded: Whereas the Dominion government can exert no direct control over
Ousfng in the provinces it should determine that loans which it qxtends for
u:usmg purposes are to be economically and efficiently expended, if a lot of
Dele_ss monuments to the depression are to be avoided. To accomplish this, a
Ominjon housing commission should be established which should employ
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technicians competent to pass on all municipal projects for which loans are to
be made. Funds should be available for two types of enterprise: (1) slum
clearance and rehousing; (2) loans to private owners of low cost dwellings which
are now obsolete and which should be replaced. .

From available figures we are of the opinion that 7 per cent of all urban
and rural housing in Canada, or approximately 130,000 dwellings are obsolete.
It is estimated that of this number 40,000 are in the slums of the cities and large
towns. The 90,000 remaining houses include among the occupants many owners,
and of this group a large number are restrained from rebuilding because of pre-
vailing interest rates and amortization charges.

By Myr. Church:
Q. And taxes?—A. And taxes.

Q. I should say so—A. The cost of living of such an owner would now be
inereased by $25 per month on a house costing $3,000. Under the plan which
is proposed, the increased living costs would be but $13 per month, which in
many cases can be borne and should provide the necessary stimulant to housing
construction in this group. In presenting this plan, we are not insensible to the
fact that there would be very great difficulties, perhaps, in getting this money
out. I heard about one housing plan that proposed to get $400,000,000 in one
year. Well, anybody who is in the practical world of affairs knows that just
cannot be done. But we think that if it were found that there was some responsi-
bility like town planning and other program requisites, the plan could be aug-
mented to some extent by the government’s policy of building public buildings,
and so on.

This plan proposes that the amortization period be not fifty years as down
here, but only forty years. Now, if it were worked out on a fifty-year basis,

we could reduce the rents further. This is only an outline, a suggestion; it is

not a perfect plan, but it is the basis on which a perfect plan could be evolved.

To Municipal Housing Commissions, loans would be extended for a period
of forty years at a rate of two per cent—you see we are talking about two per
cent, not two and a half—with an amortization of two and a half. You see,
interest at the rate of two and a half per cent, over a forty-year period of
amortization, means a little over 14 per cent per annum paid out over the forty
years, so that the total amount paid would be 5% per cent, not 7 per cent per
annum. :

To finance the program, the Dominion government, over a three-year period,
would sell to the Bank of Canada its securities amounting to $400,000,000. The
amount required for slum clearance, 30 per cent of the total, or $120,000,000
should be obtained at the rate of two per cent—I think we turn a page here, or
very soon—and the remaining $280,000,000 at the rate of 2 per cent. The
Bank of Canada would receive no interest. Now we have shown, gentlemen,
already one of the reasons for this preliminary discussion with regard to the
banks ereating deposits and that sort of thing, just to prepare our minds for
the fact that it is a book-keeping entry in the books of the Bank of Canada.
And all that the Bank of Canada requires to be paid in order to transact that
deal is enough to pay for its overhead and its cost of operation. That is a_ll
that is necessary. If there are any profits after the shareholders are paid their
4} per cent, they must go back to the government.

Mr. Howarp: And the wear and tear on the gold.

The Wirxess: Don’t forget that.

Mr. StaniteEy: And the printing.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: That meets the point I raised a. moment ago.

The Wrirness: That meets your point.
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By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. What effect would that have on your currency, $400,000,000 put out at
4} per cent?—A. On the currency of Canada?

Q. Yes?—A. In foreign markets?

Q. Yes?—A. It should have no effect. If that money is going to be spent
in Canada, it would have no effect. It won't affect the Canadian dollar; it is
not money, it is credit. There is a distinction between money and credit.
Money is something that has been saved up from past enterprise, the balance
that has been saved. Credit is a book-keeping entry on the part of some
authority to permit future activity, which is self-liquidating and will pay for-
1tself.

Mr. Hansury: Hear, hear.

Hon. Mr. MoraxDp: This is the first time I ever heard the distinction made.

The Wirness: Well, there is a distinction, and so far as that distinction is
concerned, gentlemen, it is not original. I read it from an article in the monthly
letter, National State Bank, New York.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: That is very interesting.
Mr. Cuurcu: We better recommend you for an O.B.E..
Mr. HaxBury: That was said by Jackson Dodds in his speech some time

. ago.
The Witness: Yes. I am trying to keep on safe ground. There is plenty
of safe ground in this case, lots of it.
By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. That is very interesting, but when credit becomes due, you must have
the money to meet it—A. Yes, it must be self-liquidating, and this whole brief
I8 on the assumption that it would be reasonably self-liquidating.

By Mr. Stanley:

W Q. You must have new currency then?—A. No new currency in this scheme.
may be advisable to use new currency in preference to this, but it is not for

e to say that; it is a matter of national policy.

Q. If we can do it for $400,000,000, why not $4,000,000,000?
Mr. Caurca: The banks are privately owned.

The WiTNEss: Are you going to be able to liquidate $4,000,000,000?
Mr. Stantey: I don’t know.

) The Wirness: That is the point. T will tell you a little story about a gen-
.®Man who was a Russian banker previous to the revolution. When the revolu-
1_1011 occurred he was head over a bank in a large district in Russia, and the
volutionists got hold of him and told him he had to ereate money for them.
€ had to create something. They needed money of some description. He had
n(; 0 1t, Tl-lere was no answer to it or he would meet the fate that other people
ine't n Russia at that time. There was quite a group of them, and he said, come
A and set down what you consider yourselves to be worth in rubles and each
One of them set down what he considered himself to be worth. He said, “Now,
wam going to loan you credit to the extent of your personal estimate of your own
€alth, but you have to pay it back.”

By. Mr. Stanley:
Yo Q. Why do you pick $400,000,0002 That is an arbitrary sum. How do
’whu know we can liquidate $400,000,000 and cannot liquidate $800,000,000, or
Vpey do you not start with $100,000,0007—A. Because we figured that seven
im" cent of the houses were obsolete in that low area, and it would cost appro-

g 5 ately $400,000,000 to build that seven per cent of the houses, taking care

‘ f‘ the seven per cent new houses and rehabilitation.
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Q. Your argument is dependent upon the ability to liquidate the amount
that is put into it?—A. Quite.

Q. Are you sure you will liquidate $400,000,000? That is my point.—
A. 1 think the answer to that is simply this, that it will depend on your
national survey or your central housing authority to corroborate this estimate.
We are giving something. We are using that estimate as a basis. I will tell
you how we arrived at it, so that you will know that we just did not take a
shot in the dark and say, “We need $400,000,000.” We arrived at it in this
way: There was a survey made of some thirty different cities, as I recall it,
in the United States, to check up on obsolescence in low cost houses and that
sort of thing; and they found that seven per cent was about the average.
Then I took the Lieutenant-Governor’s report in Toronto, which showed that
4,000 houses must be replaced, and said nothing at all about rehabilitation.
Well, if we estimate that there would be as much rehabilitation as there is new
housing required, that would be 8,000 houses in Toronto where we have about
109,000 houses; in other words, over seven per cent. We estimate that
probably would hold good for the whole of the country, more or less, on that
basis.

Q. Have you taken into consideration any ecalculation of the portion of
theése which will not be liquidated? There will certainly be some of them
fall down?—A. Yes.

Q. Who is going to provide for them?—A. When you see the answer—a
saving of $380,000,000 of the present relief costs—when we come to it, you
will say, “ Let us take care of the deficits through that fund, if necessary.”

Q. It will not be charged back on the general taxpayer?—A. No, it should
not be; because it is going to save the general taxpayer a lot of money if it
is adopted. ]

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. Your maximum will find its own level by the demand for it that may
come?—A. Quite true. This is an outline, and I am glad to have all these
questions, because they give us the chance to tell you how we arrive at it.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is one o’clock.
Mr. HaxBURY: At what time shall we meet?

The CuAlRMAN: Some one spoke about what was going on in the House
just after lunch. What time do you think we had better come back?

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: 1 am only expressing my own view. I was going t0
say four o’clock.

Mr. HanBURY: Yes, four o’clock.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: That will give us a chance to speak on the orders
of the day.

The CuamrrMAN: All right. We will adjourn now until four o’clock.

The committee adjourned at 1.00 p.m., to meet again at 4.00 p.m.

AFTERNOON SITTING

The committee resumed at 4.30 o’clock p.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, come to order. We will ask Mr. Craig to
proceed.

James Hexry Craig, recalled.

o
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The CHAalRMAN: Proceed, Mr. Craig.

The Wrrness: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, to resume from where we
left off this morning—

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. I am not clear where you get this $400,000,0007—A. I will clear up
that .point. First of all I would like to make this clear that in suggesting a
program of this magnitude the suggestion comes from the finance committee of
the National Construction Council, not from the general body. It is sent
on to you by the general body I think with the idea of illustrating the effect
that a program of this magnitude would have on eliminating unemployment.
I think that was the primary purpose. Am I right in that?

Mr. WesT: Correct.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. You are thoroughly satisfied in your mind that a program of public
works would eliminate the problem of unemployment temporarily and not
permanently?—A. I will distinguish between public works and self-liquidat-
Ing public works or between public works and self-liquidating housing. If the
project is not self-liquidating it has to be paid for in some way sooner or later
by the taxpayer or out of savings. It may pay for itself in increased revenue
to the country, but there is a distinction in this plan that emphasizes the import-
ance of a self-liquidating program of housing, for instance. To show where
the $400,000,000 would come from. In the first place, I just want to réad briefly
from the preamble of chapter 43, “An Act to incorporate the Bank of
Canada ”:—

Whereas it is desirable to establish a central bank in Canada to
regulate credit and currency in the best interests of the economic life
of the nation, to control and protect the external value of the national
monetary unit and to mitigate by its influence fluctuations in the general
level of production, trade, prices and employment, so far as may be
possible within the scope of monetary action, and generally to promote
the economic and financial welfare of the Dominion.”

I feel that this recommendation is one which comes well within the requirements
of the purpose for which the Bank of Canada was set up in that regard. Now,
then, how is the Bank of Canada going to issue $400,000,000 of credit? I think
at is your question, sir.
Q. No. My question was as to how you arrived at that figure—A. Now,
that ig quite different. I arrive at that figure when that figure was given
at 7 per cent of the houses in the low group throughout Canada were either
Obsolete or required replacement, and the estimated cost of replacing those

“houses together with the needed money for buying the slum land and slum

tlearance would come somewhere in the neighbourhood of $400,000,000 which
Includes only 30 per cent for slum clearance and 70 per cent by private persons
or the replacement of their properties which are obsolete. That clears up
at point.

Now, how can the Bank of Canada lend that amount of money? I will

Tead from section 21 of the Bank of Canada Act:—
To buy and sell securities issued or guaranteed by the Dominion of
Canada or any province, having a maturity exceeding two years from
the date of acquisition by the bank but the bank shall at no time hold
such securities . . . of a par value in excess of three times the amount

1 of the paid-up capital of the bank.

b must he long term money; it must be more than five year money. It is

Provided at 3 per cent under section 25 of the Act.
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Now, the proposal we are offering is one that may be carried out under
the terms of the Act as it is at present drafted provided the directors of the
Bank voted to increase the capital stock we will say to $200,000,000. They
could increase it to less than that, but we will say for the purpose of easy
figures to $200,000,000; and instead of lending three times that amount,
$600,000,000 we suggest that they lend $400,000,000, or that they buy govern-
ment securities to the extent of $400,000,000. Am I correct in that, Mr.
Chairman?

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Do you mean that $400,000,000 is going to be put out in a short
period?—A. Over three years. This plan contemplates the putting up of
$300,000,000 over a period of three years. Gentlemen, let me point out to
you that $600,000,000 of credit has been retired in a period of five years.
Why should not $400,000,000 be put back in a period of three years if we
are going to make the machine work?

By Mr. Whte:

Q. Did I understand you to say in the earlier part of your remarks that
Mr. Towers was not in agreement with you on this?—A. No, not at all. This
has not been brought to the attention of Mr. Towers.

Q. There was some reference to Mr. Towers in your opening remarks?—
A. They were to the effect that Mr. Towers may have a better method than
this of financing a government program of housing.

Q. It led me to believe that he did not agree with this idea?—A. No.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. He has not pronounced on this question?—A. No, not at all. I do
not think it has been brought to his attention.

Mr. West: I still think that perhaps some of the members of the com-
mittee are not clear on what you mean. It seems to me that they think you
are advocating a campaign of $400,000,000 to be spent by the council.

The Wirness: I will make that clear, that the National Construction
Council is not, as a council, advocating the expenditure of $400,000,000 on
housing. They have set no amount, but they were sufficiently intrigued with
the results of such a plan to endorse its presentation to this committee as
information. Do I make that clear? The finance committee of the Council
v;las tllle only body that thoroughly endorsed the plan. I want to make
that clear.

By the Chairman:
Q. What is the present stock of the Bank of Canada?—A. The present stock
is only $5,000,000.
Q. You have increased it by $200,000,000?—A. Increased it by $200,000,000
under this proposal. It can lend three times the amount of their capital stock.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. Did you say by $200,000,000 or to $200,000,000?—A. That is the point
that has got to be cleared—inereased it by $200,000,000. By so doing, under

section 21 of the Act, subsection D, the bank could buy government securities 0F 3

securities guaranteed by the Dominion government not exceeding $600,000,000-
We are proposing that only $400,000,000 be used. Let the bank have the other
$200,000,000 to carry on with other necessary financing of other business. The
point is that there is a reserve there. We are not asking that the total amount 0
$200,000,000 new stock be used as a backing entirely and exclusively for credit
in establishing a housing problem.
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Now, then, the bank pays to its shareholders 44 per cent. Interest at 4%
per cent on $200,000,000 capital stock would be $9,000,000 per annum. That is
what they have to pay the stockholders. If the money were loaned to the
Dominion government, or the credit perhaps I should say on this basis, 2 per
cent on $120,000,000, the annual payment would be $2,400,000 in interest and 23
per cent on $280,000,000 the annual payment would be $7,000,000 or a total pay-
ment of interest annually of $9,400,000 would be required by the government to
the Bank of Canada. But as the Bank of Canada has increased its capital stock
only by half the amount borrowed—by $200,000,000—it pays to its shareholders
" 44 per cent on that amount, or $9,000,000, leaving $400,000 annually to pay the
overhead and carrying charges of the bank; to pay for the operation in other
words. Now, is there any question on that?

By Mr. Gray:

Q. Does that mean you expect a return from the slum clearance of 2 per
cent or does it mean the government absorbs the 2 per cent to the Bank of
Canada?—A. Under this plan we would charge only 2 per cent for money to be
used for slum clearance.

Q. The government of Canada would absorb that because you do not expect
any return?—A. Yes, we expect that to be paid.

Q. By whom?—A. By the tenants of the buildings.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. In the form of rental?—A. Yes. Is it quite clear where this credit comes
from? It was because of this problem that I dealt at length with the problem of
bookkeeping money this morning. This is quite within the terms of the Bank Aect
—to increase the credit of the country to this extent, providing it can sell
$200,000,000 additional securities to the country; but I would point out, Mr.

hairman, at this time when good securities are securities that 44 per cent
Money is very attractive to a lot of people, and there is a tremendous lot of
Money in the savings banks waiting for investment. The first issue of stock was
very greatly over-subscribed. If that point is clear I think I can proceed. For
the benefit of the member who has just come in (Mr. Bourgeois) I would say
that the proposal is to increase the capital stock of the Bank of Canada by
$200,000,000 which would pay interest at the rate of 44 per cent per annum—a
total of $9,000,000. In other words, $9,000,000 would be paid to the shareholders
of the bank, and the government would borrow twice that amount from the bank
by the sale of securities, paying 2 per cent on $120,000,000, or $2,400,000, and 2%
ber cent on $280,000,000 or $7,000,000. The total interest paid on these securities
Yould be $9,400,000, and the total that the bank would pay out to its share-

olders would be $9,000,000 leaving $400,000 to take care of the transaction by
In:tg)ank' That point is important, gentlemen, because it is the crux of this
er.
. As I pointed out earlier all profits of the Bank of Canada over and above the
IMterest paid to the shareholders returns to the government in any event so that
€ $400,000 should be ample to cover the actual cost to the bank.

W Now, we come to perhaps the most interesting part of this whole discussion.
o1& show by this chart the benefits to be obtained by the government lending
31,900’000 for housing on the basis herein suggested. We have taken it on the

asis of $1,000,000 because it is easier to take in these terms than the large
&Mounts, and then giving a recapitulation showing what it would be if the entire

rogram were carried out over a period of years. This column is the cost of land

) administration, this is the cost of new dealings—30 per cent for slum
gearance, or $300,000; an item of $120,000 would be needed out of that to pay
- Or the Jand and slum clearance and $180,000 would go into new buildings. In
359 case of private borrowers, of 70 per cent of this total of $1,000,000 or $700,000,

ber cent would go into administration.
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Q. That is 3% per cent?—A. 3% per cent, yes—5 per cent would go into
administration because they already own the land, and the balance of $665,000
would be spent on new buildings or on rehabilitation. Now, the total to be
expended on new dwellings would be $845,000. That is the figure we are con-
cerned with, because that is the money spent on new dwellings or on rehabilitation
that will go into labour, and the purpose of this is to show what will happen to
unemployment if it is adopted. Now, it is almost established without question
that 80 per cent of all construction costs are either directly or indirectly labour
costs. That goes a lot further back than the men working immediately on the
job; it means transportation, the preparing of materials in the shops, and right
back to the forests and the mines—but 80 per cent has been established as a
reasonable basis as the percentage of labour involved in any construction pro-
gram. Now, then, 80 per cent of this amount to be spent on housing would
provide a payroll of $676,000 for every million dollars loaned. For the purpose
of this plan we have assumed an average wage of 60 cents per hour. Sixty cents
per hour with a five-day week and 36 weeks per year—not the whole year. If
men employed on this were employed only for 36 weeks in the year 782 men
would each receive $864 per year. Now, that is simple mathematics. I think
it is clear. Is there any question so far?

By Mr. White:

Q. I think your rate per hour is too high?—A. Well, we considered that rate
per hour from various angles. We had it at one time at 50 cents and then we
changed it to 60 cents. There are many shades of opinion that would have
to be satisfied in the average rate per hour—organized labour on the one hand
and there are other factors on the other hand—so we set it at 60 cents and it
‘worked out relatively at 50 cents or 70 cents. The point is that the basis of
this scheme is 60 cents per hour. That many men, 782, employed at $864 per
year will total $676,000.

By the Chairman:
Q. For each million you employ 782 men?—A. That is the start of it.

By Mr. Hanbury :

Q. Based on your estimate of $864 per year, that would allow a man to pay
about $170 approximately per year for rent?—A. Yes, that is true. That is &
factor it is well to have in mind. That is a very good point. It is a point
had not thought of, and it is well taken. Now, I am going to show you that
the velocity of money turnover is the essential factor, and this, I submit, is the
factor that was not given due consideration when unemployment relief was
adopted in preference to construction.

Q. I think it is much more important than your foundation?—A. It is more
important than anything else; and the other factors are the things that result
in the slowing up in turnover of money. The average relief costs, Dominion,
provincial and municipal, for heads of families, from the figures we have been
able to obtain, are $260 per annum. Now, that does not include various other
contributions from charitable organizations and other sources.

Q. I think that figure is very much too low.—A. Possibly it is.

Q. Very much too low. As a matter of fact, we had information in the
House last week showing that the cost of maintaining a single unemployed man
was $1.30 per day, including Sundays.—A. Yes.

Q. In addition to certain administration costs?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, if that is the cost of a single unemployed person, surely the cost
of a family would be much greater than $260.—A. You will see later, gentlemen
there are other factors that we add to this in order to get to our final computé-
tion; but this was the figure that we were able to get locally in Toronto. YO
people are in a much better position than we are to get accurate figures.
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By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Do you mean that was a single contribution or the contribution of the
Dominion, provinces and municipalities together?—A. That was the information
we got at the time.

Q. I am afraid that it is so much lower than what it should be, that it
will throw out the whole value of your figures.—A. There are other factors.

The CuamMAN: I think Mr. Cauchon’s figure was $690, was it no?

Mr. CaucHoN: Mr. Chairman, I have some revised figures here, if I may
interject just for a moment. There is difficulty in getting some of the figures,
but I have here a revised list of the cost per annum of the maintenance of a
family of five on relief in Ottawa, replacing what I gave last day.

Per year
Rent, 313 permonthiz. = o i o ian e s 919600
Pood, H5:41 per week: .= o don. i or v 281 32
Fuel, $1.75 per week for heating season, say 22
WK v oo 0 W s a2 s b T e LR e b s 38 50
Dight; 25 centsper week o, v fa v b os il s win o 13 00
Clothes; $4- persmonth. 5o L0 e T 48 00
Medical services, 11 cents per month, per person
Tl of DIVes L e T S e LR 6 60
Hogpitalizationaes P s dain S 84 50
Total sl i i i s+ Do ke it R T2,

The cost of hospitalization, exclusive of the Civil Hospital, and the Royal
Ottawa Sanatorium, is $169,000 per annum. You see, indigent persons or
People on relief go to the hospital and no bill is rendered for them, but at the
end of the year, the deficit is charged back to the city, so the only way we can
figure out the amount is as I will show you. Relief patients, at the Civie

ospital and at the Royal Ottawa Sanatorium, number approximately the same
a8 at all other institutions combined. Hence to arrive at an approximate total
tost, the amount of $169,000 must be doubled, and for an average of 20,000
Persons on relief, the average cost per person is 2 X 169,000 divided by 20,000,
Which equals $16.90; the cost per family of five is therefore $16.90 X 5, which is
$84.50. The actual cost per year for relief chargeable to the city is $599,266,
One third of the total cost, or $1,797,798. For an average of 20,000 persons on
Yelief, this gives a total cost per person of $89.88, or for a family of five, $449,40.

t is pretty hard to get it exactly for the reasons I gave you.

. The WrrNess: I want to go a little further into the conditions under which
Yelief is expended, Mr. Chairman, in different parts of the country. For instance,
I Ottawa apparently you pay every month’s rent. In the city of Toronto they
Pay alternate month’s rent. At one time alternate month’s rent were being
Paid by charitable institutions, so those figures would vary in different parts of
€ country. Not only that, but we have taken a family of four, rather than a
ﬂmlly_of five, which makes another difference. What I have here a little further

ong, is to show that the average cost of $8 per week is necessary to pay for the
00d, light, heat and shelter of a family who is receiving clothes from different

%ﬁ,"ernmental and charitable sources. In some municipalities a lot of those

Ings come from charitable sources.
e Mr. Caucnox: A lot of charitable sources are added to what I have given
e.

at The WITNESS: Basing it solely on what the city of Toronto was paying out
thitha,t time, together with the provincial and Dominion grants—these other
Do ngs, I grant you, were included, but they came from other sources—for the pur-
s¢ of this investigation, a saving of $260 per annum would mean, by removing
eads of families from relief, $203,320 per annum. These men would spend
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all their earnings, and the total spent would exceed relief by $472,680. This
$675,000 is divided up in this way: this was the amount that was being spent
by the governments, and the other is the additional amount that they would
expend if they were on this program.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. My point there is this: I do not think that your expenditure is going to
exceed the cost of maintaining the unemployed to anything like the figure you
have set up there?—A. Well, we recognize the other factor; we increased the
amount to $8 per week per family a little later on, and we took the economics of
that. The reason that amount is there is that that is the figure we got from the
welfare department in Toronto at the time we were making up this brief. They
may not have given us the accurate information but it was the best we could get,
and the principal involved will work whether it is $269 or $306 or $460. It is
a matter of degree and the time that would be taken to eliminate unemployment.
Your Bureau of Statistics here will be able to furnish you with much more
accurate information.

Mr. SuLnivax: Mr. Gray said that would be only the city’s portion, not the

province’s, nor the Dominion’s.

Hon. Mr. RinrrET: I put that question. It involved everything?

The Wrrness: It involved those three departments, according to the infor-
mation we have been given.

Mr. Gray: Quite so. It is a matter of degree, as you say.

The Wirxess: Here is the point: it is this veloeity of turnover that makes
the depression, along with the initial cause. The velocity of turnover in 1929
was 17 times. Now, as we know, a lot of that was due to speculation in the
stock market. It was money that did not get into industry. Perhaps some of it
did, because a man that made some money built a new houge, or bought a new
motor car. He used it in some such way. By 1932 the velocity of turnover was
only 9 times. It had slowed down to that pitech. We have not exactly the
amount of velocity turnover to-day, but we have assumed it is six times, which is
very conservative, as compared with nine times in 1932.

By Mr. Sullivan:

Q. This is all speculation?—A. No, it is not speculation. Those are actual
figures that can be obtained; but we have not got right up to the minute figures.
Six times, I imagine, is correct. We will assume but 70 per cent of this $472,-
680 turned over but six times. Seventy per cent is assumed to be the portion

of any sale that would be used in replacement of the goods sold, the 30 per cent

that we have left out of the picture being the portion that goes all along the
line. It would represent taxes, interest, profits dividends, etc. And these costs
are only paid annually or semi annually and therefore do not immediately
go back into purchasing power and into turnover. Do I make that point clear;
gentlemen? Well then, when we have assumed only 70 per cent of this amount
turns over six times, we arrive at the figure of $1,280,000 new purchasing power

created. Of this we assume only 35 per cent will create new labour. The

reason for that is the point that we added in there, the other costs that weré
normally taken care of by charitable organizations, to bring up the costs ©
maintaining a family on relief to $8 per week. That is why we assumed onl¥
35 per cent of this amount will create new labour, and if it does create new
labour, we get labour for 518 men at $864 per annum. The total number thus
re-employed is 518 plus 1,300 men, and the savings in relief, if the heads ©
families are employed, is that amount, $338,000. Now then, gentlemen, W¢

have assumed that the savings are only on the basis of the cost. If the cost

fis greater, the savings are greater, so what difference does it make whether ou*
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figures are actually accurate, or whether they are subject to some correction?
The savings of 6 per cent on sales tax on 50 per cent of the purchases, would
be $40,000 per annum. In other words, we have assumed that half of the goods
bought by these men who have new purchasing power, would pay a sales tax;
half of the goods that go into the construction of a house would pay sales tax,
s0 there is another item of $40,000. Your total savings on relief costs per
million loan would be $378,000.

By Mr. Church:

Q. You ought to add something else to that. Your chart does not show
the annual losses of the men on relief. You have to add to that chart the
. annual wages which these men lost by being on relief.—A. You are perfectly
= right. We are not dealing with that factor. That is a factor that should be
] considered.

Q. Economic wastage—A. That factor is so nebulous and yet so real—
bu11: it is one that, as you say, to give a complete picture, ought to be added as
well.

By Mr. Wh?ite:

Q. Should you not call that “stock market profits ”?—A. No, sir. You
have seen how it has worked out. I think you all follow it. Is there any doubt
as to the figures? After all, it is just simple mathematics.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. 1 do not think you have made the picture nearly as attractive as it
- could be made. That is my whole criticism.—A. I have no doubt you are right,
and I trust that—
Mr. Sunnivan: Very conservative.

_ The Wirness: We have been very conservative in the presentation of
this brief.

By Mr. Whte:

Q. What about that sales tax, Mr. Craig?—A. The sales tax is fairly
obvious. Fifty per cent of these goods pay sales tax.
: Q. People on relief now are the cause of certain sales tax being collected

on that $260 that you have added there?—A. Yes; that is already eliminated.
- We have eliminated all that. All the way along the line we have taken all
- that out. That is on the annually created purchasing power. That is clear,
3t not? Now then gentlemen, here is the result of the three years—
Mr. CaucHoN: May I ask Mr. Craig, for the committee’s information,
What, proportion of the cost of a house goes into direct wages, and what pro-
Portion goes into indirect employment in the house? :
The Wirness: Oh— ;
Mr. Cavcson: In your opinion.
‘The Wirness: Approximately 50 per cent is paid out, pretty well, to direct
- Wages. It varies between 45 and 50 per cent, I think.
Mr. Cavcnox: Indirectly.
Bt o The Wirness: Indirectly it goes into all other factors I have mentioned,
£ .\i-,yansjg()‘_rbatibn and preparation of the goods in the shops,—away back.
. Mr. Caucnon: What percentage?

The Wirness: Another 30 per cent; 80 per cent all told in labour.

. Mr. Cavcnon: That confirms the previous evidence given as to the amount
-fmoney that goes into the housing scheme as wages.
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The Wirness: The result of the three years’ program is shown, the amount
to be loaned in this column (indicating); the savings on relief costs in this
column; persons removed from relief in this column. We will assume that
it is this year, that the program is in full swing. We hope that it will be in
full swing when you get through with the work of your committee. 1935,
$120,000,000 to be loaned, the first year; the savings on relief costs would be
$45,360,000 and the persons removed from relief, 770,000. 1936, $180,000,000
to be loaned; savings on relief costs, $68,040,000, a total of one million. You
have got your unemployment problem solved in two years even on this basis,
gentlemen. But the thing will be abortive unless it is done on an adequate
scale. A courageous program is what is needed; and I believe that your
committee, Mr. Chairman, has within its power, if the members are sold on
the possibilities of a housing program, to lift unemployment in Canada, and
to lift it in the course of two years’ time. The third year that one hundred
million expended would give further impetus to private enterprise to maintain
its equilibrium. I think that is all I have to say.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. I have looked at the figures in your brief, and in the third column, for
1936, you have persons removed from relief, 1,100,000. I suppose this table
would be correct?—A. Yes, this is correct. It should have been 1,000,000.

Q. I would like, so far as possible, to have it accurate?—A. Yes, quite
right.

The CramrMan: Does anyone else wish to ask Mr. Craig a question?

By Mr. Gray:

Q. Have you made any study of the Federal Housing Act of the United
States, and its workings?—A. No extensive study; no, I have not. I can say
this about it—

Q. It has not been successful?—A. No, it has not been successful. I can
say one or two things about it. One of the reasons it has not been successful
~ is that there were only two states in the Union that had permissive legislation.
That is an essential thing to start with. In other words, the thing was con-
demned from the start until the necessary permissive legislation was granted
by the state. ;

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Which states?—A. The different states of the union, of the United
States.

Mr. Gray: Which ones?

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Could you mention which ones they are?—A. I am not sure, but I
think Michigan was one of the states that had legislation.

Q. There was a purpose to my question. I wanted to find out whether
they were what might be called urban states or states where there are large
cities?—A. Yes, I understand. I am not sure, but I am under the impression
that Michigan was one of the states that had permissive legislation. I remem-
ber reading an article by Mr. Kahn, who was director of housing, or one 0
the authorities, where he explained the difficulties which they encountered i
getting their program to work.

Mr. Cavcmon: Would you not say that the American schemes are t00
expensive for the low wage earner? As far as I can learn from reading, they
rent from $10, $12 to $14 a room per month, per room, not per house.

The Wirness: Yes.
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Mr. CavcHon: I have not seen yet any American scheme that meets the
requirements we are trying to reach here, to supply housing to the man that
can only pay $15 a month, unless they are for niggers. I think they have
got some down to about $5 per room for niggers. s feRrofs

The Wirness: That is of vital importance. I would like to point out one
thing. Here we have a saving of $378,000,000. If we take $120,000,000 of
that—

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: Thousand.

The Wirxess: Yes, thousand—$120,000. I am so accustomed to talking
in millions, you see.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: I can see that.

The Wrirness: If you take $120,000 of that amount, that would pay off
the land for the whole of the slum clearance in Canada. That would pay the
land costs. Under this scheme, even if land costs were left in and on an
amortization scale of forty years, we would be able to rent five-room buildings
at $16 a month. If you increase the amortization period to fifty years, the rent
will be correspondingly reduced; and if you pay for the land, you can get
those apartments down to the price that anybody can pay.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. You mean to say that the land would become public property?—
A. That would become public property.

Q. What about taxes?—A. The taxes would have to come off the land.
It would be leasehold, and the taxes would still be collected on the buildings.

Mr. Cavcuon: Might I ask Mr. Craig what he thinks about amortization?
You know in England they give sixty years.

The Wrrness: I know.

Mr. Caucnaon: But they build very much more substantial houses, and their
climate does not deteriorate them like ours. What would you think in this
country would be a normal rational amortization, for the life of the houses we
build? For after all, it is the opinion of the committee, as I gather it, that
amortization means the natural life of a house.

The Wrtness: I would say forty years was the best period.

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. For what type of house?—A. For the ordinary small house, at the
minimum wage.

Q. Frame?—A. No, masonry construction.

Mr. HaxBury: Mr. Chairman, there is one thing that I do not think we

‘have got from any witnesses who have been here to-day, and that is some
Practical and economically sound method by which funds could be provided
for rehabilitation. I think that is one of the most important things we have to
deal with.

The Wrrness: Well, I would say in reply to that point that funds from the
Same source could be had for rehabilitation purposes—the central body or com-
Mmission or whatever you term that central body that sits at Ottawa here and
Supervises the expenditure of money and that sort of thing. They could draw
up the conditions under which that money would be let out for rehabilitation
Purposes. There is no question that, where there is a large area to be served
Or a large population, there must be a subsidiary authority or commission that
Would come directly under that central body, but would administer the expen-
diture of those funds. The terms under which they would be expended would

ave to be drafted by technicians qualified to determine those terms.

95358—4
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Mr. Hansury: I think it is more a financial consideration than anything
else. Most of these houses that require repairs are houses that to-day are not
worth the mortgages against them.

The WirNess: In many cases that is very true. Those mortgages would
have to be paid off in some way or another.

Mr. Cavcaon: The government advance would have to go on the first
mortgage; and as Mr. Hanbury points out, a lot of them are not worth much.

The Wirness: That is one of the problems.

Mr. Cauvcuox: In England where everything is based on the leasehold
system, and a man’s house becomes debilitated, the commission will take it over
from him, rehabilitates it and rents it back to him.

The WirNEss: Quite right.

Mr. Cavcnon: By adopting a similar policy here—I am not saying it is
right—would mean that a man would have to part with his ownership, the com-
mission would take it over and put it in order, and then rent it back to him. I
don’t think that point of view has been discussed yet.

The Wirness: We have not discussed it.

Mr. Caucuron: That is one of the difficulties of rehabilitation advances made
to private owners; that is, if you want to have any security for the government
funds.

Mr. West: I think Mr. Hanbury is overlooking the fact that in one part
~of our report there was a recommendation that funds might be put out privately
~or with the assistance of private loaning bodies, with the government accepting
some of the risks. One of the thoughts behind that, without it being developed,
was that a loaning body carrying a mortgage on a house which is now in a bad
condition might be guaranteed to some extent by the government, in putting that
house in marketable condition. Tt is highly technical, and the conditions are
individualistic rather than mass; and we think probably it could possibly be
worked out through the private bodies, to some extent. :

Mr. HaxBury: Mr. Chairman, the point I wished to make particularly was
this: this National Construction Council is probably the body that we should
look to as much as any other body in Canada for practical suggestions as to
how and what recommendations we are going to bring in; and we are expected
to bring in recommendations with reference to rehabilitation. As I say, I think
we should have some practical suggestions as to what recommendations we can
bring in. T have been listening for them, and I can frankly say that I have not
been able to accumulate any of the suggestions yet, in a practical manner.

Mr. Markus: Might I suggest that Mr. Somerville might be able to throw
some light on that subject.

Mr. SomerviLLE: We did consider that, and we were in doubt as to just
what the committee desired from us. We purposely did not go into the details
in regard to how the loans should be made. But in the study of it, we found that
the age of the building, the amount already loaned against it, the value of the
land in relation to the building, are all factors that have to be considered. If you

desire it, we are quite prepared to send that information on in a definite form

to this committee. I might say that actuarial discussion comes into the matter;
and it is not easy. The same thing applies to all this.

The CramMman: I think if you could make that out and send it to US

it would be helpful. We want any and all the information on this that We

can get.
Mr. SomerviLLE: We should be very glad to do that.

The CHarMAN: Now, Mr. West, that is the full «delegation. Would you 3

like to say anything before you close your representations?
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Mr. West: T do not think I have anything very much to add to it. I
hope you have understood Mr. Craig’s demonstration. We looked on it as
a demonstration, a sort of mass demonstration, without paying too much
atention to figures, on how the turnover of money would cut down unemploy-
ment and how the interest rate would affect long term actual costs over the
amortization period. I am not sure whether Mr. Bradley here, who is the silent
member of our delegation, but who has nevertheless been very active on our
committee, would like to add anything or not.

Mr. Brabrey: There is just one thought that may be of some import,
Mr. Chairman, and that is with regard to the statement which has been made
that the plan in effect in the States has not been successful. Some of us, in
studying this plan, of course have given a considerable amount of study to the
plan over there. Our opinion is that the plan over there—that is, the first
stage of it, and which had to do primarily with rehabilitation—is gathering
momentum, and is certainly working out very successfully, although possibly
not to the extent that had been originally thought of. But from the figures
and the facts which we have—some of us, privately—there is not any question
that it is commencing to accomplish results over there. It might be well to
bear in mind that they have worked that out, or are supposed to have done so,
in three stages. The first had to do primarily with rehabilitation, the theory
behind it being this, that property generally had depreciated because of the
fact that over the last three or four years no money was available to take
care of ordinary normal repairs and maintenance on buildings, and that had
accumulated to vast figures.

There are figures available as to what that amounts to over there; com-
parable figures are available as to the condition here. Therefore, it seemed
logical for us to start, and some of us have the same thought in regard to
the same action here, that that is the proper place to start—with rehabilitation.
That there is a fine market for labour and for materials of all kinds in that,
and by starting the momentum there we will gradually or rapidly as the
amount of effort is put into it increase employment; and as our good friend

r. Craig says, in that way we can lay the foundation for the other and
equally important part of the program; that is, new construction. Now, again

point out that this is really independent of slum clearance. Some of us hold
the view that slum clearance is largely the social side of the problem; the
other touches more particularly that phase of any of these activities which are
Supposed to be self-liquidating. From that point it is possible as we gather
Momentum for us to get into the other phase, the new construction work. I
Just wanted to correct that because I personally happen to have some knowl-
edge of the plans that they have worked out in the States, and I have studied

em in relation to the efforts here. It is true that with the other plan there,
that is providing mortgage money for new construction, they have had a con-
~ Siderable amount of difficulty; their financial people have not been entirely
behind them. But as far as rehabilitation work is concerned, there are figures

- and information to show that the thing is gathering momentum there, and

Some of us feel that that is the place at which to start this program here.

.~ Mr. Cavcnox: Might I ask, Mr. Bradley, for the information of the com-
Mittee; what security is there there for money advanced on account of rehabili-
‘ation of properties. What security is required say in the case of a house which
8 dilapidated and on which there is already a mortgage.

. Mr. Brabrey: The plan that they adopted there was this: The federal gov-
®ment, there provided the credit to this extent, that they interested various

 Dbankg and loaning companies to come in behind this plan, and they have under-

';ﬁaken to guarantee loans made by financial institutions—be they banks or what

up to twenty per cent. g
95358—4}
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Mr. Cavcuon: Up to 20 per cent of the loan?

Mr. Brabrey: Up to 20 per cent of the loan that they required. I believe
the federal government is setting up some reserve to take care of any possible
contingencies where they might in future be called upon to take them over.

Mr. McInTosH: Is that effective in all the states?

Mr. Brabiey: There were some states I believe in which there was some
difficulty in connection with the passing of enabling legislation. What they are
doing beyond that is this: They fully realize that even if they can produce all
the millions or billions—and they are talking money in such big terms that
some of us do not know what it is all about—still there was something more
needed than that because of the reticence and uncertainty of people generally;
that it would not necessarily mean that the average private property owner,
whether he was a home owner or whether he had industrial property, was going
to make the plunge in to help himself no matter what the restrictions were.
Therefore, they realized that another thing was necessary over there and that
was that they had to create a public opinion behind this. Because after all
while we talk in terms of the number of people unemployed in Canada and else-
where it is a fact that there is still a large percentage of the population gainfully
employed, and the property which they own is likewise in need of repair. There-
fore, to get this mass opinion behind it to take advantage of this money on the
deferred payment basis, even when it was only extended over a period of two
years, financed through banks and loan companies and guaranteed up to 20
per cent by the government, they decided to take action. The first trouble
they had with their operations there was that they did not get the immediate
response they had anticipated on the part of the various financial institutions.
Apparently some people had to be exhorted to get them in behind the scheme.
But there was that one important factor, which I think any plan we have in
Canada will have to face; that is, in so far as any rehabilitation plan is con-
cerned, creating the means to secure these funds is not necessarily going to get
the average citizen to come out and do these repairs to his property, which are
absolutely necessary, because of fear and so on. A mass sentiment must be
created behind such a move, probably not unlike some of the effort made in
the days of the Victory loans and so on. It is necessary to develop mass opinion
in favour of this unemployment project, so that the individual citizen even if he
only has to spend a couple of hundred dollars on his small property, by doing
that will help to solve the problem, the unemployment difficulty, through this
plan by doing his bit. That was probably a side-issue, but nevertheless important,
Mr. Chairman. That is all I have to say. I think that is important, however.

Mr. McIntosH: Is there not at the present time perhaps more confidence

on the part of private loan institutions in the States with regard to this national

housing scheme than there was a year or so ago?

Mr. BrabLey: Quite true. And in the final analysis the whole scheme i8
based on nothing else than this so-called deferred payment plan which has been
so successful in the automotive industry and everything else; and even through-
out the darkest years of the depression the losses of the various finance com-
panies increased by only a small amount; which indicated one very important
truth and that was this, that after all the honesty of the individual citizen is of
greater import than many securities that could be put up for loans. Indeed, the
average citizen in regard to taking care of his obligations is something that 18
very substantial both in Canada and the United States. Therefore, what they
are doing is capitalizing or making use of that basic common honesty; because,
after all, so far as the individual borrower is concerned over there with regal'd
to whatever he secures from whatever source—government or so on—the ban
has only got his individual note; they have nothing further in the way of liens
and securities on his property or what not.

Mr. HanBury: That is for rehabilitation?
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Mr. BrabLey: Yes.

Mr. HaxBury: That is the point we want to get.

Mr. Brabrey: Yes. To answer your question with regard to their being
greater confidence with the government on the other side saying we will guaran-
tee such loans as you make up to twenty per cent, and with the maximum loans
on that class of business by these companies: All these companies have loaned
a vost amount of money on this type of business, and as I recall the figures
their losses were only 2-5 per cent, or something like that. They were playing
very safe. But that in itself is a situation which creates confidence.

The CuamrMaN: Now, Mr. West, we have obtained very valuable informa-
tion from you people. I personally, and I think the members of the committee,
have been very much pleased with the way in which you have presented it.
We all have copies of your brief which we can read over and if it should develop
later that we need additional evidence from you we would be glad to have you
appear before us. If we need you we will send for you.

Mr. West: May I assure you, Mr. Chairman, that our organization are
very anxious and willing to help you.

Mr. CaamrmaN: We have another witness here, Mr. McCarter, of Van-
couver. Mr. McCarter is a member of the firm of McCarter and Nairne,
Architects and Constructural Engineers, of Vancouver, B.C. He is also past
president of the Architectural Institute of British Columbia and Vice President
of the Vancouver Board of Trade. I will ask Mr. McCarter to address you.

J. Y. McCARTER, called:

The Wrryess: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: For your information, T am
a member of the regional committee of the National Construction Counecil, so
that we have worked on the west coast in connection with the members whom
you have heard. The memorandum which I have before me was prepared in a
hurry this-morning, but I believe 1 possibly can present one or two points that
may be of value to you.

I go back to 1927-28-29, the mortgage companies in Vancouver made loans
for construction purposes on building and property of 100 to 110 per cent of the
value of the two. In other words, in many cases, the mortgage company pro-
vided the money that purchased the property and built the home. This they
did without knowledge, through lack of competent valuators. I do not know
whether it is a fact in the rest of Canada, but we had it out there where many
of the homes were owned entirely by the mortgage companies who thought they
would make a 50 or 60 per cent loan. T have one client who build five apart-
ment houses and who states that he never had a dollar of his own money in
any of them, and had as much as $5,000 of the loan company’s money over.

Mr. SuLnivan: Apparently they built the same all over.
The WirNess: The United States has had the same trouble.

Through the ease of money in this period, the speculative builder developed
& condition in which, at the end of 1929, the community was over-built with
reference to homes and apartments. This speculative builder, building only
for sale, developed a large amount of second class space; that is space without
Proper light and ventilation in his building. By “ second class space,” I allude
t? space that is too narrow and in which you have not proper light or ventila-
tion; space that in an apartment house or a flat costs as much per cubic foot
as first class space; in space, that is, in which he possibly built with vacant
Property ajoining with the idea of selling it to a prospective client whom he con-
Sidered possibly had a bigger piece of land than he was entitled to. Courts
I Vancouver are only five feet in width to the lot line. Not only did the
Speculative builder build with reference to poor planning, but he also built
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construction that was poor in type, and in which the equipment was of a low
order; building of a type in which depreciation came high.

Now, it is found that this second-class space during the periods through
which we have been passing reduces the rent of first-class space, whether in
homes or apartments. This second-class space also tends to reduce the assess-
ment. In many cases tenants of second-class space with rents reduced have
moved to first-class space, without any increase in their monthly rental; they
are still paying the same rent, but have moved from second-class space to first-
class space. Therefore, your second-class space has been a drug on the market
and has tended to lower the value of your investment; and I am looking at this
absolutely from the standpoint of investment, of what you dollar will earn for
you. A point that is worth bringing home is this; that a home or apartment
building is not only an investment in an individual way, but it is also an invest-
ment by the community or eity, as it is the city that expects to receive returns
from the home or apartment in the shape of taxes. The city, therefore, should
protect itself by having a sound city plan, with strict zoning and building regu-
lations to protect the investment of its citizens and itself. I believe that the days
of liberty, in which a man considered that he had a piece of property and could
build anything he wished on it, have gone; and that the investor putting money
into a home or a building who does not give himself and his community the very
best possible in the shape of planning is not doing what he should; that if he
makes a mistake and incorporates in his building poor space, and the like, we
find generally that he appeals to the assessment board for a reduction in his
assessment, and as a rule he gets it; so that the burden that his building should
carry with reference to capital investment has to be passed on to other property
holders in the community.

These building regulations which I have referred to should aim at establish-
ing a class of citizen in a given area, and ensure that this area will support the
class of citizen for which it is designed for a long period of years, with a
minimum of depreciation.

We must, in my opinion, hold a distriet by zoning to the class of people
that we put into it, to protect the investment of the individual home owner or
any other type of construction program that is brought forward.  This necessi-
tates an exterior construction of home or apartment that will not deteriorate with
the weather, and compels the use of brick, stone or concrete.

My life ould be 30 years, and I want an exterior of brick or stone material
that will stand any weather. We have in Vancouver, a frame constructed house,
and we find that if the owner of one house fails to paint his house, the exterior
appearance deteriorates and the block of homes depreciates and the whole district
loses the value that it had a few years previous. This is the case with the dis-
trict known as the west end in Vancouver, adjoining Stanley Park. The houses
in this area to-day are largely poor class rooming houses, occupied by three to
five families, which means over-crowding in very many cases. That district
should be a first class residential district, which it was at one time.

Vancouver can be considered as not at the moment having slum conditions,
but the situation is very close to it through this over-crowding in different
sections of the city. The apartment house vacancy in Vancouver was given
at the end of January at 2-5 to 3 per cent. There are very few vacant houses.
In other words, the apartment blocks are practically filled. Considering
house construction as of two classes, that for the office man and skilled artisan,
and that for the poorly paid manual labourer, I believe something can be
done immediately to stimulate construction for the office man-skilled artisan

prospective home owner. Slum conditions, I believe, is a problem by itself. .

I believe the federal government could operate through the present mortgage
companies, guaranteeing to absorb a percentage of their mortgage losses.
The amount of the loan could possibly be 90 per cent of the value of the land
and proposed home, on the basis of costs at the present time. As construction

i
1
|




HOUSING 139

developed, building costs would rise and the percentage of the loan should
decline until it was approximately sixty per cent of the house and land. This
moral support of the government behind the mortgage companies would, I
believe, entail no loss, as the losses if any, would be calculated on the total
of the loans made. In other words, it would not be a case of the government
sustaining any individual losses, it would be a loss in the scheme as a whole.
The percentage of loss as assumed by the government might start at say,
50 per cent for the first year, reducing to 25 per cent for the following two
years; the whole scheme being considered as of three years’ duration. I have
put this together hurriedly, gentlemen. The thought there is that the govern-
ment might underwrite 50 per cent of the losses of the first year, made by the
mortgage companies, and 25 per cent for the following two years. These
figures can be changed and they can be worked out possibly to a more equitable
point. Restrictions on construction, such as moratoriums, could possibly be
removed and a fixed assessment established with the city authorities. I do
not think the mortgage companies will move in any big way unless some of
the provincial moratoriums are cleared away. Another point here is that a
fixed assessment must be established so that when a district is built up the
assessment will remain reasonably fixed. We have had a case out there where
& lot was bought from the Canadian Pacific Railway under their land scheme
for $1,000; before a home was built on it it was assessed for $1,800, and in
1932 the -assessment was again raised to $1,910. I was with the assessment
commissioner just before I left to come here and we agreed on $73,000 as the
value of the building. In 1929 the land was assessed for $60,000. In 1930
1t jumped to $132,000. The building was assessed for $60,000 in 1929 and
raised to $94,000. One of the prominent life insurance companies have a loan
of $140,000 on the building, and the assessment to-day is $73,000. That gives
~ You another example of some of the loans the mortgage departments of
. Insurance companies made, and that is why they are so ultra conservative
© to-day. T believe something should be done to loosen them up a bit, so that
they might get back into operation again.
I believe that the endeavour of all of us is to re-establish confidence, and
B the. effect of the government standing behind the mortgage companies will
88sist in this respect. The interest rate should be held as low as possible to
encourage the prospective home owner to commence operations. I am really
ealing with the man who can move forward with the home service. With
Teference to accommodation for the low paid wage earner, this is a very
cult problem. To construct accommodation that will permit of low rent
- and take care of carrying charges, a city must consider this low wage earner
a8 giving a service to the city for which he is paid a small salary, and is then
8lven certain concessions, as hospital treatment, schooling for his children,
- 8nd low cost housing. The low wage earner’s relation to the city is much like
fat of a servant in a home, where accommodation is provided and has to
V@ considered as part of a city’s operating cost, such as installation of roads,
Sewers, water service. That is my feeling with reference to the low paid wage
€arners as we have them to-day, if we are not in a position to raise his wages.

By Mr. Sullivan:
- .. Q. T was asking Mr. Hanbury if taxes are paid on that amount in the
%ty of Vancouver?—A. You mean on that assessment?
Q. Yes—A. They have been endeavouring to collect them.

) By the Chairman:
ST wh Q. If we endeavoured to build those workmen’s homes that you speak of,
&4 at effect would that have on the oriental population? In Vancouver, does
€ oriental population live in what we call slums, two or three families to a
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house?—A. Yes; they are living in blocks, or what we would ecall rooming
houses.  Very, very few of them have their individual homes.

Q. I think it has been shown from the evidence that in Ottawa we could
build a house for $2,800. How would the cost of building a house in Van-
couver compare with Montreal and Ottawa; would it be considerably cheaper?
—A. No, it would not, Mr. Chairman. The cost, T would say, would be about
the same. Your lumber might be cheaper, but nevertheless your fittings,
piping, ete., has to come from the east, and the freight naturally raises the cost.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. What percentage of taxes have been collected in Vancouver in the past
year?—A. It is 70 per cent, I believe.

Q. That is a fairly high percentage, is it not?—A. I think 70 per cent.

Mr. Haxsury: That is not sufficient to carry the bonded indebtedness?

The Wirness: There has been the case out there where the assessment
has been raised out of line with values. When they reached their borrowing
limit, they raised the assessment.

By the Chairman:

Q. Can property be sold for the assessed value there?—A. Not at the
present time, though there was a sale, I believe, went through on Granville
street, of a quarter million dollars for a piece of property.

The CuAIRMAN: Do any other members of the committee want to ask
Mr. McCarter any questions? '

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Do you know for what purpose that property was sold?>—A. I could
not say. It is the old Vancouver Theatre property.

By Mr. Whate:

Q. What was the assessment?—A. I could not tell you off-hand.

Mr. CavcHon: Might I ask Mr. McCarter, for the benefit of the com-
mittee what he considers the life of a house in years? In other words, what
amortization? Do you believe you could amortize a house here for fifty or
sixty years with the construction we have in this country, coupled with the
climate we have to contend with? How many years would you think was
reasonable?

The Wrrxess: Amortization should be covered in thirty years; and with
that, T would want brick, stone or concrete.

Mr. CauvcHon: That raises the cost, of course.

The WirnEss: Yes.

Mr. Cavcnon: Higher amortization.

The Wirness: You can see, gentlemen, how it would really pay, with
frame houses, for a man’s neighbour to paint his own home to protect thew
values. That is a fact, it would pay them to paint their neighbour’s home t0
proteet their own values.

By Mr. MclIntosh:

Q. How often would that have to be done in Vancouver, considering climaﬁc
conditions?—A. Five years would be the outside limit which it could go with-
out paint.

Mr. Cavcnon: It does not stand five years.

The Wirness: No, it won’t do their either. But I would say that is the

very limit.
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The CrairmMaN: Thank you, Mr. McCarter. We are very much pleased
that we had someone from the west.

Just before we close, there is one other thing. Mr. Markus, as secretary
you say that the council consists of representatives from thirteen national
bodies. Would you write out those names so that we can put them on the
record?

Mr. Margus: I have done that.

: The CuarMAN: The clerk says he has that. Is there anything else that
~ any of the members of the committee wish to speak about before we adjourn?
We will meet again on Thursday, and Dr. Coates or someone from the Bureau
of Statistics will be here. We also hope to have someone who was on the
Bruce committee in Toronto, at the same time, but we are not sure of that
yet. We will now adjourn unless someone has something to bring up.

Mr. Suruivan: Mr. Chairman, could you tell me when you are asking
Mr. Dupuis to come from Montreal? ‘

The CuAalrMAN: No. We have his letter to submit before the committee.
Mr. SurLrivan: Yes.

_ The committee adjourned at 5.50 p.m. to meet again on Thursday, March
14, at 10.30 a.m.

NSl |
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
CommrrTEE Room 429,
OrTawa, March 14, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued,
met this day at 10.30 o’clock a.m., Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided.

The following members were present:—Messieurs: Beourgeois, Church,
Dorion, Elliott, Ganong, Gray, Hanbury, Howden, Morand, McIntosh, Peck,
Plunkett, Rinfret, Stanley and Sullivan—15.

_ Mr. Sullivan stated he had received a telegram from Mr. Rancourt, of
Montreal, asking when Le Comité du Logement Salubre will be heard. The
Chairman replied that it would be considered this afternoon.

Professor E. J. Urwick, Professor of Social Science and Economics,
niversity of Toronto, was called and examined. He filed a copy of the
Bruce Committee Report. Witness retired.

_ Mr. Church moved, seconded by Mr. Stanley, an expression of apprecia-

tion and thanks by the Committee to His Honour Lieutenant Governor Bruce,

to his committee on housing, and to Professor Urwick, for making the Bruce
eport available to this Committee. Motion carried. .

Mr. 8. A. Cudmore, Chief of Statistics Branch of the Dominion Bureau
of Statistics, Ottawa, was called and examined. He filed two charts showing
uilding construction values from 1929 to 1934, and index numbers of employ-
Ment in building construction industry—1929 to 1934—also

Memorandum re value of construction permits, 1923 to 1934.

Index numbers of wholesale trade prices of construction materials, 1919
to 1934, —also

Tables showing the housing of the population of Canada.

Witness retired.

b The Chairman stated that Mr. Alexander Officer, of Winnipeg, Manitoba,
a8 been called, and asked Mr. Stanley to call a meeting of the sub-committee
Or 4 o’clock p.m., to consider the calling of other witnesses.

M The Committee adjourned at 1 o’clock p.m., to meet again Tuesday,
arch 19, at 10.30 a.m.

Jo P DOYLE,
Clerk of the Commaittee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons, Room 429,
Orrawa, March 14, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in Room 429, Thursday, March 14,
1935, Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

The CrARMAN: -Order, please, gentlemen. We now have a quorum and
can open our proceedings. We will dispense with the reading of the minutes,
with your permission, as they will be printed in the report. We have with us
this morning Professor E. J. Urwick, Professor of Economics, University of
Toronto, and Director of the Department of Social Science. He was one
of the committee that brought out the Bruece report. With your permission,
‘We will now call on Professor Urwick.

Mr. Surrivan: Just before the professor is called, I want to say to the
committee that I received a telegram from Mr. Rancourt of Montreal, repre-
Senting this same organization which I spoke to you about. They want to

ow when Le Comité du Logement Salubre will be heard.

_ The Cmamman: We will give them our decision this afternoon. We
Wwill now call on you, Professor Urwick.

Professor E. J. Urwick called. He said:

With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I will formally present the report
of the Lieutenant Governor’s committee on the housing conditions of Toronto,
and, if T may, give a short summary of the findings and recommendations o
e committee o

The committee was formed just a year ago, appointed by the city council.
'I_‘hey made an exhaustive survey of the conditions in not the whole of the
ity of Toronto, but a part of it. There were two distinet surveys. The first
Survey was of 1,300 houses mentioned to them by different agencies as needing
Mvestigation; and the second survey in detail was of two or three of the
Worst parts of the city where the largest number of unsatisfactory dwellings
Were found. As a result of the whole of the surveys, it was found that out of
840 odd houses first examined, 999 or about 74 per cent were definitely below
€ minimum standard of health conditions. After an intensive survey of
Certain areas was made, it was found that the number as a whole was greater,

ough not the percentage; that there were many houses not included in the
irst survey. As a result, the committee came to the definite conclusion that
D the city there are at this moment at least 2,000 houses unfit for human
@bitation, and in all probability 3,000 or perhaps more.

By Mr. MclIntosh:

of Q. That is in the whole city of Toronto?—A. Yes, that is in the whole city
y T_Oronta The actual defects that we found were chiefly structural; that is,
Ce?lkmg roofs, falling walls or sagging walls, floors damp and uneven, absence of
g ars, abse_nce of foundations and so on, which conditions are inimical to health
conn Possible to make conducive to comfort. The other cases were largely
innected with the situation in which these shacks or houses were found, and the
&mp()smbility of keeping them clean, keeping them free from vermin. The

ount of vermin—rats and other vermin—was certainly appalling. A large

t
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part of the cause was undoubtedly due to the fact that there had been no sort
of planning in the areas which were worst, or in the city as a whole. The con-
sequence was that shacks had been put up sometimes back to back. sometimes in
yards and sometimes in alleys between streets—usually in yards only paved with
mud or alleys only paved with mud. They are in such condition that it is
almost impossible, on the site, of them to do anything with them except pull
them down and not rebuild in the same place. The absence of planning in the
whole city’s arrangement hitherto, as far as building and the placing of houses
goes, is perhaps the principal cause, in the opinion of the committee, of the
condition of things that now exists. Another cause, of course, is the survival of
shacks made of wood or stucco, which perhaps were built fifty or sixty years ago,
and have been allowed to survive particularly during the last few years when
there has been less condemnation of unfit dwellings than at any other time. I
might say that in the latest figures issued by the Department of Health of the
city, in 1933-34 only three houses were condemned on the score of being unfit
for habitation, because of being dangerous to health.

The consequence is that these shacks continue to survive; and the land-
lords are, in many cases, too poor to put them even into proper repair. The
poverty of the tenants, of course, is another obstacle. Most of them are inhabited
by tenants who are either unemployed or only casually employed, and cannot
pay the usual rent of $15 per month which is demanded. Therefore, owing to the
poverty of landlords in many cases, and of tenants in nearly all cases, it has
been considered inadvisable to press for demolition of these buildings or con-
demnation, and they still continue to be inhabited.

The remedies suggested by the committee are fairly simple. The com-
mittee came definitely to the conclusion—unanimously, I think—that the remedy
could not be applied by private enterprise. The shortage of houses—which was
found to be somewhere between 17,000 and 25,000 in the city—could undoubtedly,
in the opinion of the committee, be largely met by private enterprise; but the
demolition and rehabilitation of these two or three thousand shacks which ought
not to be lived in at all, in the opinion of the committee cannot be dealt with
except by governmental supervision at least; and we also believe governmental
assistance in some form or another will be necessary. The prerequisite of any
steps that are taken to improve the housing conditions, in our unanimous opinion,
are: First, that a planning commission should be appointed, of independent
members, not experts, not representing any particular interests, even architects
or contractors; and that planning commission should be entrusted with the task
of immediately surveying the whole city from the point of view of residential
needs, not as has been done hitherto by planning commissions which were
appointed, from the point of view of traffic needs, street widening or streeb
extension. As a second recommendation, we are of the opinion that the city
itself, or perhaps any city, ought to appoint a definite executive housing board
which would carry out, if approved, the recommendations of the planning com-
mission, or submit them to the government of the province or possibly the
federal government for approval; and that that directing housing board shoul
be responsible for both the demolition, the rebuilding and the clearing of the areas
where the housing has become definitely such as give menace of slum conditions-
We also recommend quite definitely that the law should be stiffened, specially
to give the medical officer or the officer of health the power to close and con-
demn houses much more easily than can be done at the present time. At the
present time he has to prove, or has to be prepared to prove in a court of 1aWs
that such and such a house is definitely dangerous to health. That, as you doubt-
less know, Mr. Chairman, is not always an easy thing to do. We also havé
come to the conclusion that, in order to get rid of these uninhabitable houses nOW
existing in the city, putting the figure at somewhere like three or four thousan®
in rebuilding on a planned system—which will mean altering the streets to some
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extent, getting rid of the mud alleys and so on— it will mean a total expenditure
during the next few years of $12,000,000; and that that money, in part at least,
will have to be provided by government, either municipal, provincial or federal,
or all three.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. That $12,000,000 is for what area?—A. It is not for any particular area.
{ But we did take:one fairly large area where the housing conditions were worst;
g and working out all the necessary conditions in that area, to make it clean as
: we would call it, would need alone $12,000.

Q. $12,000,000, you mean?—A. $12,000,000, yes, assuming that we were
going to rebuild between three thousand and four thousand houses.

Q. You are referring to Toronto?—A. I am referring to Toronto alone.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. What part of that $12,000,000 do you think the government should put
b up?—A. We have not gone into the question of either the amount that should
be given, or the division—if there is to be a division—of so much from one
government and so much from another. We have not gone into that question
at all, because we felt it was not our function even to make a suggestion on the
matter.

| If T may give the actual figuring there, we estimated that if we took one
quite small area of some seven or eight acres, and replanned and rebuilt it—
and it will all need rebuilding, housing something like two hundred families
living there—it would cost $340,000. On that, the estimated revenue would not
be more than about $9,000. Therefore, something like two-thirds of the total
expenditure would have to be guaranteed or given by the city, the provincial
government or the federal government. That, I think, is a fair indication of the
whole of the areas concerned; that in all probability two-thirds of the cost
would require to be given or contributed by the government, in some form.

We have taken as our basis the present cost of putting up a perfectly simple
form of house and the actual monthly cost, the possible monthly revenue which
In no case canbe put above $5 per room per month; that would he $15 per month
for the smallest type of house of three rooms, and rising, of course. to $25 for a

ve-roomed house. On that basis the revenue would only be sufficient to meet
One-third of the necessary interest on the purchase of the land, the building, the
construction, the taxes and the management. Therefore, the remaining two-thirds
as to be made up from other sources. I do not know whether that answers your
Question or not.
Mr. McInTosu: Yes, that is very good.

The Wirness: It is as near as we can get to it.

By Mr. Stanley :

Q. Professor Urwick, are we to assume that two-thirds of the residents or
Occupants of the 3,000 houses would come under the classification of low wage
€arners—the very lowest wage earners?—A. Yes.

Q. As we had it here before, they set that rent at $10 or $12 a month.
Are you estimating in your calculation that all these would pay $10 or $12 a
Month?—A. No, by no means. That is a further question. About half of the
People who are now living in these shacks are on relief as it is, and are likely

be on relief and therefore unable to pay anything at all, for some time to
COme. Consequently, if they are to be re-housed, the city will either have to
Pay the rent or allow them to live in these new houses rent free, or else rent
“®m to other sorts of tenants, tenants who can pay $12 to $15 a month.
Q. Your $12,000,000 takes into account that calculation?—A. Yes.
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By the Chairman:

Q. Does the relief commission allow these people who are on relief so much
for rent at the present time?—A. Not at the present time; not now. Until last
year the relief commission paid a maximum of $15 a month, but only paid it for
the first month, and thereafter alternating months. Now they have gone into a
different system, paying to the landlord the whole of the tax bill plus 50 per
cent; so that if he is paying in taxes $6 per month, he would get $9 per month
as the equivalent of the rent of the family living there. That is the plan which
is now being put in operation.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Am I to assume that the natural increase in the number of houses, which
will be required by reason of the increase in population, will be cared for by
private enterprise?—A We are assuming that, yes.

Q. But your scheme provides public money for all the present needs up to
$12,000,000?—A.. For the most urgent needs only; for the most urgent needs of
these houses which, as I have said, in our opinion ought to be pulled down at
once and not rebuilt, which ought not to be inhabited for another month.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Over what period of time would you suggest that the expenditure of
that $12,000,000 should extend?—A. Well, there is no doubt that the whole of
that scheme ought to be put into operation at once, because there is no doubt
that none of these houses ought to go through another winter. But we are
assuming that it will probably take some three or four years to materialize
in anything like a complete form. We should be quite content if the city would
take the very worst area and deal with that during the coming year, during the
next twelve months; and then go on to the next worst, and so perhaps spread
that amount of expenditure over three or four years.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. You are professor of Sociology at the University of Toronto?—A. Social
Science and Economies.

Q. Have you given any thought to the idea of decentralization by bonusing
industries for the building of homes for their men instead of continually crowd-
ing them on top of one another in the city of Toronto or Hamilton?—A. Yes;
certainly.

Q. Would that not be a much better plan from the medical standpoint, t0
tear down these homes and not rebuild them, rather than continue to increase
your crowding in one particular area? We have plenty of land—A. I t-hipk
many of us agree completely with you, that it might be a mistake to rebuild
on the spots that are now inhabited, which are often packed in hetween junk-
yards, warehouses or factories. It would be better for the people themselves;.
provided that the factories at which they may obtain work are moved also.

Q. That is right.—A. But to put them on the outskirts of the city, and leaveé
them to find their way into the centre of the city, even to get odd jobs, we think 13
not a feasible scheme.

Q. There have been plans developed whereby industries have been bhonused
for the building of homes for their own employees, bonused to the extent of 10W
rates of interest and so forth. A few of them taken out of Toronto and put in some -
of the nice healthy spots north and west would be of greater value to th€
public generally than just refinancing and rebuilding the slums that you have
got, would it not?—A. Yes, I quite agree it would. There are one or
things that ought to be considered, if I may mention them. ‘

Q. Yes, go ahead?—A. A great many of these people who are in the WO
condition of all—not only men but women too—are dependent on all sorts ©
odd jobs which they can only obtain when they are fairly near the neighbow= ‘

rst
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hood in which they now live. To move them out, unless they are regular
workers, would deprive them of their obvious means of livelihood. There is
also an objection on their part, of course, which is very marked, that they
became part and parcel of a particular neighbourhood and they do not want
to leave it. Their friends and associates and so on are in the cne place. That
is particularly true of the foreign element which is, in one of the worst distriets,
largely predominant.

Q. This is my last question: Have you given any thought to the licensing
of industry, demanding that they should, before establishing themselves, get a
permit in order to see that they do not increase the crowding of our cities?—
A. No, I have not given any thought to that, I am afraid.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

Q. Professor, have you any data, as regards the conditions that you have
just deseribed, as to how Toronto compares with other cities in the matter?
Perhaps you will come to that later on?—A. Well, I don’t like to make com-
parisons, because I have only heard reports of one or two cities—Halifax, Win-
nipeg and Montreal to some extent. It is rather difficult to make a comparison
at all. For one thing, the reports are not so thorough, in one sense, as ours.
They give a more general picture of the conditions; and to make a comparison
might be comparing one set of data with another, which is rather hard. But I
should say from what I have been told, at any rate, in a city like Hamilton
which is one of our near neighbours, that the same conditions—although, of
course, on a much smaller scale—exist and are increasing there too; but they
are not quite so bad, because the agg of the city is less, and the congestion
is less.

Q. Following the question just put, if there were a recommendation for
the rebuilding of workmen’s houses in the outskirts, that would involve com-
Pensation to the owners even of slums in the middle of eities, would it not; or
would it be your opinion that something should be done in that way?—A. Well,
our opinion is—and again I speak for the committee—that in a Jarge number of
cases the actual dwellings, the buildings that would have to be demolished,
Neither deserve nor should get anything except an almost nominal compensa-
tion. If they are in a state in which they ought to be condemned, compensation
need not be paid; and on the British method, they will not pay compensation in
those cases. We might either pay none or pay very little compensation. The loss
of revenue on the land would be the serious thing. But assuming that this land
18 needed for other forms of development, and as it is close by the factory
districts, then the question of compensation would not be a serious one. The
People could be moved out to the outskirts without much additional expen-
diture in the way of compensation. Is-that what you mean?

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: Yes, thank you.

By Mr. Stanley :
Q. Professor Urwick, I assume that you take it for granted that it is not

' Practicable in some instances to move the industries?—A. In many cases quite

FIearly not. For instance, the nearest neighbour of one of the worst districts
18 the whole of the Eaton Company’s buildings—factories and warehouses as well
as stores. Those T do not think could be moved. In some cases I think there
are certain odd factories which could be moved quite easily.

By Mr. McIntosh: _ :
¢ Q. Is not the policy of industrial decentralization practically an accepted
act to-day, considering the overhead in the larger centres?—A. T think, on the
Whole it s, Yes, I think I should agree that it is.
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By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. Yet the city of Toronto has had more factories coming in than all of the
other cities in the province of Ontario put together in the last four years?—
A. Coming in?

Q. Yes.—A. Into the city?

Q. Into the city of Toronto.—A. I didn’t know that was the case.

Q. Your board of trade is bragging about it.

Mr. StanvLEY: That would be the city proper, would it?

Hon. Mr. Moranp: I don’t know. It is whatever is covered by the board
of trade. T cannot give the actual figures on it. I know there was a statement
made not so long ago. For instance, we have been seeing a number of large
factories go into Toronto constantly. I shall not name any of them.

Mr. StaxLey: Campbell’s Soup—where did they go?
Hon. Mr. Moraxp: Toronto.

The Wirness: May I point out one thing in that connection As you know,
the city of Toronto has reclaimed and prepared a large area of land between
the city and the lake in the hope that it will be occupied chiefly by factories and
warehouses; and a few have already built there.

By Hon. Mr. Morand :

Q. Thereby adding to the general congestion of the ecity?—A. Adding
to the congestion of the city. :

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Where have those workers to live?—A. They have to live as near as they
can, which means in the most over-crowded part of the southern part of the
city as it is to-day.

By Hon. Mr. Morand: {
Q. They have only one direction from which to come?—A. That is all.
The CaamMman: Have you completed your presentation, Professor?

The Wirness: I do not think there is anything else, unless you wish to
ask about something.

The Cramrman: I just wanted to make sure that you were through before
questions were asked.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Professor, have you given consideration to the systems in vogue in other
countries—I am not referring merely to cities, but other countries—situated
similarly to Canada, and there are some countries somewhat similarly situated,
I believe; can you give us any information as to what have been the most
successful schemes that are in operation in any other countries where conditions
are as nearly like those in Canada as you can find?—A. The latter part of
the question makes it difficult to answer. I know something of what has been
done in some of the European countries, but I cannot say that any of them
is at all like Canada—general conditions.

Q. That is the difficulty?—A. That is the trouble.

Q. From your investigation and study in regard to this maiter—which has
been very extensive, I take it—would you care to suggest to the committee
a general scheme which you think is the best scheme for Canada to undertake,
or a scheme that would most nearly fill our requirements?—A. Well, if I do
s0, it would be entirely my own opinion.

Q. That is what we would like to have, because you have given considera-
tion to this matter—A. Merely in outline, I would say that I should like 0
see in this country a general central commission, under the federal government
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of course, which would supervise both the development and the housing of muni-
cipal areas—cities, townships and country districts everywhere—in the sense
that. as has been done in England, all the different localities should be either
encouraged, or in some cases ordered, to produce schemes for the improvement
of their housing conditions; that these would be submitted to the central com-
mission, and if they were approved the federal government would either by
subsidy or in some other way promise help so far as the plan was carried out. I
should like to see that applied, with the co-operation of the provincial govern-
ments, of course, which would have their planning commission or supervising
commission, and would in the same way stimulate the different municipalities,
localities, towns and counties, to do the same thing.

Q. That is, you think the plan should originate in the municipalities and
be submitted to the federal government?—A. The plan ought, at any rate, to
be formed with the detailed local knowledge which is available, with any help
which may be given by the central commission or their experts. But the
pressure, as it were, or the encouragement should come from the federal and
provincial governments; for the simple reason that 1 cannot see—and I think
1t is the general experience—any likelihood of most municipalities or townships
taking up this question and going to the expense of doing anything at all, unless
they are in some way urged or pressed by the government.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Professor Urwick, your committee recommended that the commission
be made up of voluntary members. The experience given by Mr. Gordon the
other day, representing the city of Ottawa, was that that had worked out
very unsatisfactorily as far as the 1920 housing scheme in Ottawa was con-
cerned. What is your argument supporting your contention that the member-
ship of the commission should be voluntary rather than composed of those giv-
ing their full time and attention to it and being paid for it?—A. Chiefly be-
cause we believe that there is too much difficulty connected with particular
Interests, with particular considerations of official prudence or whatever else
1t may be, in the case of the municipal experts; and that if only you can find
them—and you should be able to find seven or eight disinterested and at the
same time public spirited men, aldermen—they would make it their first
Interest, although you could not ask them to give their full time to it. They
would do it with complete absence of any sort of claim of any kind—financial
Interest, local interest or anything of that sort. They would simply consider
the problem of making the city a better place than it is; and we came to the
conclusion, after considering what had happened in other places, that that was
the only way you could be sure of getting a satisfactory planning commission.

t might be ignorant; but if it had, as we suggested, a body of experts perman-
ently attached to it as advisers and guides; it would not make mistakes in its
recommendations, because those would be all supervised and corrected. But it
Would do the planning with the help of the experts, instead of Jeaving it to the
€Xperts to do the planning according to their own ideas.

: By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. Once you had your independent national housing commission appointed
Or established, under what department of the crown would you think it should
oper.ate?—A. I am afraid that is hard for me to say; if it must be under a
zﬁemal department, I am not sure it need be. It must be answerable to some
e,
. Q. Parliament would want to investigate public monies put into such
e"’heme's;, and to have an annual report of course on the commission’s activities
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during any year?—A. Yes. I hardly like to express an opinion as to what
department it should be under., We have not considered that.
Q. You have not considered that?—A. No.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Professor Urwick, you emphasized the fact that these 3,000 buildings
should be demolished in the city of Toronto and replaced by publi¢ funds, in
contra-distinetion to private funds?—A. Largely by public funds.

Q. To what extent did your committee consider the use of private cor-
porations, subsidized or assisted by state funds?—A. Oh, a good deal, sir.

Q. Yes?—A. We have had one example of that working in Toronto under
a plan which goes as far back as 1913—1I think it was, about 20 years ago—
under which a housing company was formed which received help from the
government—and by government I mean the provincial government, I think
it is; I am not sure of that without looking it up-—which guarantees 85 per
cent of the capital provided the company raised the remaining 15 per cent
itself. That is the most successful method that has been tried yet.

Q. What is the experience in regard to it?—A. The experience has been
~ that except for the first few years when there was no interest paid, that while
limited to 5 or 6 per cent, since then it has operated quite successfully; but
on a small scale, it has never been increased since the first years.

Q. I am referring to the city of Toronto?—A. Yes, I am speaking of the
city of Toronto. This company built a small group of houses, they have not
only been occupied but they have earned enough to pay interest on the money
ever since, except for the first few years and one or two years during the
depression.

Q. Is your committee now averse to following that out?—A. The trouble
is this: In that case, and in the case of others that we examined, although
they may be successful they did not meet the need of the poorest tenants. -
In other words, the rents charged ranged from $20 to $40 per month in these
little houses that they put up. That is outside of the scope of the people we
are considering. They are very willing to go on, and could to great advantage
go on, to supply the shortage of houses; but we do not consider that a housing
company such as that, could tackle this problem of the rehousing of these par-
ticularly bad areas.

@. Your opinion is that the housing company would have to deal with a
high grade tenant?>—A. A rather high grade; which would be excellent, because
it would relieve the pressure; but it would not meet this difficulty of the 3,000
or 4,000 of the lowest paid people, the worst off.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:
Q. What you are referring to is the commission originally headed by Mr.
Frank Beer?—A. That is the one known as the Toronto Housing Company.
Q. They had a guarantee of 85 per cent?—A. Yes.
Q. I see by the report that there was a 5 per cent dividend for the year
1923, and for the nine succeeding years?—A. Yes.
Mr. StaniLeEy: It was 6 per cent there for a while.

Hon. Mr. Evuiorr: Yes, I see that 6 per cent dividend was declared iB
1933.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. What is the condition of that commission now; are they declaring a divi-
dend, or are they still carrying on?—A. They are still carrying on.
Q They are still carrying on?—A. Yes. I cannot tell you whether they
h}?ve declared a dividend for the last year or not; I am afraid I do not knoW
that
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Q. Well, do you know whether any portion of that 85 per cent was put up
by either the provinece or the Dominion?—A. No, I believe not. It was guaran-
teed—I would like to make quite sure of that.

Q. It is at page 75 of your report?—A. I think it was the city, if I remem-
ber right.

Q. It looks as if it was the city. At the top of page 75 it says, “if the

council were satisfied that there was need for additional housing accommoda-
tion it might guarantee the bonds of such a company to 85 per cent of the
*value of land, houses and improvements, provided that the company had
already raised the remaining 15 per cent without borrowing ”; and so on. There
is no mention of either provincial or Dominion assistance, even by way of
guarantee?—A. It is only the city council which guaranteed the 85 per cent.
The provincial government I think did not come in at all.

Q. Yes. Do you know of any other scheme that was more successful than
that scheme has been, so far as it went?—A. Do you mean, speaking of this
country or of the city of Toronto?

Q. Yes—A. No, I do not know of any that has been more successful.

. Q. Was not its success due to a large extent to the character of the men
who were looking after it, and the business ability with which it was con-
ducted?—A. I think so, to a rather large extent, yes; and I think the present
chairman is an able man too.

Q. Who is the chairman?—A. Mr. Ivy.

Q. Yes, that is Mr. Arnold Ivy?—A. Yes, he is the present chairman.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Its success depends upon their being people as tenants who are able to
pay a sufficient rent to carry the dividends of the company?—A. Yes, but I
think they have had no difficulty in doing that.

Q. And they are not the lowest paid class of tenants by any means?—
A. No, they are tenants who can pay. I know personally of a stock broker
who is living in one of the houses they built.

Q. Well, some of them are pretty hard up these days?—A. And so find it
convenient to economize, you see. They are still able to pay a rent of something
like $30 a month.

Mr. Caucnmon: Might I say, for the information of the committee, that there
was a general act in Ontario providing for the municipalities to do that. It was
Passed some years ago, I do not remember just when.

Hon. Mr. ErLiorr: It was passed in 1913.

Mr. Cavcnon: I know we had it here for a while, and it was cancelled
Subsequently. We could at that time in Ottawa have done the same thing that

r. Beer did in Toronto, but nobody here stepped forward to do it. Then, due
to the war, that act was cancelled because they did not want the funds diverted
Into that purpose, I presume, at the time. It is not operative now.
Mr. MoranDp: When was that housing company started?
Hon. Mr. ErLiorr: The act was passed in 1913.

. The CuamrmaN: Mr. Church has a question or two he wants to ask. All
right, Mr. Church.

By Mr. Church:

Q. In your report I notice that you refer to Bright street, Moss Park and
areas like that which are more or less slums. In your report you recommend
Yhe rebuilding of such slum areas, although many of them are being converted
to factory districts. Would you recommend to this committee the clearing of

ese slums and rebuilding on the old sites, or would you recommend rebuilding
On the outskirts?—A. We feel, in this particular area about which you are speak-
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ing, that it would be necessary to replace the buildings on the same land in the
interest of the people who are now located there. If they were moved to the
outskirts, for various reasons, they would not go; or if they did go, to come in
to work they would have to pay something like $5 to $6 a month for trans-
portation which would be equivalent to an addition to their rent They would
be better off where they are, provided the neighbourhood was put into a more
habitable condition, with more open spaces, which could easily be done. We
do not propose that they should be moved out to the outskirts at all.
Q. I notice that on page 119 of your report you say:—-
We recognize that a sudden general condemnation and demolition of
2,000 dwellings is impraecticable; for it would lead to an intensification of
the existing housing shortage and would increase the widespread hard-
ships of ovércrowding. The process would indeed be intolerably slow
were it not accompanied by vigourous projects of rehousing.
I want to ask you a question based on that paragraph; with regard to these
3,000 dwellings referred to, if the health and building by-laws were enforced
could not these houses be put into a proper sanitary condition, could they not be
repaired and equipped with proper modern conveniences. In other words, what
is the reason for these by-laws not being enforced in so far as they relate to
these delapidated buildings? Is that due to the depression, to lack of houses,
or what?—A. To both, I think; undoubtedly, to both. The medical officer of
health explained to us that it was almost impossible to enforce the by-laws,
even as they stand, to the full; as I understand it, because in many cases of the
poverty of the tenants and of the poverty of the landlords; and to the inability
of the tenants to find any other place to go to.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Did they say anything about the poverty of the city too?—A. I do not
know whether that came in or not.

By Mr. Morand.:

Q. Have they made any use of the fire hazard by-law; I should think they
might be able to use that?—A. That may be so; and, of course, the department
of building does insist on that. Sometimes the department of building has con-
demned the character of a number of houses on the ground of danger from fire,
but not on the ground of health. In the case of health, the number of con-
demnations has steadily declined of late years. Last year only three houses were
condemned, and the reason is simply that if you attempted to enforce improve-
ments on some of these little landlords and the wretched tenants it would simply
mean creating a burden quite impossible for the landlords to bear, and a burden
on the tenants also because they could not find any other place to which to go.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Your committee recommends extension of authority to the provinci&1
health officers, and also to the municipal health officers; however, as a matter -
of fact, the city health officers have not been able to use the authority they have
already?—A. I think, sir, there is an implied contradiction there, which I thin
you will be. I think what is in our minds is that the law ought to b€
strengthened; because, the medical officers of health acting even with the be
of intention find difficulty in getting results, because the landlord has merely t©
employ a clever lawyer to prove his case, and therefore it is often very difficul
to proceed. We want to see it strengthened so that the medical officers of health
can proceed confidently.

The CramrMan: Mr. Church, did you have any other questions?
Mr. Caurch: I have just two other questions, Mr. Chairman.
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By Mr. Church:

Q. I have here the annual report of the assessment commissioner for the
city of Toronto for the year 1934. It refers to a growing demand for housing,
and it says:—

Since pre-war days, that is nearly 20 years, Toronto has added only
166 acres (slightly over one-quarter of a square mile) to her area. There
have, in that time, been eleven annexations, but all of them insignificant
in acreage. The city is practically the same size as in 1914, although its
population has increased from 470,000 to 630,000, or more than one-third.

This explains why Toronto now has only a slow growth—a loss of
population in 1934 if the city directory estimate is to be believed, but a few
thousands gained according to the city assessor’s record which is an
actual count, not an estimate. The fact is that the city is now becoming
built up, and that in many residential districts no suitable building sites
remain. So, people who would otherwise locate within its borders go to
points outside the city to establish themselves, and depend uopn their
motor cars for rapid transit to the down-town district.

Where are these people to go when these slum areas are cleared out? Where
these people do go is to the outskirts, very largely to the township of York, to
the north, east and west; and they have gone there to such an extent that they
have built up what is almost a new city?>—A. But it is outside of the city, of
course.

Q. But you say in your report here, at page 117, that when the depression is
over you recommend the construction of 25,000 dwelling units. Now, where
would you get land in the city on which to build them, in view of the figures I
have read. Where would you go, when you have only 166 acres added in the
past twenty years? Where would you get the land? Would it not be better
for you to go to the outskirts with any such housing scheme which contemplates
the building of 25,000 units of a value of $3,000 each? For transportation the
Workingmen would have access to motor cars, to trucks, to the T. T. C. and the

uses, and in that way get quickly down to the city. I think it is a mistake to
recommend rebuilding in areas such as Bright street, Moss Park, and other
Streets where slums now are. Would it not be better to go to the outskirts?—A.
W? do not see any objection at all to rebuilding in some of these central areas,
1f it is done with due attention to open spaces and so on when planning construc-
10n; that it is quite a healthy place, and health you know is of enormous
advantage for the poorer tenants. Then, they are on the spot, without any extra
®Xpense, and they can get as I say the kind of odd jobs through which very
often they eke out their living. It is perfectly true though that for the 25,000
nits which may be required to meet the house shortage a large proportion must

€ on the outskirts, or outside of the city limits; at the same time there is a good
eal of land available still within the city limits, especially in the north-western
Part which could still be built on.

; Q But, because of the fact that there is a lack of suitable building sites
Within the city would it not be better to have these people from the slum areas
Moved to the outskirts; otherwise, where would you get the land on which to

uild these 25,000 house units? It is not available in the ecity, to which in the
.DaSt.20 years has only been added an area of 166 acres?—A. We believe there
% still a good deal of land within the city, particularly in the northern part of

Oronto; as I say, there are open fields and fairly wide places still that could
w‘“ilbuilt upon. Of these people we are thinking of are not the kind of people

0 are moving out or who want to move out. This is what we have found
8%ain and again, that when they have to move they do not go to the outskirts.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q. Do you not contemplate the construction of apartments for a number

gk i these people?—A. Yes.
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By Mr. Church: .

Q. What percentage of these houses that you refer to as being in slum
areas are being held contiguous to commercial areas for purposes of accelera-
tion in value of assessment? These slums, referred to in your report, are
largely in the vicinity of Bright Street, Moss Park and that district. Some
of them are owned by the hospital trust, away down on Gerrard street—where
Dr. Stanley was a medical student. Many of these have been cleaned out
and the hospital trust have a number of these small new type houses there
now. But down around Bright street, and also in Ward 2, east of St. Paul’s
church and in there west of the Don and south of Queen—all that area to-day
is about two-thirds factory district. What percentage of that district is being
held contiguous to these areas for the purpose of acceleration in value—by the
synod maybe, and by other interests? Your report has nothing to say on
that at all?—A. I think it is almost impossible to give any accurate estimate.
Certainly the assessment on some of it, particularly in Moss Park, is high; the
land is high in value and the assessment there is high as well. A good deal of it
is being kept, no doubt, with that purpose in view.

Q. This is my last question: The assessment commissioner’s report gives
figures as to the number of vacant houses in the city of Toronto. The figures
are as follows:

Houses Suites
Year Vacant Vacant
Rl T et s s e i B S SN T 2,596
10 1 10y e G 8 ST N el W P W TRINS alig 0.2 0 3,605
;AL 2 T T Al Gl P IR ST e 4792
I e i i ol S A g AT A 4,995
A5 N S T L e M st () 3,599

The assessors found nearly 16 per cent of suites vacant in 1933, and only a
little more than eleven per cent vacant in 1934. Where did all these people
go; they went into flats very largely didn’t they?—A. Oh, a good many of
these people doubled up.

Q. They are now in flats, are they not?—A. In some cases, possibly; but

in a good many cases they are sharing a small house—two families sharing &
small house in which only one would be living before the depression.
4 Q. I see from the report that there were nearly 1,300 more vacant houses -
in 1934 than there were in 1930, notwithstanding the fact that 7,500 people have
gone into apartments, which shows the necessity for more land and more build-
ings right now. There is a scarcity of houses right now in the city of Toronto,
of the small type?—A. Yes, of the small type, no doubt.

Q. But the working man cannot afford to pay the rent?—A. No. There aré
about 4 per cent of the houses in the city now vacant. The normal vacancy
is shown as being between 4 and 4} per cent.

Q. But, Professor Urwick, as to your general report, I do not think what
you find with regard to bad housing conditions applies to the city prope®
nor do the observations contained in your report apply to the city as a whole:
There are slums, and near slums, but they are confined pretty much to districts:
I believe, however, that the city of Toronto is trying to cope with the probler:
You recommend in your report, sir, that the health department ought to be
able to condemn, don’t you?—A. Undoubtedly.

QN They have that power now, but they are not able to use it apparenﬂy?
— 0.

The CrARMAN: Does anyone else want tb ask Professor Urwick a questio?
Mr. HaxBury: I would like to ask him a question or two.
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[ By Mr. Hanbury:
',_ Q. Do you contemplate that the federal housing commission which you
F recommend is to become possessed of and own houses in the various muniei-
~ Dalities?—A. No.

Q. How then are you going to be able to work it?——A. You mean, how
are we going to get hold of properties?
- Q. As I understand it, you are recommending that certain property which
18 now owned by individuals is to be acquired by the state?—A. In certain
areas, these bad areas; not by the state, but by the authority—we are not
contemplating it being acquired by the state. :
: Q. Yes?—A. I contemplated it being acquired by the ecity, with the
f assistance of governments; provincial and federal.
' Q. And then each authority is to construet in its own areas?—A. In our
recommendation the board of directors on housing would be responsible, and
directly responsible, to the city for the construction of houses for rehabiiltation
and so on.
~ Q. It would really be a municipal undertaking?—A. It would be a muni-
. Clpal undertaking.
. Q. You are suggesting that financial assistance come from the federal

government?—A. Yes.
Q. And then you contemplate that there will be town planning, and
. control of that kind?—A. That is our hope. We think it would be folly to go
 ahead without proper town planning.
" . Q. Would you suggest that this federal housing commission would be
}. Justified in adopting the attitude that until there is proper provision for the
[ Uture they will withhold any money; that, until there is proper planing they
~ Will withhold any advance of money?—A. Exactly.

By the Chairman:
i Q. In connection with that, I see on page 117 and page 118 of your report
| that it would take about $12,000,000 to provide the 4,000 dwelling units at a
| %08t of $3,000 apiece. The city, or the government, would have to put up
he whole $12,000,000. They would not have any equity for the $12,000,000
ey would put in, would they; it would have to be a donation outright?—
{ - Except that there would be in all probability a certain amount of income
fom it, to which the municipality would have the right of course—I think
there would be. But this would be the cost which has to be put down by the
Oty in order to get the whole thing done.
th Q. Now, it says here: “On these considerations we may hazard a guess
at the average cost of raising all dwellings to the standard might be about
& tha()()()_.” That only raises them up to the standard. Well now, understanding
g at, in bringing these 4,000 dwellings up would the people who put up the
E 12;000,000 have any equity in that at all; or would they only belong to the
feople who already own them?—A. Oh, no, sir; I said, the city would have
€ equity in them altogether.

4 h Mr. Moraxp: It would be a matter of destruction and replacement, rather
© ' rehabilitation.
[ of The Wirngss: That item of $3,000 would include the cost of the purchase

e land and of rebuilding. The cost would be somewhere around $2,500
1:!' dwelling for building, and the city would then own the house and the
» and would get at least some revenue out of it.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:
Ch Q. This is a question arising out of one of the questions asked by Mr.
Urch: Did T understand you, Professor Urwick, or is it your opinion, that
95450\2 3
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there are near the heart of Toronto some of these districts that are now
occupied by bad dwellings and “shacks” which could be used for tenement
houses in which to house low wage tenants; do you think that would be
practicable?—A. Oh, yes, quite.

Q. Would the price of the land there be such that it could be done, do you
think, as a business proposition?—A. No, if you mean as a business proposition;
in the sense that it would be an economic and paying proposition, no. The land
would be too expensive, and the cost of the buildings attached to it would be
too expensive. '

Q. Then, how would you make up the loss to the owners of that property ?—
A. We are contemplating in these particular areas the buying out of the owners
altogether—land and buildings.

By Mr. Stanley :

Q. Would it not be economically cheaper for the municipality to move a
lot of these occupants away from the congested areas, put them out further
and provide transportation to their work?—A. I quite agree, sir, it would be
cheaper; you could get your land much cheaper, a good deal cheaper, of course;
and possibly the cost of the building might be a little cheaper, although not
much. :

Q. I presume you take it that the psychology which prompts o many people
to come in from the farm to the city is also the psychology which prompts a lot
of people to live away down town?—A. Undoubtedly; and also there are all
kinds of ties and interests among these people; if you take a place like “ The
Ward ”, as it is known in Toronto, you have a great many foreigners who
generally want to be beside their own people. They form groups. sometimes they
have their little church, they have their little assemblies and that sort of thing,
and they do not want to leave that neighbourhood. They would come back if you
put them outside, if they could. In the case of Moss Park it is not quite so bad,
because they are nearly all British or English speaking people, but even they
have local ties and all sorts of interests in connection with the different factories;
warehouses and plants, and it would be almost impossible to drag them away-

By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Could you provide for most of the people in that area at ihe present time
if you put up proper apartments?—A. You could, if you put them up in the
way they did in some of the European cities; huge blocks of perhaps 7 to 8
stories and accommodating as many as 200 families in one block sometimes:
The difficulty is that we have been met again and again by the objection that
our people will not stand for that sort of thing in Canada. They want som€
privacy, they want a small back yard or its equivalent. There are, of course:
vlenty of blocks of flats, but I do not know of any blocks corresponding to the
European type.

By Mr. Morand:

Q. Might I come back to my original question again, Professor Urwi?k?
in your opinion should there be, along with any housing scheme, a licensing
provision whereby no factories will be permitted to establish in any place other
than one in which provision is made for the health of the district, and for b
~ housing of the people who would be employed by such plants?—A. Personally

should be in favour of that. : s

Q. That would be better than permitting them to do the way they are doiné

at the present time?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Hanbury:
Q Would not that situation be taken care of by your plan for zoning?/d
A. Yes. It would need something like that. Factories should only be allowe®
to become established in certain areas. ;
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Mr. CavcuonN: I might explain, for your information, that town planning
can control what a man will do with his property; but there would be no power
such as Mr. Morand is asking for, to compel incoming factories to provide hous-
ing for their people. You see, the danger is that new factories contribute directly
to the over-crowding of existing housing facilities.

Mr. HanBury: But, town planning will provide that facteries may only
locate in certain areas.

The Wirness: That is the point—factories should provide houses for people
they bring into a small town. ;

The Cuamman: Gentlemen, we have Mr. Cudmore here from the Dominion
Bureau of Statisties; could we hear him now?

Professor Urwick we want to thank ycu for appearing before us.

By Mr. Church:

Q. Before the witness leaves I would like to ask him this question: Did your
committee approach the synod, or the diocese, of Toronto, to ascertain what
they are prepared to do in connection with this matter?—A. No, we did not.

Q. Don’t you think you could instill a little Christian housing spirit into
them if you tried?—A. We did not try, I am sorry to say.

Q. Isn’t it the rule that charity should begin at home?—A. Possibly.

By Hon. Mr. Rinjret:

Q. Before the witness leaves, and going back to Mr. Morand’s question about
building in the outskirts rather than centralizing, I put the question myself a
few minutes ago about compensation to the owner of a slum: Is there anything
In your report suggesting that in certain blocks—or slums, if I may express
myself in that way—that these could be transformed into public parks or
playgrounds? There has been some suggestion made in the city of Montreal
that we might in certain cases transform a block in such an area into parks,
and by way of compensation to the owners of houses in such areas at the
Present time encouragement might be given, and some provision made for him
to build in the suburbs. Have you had such a plan as that submitted to you
I any way?—A. No, we have not, sirr We simply contemplated the possi-

ility of turning some of these slum areas, as we call them, into residential
Istricts and rearranging and limiting the number of houses and increasing the
amount of open space; but not turning them into parks, which we thought
Would be too expensive at present at least.

Q. Well then, I suppose it would be inappropriate to ask your opinion
about something that you have not propertly considered, or which does not
Oorm a part of your report and has not been brought to your attention?—
A. It has not been brought to our attention, no.

Mr. Cavcaon: In England they insist in sub-divisions that a proporticn
of the area must be left for what they call open space.

Hon. Mr. RinFreT: I might say right here, notwithstanding any opinions
to the contrary as to the value of slum property, you are going to find it diffi-
Cult, anytime you want to dispossess a present owner without compensation.

at has been my experience in Montreal whenever anything of that kind
as been submitted to us.
Mr. CuurcH, seconded by Mr. STANLEY, moved an expression of apprecia-
and thanks by the committee to His Honour Lieutenant-Governor Bruce,
is committee on housing, and to Professor Urwick, for making the Report
of the Lieutenant-Governor’s Committee on Housing Conditions in Toronto
(1934) available to this committee.

Carried.
954609}
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The CHAIRMAN: Professor Urwick, we want to extend the thanks of this
committee to you and to His Honour.
The Wrirness: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Witness retired.

The CaamrMman: Now, it is only a quarter to twelve and I think we should
have Mr. Cudmore start his evidence. Would you come forward, please, Mr.
Cudmore.

Mr. S. A. CubMoRE, called.

The CrARMAN: Mr. Cudmore is Chief of the General Statistics Branch, and
editor of the Canada Year Book.

The Wirness: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have been asked' by Dr.
Coates to present to you a statement regarding the statistics relative to housing
which are collected by, or in the possession of. the Dominion Bureau of Statis-
ties. Generally speaking, those statistics are of an extensive character, rather
than of the intensive character that the last witness has been referring to. Of
course, the most elaborate of those statistics are those obtained from the Census
of 1931, which are now available for the whole of Canada. At that Census we
secured a description of each and every occupied dwelling in the country. The
points covered included the general class of the dwelling house, detached, semi-
detached, apartment and so forth, the material of which it was constructed, the
number of rooms, certain conveniences in the case of rural residences, the family
in occupation, showing the number of persons per room, ete. It was also ascer-
tained whether the dwelling was owned or rented; if the former, the value was
recorded, if the latter, the amount of rental paid. Then with regard to each
family occupying these dwellings, very complete details were collected including
sex, age, occupation, earnings, racial origin, birthplace, literacy, -citizenship,
unemployment, ete., of each member. These facts have been compiled for each
city of over 30,000 as well as for the Dominion and for the province; also for
groups of urban communities of over 1,000 population, and groups of towns and
villages under 1,000. Analyses of the material from all important points of
view have been begun, more particularly the earnings and general economic
condition of the family in relation to the housing which the family occupies.
Based on the above, there are in preparation two special studies to be brought
out as census monographs, one a study of the Canadian family, its composition,
size, economic conditions, ete.; studying the family both from the social stand-
point, and from the economic standpoint; also there will be a second monograph
dealing with housing and rentals; but these of course will deal more particularly
with the subject in which the committee is interested It should be remembered
that these census data on housing include the features which are susceptible of
quantitative measurement. From our position here at Ottawa, we could not g0
into the qualitative analysis of housing conditions of which you have already
heard. It is important to have information on such features as state of repaif,
age, sanitary conditions, food, storage facilities, features such as one gets in the
report of the Ontario Committee on Housing Conditions in Toronto. We ha
contemplated in the final stages of those monographs, which we are preparing
obtaining certain qualitative data by personal visits and co-ordination of exist-
ing published materials.

All the questions relating to housing were asked upon the population
schedule so as to facilitate the compilation of the information obtained wit
that relating to the persons contained in the family and the earnings and employ~
ment of its wage earners. It thus becomes possible to study in detail the housing -
facilities in any particular area as relating to the type of people which thos¢
facilities serve, provided that the area was clearly and definitely stated an
corresponded with the enumeration districts of the census, of which there weré
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some 15,000 throughout the country. Intensive surveys of housing facilities in
particular areas included within city limits can thus be made, provided adequate
staff is made available.

A great deal of these statistics admit of more than one interpretation. Low
rentals may indicate either poor accommodation or merely that the supply of
housing is greater than the demand, as, for instance, towns of stationary or
declining population. High average rentals, similarly, may indicate either
quality of accommodation provided or that the demand for housing is out of
proportion to the available supply. Thus the statistics for each community
require interpretation by persons familiar with the trend of housing conditions
in that community.

However, there is one general type of statistic that should be considered
as a measure of the adequacy of housing facilities, prima facie evidence. If one
community has, in the ordinary course of events, a much smaller number of
rooms per head of its population than another community, there is a prima facie
case for saying that the first community is overcrowded as compared to the
second one, although this statement should hardly be made without reservation
as between communities, one of which includes in its population, a much larger
percentage of young children than the other.

Another statistical series regarded as an excellent guide to the adequacy
of housing, are the number of persons per hundred dwellings. Where the number
per dwelling is low, as in London, Ontario, it would appear to evidence that the
city is not overcrowded and that the supply of housing is adequate to the
population. Where the number of persons per dwelling or per room in the
dwelling is high, as in Regina, it would appear that new building is required.
We have two series of tables here dealing with that. The first series deals with
the housing of the population of Canada and the provinces. I am going to
leave these tables with you together with an explanatory statement, showing
what we consider the most important conclusions to be drawn from these state-
ments. Thus, for example, in the first series of tables dealing with Canada and
the provinces, there might be especially noted the fact that in the rural points
of Canada there were in 1921, 21,116 one-family households of owners and 7,261
One-family households of tenants consisting of two or more persons, and occupy-
Ing one room only There were also in rural Canada in 1931, taking owners and
tenants together, 753 households of two or more families occupying one room only.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. The whole of Canada?—A. The whole of Canada. Again, in urban
Canada, there were in 1931, taking owners and tenants together, 11,975 house-
olds of one family of two or more persons living in a single room and 94 house-
olds where two or more families live in a single room. These cases are of
Course most obvious cases of over-crowding.
in Q. Have you these for the provinces?>—A. Yes, for Canada and the prov-
ces.
By the Chairman:
Q. Are you going to file any statement or report which shows these by
E}Il‘ovinces?—A. We will give you these tables, sir, and this statement regarding
€m.
By Mr. Stanley :
t Q. Does it divide the urban from the rural?—A. Yes. Now, the second
&blg of this Dominion and provincial series, shows for Canada and each of the
Provinees the structurally separate units, the households, and number of rooms,
80 the rooms per person, the rooms per structurally separate unit, and the rooms
ber ousehold—that is, the average figure, of course,—by rural and urban areas
N the total, In this table the most significant column would appear to be
Mber of rooms per person in the total population. By provinces these vary
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from 0-:95 in Saskatchewan and 1-:01 in Alberta, to 1:51 in Ontario and
1:62 in Prince Edward Island, the average for Canada as a whole being 1-26
rooms per person.

Mr. Haxsury: Will you give the other provinces at the same time?

The Wrrxess: The other provinces are here.

Hon. Mr. Rixrrer: What about Quebec?

The WrrNess: Quebec has 1-14 rooms per person of its total population in
dwellifigs. Of course, Quebec has a larger percentage of young children in its
population than most of the other provinces.

The Cuamman: Can you give the other provinces? Mr. Hanbury would like
British Columbia.

The Wrrness: British Columbia has 1:24 rooms per person for its total
population, which is almost exactly the same as the Dominion average. The
provinees which are worst housed on this basis are Saskatchewan, Alberta and
Manitoba.

Mr. McInrTosu: Is that largely urban or rural?

The Wirness: Altogether. These are complete figures.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:
Q. These are very surprising figures. I should think the three prairie
provinees would be largely rural, except Manitoba, perhaps?—A. One feature
of the figures is that in each of those three provinces, the rooms per person in

the rural area are lower than in the urban areas and then in the province as a

whole. Now, in rural Saskatchewan, there are only -84 rooms per person of the
rural population.

Q. May I inquire right here as to how the statistics are built up. Do you
take into account only the bedrooms or every room in the house?>—A. Every room
in the house, apart from bathrooms—

Q. Kitchen perhaps?—A. We take kitchens, yes. The kitchen is considered
a room. ;

Mr. Stanvey: Most of the homesteads out west have just one room for
everything. '

Hon. Mr. RinrreT: I see.

The Wirness: It is very natural, of course, in a new country, that people
should start out with a shack and build on as they have the means to do so.

Hon. Mr. Rinvrer: Here is an explanation. I am always a little bit worried
about statistics. If you have a very large room comprising the living room,
dining room, kitchen and everything, that is not so bad perhaps as having two
small rooms crowded with people.

The Wrrness: I am afraid we cannot—

Hon. Mr. Rixrrer: There will be an explanation of that.

The WrrNnEss: Oh, yes.

Hon. Mr. RinFrer: It is most surprising to hear there is more over-crowding
in Saskatchewan than in the urban centres of the old provinces. There must be
some reason for it, one reason being there is a large room for all purposes.

Mr. Howpex: I well remember rural communities out there where the
farmer put up four walls and cannot afford to divide the room. il

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: That would not be so unsanitary if they were placed 12
the midst of a field.

Mr. StaNLEY: Mr. Chairman, the disposition there is not to have these room®
too big. They have a very rugged climate in the winter time, and the smal et
the room the easier it is to heat. They have to bring coal a long distance.
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Hon. Mr. RiNFrET: 1 suppose no room at all would solve the heating prob-
lem, according to that. That shows that statistics are sometimes deceiving.

Hon. Mr. Ervuiorr: I do not suppose it would be very easy for you to
acquire a statement showing the cubic feet space. Could you get us figures
showing the number of cubic feet of space that you would have in a house?
You never attempted that?

The Wrirness: No. I think it would be quite impossible to get our 15,000
enumerators, who are working on the census, to secure information of that de-
tailed type. They have to take the information that the persons reporting
regarding the house give to them, as they give it to them after explaining what
the census means by a room. y

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. Have you information as to the number of bathroom equipment there
18 in the country?—A. We did ask at the census of the rural homes, how
many of them had water piped into the kitchen, and how many had water
piped into the bathroom, and we found it was a comparatively small percentage.

Q. A very small percentage?—A. We did not get that information with
regard to urban homes.

Q. You did in regard to the rural?—A. Yes.

Q. A lot of people in the cities think all those houses have those appurten-
ances?—A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. Erriorr: They have not lived on the prairies. ‘
The CaamrMaN: Will you proceed, Mr. Cudmore?

The Wrrngss: I shall proceed with those statements, Mr. Chairman. Table

A in this series shows the households of one family in Canada and in each of
e provinces classified as wage earner households and other households by
he monthly rentals paid. Table 3B shows the same thing with households of
Wo or more families. Table 4 shows in Canada and for each of the provinces,
le value of urban homes occupied by their owners by value classes. Here 1t
Will be noted that about 24 per cent of all urban homes were valued—that is
according to the statement of all owned urban homes—by their owners in
their statement to census enumerators at less than $500, and only 64 per cent
More at between $500 and $1,000, making over 9 per cent of all urban houses

be valued at under $1,000.

By Mr. Hanbwry: B

Q. Did that valuation include land?—A. Yes, it would naturally include
land in the statement furnished. Tables 5A and 5B show for Canada and its
Provinces the kind of dwellings occupied by one family or two or more families
resDect-ively, whether such dwellings were single, semi-detached, apartments or
ts, row or terrace, hotel or rooming house. Particularly notable is the over-
%ro'wd‘ing in the households consisting of two or more families as indicated by
he_ fact that the rooms occupied by such families are only 1-03 per person,
Ule in the household of one family the proportion is 1-29 rooms per person.
OW, these are the figures of the first series, if anybody cares to look them over

(exhibirt.ing) 3

SAT Hon. Mr. Moraxp: Would it be too much trouble to have these printed in

evidence? :
The Cuamrman: We should go over them and see what we need in the

':, Vidence and undertake to print that.
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Hon. Mr. Evrviorr: 1 would suggest as Mr. Cudmore knows so much more
about these figures than any of us possibly can, while he is going over it, that
he give us what appears to him to be the most important figures, so that we
can get them into the record, because they are very important and very interest-
ing.

Mr. CaucuoN: Mr. Cudmore mentions that these will be all printed by the
Bureau of Statistics. ;

The CrAIRMAN: That won't be of any use to our committee.

Hon. Mr. RiNnFreT: You mean the census reports?

The Wrirness: As I understand it, Mr. Pelletier, they will appear in
volume 57

Hon. Mr. Moraxp: How long before that will be out?

Mr. PeLLETIER: It is very hard to answer that. I suppose it is due to the
overwork at the Printing Bureau but it always takes us around a year to get
a volume out, with the exception of volume 7, which is seven months, so it
is hard to say when the volume will be out.

Hon. Mr. MoraxDp: You have not started on it yet?

Mr. PeLLETIER: Yes, but not at the Bureau.

The CHAIRMAN: It would not be out in time to be of any use to the com-
mittee, anyway.

Mr. PerreTier: No. We have a published bulletin that will be out in

probably three or four weeks. I suppose that will be too late too?
Mr. HANBURY: Yes.

Mr. StaNLEY: Mr. Cudmore and Mr. Pelletier might co-operate with the
sub-committee and intimate to the sub-committee what would be of the greatest
value to us.

The CuairMAN: Yes, and we will incorporate that into our report.

The Wirxess: Then we have also the second series of tables dealing with
housing in the 20 leading cities of Canada, having each over 30,000 population.
The first table in the series deals with the housing accommodation ©
owners and tenants in the 20 leading cities of Canada, these owners an
tenants being divided as “ one person households,” “household of one family,
of two or more persons,” and “ households of two or more families.” Here W€
may note, for example, the great preponderance of tenants in Montreal, though
this does not necessarily involve inadequacy of accommodation. It is signifi-
cant also that the western cities had an appreciable percentage of their families
of two or more persons living in one room only. :

Table 2 shows for each of these 20 leading cities (exclusive of the instl
tutions there located) the number of structurally separate units, of households
of rooms, also of rooms per person, per structurally separate units, and pPe
household. 1In this table the number of rooms per persons varies from 1

in Three Rivers, 1-11 in Quebee, 1-13 in Regina, and Verdun, to 1-64 in

London, which is thus apparently the most adequately housed city in Canada:

Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: It is an ideal city.

Hon. Mr. Moranxn: They are all bachelors there.

The Wirness: However, Three Rivers and Quebec have a proportionza»’f:ely
larger number of young children in their population than most of the other®
and probably the better figure in this connection is rooms per household, whi¢
varies from 4-82 in Verdun to 6-57 in Ottawa. We have to mention that.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: You have not got the figures for Callander, Ontari?

The Wirness: No, I am afraid I have not.

P
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Hon. Mr. Erviorr: They would have to be revised, anyway.

The Wirness: Of course all these figures are for the census date, June
1, 1931—I wish to say that—before the quintuplets arrived. Tables 3A and
3B show for households of one family and two or more families respectively,
the rentals paid by wage earner and non-wage earner households respectively |
in each of the 20 cities. Attention may be directed to the fact that in most
of the cities the number of persons exceed the number of rooms in the groups
paying the lower rentals, while in the groups paying the higher rentals, the
reverse is the case. The overcrowding is naturally the greatest in the house-
holds of two or more families, and is greater among the wage earners than in
the non-wage earning households.

Table 4 shows for each of the 20 cities the number of owned houses valued
at under $500, between $500 and $1,000, and $2,000 ete., according to the
occupational status of their heads. The cities differ considerably in the per-
centage of their owned houses valued at under $1,000. Edmonton showed up
rather badly in this comparison. Edmonton had 14 per cent of her owned
houses valued at under $1,000, but this may perhaps be considered as a tempor-
ary phenomenon in the experience of a rapidly growing western community.

Table 5A shows for each of the twenty leading cities the numbers of house-
holds on one private family, of one person, the total number of persons, the
number of children, the number of lodgers, and the number of rooms occupied,

s according to the kind of dwelling. Here again the most significant comparisons
o are probably those of the inhabitants of single or semi-detached houses as
' compared with those of apartments or flats, rows or terraces, together with
the relation between the number of persons and the number of occupied rooms.
FI Table 5B is similar to 5A, but deals with households of two or more

families, giving the numbers of such households, number of private families
included in them, the number of persons, the number of rooms, and the number
of lodgers in each of the 20 cities. In nine of these cities the number of
persons in such households exceeds the number of rooms.

¥
] By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. Conditions would be different to-day, Mr. Cudmore, from what they
were in 1931, due to the fact that there has been very little building going on,
d and the population has increased?—A. Mr. Morand, I am afraid there is no
doubt of that. Besides being the census takers of Canada, we are also the
People who try to keep tab on the current situation. Here is a chart showing
the value of construction contracts awarded, the upper line, and the lower
line shows the value of building permits issued for residential buildings in
Canada over recent years.

Q. You. have not a graph showing the increased population since then?
—A. Mr. MacLean, our chief census analyst, is recognized as an authority on
that point, and from his figures we estimate that from 1931 until the present
time, there have been added to the population of Canada, mainly by natural
Increase, about half a million persons, and I think I would be safe in saying
that by the end of the present year we shall reach 11,000,000. I have a
i Memorandum here dealing with construction contracts. I have another draft
8 Showing the index number of unemployment in the building construction indus-
' Ty. That was at its lowest point. The value of building permits and the value
of construction contracts awarded was at its lowest point in 1933 for residential
Uilding; 1934 showed a substantial measure of recovery. You may have
Noticed in number 3 of your evidence the conclusions that were expressed in
the bulletin of the Bank of Nova Scotia to the effect that there ought to be
Some $300,000,000 of new residential building this year in order to take care
of the backlog arising out of the low figures of residential construction in 1932,
19?{3 and 1934—the assumption being that we need about $100,000,000 of new
Tesidential building in Canada.

R o
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By Mr. Hanbury:

Q. Could you tell from this draft the average number of men not engaged
in the construction industry at the present time in comparison with 19267—
A. This is based upon a table, sir, but it does not include every building permit
in the country. In our monthly reports we get figures only for the firms
which employ fifteen or more people. The figures in that table, as I remember
them, show that throughout 1934 there were only about one-third of the
number of men employed in building that there had been in 1929 and even
in 1930.

Here is a memorandum showing residential building in recent years as
based on the reports of some 60 cities which send us in their building permits
every month, and also indicating which of these building permits deal with
residential construction and the value of residences constructed.

Q. I wondered if the Bureau of Statistics would have any information
showing comparisons of the figures that they did have on record with other
countries?—A. We have a great many statistics available for other countries
but it would take some time to study them out and it would be a difficult
matter to make an analysis of all the necessary reservations.. As Professor
Urwick was telling you it is hardly possible to find two countries in the world
where conditions are quite similar: T have a number of copies of this memo-
randum on the recent trend of building over the last three or four years, and
if anyone cares to have a coy I shall be pleased to supply them.

Hon. Mr. Erriorr: What does it show generally—the recent trend in

that statement you now put in?
- The Wirxess: Well, in the good years up to 1929 and even 1930 the value
of residential building undertaken in the reporting cities ran around $50,000,000
or $60,000,000 per year, which would be fairly well in line with the Bank of
Nova Scotia figures of $100,000,000 for all Canada because the increase in
the population of those 60 cities is something like half or a bit more of
the increase in the population of Canada as a whole. But in 1933 instead of
$50,000,000 or $60,000,000 of new residential buildings in these reporting cities
there was only about seven and a quarter millions of new residential buildings,
and in 1934 that increased somewhat to $8,600,000.

Mr. McIntosu: What does it look like for this year?

The Wrrxess: It is very early to say because really our building season has
not started yet, but the MacLean Building Reports of construction contracts
awarded which they have for two months, indicate that it is rather better than

1934—not very much, about 10 per cent.
' Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: Do they differentiate between residential construction
and general construction?

The Wirness:  Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Morand:

Q. What is the approximate ratio of increase in population in the last
four years as compared with your census period between, say, 1921 and 1931.
I would not expect you to have that here, but could we secure that information
—A. On the basis of our vital statistics, I think you might say that our natural
increase of population, our annual natural increase is about from 11 to 14 per
c¢ent per annum.

Q. Do you remember what your total increase was—your percentage of -
inerease in your last census period?—A. About 18 per cent between 192
and 1931. .

Q. 1-87—A. Yes, 1-8.

Q. And it runs about 1:4?—A. Yes, 13 to 1:4.
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By Hon. Mr. Ellott:

Q. Have you tables of cost, construction costs, for the different years?—
A. We have, sir.

Q. Are they comparative tables?—A. I was going to refer to that. There
is one point which I think should be made, and it is this, that at the time
the former housing scheme was launched by the Dominion with the cooperation
of the provinces the building costs were practically at their maximum in our
whole experience—1919 and 1920—and since that time the prices of building
materials in 1920 were roughly double those in 1913, and wage rates in the
building trades were about 80 per cent higher. Interest rates on mortgage
money changed very little during the war years; indeed there has been little
change in them between 1913 and the present time. After 1920 there was a
rapid decline in building costs, in 1921 and 1922, and then a slow decline
until 1930, and since 1930 there has been a decline of about 10 per cent in
the price of building and construction materials, and a decline of rather more
than that in wages in the building trades.

Q. Your statement gives it by years?—A. Wage rates declined by 24 per
cent, between 1930 and 1935.

Q. And you stated that construction material had declined 10 per cent?—
A. That is from 1930 to 1934.

The CaARMAN: Now, you might proceed in the order you have it there?

The Wirness: It is apparent from this data that the reaction to building
costs is slow. Between 1929 and 1934 costs, rents, construction all declined, and
the upturn in construction in 1934 actually was accompanied by higher material
Dbrices and lower rents. Of course, the most vital factor in promoting the growth
of residential building, activity in residential building, is the demand—what
the economists call the effective demand, the demand accompanying the price.

Mr. Haxsury: The ability to meet the demand.

Hon. Mr. Morann: The ability to create the demand and being able to
pay for it.

The Witness: I ought to say that we have available in the Bureau at least

annual statistics of the production, imports, exports and apparent domestic
Consumption of commodities used as structural materials or as household furnish-
mgs. Thus as regards structural materials, we know the production of such com-
hodities as cement, brick and tile, sand, stone and gravel in recent vears, while
f’OI_' cement monthly figures of production, imports and exports are available.
Vith respect to building equipment we have annual figures of the value of the
broduction of electrical apparatus, lighting fixtures, radiators, plumbers’ supplies,
Stoves, window shades and window screens, electric and other refrigerators, and
Sanitary ware and many other articles. Dr. Coats instructed me to say that,
0L courge, we are very glad to serve your committee in any way we can in
':‘:Bcuring any figures in our possession—any other figures that you may consider
You meed.

The CuamrMaN: Is that all you have to present to us?
The Wrrngss: I think that is all. :

Mr. Cavcnon: Would you give us the dividing line as to what is considered
fural and urban? There has been a misunderstanding here as to exactly what
S rural. That is to say, when you get at the line of the city vou have a lot of
ftified conditions with respect to overcrowding; now, could you say where that
e divides?

The Wrrxess: As a Dominion government organization which aims also
to Serve the provinces and, as a matter of fact co-operates with the provinces in
.CCuring information along many lines of production and otherwise we have

: :in the past drawn our line of rural and urban at exactly the pomt where it is
- Mawn by the provinces. There is one trouble with that and that is that the
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different provinces vary very much in their practice in this conneection. In
Saskatchewan there are many small incorporated villages, incorporated as urban
municipalities, with not more than 100 or 200 population while in Ontario a
village is supposed to have 750 people, and I think in Nova Scotia there are prac-
tically no incorporated urban municipalities with fewer than 1,000 people.
We have felt the unsatisfactory nature of taking whatever the province took
as our dividing line but we still keep it for general purposes. However, we have
as vou will see in the first series of these tables separated figures for urban
communities classified as urban with fewer than 1,000 people. The general
opinion of the Bureau is that an urban community should have normally 1,000
people.

Mr. CauvcaoN: The point I wanted to make is well exemplified in the town-
ship of York; it is half town. In considering the factor of where help should
be given for low wage earners and whether rural housing is involved the question
comes up as to what is rural housing; I claimed that rural housing mainly
meant farm dwellings, but we have these dividing lines which complicate the
situation.

The Witness: It is quite true that there is a very considerable difficulty
there. Now, at the last census we got for the first time in Canadian history the
figures of the total population of areas such as called greater Montreal, greater
Toronto and so on. Now, in greater Montreal there is ineluded—

Mr. Cavcuon: The whole island?

The Wrrness: Mr. Pelletier knows that better than I do, but it included
pretty well the island at any rate; I do not know whether it inc'uded anything
on the south shore.

Mr. PerueTiEr: It included all the ecities of Montreal such as Westmount
and Outremont and also the small villages like St. Michel de Laval and St.
Laurent and the town of Longueuil and St. Lambert.

Heon. Mr. Rinrrer: Do you include Lachine?

Mr. PeLLETIER: Yes, also Lachine.

Hon. Mr. Rinrrer: You can make it what vou want, because there is
nothing definite about it.

The Wirness: Well, of course, you have the main eriterion of whether a
particular bit of a community like York township is a rural community accord-
ing to the legal interpretation. The main criterion is the density of the popu-
lation in that area immediately adjacent to an organized city. It will be difficult,
of course, to get such information as we gave in these tables for those greater
cities, for the total populations of those great cities in so far as they were also
urban municipalities with definite areas. We might be able to add them up.

Mr. Cavcnon: I was trying to get for the committee what was the differen-
tiation between the housing that is required for the city and for the farm.
the thing is divided into urban and rural, the urban is easily understood. We are
seeking industrial housing for the low wage earner, but when you get into the
rural community, part of that community is made up of wage earners living oR
the outskirts, and they want industrial housing whereas the farmer wants farm
housing.

The Wirness: Well, I think the best procedure in a case of that kind WO}lld
be to take the city case and then for the people who are interested in working
up the situation in that particular community see what information we coul
supply them with for an area outside of the municipal limits.

Mr. Cavcnoxn: Your statistics, as I take it, cover the ground so that when
you examine a householder you designate him as a labourer, or a city workels
an industrial worker, or a farm labourer, and so forth; is that so?

The Wirness: Yes.
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By Mr. Hanbury :

Q. Based on 1926 as an average, could you procure for us the number of
people at present unemployed in the construction industry?—A. It would be a
very difficult matter, sir, because in good times you would get it to a certain
extent, so far as skilled labour was concerned, from the reports of the trade
unions to the Department of Labour, but so far as the building labourer is con-
cerned—the man who is not skilled but who in good time secures work as a
i {nanual labourer in connection with the building trades—you cannot tell where
k e is now.

; Q. No; but you did know in 1926 the number of men engaged in the con-
- struetion industry?—A. In 1933. I beg vour pardon.
t; Q. Have you not that information for 1926?—A. Well, the 1926 information

18 based on our reporting firms which does not profess to be obsolutely inclusive.
Q. You have the number that were engaged in the construction industry in
1931, have you not?—A. We have the number of people reported to us. :
Mr. McIntosu: But there was no report made where the number of people
employed was under fifteen.
The Wrrness: There was no report from firms employing fewer than fifteen.
Mr. HaxBury: There is no definite information.
The CuarMAN: Do any members of the committee know of any statisties
& Which they would like to have prepared?
B The Wirness: I think I can get Mr. Hanbury the figure.
] Mr. Haxsury: I think it is important that we should have from the Bureau
§ of Statistics all the information they can give us as to the number of people
Who are unemployed as the result of the fact that there is no building going on

at the present time, because I think our problem is to try to get these people
Wwork.

Hon. Mr. RinrreT: It might mean that some of the skilled men are working
at something else and whilst working at something else they may be displacing
¢ Other men who would have that work if they were employed in their own oceu-
bations. I do not know to what extent the statistics may show that.

Myr. HanBury: In as far as skilled men are concerned my information is
that practically all the skilled men are from 45 to 50 years of age; that there
are no younger men coming along.

; The CuamrMaN: Do you think you could obtain anything along that line
or us?

gd =l

The Wirngss: I can give you the table on which that draft I have shown
You is based.
B Mr. Hansury: This information does not provide for the number of men
- “mployed or unemployed.
it The Wirness: No. I beg your pardon.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Have you any facts or figures on the apprentice system in Canada, com-
Daring the last year or two with previous years?—A. No, I am afraid I have
- Mt T know there is an apprenticeship law in force in Ontario. One might
%btain some information from the provincial government on that.

Q. I think we had evidence to that effect; but I got the impression that

i Our apprenticeship system was at a low ebb and, if so, what bparmg hgs that
“Odition on skilled labour at the present time and what bearing will it have
M the future?—A. I believe it is quite true, sir. I know it has always been
Y experience that most of our skilled workers, not only in the building trades
In other trades as well, have been old country men. If I might generalize

T & moment I would say that generally in a new country the javk-of-all-trades
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is apt to get on better than the master of one, whereas in the old country
where there is more specialization you would have people confining their life
activities to a very narrow field. Of course, life in our country is becoming
more complicated all the time and more specialized as we realize when-we are
taking a decennnial census, because we have to include a larger number of
additional occupations. Every time we take a decennial census we meet with
oceupations which were not known at the previous census.

Q. Do you think you can get some information on that from provincial
sources?—A. If you like we will write to the Ontario government.

Mr. Remny: I suggest the Inspector of Apprenticeship in Toronto and also
the council in Vancouver—the two centres where the system has been tried.

Mr. Cavcnon: I think the point Mr. Melntosh was emphasizing is that
due to the depression no young men are learning the trades.

Mr. McIntosH: That is one angle.

The WirnEss: Of course, we have had a great increase in technical educa-
tion since the measure of 1919 or thereabouts was passed—since the Dominion
government provided one million a year assistance. 1 think it is largely
through technical education that we will get our young skilled workers in the
future.

The CramrMAN: I wrote Dr. Coats a note asking for information on hous-
ing and for a good deal of information on health and erime to show what the
health of the country costs and what crime costs; and also to let us have some
figures in regard to the amount of money spent on relief by the Dominion, by
the provinces and by the municipalities. 1 have a note from him giving me
some figures which I did not bring with me because I was going to check them

up with the departments of Labour and Health to ascertain their views. I |

do not know what bearing that will have, but I thought the general figures
would be of interest to us.

Mr. McIxTosa: Will the figures with regard to crime have a bearing on
nationalities in their relation to crime, the main nationalities in Canada?

The CuamrMAN: The only idea I had in mind when I asked for this in-
formation was whether the clearing up of these slums and affording good hous-
ing accommodation reduces crime; that is what these housing people report;
and I thought it might be of interest to see how much crime costs and to see
if we could get any idea as .to how much good housing would reduce that
cost.

Mr. Stanrey: The Toronto report gives some valuable information.

The CuamrMaN: Yes; as far as Toronto is concerned.

We have only one more witness who has been called, and that is Mr-
Alexander Officer, of Winnipeg. He is coming at Mr. Heaps’ request. MTI-
Heaps asked to have him as the Winnipeg report on housing was more favour-
able than those received from other cities. However, we have several other
applications. I will suggest to Dr. Stanley that he call his committee together
to decide what witnesses we shall call. We have to ascertain what has been
done in England and what their viewpoint over there is.

Hon. Mr. RiNrrET: I understood from Mr. Sullivan that you were to have
Mr. Rancourt from Montreal.

The CrarvaN: Yes, there are four or five of these people who want to
appear, and I was going to take that up with the committee. There are threé
different people from Montreal who would like to appear.

Hon. Mr. RinFrET: I am quite ready to leave it to the sub-committee.

Mr. Stantey: I will ask the sub-committee to meet at 4 o’clock.

The committee adjourned to meet Tuesday, March 19, 1935.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMmMoONSs,
CommiTTEE RooMm 429,
March 21, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing, in accordance with notice issued, met
day at 10.30 o’clock, a.m., Mr. Ganong, the Chairman, presided. :

93 The following members were present: Messieurs Bourgeois, Church, Dorion,
_" ott, Ganong, Gray, Hanbury, Heaps, Howden, Meclntosh, Peck, Plunkett,
fret, Stanley and White (London)—15. :

Mr. Alexander Officer, Chief Sanitary Inspector of the Health Department
the City of Winnipeg, Manitoba, was called, examined and retired.

Mr. A. M. Ivey, President and Manager of the Toronto Housing Company,
onto, Ontario, was called, examined and retired. ‘

- Mr. G. D. Stanley, M.P,, filed a copy of the report of A. 8. Chapman, City
0 t:,ieil;Z (i3f )the'City of Calgary. It was decided to have this printed.— (See
) n o

"The Committee adjourned at 12.45 o’clock, p.m. to meet again Friday,
arch 22nd at 10.30 a.m. :

I P DOYLE;
Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons, Room 429,
March 21st, 1935.

The Special Committee on Housing met in Room 429, Thursday, March 21,
1935, Mr. A. D. Ganong, Chairman, presiding.

The CrarmMaN: Now, gentlemen, we will come to order as we have a quorum
Present. We have two witnesses to appear before us this morning; one is Mr.
.Alexander Officer, who is chief inspector of the division of sanitation and hous-
Ing of the city of Winnipeg. With the consent of the committee we will hear
rom him now.

ALExANDER OFFICER, chief inspector, division of sanitation and housing,
department of Health, city of Winnipeg, Manitoba; called.

The Wirness: I want to say right at the outset how kind the various gentle-
men have been whom I have seen this morning already. I am very anxious
ere to-day to do anything that I can to help with this question that we have
efore us. Might I take just one moment to explain the whys and wherefores;
88, naturally, you will have discovered by this time that I was born over in
cotland. I was educated there, and am trained by profession as a plumber.
ike most young fellows at that time I was sincerely interested in making the

e { most of my work and in acquiring technical knowledge about building and

Construction. I got my certificates for these, and then studied sanitary science
and finally got my certificate of the Royal Sanitary Association in 1900. T was
Very fortunate in receiving my first appointment a few months later, in February
OL 1901, becoming one of the assistant sanitary inspectors in the county of
unbarton, a county that embraces a very large rural area, and some small
Owns and so on. In 1912, Mr. Chairman, and for some years before that there
Was a great migration from my own land to Canada, and I felt that surely
ere must be room for a good sanitary inspector in this land; so I decided to
- ome to Canada and landed in Toronto in 1912. There I was very very kindly
Teceived by Dr. Hastings who was very anxious, and I think sincerely anxious,
0 have me in his department, largely I believe because of my training and
Qualifications. I placed my application before Dr. Hastings, and at the same
JAme T also wrote to Dr. Douglas of Winnipeg, from whom I received a reply
Mstantly to come on to Winnipeg, where I hayve been ever since. Shortly after
Y arrival in Winnipeg they turned me loose on housing work generally, and on
Sahitation in particular. So that leads me up to what I would like to read as
t Y own notes, Mr. Chairman. I may have to take about twenty minutes of your
e, hut not much more. After that if there are any questions that you would like
0 ask, and that it is within my ability to answer, T would be very glad to do so.
Several years ago, a great deal was said from the public platform and in the
Press ahout the need for immigration. Now, while this probably was meant to
% bly to homesteading, it was too much to expect that all immigrants would settle
e?_the land. Indeed, we found that many of these came to our towns and
lties, and this is a condition that has continued. The question then arises,
% £Te are these people to live? Few of them are in a position to buy a house
ﬂight away and our building and health laws do not permit of the erection of
cl'msy structures and the neglect of sanitary conveniences. Moreover, our
hlmafce demands that sufficient protection must be afforded from excessive
In summer and extreme cold in winter. It is therefore evident that it is
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expensive to build a satisfactory home even if the immigrant has the means,
I think we all realize that for some years past the construction of dwellings for
rent has been at a standstill. Many of the rented houses are like second-hand
clothing, cast off and requiring constant repairs. gF

There is an intimate association between housing and the two great elements
—the progress of society and the individual—which together constitute civiliza-
tion. Interaction between these two elements is such that each reciprocally =
produces the other. Amelioration of social conditions, of which housing is a =
salient feature, is followed sooner or later, more or less completely, by the moral
and intellectual advance of the individual. Conversely, every expansion of human =
intelligence improves and refines man’s external circumstances and social state. =
It follows then, that the quality of the housing provided must materially affect =
the character and extent of the individual and social change secured. With in-
creasing knowledge of sanitary principles and the ever-rising standards to the
life and labour of man, this factor of quality presents a problem in which there
can be no finality. Nevertheless, the knowledge already available not only.
emphasizes that need, but indicates the direction and the character of the
improvements required. Thus the quality of the various forms of housing
should insure that the housing is adequate for present and adaptable to future =
needs and conditions. :

Personal and community hygiene depends in no small measure upon our =
housing conditions. There will always be a large number of people who cannot
afford to purchase a home, and it becomes the business of somebody—civie, pro=
vincial or federal—to see to it that a sufficient number of suitable and sanitary =
dwellings are available. I have come to the conclusion long since that housing
is just as important as any other branch of the work of a modern departme{lﬁ o
of health. Tt seems to me that the time is sure to come when this matter will
be forced upon our legislators.

Before the war, there was a shortage of houses in Winnipeg due mostly t0
the steady stream of immigration, but since the war the shortage is much greater.
The speculative builder was busy erecting dwellings for several years preceding
the war. Many of these were of questionable construction, but that is anoth
matter. They were being bought about as fast as they could be built. At th
close of the war, prices of material were so high that the construction of dwellin
came to a standstill. During the past few years, the number of dwellings con= =
structed has increased, but not in anything like sufficient numbers. Mostly:
these are being built by people many of whom in turn rent out their old hous
if they own them. This is about all the accommodation that can be obtained b
the labouring man who cannot afford to purchase a home of his own. At th
close of the war, the housing situation became very acute all over Great Brita®
and the United States as well as in this country. In Britain, the local authorities. 2
city and county councils, became alive to their responsibility and commence
the construction of suitable dwellings for rent.

In a resolution on “ housing ” passed at the 1919 convention of the Sanitar¥
Inspectors’ Association of Canada reference was made to the size of building
lots, and it was suggested that lots for building purposes should be not less tha#
33 feet wide. This is a desirable width of lot, for after all, houses of any s128
cannot be adequately lighted on the sides in the case of narrow lots. I am 0%
opinion, that there is a demand for small houses built in terraces. It is qui*®
possible to build houses of say 4 rooms in this way, and this is the size of dwelli2
most needed. In such cases, lots with 25 foot frontage could be used to adva®
tage especially if there is sufficient depth of lot to permit of lawn and gar §
plots. In Winnipeg we are fortunate in having very few dwellings withot’
sewer and watfer connections. - In 1934 there were only 257 houses that were B9
connected with sewer and water mains. I understand, however, that this €02
dition does not obtain in other towns and cities. It cannot be denied that o
outside closet is a menace to health, both personal and public, and yet DO
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often do we find people, who for a small saving, will purchase small lots on the
outskirts of the city and build dwellings thereon. It not infrequently happens
that these same people a few years later begin to petition the city council for
sewer and water mains. I might say there that it has been the policy of city
council to extend sewer and water mains to little groups of houses of this type,
and that policy has been maintained right along which accounts for the fact that
we have only 257 houses in the city of Winnipeg without sewer and water con-
nections. I would like to know if there is any other city in Canada which can
offer as good a showing.

By Mr. White (London) :
Q. Out of how many?—A. I forget the actual figures, I will have to look
it up. That would be out of 46,820.

In the case of speculative building we have seen in the past how frequently
- dwellings have been constructed without due regard to comfort and sanitation.
- As already stated, in this country much hardship could be avoided, if only our
~ dwellings were built in such a manner as to exclude cold in winter and heat in
summer. Even when sufficient precautions have been taken to build a fairly
sanitary structure, we are constantly coming across dwellings erected on flimsy
foundations of wood, or rough stone, or what is worse, concrete of a doubtful
character. In a year or two these so-called foundations get out of level and the
buildings which rest on them get out of shape, with a consequent cracking of
plaster and buckling of floors, walls, ete. If there is no cellar the plumbing and
Water pipes become subject to the action of frost. Even where a cellar is pro-
vided, unless a furnace is installed, freezing will take place. Then again what
~shall we say about the old make-shift cellar with board walls and floor, and
without a window or other opening for ventilation and light? Fortunately, these
Insanitary “ holes in the ground ” are now very scarce in Winnipeg. Scores of
these are being replaced each year by proper cellars having walls of briek, stone
or concrete, and with cement floors.
As already stated, the houses most in demand are those of four or five
- rooms, and yet we find that by far the large majority of those that are built for
Speculation are much larger. In other words, the desire of the average working
“Man to own a cottage is not met, except when arrangements can be made direct
with the builder. It is a pity that no person, firm or corporation appears to be
Sufficiently interested to build for sale or rent, groups of small houses built say
1n terrace fashion. And yet, I am convinced that such houses would be eagerly
Sought after, if only they were given trial. With regard to the size of rooms, one
cannot, but be disappointed at the lack of sufficient given capacity, especially in
the bed-rooms of many of our more recently constructed cottages, and this is
also noticeable in many of our apartment blocks.
: It is with some amusement that we look back to the time of the cave-men,
-ftbut have we advanced so very far after all? Are not many of our apartment
- blocks just like so many bee hives. They may be satisfactory residences for
- Dewlyweds and old people, but surely they cannot be said to be homes suitable
- for family use. Natural light to the rooms along the sides of these buildings is
Seldom satisfactory on account of the close proximity to adjoining buildings,
- OVerhanging balconies, ete. I have seen apartment blocks in nearly all the
farge cities in Canada and I think those in Winnipeg will compare favourably
- With those in any eity as we have obtained a fairly high standard. But after
~all; this class of building only affords the means of placing so many more
- People to the acre, with no proper allowance for adequate sunshine and fresh
- 8, When we come to consider the basement suites of our apartment blocks,
We are foreed to admit that after all, very few are really suitable for occupation.
T ey are frequently dark and damp, and when windows are opened they serve
the purpose of permitting dust and dirt to enter the rooms. )
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Now, I suppose you gentlemen are all familiar with the rooming house
(so-called) —the illegal, and in many cases, insanitary tenements. The conver-
sion into tenements of simple family dwellings is a problem that we in Winnipeg
have had to face for a number of years, and doubtless other cities have the
same conditions. We have not yet found two families occupying one room, but
a number of families are apparently content to live in single rooms. You may
have read somewhere, as I did—I am not just sure where but I think it was in
New York—that one large room had been rented to four families with a line
painted down the middle of the walls from top to bottom and across the floor
on both sides, dividing the room so that each of these four families had a corner.
It is said that the arrangement worked very well until one of the families took
in a boarder. We have not had anything approaching that condition, I do not
think there is anything like that in Canada; certainly I hope not. Now, while
many of these people are compelled by foree of circumstances and the shortage
of small houses to live in this way, there are a great many who do it through
their own choice. It is surprising how many young married people there are
who settle down in this way. They rent a small furnished room with a gas plate
for cooking their meals upon. For such quarters they may pay from $10 to $35
per month, according to whether it is an attic room or a room say on the ground
floor. The rent includes water, light and heat charges, but the gas cooker has
a meter attached. We frequently find that the gas cooker is connected to the
meter by means of rubber tubing—a very dangerous proceeding; but these con-
ditions exist in Winnipeg right now. But I will not attempt to go into that.
Attic rooms only suitable for storage purposes are often found occupied by
families. Many of these rooms, having low sloping ceilings and only small
gable windows, are scarcely suitable for bedroom use; but when gas stoves are
in use they are a menace to health. There is also the danger that if fire should
oceur in such premises, families living in attic rooms would be trapped. In
addition, they are in danger of asphyxiation from gas fumes, due to defective
and improper connections for gas stoves. Many of these stoves are fitted by
incompetent persons, and as already stated, often the connections are of rubber
tubing. Few attic rooms are fit for family use at any time. In winter time
storm sashes are usually screwed on tight, and the inner sashes frozen, so that
little daylight and practically no sanitation is available. In summer, these
rooms being so close to the roof, are almost insufferably hot.

The following instance serves to show the necessity for frequent inspection
of such premises. In 1916 I inspected an old frame building, two storeys 1n
height, with attic rooms. The premises consisted of 26 rooms, and these, not
including four rooms formed of flimsy lumber in the cellar, were occupied by
13 families consisting of 39 occupants. Families were found in the attic rooms.
The cellar was vacated and the families removed from the attic. We kept the

premises under observation for a few years, but on inspection in 1925, we again |

found conditions as bad as on our first inspection. The cellar was again occupie
by a family consisting of a man, wife and three young children. The cellar 18
only 6 feet 8 inches in height, and of this, 2 feet 3 inches is above the le\_'el
of the ground surrounding the building. Two families, consisting of man, wife

and two young children in each case, were found living in the attic and occupy-

ing one room each. Both rooms were very small, one measuring only 7 feeb
by 9 feet 3 inches floor space. The ceiling was only 7 feet in height, and
this over only a small portion of its area; it sloped down to a wall 3 feeb
6 inches high. There was no accommodation for a bedstead, and in conse-
quence, the bed mattress was spread on the floor at night and rolled againsb
the wall during the day. Cooking was done on a small electric plate. The
inspection was made during the winter, and I found that there was no storm
sash, the window heavily coated with ice and frozen to the frame, so that theré
was no means of ventilation. The cubic contents of the room was 444 cubiC
feet—just enough with efficient ventilation for one adult. The room occuple
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by the other family was a little larger, 8 feet 6 inches by 9 feet, but other-
Wise conditions were similar. We secured closing notices and had the cellar
- and attic rooms vacated again. Tt is interesting to note that for the entire
premises the rents collected were $227 per month, as against $134 per month
paid in 1916. Most of the furniture was the property of the owner, and the
lessee paid $100 per month rent for the premises. That is what we in the

West call “ House Farming.” The crowding together of families in the manner

described is undesirable from other points of view besides that of health.

Individual family life cannot be obtained under such conditions; there is no

opportunity for proper housekeeping; there is lack of privacy; morals are
blunted, ete.

We took a survey last year, and I would like to put this in as part of
my evidence. I sent several along, and I hope you gentlemen received one.

The above cases also serve to show how profitable house farming may be
made. We are not, however, interested in this phase of the question. The
crowding together of families in the manner deseribed is a most reprehensible
factor. Many cases have come to our knowledge where a man and wife rented
& furnished room in the attic and both go to work. Any little clothes washing
1s done in the evening, the water being heated on the gas stove in the room.
In such cases it is not poverty that is responsible for this mode of living; it

18 not need, but greed. Several of these occupants have admitted that they
are in good financial circumstances. This class prefer to live in conditions
such as the above in the centre of the city where they may get the maximum
amount of pleasure with a minimum amount of trouble in housekeeping.

The instances referred to above which have come under cur own notice in
Winnipeg must be common to all large cities. It has been said that tuberculosis
15 essentially a disease of ignorance, poverty, bad housing and over-crowding.
When once introduced, tuberculosis is bound to spread in a house where there

-~ 18 a constant coming and going between members of different families, when all

: ave to use the same plumbing fixtures, when the rooms are overcrowded,

- Where natural light and ventilation is available only by smail windows which

are too close to adjacent buildings and storm sashes fixed. It has also been said
that bad housing is a great social problem, and this is true: but it is also a
Public health problem. We have been endeavouring to lower the mortality
rate by child welfare and other agencies, at considerable expense to our cities,
ut bad housing threatens to nullify all our efforts. Veiller, in his splendid
00k on housing reform, states: “ No housing evils are necessary; none need
€ tolerated; where they exist they are always a reflection upon the intelli-
gence, right-mindedness and moral tone of a community.

. That is my little brief for you; and I thank you, gentlemen, for your
kind attention and patience. In conclusion may I say just this, that I was
| 3ked what part of the housing question I was likely to deal with in coming
a8 t? Ottawa. I said the subject would be dealt with by me from the point of
View of public health. That is my specialty. If I had to start my life over

B - %g&in as a young man, even if I were to get riches in any other direction or

-

il € successful in any other way, I would still want to do the work I have been
~ "0Ing, give my life work for the upbuilding of a good Canadian people. That
e %an only be done under proper health conditions. I shall not be able, Mr.
bh aualrman, to answer any questions with regard to finance; not seriously, at

events; nor with regard to the economic situation. My answers to questions
Must, mostly be about public health.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. Mr. Officer, before you sit down—or you may sit down and answer
q“QStlons‘, if you like—can you give the committee any idea as to how many
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small type homes could be built there in the city of Winnipeg, or what the .
requirements are there at the present time?—A. To advantage? 3
Q. Yes.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. Can you give us, if Mr. Heaps does not mind, a summary of what was u
done there in 1920 and succeeding years in connection with housing?—A. Yes.

By Mr. McIntosh: f : o
Q. In what year did this housing undertaking in Winnipeg begin?—A.
We have a Housing Commission that commenced—I am not certain; Mr.
Heaps could probably answer that—probably about 1920 or 1921. I am not =
certain. b
Mr. Heaps: The committee started its deliberations in 1919 or 1920, and
then we took advantage of federal funds. 8
The Wirness: Yes.
Mr. Heaps: Which were made avaliable by the provincial governments.
The Wrrness: Yes. It was most successful.

By Mr. Stanley: 2

Q. Can you give us a summary of the type of owners there, for instance?
—A. Yes. These houses were built for people who were to purchase the
houses. May I be permitted to put it this way, they were built for white-
collar men; I mean, men who had standing salaries, who could afford to say,
“I will take this place and have a home built on it,” and the city had it built =
there and he needs to pay monthly sufficient to amortize the thing within
twenty-five or thirty years.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. About what would be the average cost of that ?—A. It would run\f;'
about $4,000, I think. '

Q. What would the total cost cover, over the whole period of years?—A.
I could not answer that.

Mr. STANLEY: Average rentals? :

The Wirness: It has worked out very satisfactorily. Practically none o0
these have come back to the city, and they still have money in hand. It h
been quite sucecessful.

Q. It has been an entirely self-liquidating undertaking?—A. Yes.

Mr. Heaps: It would show a little profit.

The WirNEess: Average rentals?

Mr. Heaps: There were no rentals.

The Wirxess: No, they were buying them out; there were no rentals.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. What amount of money do they require monthly to meet the cost?—=
One of my own staff was buying one of these, and he was paying $35 a month-
He had a six-room house. ‘

Q. They were the type of gentlemen you speak of, white-collar men?—A-

Yes. Well, I mean fellows that have a steady income.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. It was a straight municipal undertaking, was it?—A. Absolutely.
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Mr. Heaps: And administered by the city council for the commission.

The Wirness: It was through a commission; so it was taken right out of
city polities. The commission still undertakes to help us.

Mr. StanLEY: Tell us about-the constitution of the commission.

The CuamrMaN: The committee has been told that these undertakings in
many other cities turned out very badly, and cost the cities a great deal. We
have been told that Winnipeg is one of the outstanding examples of where it
has been a big success and has not cost the city anything. For that reason,
I think the committee would like all the information they can get as to why
it should be suecessful in Winnipeg when it was not in other cities.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:
Q. Where did your money come from?—A. It came from the Dominion
government.
Mr. Gray: What I would like to know is how the commission is consti-
tuted. -
Mr. Heaps: I can écrhaps tell you, because I had a little to do with it.

By Mr. McIntosh: : :
Q. Did your money come from the Dominion government?—A. I think
.80,
Hon. Mr. Evuiorr: Why should it cost the city anything?
Mr. Heaprs: No. We have had examples here of where municipalities such
as Ottawa, London and others have lost money; while in the city of Winnipeg
it was administered by a commission that was appointed by the council, with
members of the council on the commission and a few outside gentlemen interested
n it.
Mr. Gray: Did they change each year?
Mr. Hears: No, they were fairly permanent. Sometimes they changed.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. With regard to the commission about which Mr. Heaps is speaking,
- how many members were on it, and who had the whole say in their appoint-
ment? Did the government which put the money up have any say with regard
. to these appointments?—A. No. I think the government did a wise thing.
They left it to the city of Winnipeg, the city council of Winnipeg, to act on
their honour; and they have always acted on their honour, have been very
“honourable about it. Everything has worked out very, very satisfactorily.

By My, Stanley:
- Q. Who is the chairman of that commission at the present time?—A. I
think the city treasurer is chairman.
4 Q. How long has he been chairman?—A. To my knowledge he has been
City treasurer for twenty-five years.
Q. And chairman of this commission during its whole period of existence?
—A. Yes, during its whole period, 1 think. :

By Mr. Howden:
Q. May I ask the witness what type of house would be the most practical
- % provide at this time, the time that we have under consideration, for the city
- O Winnipeg if you like, or for any city?—A. Yes; we need a large number,
Brobably no less than 1,500, 2,000 or more homes for the low paid working man.
€8, we need 1,500 at least, probably quite as many again, of say four rooms.
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By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. At the present time?—A. Yes, at the present time. Doubling up is so
serious.
By Mr. White:

Q. Has anything been done in that direction by the city of Winnipeg
up till now?—A. How do you mean?

Q. For the lower paid workers; has any housing scheme been in vogue?—A.
No. The city of Winnipeg would be very glad to, if they had the means. We
had a committee on housing. The city council last year and this year appointed
a committee on housing, and this committee has sat every two weeks trying to
devise ways and means, sincerely anxious to accomplish something. But they
are at their wits’ end, because they have no finances.

Q. You refer to this scheme you have been deseribing as for the white-collar
man who had a steady salary?—A. Yes.

Q. But nothing has been done for the daily wage man?—A. No; and that is
the class that is most in need right now.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. How many houses were built in all under this scheme you have told us

about?—A. I could not tell you that. I would just be guessing, and I don’t want
to do that.

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. What is your survey, a survey of health conditions or a survey of
housing conditions?—A. The year before last, in December, 1933, the housing
committee asked me whether it would be possible to get a cross-section of the
city to ascertain just what our housing conditions were. During January,
February and March of 1934—they met in December of 1933 and discussed this
—I turned out sanitary inspectors, men properly trained, everyone of whom
possessed a certificate of the Royal Sanitary Institute in sanitary science, and
they are trained men in building construction, plumbing and so on and so forth,
so that we could get an accurate and consistent report from them. This I will
also submit, if you will permit me, Mr. Chairman, as the field card, the card that
was used for our field work. If the gentlemen would like to have some of these
cards, I would be glad to pass them around. This is the card that we used in our
field work.

Mr. Stavitey: It would be interesting to have some of these.

The CuarmaN: We had some and passed them around last meeting, T think.

The WrrNEss: These cards?

The CuaArMAN: No, the report on this housing.

The Wirness: That is the card that we used, gentlemen; and each inspector
went out to the distriet allotted to him and brought in this eard which is marked
off as you can see. You will see that in order to get speed, and to get the thing
done accurately, everything was set forth there. In the first group, for example,
you have the dwelling or tenament. It is alternative. He just puts a check
mark over the item in question. Only where it is necessary to write in some-
thing is the space left for that. Mostly it is a matter of checking. Where it 18
a matter of the number of men, women and- children and so on, these are fille
in. When these cards were brought in, then the wohle matter was set out on
sheets like these. If you would like to have these passed around to show how Wé
did our tabulation, that can be done. We tabulated this blue book that you have

on these sheets; and then we made out our report. One thing that we found 1B

the four districts surveyed was that of the total of 1,890 houses surveyed in the

four districts, we found 1,300 rooms used for both cooking and sleeping— o

families living in rooms that they had to both cook and sleep in to the number of
1,300 rooms.
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The Cuamman: Mr. Officer, I think what we are particularly interested in
is this: We have pretty much an idea of what the conditions are, but we would
like to have some idea as to what the remedy is.

Mr. Heaps: Mr. Chairman, may I perhaps ask Mr. Officer a question in that
regard. First of all, T was asked about the composition of the Winnipeg Housing
Commission, and-if it is interesting to the Committee I can give it to them.

Hon. Mr. Ervrorr: If Mr. Heaps will permit me, I was going to suggest
that we have some other witnesses waiting. The information that is especially
within his knowledge perhaps could be given to the committee when the other
witnesses from outside the city are not waiting. As I understood Mr. Officer,
Mr. Heaps knows the financial set-up and the whole story with regard to that
thoroughly.

The WirNess: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Heaps was one of the prime movers and
did know ; but then he may not have the facts at his fingers ends at the moment.
However, he did know.

Mr. Heaps: I have it here.

The Wirness: I am glad to hear that.

Mr. Heaps: We have it in the annual reports as issued by the Winnipeg
Couneil.

The Wirxess: Have you got the manual there?

Mr. Hears: Yes, I have it here.

By Mr. White:

Q. There is one other question I would like to ask. In this housing scheme
that has been carried out, did the commission buy land and build houses with the
prospect of selling them?—A. Yes. Suppose, for example, it was my wish to get
the commission interested in building a home for me. I chose my own lot;
they bought the lot and immediately started to build on it. The prospective
g}:vner of the house owned the land right from the beginning of his dealing with

e city.

Q. But the prospective owner of the house owned the land first?—A. Not
necessarily. They would buy it of him. He may have owned it.

Q. But the city did not lay out a subdivision and build houses with the idea
of selling them?—A. No.

Q. That is where our city fell down.

By Mr. Heaps: 5

Q. Mr. Officer, if we can come down to another aspect of the Winnipeg
housing situation, did you give to the committee the number of homes of a small
ype, of 3 or 4 rooms, that could be used to advantage at the present time in
Winnipeg?—A. Yes. Anything from 1,500 to 3,000.

Q. You were good enough this morning to bring down to me from Winnipeg
Some plans which have been submitted to the municipal authorities and of which
they have a set?—A. Yes.

Q. And I also understand some plans have been ‘submitted to the federal
government for the Winnipeg housing scheme. Could you, to some small extent,
elaborate on these plans which are here, and give some idea of what is meant by

em?—A. Yes, as briefly as I can. One set there deals with what might be
termed a garden city proposition. I am creditably informed, I think, that the

Temier, Mr. Bennett, saw that and was very favourably impressed by that
Sctheme. The Department of Health was asked to look into the plans and speeci-

Cations and so forth, which we did and we reported favourably on it. You
8lso have there—I don’t know what they sent you—but I think you have got a
Park subdivision at the other end of the city and a reclamation plan in one of
Our districts that has gone down, deteriorated.
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The CuamrmaN: What we are interested in is the cost, I think.
Mr. Heaps: We are coming to that, Mr. Chairman.

By Mr. Heaps:

. The architects and those interested in this question have gone very care-
fully into it?—A. They have done that of their own volition, without any obliga-
tion on anybody’s part.

Q. Yes; but they have come down to the question of what these places
could be rented at?—A. Yes.

Q. Of both 4- and 5-room units?—A. Yes.

Q. What were the rentals which they suggested would meet all require-
ments?—A. In introducing that garden city proposition, they deemed it wise—
the architects—to mix up the population so that there would not be too many
living in a given number of rooms; and they put in two or three apartments,
and a number of duplexes, and then single families, so that they would be all
mixed up. Take a single family dwelling, for example, of 4 rooms. They worked
out the rents approximately there, and they kept the rents high; they said
that house could be rented at $23 a month. In that $23 a month you have to
remember that they are providing central heating, adequate heat, and hot water,
an ample and constant supply of hot water. So that if you deduct what we
ordinarily pay for heating our homes and for our hot water, the rent of
these buildings would work out at approximately $15 per month.

Q. Would that cover all costs?—A. Yes. :

Q. Amortization?—A. It would, yes. Another aspect of the question that
crops up, and that also was of considerable importance, is that in the laying out
of parks and grounds and so forth, the public parks board have consented to
take over the entire responsibility and cost for laying it out.

Q. But the important point is that on the basis of $23 per month, these
homes could be rented and they would meet all obligations?—A. They would,
yes.
kThe CuAarrmAN: Without any public assistance whatever, except for your
parks.

Mr. Stanuey: Four per cent interest is what you are figuring?
Mr. Hears: He did not know.

By Mr. Heaps:

Q. You do not know what the interest rate involved?—A. I don’t know any-
thing about the ﬁnar_lces &

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. I am vitally interested in having some idea as to what steps were taken
by the city of Winnipeg, through the commission, to protect the credit extended
to the individuals, and what steps you propose to take to protect the eredib
that is being extended in this. It is a question of administration. We have
had some rather sad tales in regard to that, and perhaps you can tell us some-
thing of the steps that were taken in Winnipeg to make the matter such &
success?—A. T think it resolves itself into this, that the sinking fund trustees
of the city of Winnipeg took an active interest and rendered their best services
to the city of Winnipeg. All our city council for years and years past—pardon
me for saying this, Mr. Chairman—have been above suspicion. We have done
honest, honourable work to justify these efforts; and we feel that we could do
the same if money was given to us cheap enough to enable us to go on with 8
project such as this. !

By the Chdirman:

Q. Is it the city that is going to do this or private capital?—A. No; the
city would like to do it. Mr. Chairman, I don’t know anything about finance 0f
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. economics or any of those things, but I think that my city council is above
" suspicion, and that if the money was given to them rather than to real estate
~ men or anybody else they would do a good job, one that the Dominion could
~ look back on and see how well they had accomplished what they had set out to do.

By Mr. Howden:

B Q. I understood from some of your earlier remarks that the plan was
- self-liquidating?—A. Yes, it is.

Q. And that these moneys were coming back into the fund; you have
& since said that the city would like to go on with the building program if it had

- the funds?—A. Yes.
, Q. If the most of these enterprises have liquidated themselves, and the
- funds have come back, why have you not got funds, the original funds,
- back in your hands with which to go ahead
Mr. Heaps: It is sent back to the government.

Mr. Stantey: They belong to the government. It is government money. -
The Witness: Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Rinfret:

- . Q. I notice in this report that comes from your department that there
18 complaint made about some of the houses in Winnipeg; there is a complaint
- also made about occupancy. In many cases the house would be in fair
- ctondition but there are too many people inside the house?—A. Yes.
: Q. We have had discussions about that matter before. Have you any
¥ definite information as to how this could be met? Would it be possible to do
80 by controlling the occupancy of the different houses Because even new
~ Douses properly built may become unsanitary if there are too many people
Inside. Have you any definite information as to how that situation can be
et, whether by federal legislation or by munieipal regulations or how?—
A. Yes, T have. At least, I think I have, if I understand you aright. Let me
but it this way. . Just before I left that committee met. One member of the
Committee said, speaking about a certain district which was a district in which
lere were a lot of families housed in buildings that were originally intended
Or one family, “Mr. Officer, why don’t you put these people out?” I said,
~ Mr. Chairman, “I have not the soul or the conscience to throw those people
- out, because there is no place for them to go; but as soon as our expectations
‘are fulfilled, and the Dominion government helps us out with cheap money
8nd we can build places, we will apply pressure and get them out. But there
8 1o use of applying pressure now. There is no place for the people to go.”
If you take a district like Mr. Heaps and some other gentlemen here that
. Mow Winnipeg are familiar with, between Broadway and Portage and from
: Ma_.in street to Vaughan street, not so very many years ago that was a fine

Tesidential district but business crept in there. Then with the advent of the
Automobile, these business men left these homes and went out to the outskirts,
8d they rent these homes with say fifteen and twenty rooms. What family
3 ’gégoing to rent that kind of house and keep it warm in winter, for example?
B O the house farmer comes along and rents it from some real estate man at
- e nominal sum, gets second-hand plumbing and gas stoves of questionable
e and puts them in the rooms, and puts in families.
s Q. I understand that very well, but my question is this: When you have
- Uil new houses and they are in a proper state for one family to live in, do
‘y‘“l suggest, that there should be regulations to prevent two or three families
f-gr@wding in that house which is newly built?—A. Yes.
Q. You favour regulation or legislation?—A. We can do that now. We
apply pressure in cases of that kind right now.
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Q. But you say yourself that the families would not know where to go?—
A. No, they would not.

Q. Suppose the plan is carried out; what I want to know is if you suggest
that it should be coupled with a set of regulations controlling occupancy ?—
A. No, I do not think that is necessary, although we have all we need now
in the Public Health Act and city by-laws to guard ourselves in that way.
When the time is ripe to do so, and these people are moved out of these over-
crowded places, then we can get next to the owner of the premises and we can
say, “Mr. So-and-so, this place is occupied by eight or ten families to-day.
Now, you had better try to arrange for transforming this place into a proper
tenement, by the proper division or partitioning off of each family so that they
can have access to their own rooms without passing through the rooms of
another family, and have separate plumbing fixtures.” That can be done.

Q. If T understood you properly, you have in Winnipeg already regulations
that you could apply?—A. Yes.

Q. But you dare not apply them because these people could not go any-
where else?—A. No, they could not.

Mr. Staxrtey: Mr. Chairman, I suggest we go on with the next witness.

The Cuamman: All right.

Mr. Heaps: If you do not mind, Mr. Chairman, I think it would be very
useful if the committee had these plans at their disposal.

The Cramman: I would like to have one thing just a little clearer about
this. If the city of Winnipeg is ready to go ahead if it had financing, under
what conditions would it want financing?

Mr. Heaps: I will be quite prepared, Mr. Chairman, to discuss that at the
proper time, because I think I have the information.

By Mr. Howden:

Q. I would like to ask a question before Mr. Officer leaves. I do not
propose to make a speech, but I am quite familiar with the location that he
mentions in Winnipeg, between Portage and Broadway and between Main
street and Vaughan. Some of the better Winnipeg citizens owned homes there,
a great many of them at one time. They are big, fine houses, many of them
such as we have here in Ottawa; and as he suggests, they have been crowde
with many families. What is going to become of these homes? That is the
point.—A. That is just what I was trying to explain to these gentlemen here.

Q. When Eaton went in there, these homes sold for fabulous prices—A. Bub
they need not be lost. Don't you see, while these buildings are overcrowded
as they are just now, if we applied pressure which we can do, mark you, bub
we dare not if we are going to be human, the people would have no place to g0
But when the time comes and we apply the pressure and get them out, we car
get next to the owners of these places and say—as we have done, and as W
have a conerete instance of— Now, Mr. So-and-so, you can quite well rehabill~
tate this place by dividing it up.”

Q. Can they rehabilitate?—A. Yes.

(). When they have them out?—A. You said a moment ago that you kneW
that district. i1

Q. Well, I lived there as a boy.—A. You know that many of these are Wé
and suitably built and they can be quite well rehabilitated, reconditioned.

By Mr. Stanley :
Q. It is a matter of finance?—A. Yes, it is a matter of finance.
Mr. Strantey: Mr. Chairman, with your permission I would like to file
a copy of the report of A. S. Chapman, the City Engineer of the City of C?.lgary'
with respect to housing conditions in that city. I will not take the time
read it, T will just file it with the Committee. (See Appendix “B”.)
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The CramrMan: Just file it with the Clerk, and a note will be made of it
in the minutes.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Just following out the evidence of the last witness, and perhaps I
should make a minute of it so the committee would have in mind more clearly
than they have now what it is, the impression that I have gained with regard
to the financing of this scheme in Winnipeg, if I understand from conversations
with Mr. Heaps what has taken place there—he is very familiar with it all—
1t is that this money was advanced by the Dominion government on the guar-
antee to the Dominion government of the province, and with the province in
turn guaranteed by the municipality and city of Winnipeg; that this committee
that managed it was a local committee of citizens of Winnipeg; that they kept
supervision over the expenditure of this money, and they have made ends meet
at any rate.

The CrHarRMAN: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Eruiorr: That is correet, isn’t it?

Mr. Heaps: Substantially correct, yes.

Hon. Mr. Evviorr: That is all.

Mr. Cavcuox: I would like to ask Mr. Officer, for the information of the
committee, what does he consider the low wage earners; what does he consider
the limit of his earnings, up to what point?

The Wrrness: With regard to housing amounts, I should not be called
upon; I could not say more than, speaking of local conditions in Winnipeg, it
would be something like $15 and $20.

Mr. Cavcaon: Might I also ask if you believe in ownership or lease hold
for the low wage earners?

The Wirness: Yes, certainly; if he is in a position to do something along
that line he should be encouraged to do it.

Mr. Cavcuon: If he could only afford $15 a month rental for a house, is
that man in a position to tackle ownership? We have not found so here.

The Wirness: No. I doubt if he is.

Mr. StanLey: We have plenty of evidence, along that line, Mr. Cauchon.

Mr. CaucHon: I just wanted to get from him an expression of opinion
along that line.

The CuamrMaN: Thank you, Mr. Officer.

The witness retired.

The CuamrMan: We will now hear from Mr. Arnold M. Ivey, Yvhp is
Dresident and managing director of The Toronto Housing Company Limited,
74 Wellington street, Toronto.

Arxorp M. Ivey, called:

The CmamrMaN: You may stand or sit, just as you wish.
1 The Wrrness: I think I will stand at first; I will probably sit later, if
may, e
The Crmamman: Yes. .
The Wrrxess: If T may, I would like to give a little of the background
of the conditions that brought about the formation of the Toronto Housing

°9mpany. In 1913, because of lack of housing for the lower wage earners,
5606—2
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several bodies met in Toronto and as a result housing legislation was enacted
and the Toronto Housing Company formed. I would just like to read the fore-
word from our first report issued in 1913:

Canada should do more than banish the slums. The old countries
are doing that. Society is responsible for the slums and society must
pay for their removal, which will require something in the nature of a
surgical operation on the body politic.

But better housing has a far wider application than the slum prob-
lem. It means better living conditions for the great masses of wage-
earners, and will bring with it a toning up of our whole social and
industrial system. Enabling legislation will be necessary in every pro-
vince. We, in Ontario, have made a beginning, and the results set out
in this pamphlet, obtained under an Act passed this year, would indicate
that we are on the right track.

I agree with the statement that every Canadian workman of steady
habits should be able to own his home. The advantage is as much to
the State as to the individual, for the home must always be the start-
ing point for stregthening and elevating the social conscience and the
national life.

(Signed) W. J. HANNA,
The Provincial Secretary’s Office.

Parliament Buildings, Toronto.
At that time—

By Hon. Mr. Elhott:

Q. What year was that?—A. That was in 1913. At that time we found
there was a housing problem there and we endeavoured to solve it, but we
were unable to do it; that is, we could not build for the lower wage earners.

By Mr. Mclntosh:

Q. Is that the report of the provineial government from which you read?
—A. No, that is a foreword from the provincial secretatry which appears in
our report.

So we attacked the problem at a higher level; well below the level of
ordinary commercial housing. I have a book here with some photographs
showing you the type of house that we supplied. We were successful, and
before the depression we had a waiting list. To-day we have three vacancies.
Now then, we show pictures of our houses here (in a folder supplied by witness
and made generally available to members of the committee) showing both
exterior and interior views. We also have plans of certain buildings which it
might be possible to build.

By Mr. Heaps:
Q. Might I interrupt: What do you mean by “three vacancies”?—A-
We have 334 apartments of which three are vacant.
Q. Are these all apartments?—A. They are cottage apartments, doubles
and singles. :

By Mr. Stanley:

Q. What is the rental for these apartments?—A. They rent at from $23 t©
$40 a month. If you would like to look at some of them I might deseribe
them as I go along; that is if you wish. ;

Q. Go ahead?—A. We show first a modern type of house, a duplex, which
has an apartment on the first floor self contained, also on the seeond floor
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heated, with two bedrooms and bath, living room and kitchen, cellar, sundeck,
and veranda. It has a frontage of 25 feet and the monthly rental is $35. That
is a Toronto Housing Company plan. We next show a plan of a minimum
standard of amenities, that is a building for the lower priced tenants. These
duplex houses are not heated. They have three bedrooms, living room kitchen,
cellar and veranda, with a frontage of 17 feet. Such a house would cost $2,900
and would rent at $24.16 a month. As you will notice they are built in rows.
At either end of each row we have included some duplex houses; a self con-
tained apartment on the first floor and a self contained apartment on the
second floor. The duplex consists of two bedrooms and bath, a living room
and kitchen, cellar and veranda. It has a frontage of 19 feet 9 inches and
would cost $2,000, renting for $16.66 a month. The small bedrooms of these
apartments are 80 square feet in area. The city of Toronto have a by-law
which prohibits the building of any room of less than 100 square feet; so we
have a plan here of the same operation built in accordance to a specific by-law
with the larger rooms. Such houses would rent at $24.16, conforming to the
requirements of the by-law; and the duplex apartments would rent for $19.16
—the houses would rent at the same rate under either plan.

Then, I have a map of Toronto showing where we can purchase land—
and we have already purchased twenty thousand feet of vacant land in and
adjoining Toronto,—at a maximum price of $25 a foot front.

Now, if I may, I will read the report, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

The Wirness: In the year 1912 the shortage of dwellings and the number
of sub-standard houses in Toronto was such that a joint committee, represent-
ing the municipality, the board of trade, the manufacturers’ association, the
Civie Guild, and the city of Toronto, was formed for the purpose of finding
ways and means of remedying conditions. The Toronto Housing Company
Ltd. was incorporated and the housing legislation enacted.

Extracts from the Act of the Provincial Legislature passed in 1913 “To en-
courage Housing Accommodation in Cities and Towns.”

Petition of Company to council for guarantee of bonds

2. A company incorporated under The Ontario Companies Act, with a
share capital whose main purposes of incorporation are the acquisition of lands
in or near a city or town in Ontario and the building and making thereon
of dwelling houses of moderate size and improvements and conveniences to be
rented at moderate rents, may petition the council of such city or town to
Buarantee its securities, to enable or assist it to raise money to carry out such
main purposes.

By Hon. Mr. Elliott:

Q. Just there, Mr. Ivey: Some statement was made by somebody as to
that act having been amended or repealed; is that provision in force in On-
tario now do you know?—A. I really do not know; all T can say is that we
are still operating under it.

Q. You are still operating under it—A. Yes, we are, but as to whether
or not, the act is operating generally, I do not know.

By-law for guarantee of bonds with assent of electors

3. (1) If the council is satisfied that additional housing is urgently needed,
the council may, with the assent of the electors entitled to vote on money by-
aws, pass a by-law authorizing and providing for the giving by the couneil
Ol such guarantee to the amount and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter
Contained. -
05696—2)
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When assent of electors not required
(2) It shall not be necessary to obtain the assent of the electors to the
by-law if it is approved of by the Provin